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We are a leading UK commercial

- property company focused on high
quality retail and London offices

" Our objective is to deliver sustainable
long term value for dll our stakeholders

We do this by creating Places

People Prefer

Key metrics for the vear

Portfolio valuation

{proportionally consolidated'}

s139bn

2016: £14.8bn

Underlying EPS*

378p

20%6:34.1p

Total accounting return’

2 4%

2016: 14 7%

' See Glassary for defnitions.

For more information

‘You will find finks
throughout this Report to
guide you to further reading
or retevant information,

Far more information
wisit our website
www.britishland.com

EPRA NAV per share'

915p

2014: 919

Carbon‘intensity reduction
{index scare since 2009}

449

2014:40%

IFRS profit before tax

£195m

2016: €£1,331m

Feedback
We value your feedback.
Please contact us at:

Qur carporate website
www._britishland.com/
contacts

Follow us an Twitter
@BritishLandPLC

Dividend per share Underlying Proﬁti

2014 28.36; p 2016: £353m

Total property return’ IFRS net assets
3.1% £9476m
2018: NLI% 2016: E%.419m

IFRS EPS Customer satisfaction’ _
2015 131.2; p 2014 ':.9!10

Integrated reporting

We integrate sacial and envirgnmental information Ihmughout this
Repaort in tine with the International integrated Reporting Framework.
This reflects how sustainability is integrated inte our placemaking
strategy, governance and business operations. Our industry-leading
sustainability strategy is a powerfut tool to deliver lasting valye

for all our stakeholders,

For more information visit wwew.britistiland.cam/: inahitity




Places People Prefer
Curating the environnment inside and out,
using our scale and placemaking expertise

Customer Orientation
Reipondmg to changing lifestyles
We use our insight inte customers’
needs and keniify major long term
rends o creale environmenis in
tune with changing tifestyles.

Capital Efficiency
Disciplined use of capitat

We altacate our capital. manage
our finances and partner with

lixe-mindad organisalions to daliver

susizinable long term value.

nght
Creating great environments,
inside and out .

\Wa design engaging, suslzinable
places which bring peopte togeiher
through tha right mix of oocupiers,
sarvices and activities.

Expert People

The knowledge and skills to deliver
We employ Expert Peopte and
work with specialist partners

o creale insighl, develop skills
and build capability.
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Presentation of financial information

The Group Jinzncial siaiements are prepared under
[FRS where the Group sinterests injoint venlures and -
funds are shown as a single ine item on the income
statement afid balinwe sheet and all subsidiarias

are consolidated at 10035,

AL X 34 the h " pauy an
E] pm;uﬂ:mally censotidated basis when satting

. the strategy, detesmining annual priorities, making

investrnent and Rnancing decisions and reviewing
performance. This intludes the Group's share of
joins ventures and funds on 2 line-by-line basis ang
exchuales non-controlling interests in the Group's
mmmmqummmmm
are also presented on this basis. Refer to the Finandial
revicw for a discussion of the IFRS resulls,
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BRITISH LAND AT A GLANCE

Our ﬁlacemaking expertise delivers
the way people swork, shop and live

Total portiolio

W provide buildings and envir is
which cater to the changing needs of the
people who use them. Gur progeriies
bring busingsses and people togethen
they are funcliona! and authendic with
the right mix of occupiers, services and
activities and wa use our placamaking

PP

Frs k o enhance nol just indivi
buitdings but the overalt envvivonment.

¢19.1bn

assets under managament

¢13 90

British Land ownad

28m sq ft

of floor space

£6306m"

oomracted rent

989

oCoupancy rale

8.3 years

ipiced lease teron

J

To read more informalion aboul our
pecfarmance, go te pages 280 37

! Wndudes 100% of the assets ouwned by
the Group's joint venturas and funds.

7 Inctudes the Group share of joinl ventures
and funds and exdudes non-tontholking
interests in the Group's subsidiaries.

? See Glossary for definitions.

Retail Highlights

O Retan poctfolio 15 focused on a natwork of - 1.3 million sq i of i=ttngs 2nd renewsls
rufiti-tet Regional and Local cenires. reflecting 11% ahead of ERV

medarn consumer lifestytes. We provide high - Molti-det ERVup 2.8%

uality retail and leisure with best in ctass

Savites reding 2 range of consumes needs. We -~ Portfoliovaluation down 1.8%

-~ Over 1 billion of capital activity, refining
our focus on our inult-let portfolo

provede places to shop, 2at 2nd be enteriained;
places whech are comvenien| and accessible
ang which connect with local communities.

£90bn

assels undes
AN

Our prrtfolio hat tha
poestial to reach

60%

ol the population

Drake Circus ‘
Our Regional centre in Plymouth, This year
on its tenth anniversary we extended aur
avmership by acquiring the New George
Sireel Estate linking the retail ceatre and
the proposed leisure scheme, enhancing
ol control of the environment and providing
further scope for asset management,

www.britishtand.com/Orakelircus

To read more information abow! our
Relail portfolio. go 10 pages 32 o 34.

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017



Offices

Qur Offices portfolio is focused on our London
campuses which also include a mix of retail,
teisure and residential lo create atlractive
and engaging environments. They reflect

the tifestyle of today's workferce and appeal
to a braad range of occupiers. Outside our
campuses, we own a number of high quality
standalone buitdings in weil-connecled and
well-managed locations.

58.5bn'

<,

65000

people work atrass our
Offices partfolio

100 Liverpool Street, Broadgate

Our plans at 100 Liverpool Street significantly
increase the reail offer al Broadgale and provide
high quality, llexible workspace appealing to a
broad range of occupiers. This redevelopment,
at the gateway 1o the campus, adjacent Lo the new
Crossrail station progresses our vision 1o creale
a world- class, wibranl, mixed use destination

al Broadyate.

www britishland com/ 1008 iver prolStreet

To read more informatten about our
OMHices portfalio, go to pages 35to 7.

! Following disposal of 30% interest in The Leadanhall
Bulding completing alter theyearend. .

Gampuses 78%,

British Land ownved

Yes

S
anualo" e 27%

1,200

dillerent organisations, ranging from
internation:] trands to oot start-upes
are basad 21 our propertes.

Our places are increasingly

mixed use

Highlights
- Exchangad on the sale of 50% interast
in The Leadeahsll Building for 2 headline

price of £1.15 billion {100%) Arruss our portiolio, we are bivadening the
- 279,000 sg  of letlings and renswels r_mxot lubattefrgllecipa_nwlas: NG
1.4% atvead of EFV in the year lifestyles. Qur plans vall add cinemas, hotels,
; events space and broader commescas! uses, in
-~ Over TOO,000 sq it of lettings under offer addition Lo an expanding retai and dining offer.
of in advenced negotiations
- Portioliovaluation downd 7% Canada Water

We are developing gur masterplan for Canada
Water, aur 46 acre opporiunity in London, which
will be a mixed use urban centre from the start.
Working with the London Borough of Southmerk
and tha local community, our proposals feature
green and commnunity spaces and 3 nebwork of
pedesirian inks and walerways, drawing on the
herilage of the area_ Qur plans inciure a broad
mix of potential uses including relad, teisure,
entertainment, higher education and workspace
alongside up 10 3,500 new homes.

www.britishiand com/CanadaWater

Partroa™
Cluste’

Eden Walk

Eden Walk, our 538,008 sq it mixed use,
regeneration scheme in Kingston upon Thames
will comprise 40 new retail and resiaurant units,
38d newhomes and 35,000 sq it of high qualily,
modern and fexible office space, as well as

a cinema and pubtic spaces for evems.

www.britishland.comfEdenWalk

British Land | Ansual Report and Accounts 2017 3



Seratedic Report

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

- We have led our sector in a number
of outstanding deals reflecting the
quality of our portfolio

John Gildersleeve
Non-Executive Chairman

Total accounting return'

2. 4%

016 18 TR

Dividend per share

292,

2018: 28.36p

>33%

weornen s represantabion across Evecubve
Conmattee mambers and dwact raports”

Q4o )

of alt electricily we purchase cames from
renewable sources, working towards 100°%
asan REWIT parter

' Pleass see the Glossary for definibon.
74 Al o D, 2 .

2055

Mot many peaple predicted the political
oulcornes seen aver the tast 12 months, nat
only in the UK, but around the world. 1t was
certainly an eventlul year.

But good businesses become sirgnger when
they are put to the test and | am delighted to
repaort that, desgite uncertainty cassad by the
UK's decision te lzave the EU, we have nol anly

detnonsirated the resilience of our business

but 2150 shown how our strategic approach
enables us to respond ta suchissues.

In the weeks following the EU relerendym
there was a peak of uncertainty around the
full impacts that would be felt by businesses
and the UK as 3 whele. For us invery broad
lesms, we considered the potential impact
an consuraer confidence affecting our retail
bysiness and what the result could do

1o business conlidence, W particular the
thoice of global erganisations to locale
large parts of Lherr businesses in London

4 British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2017

Qur stralegic approach is based on long

term trends. We radk consumer and occupier
eXprriatiens and key thames impac ting our
business o ensure we address these iy creating
-Plates Poople Prefer. As the worlds of work and
Ieizure betnme increasingly connected this
has led to aur asseis bacomeng more mixed wse,
<o that progle can Tl the neads of multiple
demands on their time. Cur Londen office
camngss appreach and molli-iel sl cenire
{ocus has proved (o be a real differentiator

in this respact, crealing nat anly eutstanding
Luiltings bt enabling ws o make subsiantial
improvernents to the ovarall ewironmenis
inwihich they sit.

Manmy of ur investrpent s over the year have
Been ko stnecture our portiolio around these
themes and of course work on the mejority
of tiremn started balore 73 June 2014, We had
aready posiitied our hrsinecs to respond.

Sa desgite the uncartainty cavsed, Botish Land
has performead well and | would Uke o thenk
evarypme why works for and wath us for their
contritalion during this unpredictable bime.
Underlying Profit ler the year was £390 million
up 7£%. The valuation of our portiolio was
marginaity dewn 1.4% with EPRA NAV down
st B.4% at Y19 pance per share wath both
eotupser and swesler demand ramaining

good oeer the year. Significantty, valuation
performance in the second half was sironger
Bhan the Gest

The Board has recommended a fourth quarier
dividend of 7.3 pence per share making a totat
of 722 pence {or the year Together with the
movemant in net assel velue, this brings total
Accounting relern to 2. 79%. We have proposed
a first quarter dhvidend of 7.52 pence per share
and 30.98 pence for the financial year ending
3} March 2018 representing a further 3%
increase, signalting our confidence in

grovgng ncome aver the mediym term.,

Eastyear 1 civnmented that maoro-economic and -
potitica! risks had effected tha FTSE 100 Shares
in real estate have heen significantly impacted by
unces taiy. As 2 largely domesticaily focused
business oparating in sterlng, UK REMs are more
exposed to the imphications of Brexit on the UK
economy than the majornity ol ihe FTSE 100,
Experience also shows that gaps between
share price and reported values expand during
tnes of encertainty znd there continues to

be avade range of views on the potential

impact of lhe UK's dedsion to leave Eurgpe -

on our markets.

So while our bysinessis in good shape we
acknowdedge thal the epvironment is maore
unceriain. We have led our secior in a number
of putsianding deals reflecting the quality

of pur porifolio. Just a couple of weelks after
the EU referendum we exchanged on the sale
of Debenhams’ Hagship slare on Oxford Street
for E£0D million, on terms agreed belore the vote.
Ang in March 2017, together wath our J¥ partners



Oxford Proparttes, we 2xchangad contracts for
the sale of The Leadenhalt Building for a headlme
pricz of E1.15 biltion, the most axpensive tmildmg
euersuidm the City of Lendon.

- We've 2lso had good letling activly over the year:
ol svidence that our properlies 2re defivering
whal our customers wani As a result our perifolio
isvirtually full al 98%. In a changing world,
sustainable places are becoming increasingly
sought after and continue to create valise as they
are both resilient and weall positionzd te respond
to thanging cuslomer neads. Wa are proactively
designing new bultdings with a fecus on haglth,
wellbaing and productivity ef the consumers

and employees who will use those bulldings.

In additron, inihatives to deliver cur Lotal Charler
make positive local contributions andg belp our
places become part of their lotal comimunities,

As the Gevernment's Minimum Energy
Eifidency Standands have lhe potential to aifact
propeyty values, our aumrd-winning eficiency
programme has positioned our portiolin

well and we have become a partner of RE100,
committad to using 100% elactricity from
renewable sources. Qur target for 3% of owr
UK supplier warkforce (o be apprentices by
2020 also aligns with Government ambitions
and our Supply Chain Charter supported

our first Modern Slavery Act Disclosure.

We continue lo be recognised lor our leading
stance on sustaingbilily issyes, following our
2016 Queen’s Award for Enterprise: Sustainable
Development. Qur industry-leading enargy ang
carbon reductions resulled inBrilish L and baing
named European Sector Leader in the 2016
Glohal Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark for
the third year running, and wanning the CIBSE
Test of Tima Award 2017. We have cut energy
intensity by 35% and carbon intensity by 44%
across our portiolio since 2009, as wa make
sirong progress towards our challenging 55%
reduction targel by 2020.

Details of the thanges to our Board and
Commiliees during the year, and since

the year end, are set out in the governance
reports which begin on page 40.

John Gildersleeve

Non-Executive Chaieman

For the Chairman’s gavernance review,
see paqges 50 1o 65,

Glabal Real Estate Sustainahility
Benchmark 2016 - European sector
teader for retail/offices (listed)

Highlights of the year

1

1.3m sq it of lettings

across our Retail portfolio,
11% ahead of ERV

Altracling new oCCupiers, upsiang
exisling reiailers and increasing .
leisure and food & beverage.
Continuzd sutparformance of loolfall
and sales growth benchmarks.

Exchanged £1.5bn of asset
sales, 9% ahead of walustion
including gur 50% interestin

The Leadenhall Building for £575m,

the £400m disposal of Debenhams,
Oxlord Street and £226m of supesslores,
reducing superstore weighting in the
partfolio to 4%,

Established our Bright

Lights skills and emplovment
programme for our suppliers,
occupiers and local
communities

Includes 70 placements on our Starting
Out in Retail programme, with 75%
moving wnto tong term employment.
L7% apprentices in our tier 1 supply
chain pilot study as we work towards
our 2070target of 3%.

British Land | Annwal Report and Accounts 2017

2

Progressed 1m sq ft

of lettings across our

Office portfolio

2000 < it of teltings coinpleted
wth guer 700,500 sq ft undar offer or
n advanoed negotiations; Bvs includes
140 D00 sq ft of lettings at 7 Clarges
Street and £ Kimgdom Séreel shortly
after completion on terms ahead of
pre-referendum ERVs,

Progressing our development
pipeline with 2.3m sq ft of
planning consents secured and
a further 1.3m sq ft submitted
Indudas glanning secered at

Eden Walk, Blossam Sireal

and 283 Finshury Avenue and
submissions for Meadewhall

Leisure and 1 Tritan Square.

o



Srrategic Report

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW

Our results reflect the significant
demand from both occupiers and
investors for the places we create

Ct Grigs
Ehizt Executmeofﬁcer

Underlying Prufit growth'

74%

o £3%0m {2015; £363m]

Yaluation movement'

-1.4%

0 435 reduction in EPRA NAY per share’
™ I15p 2016 919p)

Customer satisfaction’

81/10

[2054: 2910

Community grogramme beneficiaries

35,600

tncluding jobsezkers, ap,
and schoolchildren 12016 29 500!

! Please see the Glossary for defirdtions.

We have dalivered good results despite
chaltenges in our markets following the EU
referendurn. Cur markets were stronger

than many anticipated and our sirategy. which
positions us to benehit irom tong term trends,
is delivering. Rising consumer expectations,
the blurring of work and lteisure time and the
transiorming smpact of technology are the
key themes shaping demand for our space.
Nearly one year after the EU referendum, we
see clear signs that the impact of these trends
is acceterating, driving potarisation in our
markets. Our teasing performance has been
qood, contribuling to strong earmings growth;
we have inlensified our focus enwhere our
placemaking expertise can enhancevalyz,
altracting a broader range of occupiers: and we
have sold well, providing the capital lo exploit
opportunities we have within our portfolio.

Qur strategy is to differentiale our space

by providing places which reflect people’s
changing lifestyles. We use our placemaking
expertise {0 create great environments both
inside and outside cur buildings - creating
Places People Prefer. This underpins our
focus on cur multi-let retail properties and
our London campuses which are increasingly
mixed use.

Investmenl markels were weaker in the first
hall, reflecting uncertainty both befora and
alter the EU referendum, but irnproved in
Lhe second half as the UK economy proved

6 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017

resitient. Overall, our EPRA n2l asset value wes
down just 0.4% in 915 pance per share Retad and
Oififices valuations were down L8% and .78
respaclively with both seciors experiencing yietd
expansion in the first hall A medest contrachion
in the second half. Dur disposals provide clear
evidence to suppert these valuations.

Our portfolio is virtually full with occupancy

of 98%. Daspite the low level of vacancy. we
signad 1.7 million =q it of lettings and renewals
in the y=ar. on averaga 8 (% ahead of ERVY. in
both the retail 2nd office markeis we are secing
&n increzsing focus on the best space in the
best locations.

In Olfices, whara the result of the EU
referendum creaked greater uncertainty, we
have seen occupiers conlinuing to commit, but
ofien alter lenger and more thoughtful decisicn
making processes. Our leasing performance
was strong, with space let oF tarmns renewed
on 279.000 54 it of space in the year, on aversge
1.&% ahead of ERV. This included the remairng
space at The Leadenhall Building and Marble
Arch Housa. At 7 Clames Strezt, the office
space was over 80% lel just four months afler
taunch. in addition_ we have 700,000 sq i of
space uvnder offer or in advanced negotiations
across our development pipeline. This includes
102000 sq ft at & Kingdom Slreel where almost
80% of the office space was under offer within
2 woek of complation in April 2007, on lerms
ahead of pre-referendum ERVs, and 1 Triton
Square where we are under offer on 315.000
sq {trepresenting all of the office space on”

the proposed redevelopment.

Our focus on Loaden remains. We expact London
{o continue as a leading global diy reftecting its
dgiverse pool of intellectual capital and repulation
for innavation, as well as its culture, language
and sitong regulalory and legal framewark.
Our aclivity this year is testament to the quality
of our space which reflects the needs of taday's
accupiers. By providing space which reflects
the evolving way people are working and

" blending their work and leisure time, we help

our occupiers attract and retain key talent.

Our newest spaces are more flexble, catering
ta the demanids of big and small companias with
the option of shorler leass lerm arrangements.
This year, we will be launching a branded Rexible
workspace offer which enables us lo caplure
incremental dernand from the increasing
number of smatl businesses taking space in
London as well 35 meeling a growing need
amangsl our existing occupiers for flexible
space for specific projects and teams. We have
atready agreed our first flexible workspace
tetting at 2 Finsbury Avenue, extending our
relationship walh an exisling occupier at
Paddingtun Central for their digital team,

In Retail, demand remained firm in the year,
despite wider uncerliainty for consumers and
relailers alike. We let more space on belter
lerms o a wider range of occupiers thanin the
previous year. This amounted to 1.3 million sq fi
of leasing, on average 10.8% ahead of ERV.
Consumer spending was resilient in ihe manths
foliowing the EU referendum, but weaker sales




data inrecem monihs seggests that consumers
ate becoming more cauliows with higher prices
impacting disposable incomes. Retlzrsare also
anficipating 2 more dallangtng envinonment,
with import cost inflation_ highar budiness rates
in sone areas and the Matonal Living Wage
putting pressure on Mangns.

These dynamics have inoreasad redgiters’ focus
on spaca which allows them to trade profitably
across a range of channels. Our Regional and
Local portfolio supports their strategy. Our
Regional centres provide 3 broader offering,
suiled to larger, Rzgship stores and atracting
visitors from a wide catchment for & longer
dueell ime. Cur Loc2i centres 2ne conmvenent
and accessible and s they work wall fer click
and collect and more tzrgeted shopping trips,
aswell as providing a range of amemtizs lor
local communities. Qur placemaiing activities
and our cornmunily engagemeni encourage
new and rapezl visits to cur sites and this has
driven continwed cetperformance in oth
footiail {zhazd of benchmnark by 240 hps_] and
retafier in-store sales growth 220 bps ahead).

We have madz good progressonour |
development pipeline. As well 2s completions
at & Kingdom Sireel 2nd the offces elemant of
Clarges. we comnilted {0 the redevelopment

of 109 Liverpool Sireel at Broadgate and works
commenced there in Decerber. UBS have now
vacaled 860,000 sq i of space aaoss the campus
on completion of thesr ooccupancy of 5 Broadgate.
Lacated at the gatevay (o cur Broadgele
campus and adjacend to the new Liverpool Street
Crossia® station, this development progresses
ourvision to creale aworld dass. mixed use
deslination at Broadgale providing a range of
space, including sigrificant additional retail
and restaurants.

Gross investimant aciivily since tha start of
the vear totalled £2.0 billicnand included the
exchange of cur 50% interest in The Leadenhall
Building, which is duz to complele iater this
manth, reflecting our disciplined approach lo
capital allocation. This project has delivered
_annualised returns of 25% for us and our JV
partnar since our comeaitment in 2010 and
demonstrates how our standalene office
properlies provide liquidity. allowing us to
develop and trade apporiunisticaily, On the
retail side, we sold €881 milkion of single-tel
and non-care retait assets, including
Oehenhams, Oxford Street far £400 million -
. and £226 million of superslores, reducing the
weighling of superstores within our portialio
to 4%. Dur £195 mitlion of acquisitions were
focused an adjacencies to existing holdings,
notably the New George Street Estate in
Plymouth |E&4 millicn] which complements
Drake Circus and 10-£0 The Broadway
{£4% million), adjacent to Eating Broadway.

The net impact of our activity was a 7.4%
increase in Undeslying Profits to £390 mittion.
Like-for-like income growth of 29%. together
with lower finance cosls reflected in a lurther
reduction of our weighted average interest rate
o 3.1%, has mare than affset the impact of
disposats. Diluted undertying EPS was up

10.9% al 378 pence per share. The finat
dividend paymem will b2 7.3 pance per share,
bringing the full year dividend to 29.2 pence per
share, an increase of 3.0% and contributing lo
a total accouniing relurm of 2 7%, The Board

-15 propasng 3 quarterty dradend of 7.52 pence

per share or 30.88 pence lor the coming year,
a{urther increase of 3.0%. The impad of recant
sales and expiries on fulure profits. cur targst
payoul rato, and the uncertain ersronment
influenced the Board's thinking, as well as the
oppariunities that wa have within the pertiolio

o graww income over the medium termn.

The impact of our invesiment achivity has been
to reduce our prupurtionally consolidzled LTV
to 29.%% at March 2017 from 32.15% in March
2016. This falls further o 28.9% pro forma

for the sale of The Leadenhall Budding. With
our completed developments subsizntially

lat, and good progress en planaing and pre-lel
discussions aaross the pipsline weare
well placed to exploit tha oplienziily we have

1o create value and grow incorme. We have
idenufied near term and medium ierm
opportunilies that enable us to apply cur
development and placemaking expertise

in pregrassmg the delivery of our sirategy.

Las! week, we gblained approval from

the London Borough of Camdean on the
redevelopment of 1 Tnlon Squareat Regent's
Place, whers we are under offar on 2l of the
office space. We expecl 1o commsl o thas, as

well as refurbishments of 135 Bishepsagio 2nd

1 Finshury Avenue at Broadgate in the coming
months with an associated cost of ¢.CI00 millbon.

Looking further ahead, our medivm term pipeline
oovers a range of uses, incduding office-ted
development in London and retail and minced use
davelopment across the country, notably Edan
Walk in Kingston where we received planning
permission for our 538,000 sq ft mized use
regeneration during the year. We will mamtain
an appropnate level of development risk: for
our office-ted developments commitment is
tikely {o be influenced by the progress of pre-let
discussions. We have a disciplined epproach
to capital altocation and retain Aexbitity to
respond Lo the changing envircament.

in addition, we are making progress ai Canada
Waler where we are working doselywith key
stakeholders including the London Borough of
Southwark. We hetd our fourth public consuliaion
in May 2017 and are fargeting submission of

a planning application around the end of this
financial year. We have held discussions with

a wide range of potential occupiers and have
been encouraged by the response.

British Land received the Queen’s Award lor
Enterprise in 2016, the UK's highest accolads
for business success. One year on, we are
continuing te deliver stroag econamic, social
and environmental performance. Qur industry-
leading energy and carbon reductions resulted
in British Lang being narmed European Sector
Leader in the Global Real Eslate Sustainabitity
Benchmark for the third year running and im
the COPClimale A List. we rantan the top 9%

of giobz! compardes teckling dimate change
Ve have lzunchad Bright Lights, cur skills
and empleyraent grogramme helping avade
range of people indo work within sur indusiry.
Thal includes within British Land. 1wes 250
particuiarly pleased to anneunde that we had
updsted cur policy on Shared Parental Pay ko
provide equst enhanced benefits for all parenis,
onz example of howvwe are promating the
development of 2 diverse z2nd indlusive team,

Outdook

Lonking forwerd. the gicture is 2 mixed cne.

Ve Brexi precess has bagun bat uncertzinty
will continz for come considerable ime. Thouwgh
ihe UK ecumorsry bas performed well since the
vole, Wk G20 eXpRct nere il ation ang intreasing
pressure andisposable incomes. This will impact
consumerbehaviour and redaller profitabRity.
Eondon eocupiers, parlicularly financal
msliniens, are making coningsncy plans it
there is 3 widz range of possible sutcomes here.
Our conversaiions with gocupiars tedl us that

2 large majonly continue ta vzlue Londan and
believe itz plaoz 35 2 global centre,_ zs we do.

Although we are secing businesses taking
longer te comnirit and being moere thorough in
assessing oplions, we see polarisation of both
oocupier and mvesler damand accelerating with
an increasing leous on the besi quality space.
Our resulls show that our space continues to be
attrachive to occupiers and invastors atike, with
strorg leasing 2crass the portiolio, profitabls
tienncals and materiat sulperformance an

our Retait aperating meitrics. This reflects the-
centisuing execution of cur strategy. providing
space thal responds lo changing lifestyles

and really fulfils customers’ needs.

In this uncerisin envirenmeni, we expact 1o
benefit from the rasilience of our business, the
quality of our pertfolio and the sirength of our -
finances. We also lock ferwand with cautious
optimism as we belizve that we can generate
incremeniz2l reluns Sy atlecating capital o
development apporiunities we have created,
whilst keeping cisk at an appropriate level and
flexbility te respend te changes in our markets.

Chris Grigg
Chief Execulive Oflicer

For more information on Qur business
model. see pages 10and 11,

For more informration on our 2017
fuilyear resulls presentalion see
wenw britishard oom/results

For mmore information on our approach to
sustainability see www britishland com/
sustainability
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Strategie Repart

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S REVIEW CONTINUED

Owr pri_uriﬁes for the vear ahead

Customer Orientation
- Further deelop cuslomer insighis
— - Dalreer lechnology drven innovations

Right Pluces

- Deliver next steps of the
Bruadgate Masterplan

-~ Submit Canada Water planning

- Deliver lexible workspace offer

Capital Efficiency
-~ Beat budget and achieve leasing targets
— Recyde capial lo improve returns

Expert People
- Promote aninclusive, performance
" driven culture
- Creale 3 mora custamer {ocused
organisation

with Chris Grigs

How is British Land
responding to BREXIT?

We run British Land 1o lake advantage of
lang term trends bul also to be resilient,

5o we 2re positioned to operate in a range
of market conditions - property is a cyclical
business. The quality of the assets we

gwmn and the strength of our finances

serve us well 25 we face the polenbal
challenges of Brext.

8 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Brexit is just one faclor impacting our
markels. Technologyis at theheant

of many far-reaching changes we are
seeing. In London, Brexlis acceleraling
the rends we are alraady responding
1o: how people wark and ive, the growth
in creative and tach indusiries, and

the retative dechine i Semand rom
traditional banks.

We continue 13 believe in Londen in e
lony term and are encouraged by the
demand we are seeing from occupiers
and investars for our boldings Since

the voie. Howaver, we have planned

for 3 period of uncestainty: we have
moderaled our speculative development
risk and have contueed (o diwversify our
office occupier base. We have made gond
prugress on leasing discussions and this
puts us in a strong position to commmit

la new developmenls te generate
incremental relurns, while keeping

risk at a sensible level.

Sales over the last year, including

The Leadenhall Building, have reduced
our leverage further puling us ina
strong position te take advantage of
investment opportunilies we have
created within our portfolio.



66

Understanding these
different stakeholders
and the reusons why
they prefer one location
to another is wwhat
creating Places People
Prefer is about.”

We have a clear purpase at British Land to
creaie Places Pegple Prefer and this drives
the business. We have 3 relentless locus
‘on custamers so we create the places

they want; not just individual buildings but
extarmal emdronments too - it's something
I refer lo as “inside and out”. And, we have
the scale and capabilities to deliver on

this long terw approach.

This means we invest heavily in data and
insights to understand whal customers
realtywanl, informing where we aflocate our
capital. This ensures our propertas refiect
the changing way pecple live their lives and
provide what businesses need to thrive.

By investing in well located schemes

we can creale great spaces alongside the
broad range of amenities, experiences and
services people want as their work and
home lives becoming increasingly blurred.
This is why our London campuses and
multi-let retail centres are becorning
more diverse and mixed use.

Our operational scale, experlise and

tong term approach mean we have the
capadity and skills 1o rnake the investrents
‘required and (o deliver the benefits.

It is the combination of all these things
which makes us different,

You talk a lot about customer
focus — why is this imporeant to
a property investment company?

Successiul businesses undersiand and
detver whal thair customers want. For
us Lhe inleresting conversation has been
defining who our cuslomers are. I's not
just the businesses who lease space at
cur relail centres and offices but alse

the peopte who work in them, the people
wha choose to shop and spend lime there
and the local communities who live in
and around them. Understanding these
different stakeholders and the reasons why
they prefer one tocalion io another iswhat
creating Places People Prefer s aboul.

An gutsianding place caters for all and
often increases the connection between
them. i your customers preler your place
then your business is well positioned for
success. That's why we focus on long term
trends affecting how we werk. shop and
live and invest in our properties to ensure
they remain relevant lo our customers.

This means people not onty want lo be in
and around vur properies bul want to stay

Ourvalues

Gur values underpin avarything we do.
They are:

Do what is right, Work cfficientty
not what is easy as one team
Make commercial Make things
decisions that create happen
long term value

there longer too. Our new L eisure Quarter
at Glasgow Fort comprises restaurants,
green public spaces and children’s packet
parks in which to gather, sodalise and
play. More car parking was also added

in response 1o shopper feedback. This,
with olher imsestinents, 1s changing the
demugraphic of people shopping at

the centre and the retaiters we altract.

in lumn, foatfall has continued lo iivase
and this is fuelling rental growth.

We are changing our Londen campuses teo
Broadgate, once home to predominantly
large City inandal institubions, is becorning
a seven-day-a-week [ocation. Itis the
largest pedesinanised commarcial space
in London and is respoanding to the changing
needs of office occupiers, beneliting from
its position in a dynarmic part of London

and the apening of Crossrail. The waywe
are configuring buildings and offering more
flexible space on more flexible terms mean
wa are already appealing lo a wider range
of occupiers. By adding more restaurants,
shops and events we are braadening the
appeal well beyond the employees of the
businesses based there.

For more on Chris’ views see
www.britishiand.com/CEOblog

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017 9



Sreategic Hepaoret

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

We apply our placemaking expertise to our
high quality portfolio to generate enduring
demand from a broad range of occupiers

e Capital Efficiency
We inance our busi veith a cornbination of
equity and dedl. We manage the balance to adjust
the scale and nsk prefite of the Company.

Hoxw we create value

We apply our placemaking
expertise to create great places
Jor modern lifestyles. These
are Places People Prefer.

Our scale brings oparabtional efficences. influence
angd access lo opperunitizs, as welt as the capaaty
to irvest in our portfolio.

We have choices over how o allocaie our capiial We can
invest in the existing portlalio. develop new properties or
purchase properbes. We evaluate the prospeclive returns of
each option to inform ger aliocatien of capital We 2lso consider
returning surplus capital lo shareholders.

' Customer Oricatation

We can choose io sell properties o orysiallise the value that we We understand our
create. This provides capital for reuvestmenl into opportunities with ¢ )
greater prospeciive returns for shareholders. We monator opportunities . IS pmfefren
1o dispose of assets which are nol alignad with our strategic priorities and identify major long
or do nul meet our return aspiralions on an onguing basis. term trends impacting our

. ) ) markets, to ensure chat

For more information on Capital Efficiency sez pages 22 and 23. et |J| we create and
. operate respond to people’s

changing lifestyles.

Fur Tare intprThation on Sustomer

Expert People
\We hove proven expertise n the areas reguired to deliver most

value from our porifolio. As well as established property skill sets Grientation see pages 16 and 17,

such as asset ranagerment and development, we are invesling

in capabilities required to ensufe our properties meet the changing

ways that peaple work, shap and live including data analytics

and insights, markeling and cusininer senvice,

For more information on Expert People see pages 24 and 25.
We undertake around
o | 44 000
s > Our relationships and partners cusloemer surveys each
: Our relationships with arange of stakeholders yoario md:f:tand wehat o
H : » . piars and their .3
: intluding our customers, investment pariners and eanpt weant |
: and the communities in which we operate are our pmes’
key Lo our success.
Far more infermation oa our stakeholders
: see page 15.
Dot e eeeemeeeteeemttet s eem s et eeteae et e s e e et et enen e ees et eeee et ereses et et et ess e s e et e e ems e  Pesitive torour stakeholders ;. .
reinforce our relationships H

10 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts ?ﬁl?



- Outputs

Financial performance ™ ------
Rental intnmve frem our properites less
eperaking 2nd fnepce cosis, is recogrised
as our Undderlying ProﬁLAsaRealEslate
liwastrazn Trost IRET] we are requirad to
distritnrie 2 least 7% of tax exemnp] property
income @ sharehalders as dividends.

LTINS

£50m

invesied in enharcing
eNvironmants acress the N
portfoltinin the last year Ciher income, expenses and mgvaments
in the valuation of ger properties ansiale
to movament i our nai assat value.
For maore fermatinn en o francsl
performante see pages 3710 £2.
Right Places We have assembled a high
Our understanding of quality portfolio on a large
long term trends and our scale. We focus on multidet
customers has driven a retail across the UK and -
focus on places in well office-led campnses in London
connected locations where ‘which are increasingly mixed
we can control the broader use. Our customer focus
environment to deliver and our actions to enhance
r Ly - . *
a better e.\penence..\\e our places drive endurmg Positive outeomes
apply our placemaking demand for our properties for our stakeholders :
framework to create from a broad range : - Dividends and long lermn capital
Places People Prefer. of occapiers. growih for shareholders
- Enjoyable. convenient experiences
For more information on which promeote wollbeing Jor the
Right Places see pages 1810 21. users of our properties
-~ Improving sales performance
and productivity for our occupiers
. . : . -~ Atlractive sustzainable environments,
. . i events, jobs and skills develapment
We benefit from our scale and for ot Lacal comrreiios
operate our assets over the long - Profitable, collaborative business
for our suppliers

term to create sustamnable
value _for all stakeholders.

- Enjoyable, challenging. rewarding
work jor our employees

N :....................._...‘..............'...

: Positive outcomes for our custorners. ___________________________________ neaaemaaemcasmeaemmeeeeeeeseeannnnann
: reinforce demand far our plates < '

British Land | Annuet Repart and Accounts 2017 11



Stratediv Heporr

MARKET TRENDS AND HOW WE ARE RESPONDING

Our business is positioned to
benefit from long term trends

Key long term trends
The UK's changing role in global markets

London will remain a teading globat Gy, but will f2ce near lerm yncertzinty as the lerms on
which the U leaves the EU are negotiated. Y¥e may see Moreased pressure on emplopment
in financial services and relaled seciors as blrsinesses assess whether London and the UK
remain the besl {ocation for them. The weakar currency translates to higher input costs for

~ relailers, with consumzrs potentially lasing Wewer dicposable moomes as inflation intreases.

Population growth and urbanisation

The UK population is expacted to gronw from 65 million in 2815 to over 74 million in 2040,
Much of the increase is expecied to be inils largas Gities, particularty London, where
there is an increasing emphasis an aliractive mixed wse emvironments.

Transformative impact of technology
Technolagy is nat ouly driving changes in how wa work and shop, i is having a profound impact
an the space we occupy. The ability to work remotely changes how we use office space, lm:reasmg

the demand for flexible and co-working space. n response to online, retailers are developing
sophisticated omni-channel strategies, and are using lechnaology te respond lo changing
consumer behaviour.

Evolving worker and consumer expectations

The distinction between waork 2nd leisure time is increasingly blurred se people expect a
range of amenities and services, and a choice of leisure and enler tainment activities tg form
an integral parl of the places where they work, shop and tive. This is increasing demaind for
rmixed use environsments which are wall miegrated with local communities and provide a
superior and ditferentiated offer.

Wellbeing and sustainability

People’s wellbeing is strongly influenced by the places where they spend tirne. Increasingly.
companies are focusing on providing workspaces which promote wellbeing and increase
productivity. The quality of workspace has become a tool 16 aliract and retain key talent and
retailers are choosing to locale their steres in enwironmenis which encourage custamer loyaliy.
Thereis also a growing expectation that bulldings should reflect environmental concerns.

.
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We focus on our customers and curate
the environment inside and out using
our scale and placemaking expertise.”

How we are responding

Investing in London

The impact on London of the UX s departure from the TU is endear, but its capadly to 2vohe

15 wetl eslablished. We balieve that the ease of downg busimess, s inlellectual capital, cvlture,
diversity and reputation for innovation undenpins Lenden's leng lenm appeal as a globat business
and cultural cenire. 589 of our portfelio is located here_and £4 billien of our asseis are in

dlose proximity to Cressrail stations, reflecting the importance of well-connacted space to

gur customers.

closer to our customers :
QOur sirategy 1s locused on our occupiers and their customers and employees. Wa have invesied
in the shulls and resources we need to better understand their prelerences. In Retail, our data
profiles the demographics of local calichimenis and eur shoppers, as well 25 when and how
peaple use our centres, highlighting the polenaat of each scheme. In Offices, vwe survey olfice
workers and engage with key decision makers from a range of businesses, providing imporiant
insight inte how (¢ improe mur work spaces.

Creating great environments

Across our business, gur straleqy is to control the wader enviroament on both our muiti-let

relail centres and our L ondon campuses. enabling us to deliver places which are attractive and
authentic but also functional and efficient. Dur environments are designed to reflect people’s
changing lilestyles, where the distinclion between work and leisure time is increasingly blurred.
We target a mix of occugpiers ang services which reflect the local catchment and provide evenis
which enliven our places and bring communities (ggether.

’ Maintaining a flexible development pipeline
Development has been an important driver of reiums and we have assembled a pipeline
of opportunities across a range of uses. In the more vncertain environment, our appetite far
speculalive development has moderated, but we are well placed to progreszs our plans when
the time is right. The majority of the developiment opporiunities in our portfolio enhance
exisling assets.

Promoting health and wellbeing

We are focused on delivering environmants which promote wallbeing and improve productivity.
Social places, graen spaces and initialives which encourage active living, such as oycle racks
and fithess cenlres are incorporated where possible and wellbeing activities form an important
part of our evenls programme across both our Retail and Offices porifolins. AL 100 Liverpool
Sireel, we are largeting the WELL Building Standard which supperts wetlbeing innovations
that help create healthier, more productive offices.

For mere information on Qur For more information on sustainability
strategy see pages 14 and 15 see www.britishland.com/sustainability

British Land | Annual Repart and Accounts 2017 13
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OUR STRATEGY

Our strategy for creating
Places People Prefer

Our strategy
determines how we
create Places People
Prefer and informs
our annual priorities

" For our priorities for the
year ahead go lo page 8.

For more information on
how we performed in the
lastyear goto page 26 and 27.

Our sustainability focys areas are
aligned lo our stralegic prioritias:

Wellbeing | Consmunity
Future- ' | Skills and
proofing | opportunity

For more infermation see
wwrw.britishtand.com/
sustainabitity

Customer Orientation
Responding to chranging Lifestyles

- Expand the use of data aad analytics
o dirve insight : .
- Leverage iechnotogy o develop high quatity.
value-added services for our occupiers
- Develop our brand to be recognised

for areating Places People Prefer
Places
People
Prefer
Capital Efficiency
Disciplined use of capital

- Recycle capital Lo maximise performance
- Manage our development exposure and -
linandal leverage while maintaining
the bensfits of scale

Creating Places

Right Places

inside and ont
- Focus en mixed use, lifestyle real estatiz
~  Position eur places lo appeal to @ wider
range of scoupiers.
- Investin axisling 2ssets and emerging
locations which benefit from regenerziion
" and growth

Expert People

The knowledge and skills to deliver

- Maintain and enhance key skills sels,
particulartyin lechnology, customer service
ang \sights

— Promote an inclusive and diverse culturz

— Leverage expertise through cross-teamn
callaboration

This generates Together with an
People Prefer long term growth optimal capital
drives enduring in rents and structure this
demand for our capital value delivers sustainable
properties long term value

14 British Land | Annuat Report and Accounts 2017




Our objective is to deliver sustainable
long term value for all our stakeholders
We do this bycreaﬂng Places People Prefer

In\%tment partners
Access to high quality
real estate

- Access to our data-driven
nsighis and capabilities

- Asset managernent ang
development skitls

- Strong relationships
including with tacal authorities
and communilies

- Scale o investment
and linancing

Investors

5

- Acoess to high quality,
liquid real estate investment
- Stable. growing dividend
- Susiainable long lerm rewms
For maore information on
our financial performance
go lo pages 39 to 42.

Suppliers

- Afundamental role as pariners
in delivering placemaking

- Requiar communication
and transparency

- Consistent commercial terms
for prolitable partaership

- Shared insighis, innovalion
and skills development

For our Suppty Chain Chacter
go to www.britishland.com/
suppliers

-

TS
- Hagh quality, vitirant
environments which drive
foutlall and customer loyalty,
and encourage employee
retznlion

— Flexible spate whichcan

adapt te changing needs
- Affordabte ang effident builldings

Far mare information
QN DUr MAjOr CLCUPiers,
see the table an page 166,

Local communities
- Inclusive places with a
sense of commnupity
- Meaningful local relationships
- Fadilities and services that ’
connect with and enhance
the overall 3rea
- Places which support
local jobs and skills

For our Lacal Charter ga
1o www_bsitishtand.com/
community

T —— *
Consumers
- Convenience and a mix
of oroupinrs
- Outstanding cusiomer
services and facilities
- High quality enwironmenis
which promote weitbeing
- Choice of teisure and
entertaiment activilies
To read more an Custamer
Orientation go to pages
16and 12.

Emplovees

- Potenlial 1a develop kills
and opportunities

= Warking with some of the
best people across the most
exciing projects in the seclor

- Aninclusive environment

- Opportunities to make
a positive difference

To read more on Expert
People go tu pages 24 and 25.
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OUR STRATEGY ~ CUSTOMER ORIENTATION

Customer Orientation

Responding to

changing lifestyles

We use our insight into customers” needs and
identify major long term trends to create
enviroronents which reflect changing titestyles

Who are our customers?

0Our cusiomers are the and users of our
properties as well as our ocupiss. We engage
with the people wha visit our Retail cenires and
our Office proparties, as well as the employees
and residents who work and live, in and around
them. to provide buitdings and environmants
which meel their changing needs.

How we understand our customers.
Qur Insight learn operates adross the business,
callecting and analysing dals to develop our
understanding of who our customers are, how
they behave, what they experience and what
their preferences are, This knowledge and the
long ierm trends impacting our business [set
out on page 12 1o 13} inform our approach

far each asset withun our porifolia.

In Retail we use this information to understand
1hz preferences of people visiling our canires
and others wilhin aur catchmnents. This helps
us 1o balance our space appropriately between
retail, leisure and feod & beverage and quides
which brands we should be targating. It provides
vatuable feedback onwhat people like about our
seraces and envronments and where we can
improve. and helps us assess the impact of
enhancemends we undertake. We collect dala
on trading and otcupancy COS1 rativs S0 we can
identify occupiers whe are under or gver rading
and locale them in the most appropriaie space.
For each centre, we are able te map the shopper
missions the centre serves and understand

the potential range of consurmer journeys itcan
capture. This informs our viston of how Lo pasition
the centre and what changes we should make
to profitably grow foalfall and consumer spend
for our occupiers.

The main struciura! shift impacting UK spending
habits th recent years has been the increasing
role of the internel. We create places that enable
our occupiers to trade profitably across a range
of channels. To help vs better understand the
role of physical space in each channel, we
partnered with relait consyttancy GlabalData

1o guantify the True Value of Stores.

16

Understanding our
Retail enstoniers

- Wa collect geographic and
" demographic data onlocal

catchimeants, including online
data from ¢ 3 million individuals

— We collect operalional data inctuding

_looifell, dwell ime and sales on the

majority of our multi-let assets

- Wa underigke 40,000 shopper
surveys each year

- We collect data from c.12 million visits
10 our Retail cenire websites each year

Our research [shown in the chart balow) shows
that ditk and colteet and store hrowsing hooste
physecal sales by 5%, rising to 99 for non-
grocery spend. Click 2nd collect customers are
incredibly valuable because they spend around
50% more than the average shopper, including
spend in addition to the itemns being collected.

90
8 0
of all UK redad sates touch a physical store

T Value of Syores reseach

£5hn £8bn

Ralail sales by channal

Fhﬂ:alm Clidcand  Online sates,  Tnue value

Coflect sates  browsed
e

o Stares

As wall as hensliling fram this. relailers alse
s3ve on deliivery costs and areale additonat
opportunilies (o engage consumners. The
volume of dick and collect ransactions

in the UK s ferecast to double over the naxt
Tive years. Dher Lotat cemtres already capiuie
458% more click and coilect transacbons
than the nalionst verags evidenting how
the combination of op localions,

free car parking and guslity environments
appeal {o the dick 2nd collect shopper.

In Offices our locws is onunderstanding
perspectives onthe workplacs of today's office
workers. This year we laundhad the Office
Agends, a websile whaere we engage with
senior dedSIon Makers amongst current and
prospective pooupiers an issues which matter o
them . Today's oogupiars seethar warkspace as.
a ool to attract and relain key tatent so our first
ares of forus was oh what made a greal place to
work, with particular evnphasis on mitlennials’
wh wall ba the pringpal users of Gur space cver
the coring decades. Qur survey of over 1,060
oftice waorkers reveated that locabon and
transport links were the most important
factors, and in London, 93% of millenniats said
the buzz’ of a lecabon was also important
Acound 0% of Landon millennials want food &
beverage and retai optens nearby. dlustrating

E£4bn
£18bn €13bn ___ EAbn
5ok 1wt retad
f sl
Online satas O Mallorderand  Totad seant
nothrovsed  punepisy TV shopping sales
nFnre salles

- -2 Total oniine sales

—» Ondme that ouches the siote

Sersrce: ClotiCIBN sh Land, Juby W16

For more information see wwwabritishland.com/TrueValueafStores.
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Understanding our
Office customers

- We surveyed 1,800 olfice workers
and dedision makers onwhal makes
a great place lowork and 3 durther
1,600 on "smart’ office technology
- We surveyed 1,500 visitors and 2509
eMployses aCress our CAMPUSES On
their expenience
- Wameasire fostfall 2cross our campuses
- We run focus groups with existing and
prospective occupiers shoutl what thay
need from a campus

just how dosaly waork and sodal tives now
overlap. This insight supports eur fecus en
campus environments with a mix of relall and
teisure uses and influances the way we design
and configure new buildings.

Surveys agruss our mﬂ{pusesm also
suppartive of our approach. Custamer
satisfaction favels ware high scoring § out of 5.
with architecture and landscaping, oversil -
atmosphere and safely all scoring partaularty
well. The combined net promoier score foralt of
. our campuses (a measurs of willingness amons
office workers lo recommend their place towarik]
was above the benchmark for Landon We will
maoniter this on an engoing basis o assess our
parformance in meeting customer nesds.

Looking forward, technology is providing:

- the capacity to make our buitdings smarter’,
with systerns that can adapt automatically. for
exarmple moderating lighting ang temperature
to indwvidual needs. This was the second area
of focus'in the Office Agenda 2nd our surveys
showed that 87% ol dedisicn makers would
ragquire smart technotogy in their office next

- timae they moved. This will be a focus forus
in the coming years and we will be making
100 Liverpool Street 'smart from the start’.

tnsight presidad by our dala atiracted
oOCUpiers 1o new lormats and locations,

To read about how we create places
which reflect customer greferences
using our placemaking frramework,
goto pages 18 21.

How we engage with our occupiers
We zim to develop collaborative tong term
relztionships with cur cocupiers. We have a
structured diznt relatiznship managament
programime and are happy to share cur insights
on consurmer behaviours and teday's workforce
with cur custemers. This is particularly
benzlicial in leasing discussions as we
position our assels to appes! te a broadar
range of occupiers.

In Retail we use our detaited underslanding

of tozal catchmenis, demographics, spending
pRtlerne and consumer preferences o effectivety
targel new occupiers. Aarass our partfolio, we
cznidenlify areas where retailers are under-
represented, antf where our catchments match
the pruofile of their targel shopper. Combined
with persuasive foothall and sales data, and the
maodern, allrsclive ervironments 2t cur centnes,
we are suecassiully atiraciing otcupiers

to geogiraphies and relait lormats inwhich
they have not previously operated.

in UHfices we have estattished a consislent

The Office Agenda is available 3t approadh lo aur relationships with all levels
" http:Hlotficeagenda.britishland.com of occupier: from our dsy-to-day conltacts
British Land workplace sarvey:
What makes an ideal office®
= =
& o -
B S [
g = o
-0
| EL | L L
L ocation Safety & Public  Communal Buzz' of Nearby
Secunity  Wransport areas hoalion food &
- beverage

EBAY 0 London Mitlennials %

From a sunvey of aver 1 000 YR giice ngriers conduttad in December 2003 and Janaary 2016,

5
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Reflecting customer needs

Al Blasgowr Fort, we have respondad to ausiomear
feedbadk by mtreasing cr park CApa0Ry and the
ranga of restaurants. in the yesm we compleied the
cavalaponand of 2 600 space rlibi-skorey c37 park
ncorpoysting 2 Rurther four restaurames with gardans
Feahuring rriurl oy cemants ke chiidnan These
anhantements contrixte o 2n emviroseneo) winch
has enzhlad us W 2itrad aparamrs nciging
Superdry, Wohaca and Smiggle

turough o key strategic deoision makers. Wea
share trends w2 have identified 2nd ressendh
we have collecied enound how wirhers vould -
like 10 and do usa their office space. This helps
ur occupiers maat the changing needs of
teday's workiorce 2nd improve their overall
wellbeing. In tern, his 2approach halps us

to refing our cuwn proposiien.

One naw area of locus lor usisflexble
warkspace. Technolegy is drving dhange in
people s working patierns, crezting desnand

for quality space which & fexdle in lerms of
hoth tha configuration of the phyzicad space and
the lease arrangements. Gur campus-based
ofiice porifolio positions us vell to address
this growing need. whetiter in respect of smail
ang expanding busingsses o7 larger compantes
requiring added flexihliity. We have established
a smallin-house teamn to deliver against these
needs, soin Jure 2017 we vall launch our first
flexitle workspace at Broadgate with plans

o roll out this offer across our campuses. -

Broadgate Estates ]

We provide a2 consisten! ard high standard
of customer service aoross aur portiolio
through our property managemant company

| Broadyaie Estates, which is responsible for

the day-to-day operation of our assets aswell |
as lhose of third pariies. In aulumn 2018 we
campleted the transition of the management of
our Retzil 2ssets 1o Broadgate Estates. Having -
a singte organisatien responsible lor a2l assets
enables us Lo rapidly caplure and trensier bhost
practice learnings across our poriiolic. “Werld
Haslt’ training and 2ccreditation has been relled
Gut across our campuses and mulki-let reiail
cenlres, improving the qualily of customer

| service across the portioo. Further initiatives

to enhance the experience of cestamers at our
places are planned.

For more informalion on Broadgate Estates,
go to www.broadgateestates.co.uk
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OUR STRATEGY - RIGHT PLACES

Right Places

Creating great environments,
inside and out

We design engaging, sustainable places
which bring people together through

the right mix of gocupiers, services

and activities.

Owr strategic focus

Together with the long term rends

tsee pages 12 and 13) we have idenified,

it is our understanding of our customars
that gquides our strategic fecus 00 treating
Places Peqple Prefer.

In Retail cur appreach reflects our-

ungersianding of the consumer, so we

provide places where pzople can shop,

eat, and be entartaingd, places which

arec jent 2nd accessibte, and which

connect with local communities. We dassify -

our mulli-let retait centres as Regional”

which aitract wsitors from a3 vade catchment,

and "Local” which reflect the needs of

local communities. Qur research tells

us that convenience is the most impegriant

consideralion in any shopping Erip, so we

concentraie on assets which are weil served

by public infrastructure and where parking

is widely available. Our strategy is to own

and operate assets which are the preferred

destination for the journeys they serve within
"their calchments. We are aclive in dispasing

of single-let retail assets which don’l

provide opportunities for us to deploy

our placemaking expartise.

In Offices our main focus is on office-led
campuses which alse include 3 mix of retail,
\eisure and residentia\ to Create altradiive
and engaging emiaronments. They refect

the litestyle of today's workferce and appeal
to a broad range of occupiers. Together our
three London campuses, Broadgate, Regent's
Place and Paddington Central account fog
78% of our office portfolio Hfollowing the sate
of The Leadenhall Buildingl. We also own
standalons assels and small clusters of
assels in slyung locations with well-managed
environmenms. These provide liquidity in the
Offices portfolio, allvwing us to develop and
trade more opporiunistically.

Our strategic focus

Offices

Lifestyle orieniated rmixed use oifices

uses
Large, office-led mixed yse
litestyle campuses

Standalone

Single assets and small clusters

The importance of London

We expect London lo remain a leading
global City. It plays hosi to an ecosysiem
of iterrelated businesses and ils ynique
attractions including Ihe ease of doing
business._ its inteblectual capital, cullure,
divarsity and reputation for innovation
underpin iis long term appeal. We believe
it will continue ko banefit from poputation
growih and urbanisation. driving leng term
denand for our places. In the months
Iollovang the EU referendum sevaral
leading global businesses from a range
of sectors, inctuding technology and
finance, reaffirmed their cammitment to
London with signilicant leases. providing
3 strong vote of confidence in the City.

Deploving our capital

Qur focus en Right Places informs our
veshment decisions — what Lo acguire,
what to develop, which capital projects te
mwvest in and what to sell. All progerypes

that we purchase must be aligned with our
strategic focus and have the potential to
meet the evolving needs of changing lifestyles.
We are active in selling those properties
within our portiotio which do not meet these
criteria. Development and capital projects
are the main ways that we can enhance

our properties to better meel customers’
evalving demands and have heenan
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Retail

Muyltdet Blestyle conres
Regional :
Arracting visitors from a wide
catchmend far a planned trip

Laocal ’ :
Fitling inte the dafly lite of local communilies

important deiver of relurns. We discuss
our approadh to rianaging our capitsl further
in ‘Capital Effidency’ on pages 22and 23.

Creating Places People Prefer
Our understanding of our custormers
helps us the poiential of our
For each assel, we creale a business
pan of how to achieve ihat potential.
Cur placemaking framework provides

"a consistent approach to enhanang

aur assets as We Connect, We Oesign.
We Enhance and We Enlven,

Connect is about provfing places which
are convement and easily accessible. with
car parking or public bransport nearby; itis
also abeut connecting with people through
our branding and marketing and leveraging
technolegy le engage with users of our
places efficiently and with impact. impartantly,
itis also aboul our connections within the
comumunily and occupiers. We work with

i ity Y ions, local peopte and
empleyers o ensure our places meel their
needs and foster a sense of cormmunity.
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Right Places is about identifying the best locations
and using our placemaking expertise to delicer

Places People Prefer”

Retail
Regional Local
Missions nclyde let dnmninaied Missions include local neighbourhond
trigrs, family day out and the big shopper, convenient leisure and single
licket shap item pick-up
Typically >30 ocoupiars Typically 19-30 occupiars

Fooliall >3 million, spend

Foolfall often <8 million. spend

>£100 million per apnum <£100 mullion per annum
Orive-time >208 mmutes Dewve-time <15 minutes
Dwvetl >560 minutes Dwell <40 minutes

Retail offer covers mulliple categonies
withdepthol choice theach .

Retait offer covers multipte categories
and includes local services and
amenilies

Significant leisura and food & beverage,

e.q. restaurants, cinema

Comvenient leisure and food &
beverage, e.g. gym and coflea shops

Offices
The benefits of campuses

- Duwr campuses account for 78% -
of pur Ofiices portiolio

- OHice-led. mixed use environments -
reflecting changing lifestyles

- Placemaking enhances and entivens -
ermronments, appealing Lo a broader
range of aceupiers

- Benefit from sirong and improving
infrasiructure

- Provide a range of llexible
accommodation for socupiers

- Orive long term growth through
developrent

The role of standalone assets

Small clusters and more
opportunislic single site assets

Strong locations within
well-ranaged erwvironments

Benehit from regeneration or
mfrastruciure improvermients

Prowvide future refurbishment
and development petential

Shorter investment ime horizon
providing portiolio liquidity

Provide greater location exibility
for occupiers

Ammﬁmgu:rspac:

Wmibredla SFreat’ was an invirative, eye—caiching
pubdic 2t insialiation created from dazens of
multi-colzured wnbradias, halping to emliven
SouthGale, our Regsnsd retdl centre in Bath. nits
st wiesalk, sales and fnatiatl 51 SouthGate moreasad
by #57 & wers ejaped by towe rdison peogle ang
wezes 2 papallar ixdure on satid medi. reaching
ety Shirn 200090 Twziter ust s st 40,000

Qur focus on design is aboul oreating places
whidch are hoth Sunclional and attractive, and
whitch complement the surrounding area.

We consuli extensivety wilh local people befare.
any development. At Canada Waler for example
w2 {aunched our fourth public consultation .

in M=y this year ahead of submitting planning.

The pext step in sur framework is io enhance
our ptaces with the right mix of uses - retail,
oifice, residentiai. places to eat, drink and be

.entestained and 1o targat an ocoupier mix which

is appropriate for the catchment. We use our
data to guida everything from the occupiers we
target to their eptimal location at our schemes.
It also inforns where and howwe invest in
enhancements to secure the best retum.

Finaily. owr programmie of events, the
hespitality we show our customers and the
dislinclive features of our properties entiven
our byildings and their environments, making
them places people enjoy visiting, spending
tné and retuming to. Our parlnership with
argznisations such as tha Nationat Literacy
Tris? bath strengthens our links wilh local
cominunilies and helps enliven our spaces.
Our wark with the New Diorama Thealre at
Regent's Place is 2 good example of how we
are engaging with local communities at our
camgpuses. We have made more than 40000
sq R of rehearsal space available to them on
2 lamporary basis, crealing one of the largest
performing arts spaces of its kind in London.
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OUR STRATEGY - RIGHT PLACES

Placemaking is how we create
- attractive and engaging real estate

-— We —
Connect

hasmv&edmmnusmrm
bcal anciuding
a;dlsdubl‘wmﬂeaudi

of homalessnass, 3 health divh
for kha over 48s, mestoring for
studants and accessibiz theolre
performances for local residents.

52%

ol our London
asselsare dose to
Crossrait stabons

Orir £50 mitlion refurbishment of -
Meadowhall is on track 1o complele -

by the end ol 2017, The improvarnents

have already helped atract naw

brands to Meadawhall including

Neal's Yord, Nespresso, Hawes &

Curtis, Flannels and Ghost Landon,

— We —
Design

Form Authenticity Function
Efficient and effeclive  How our users feel and Facitities

buldings and spaces interact with the space and salety
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Community and oreativity

12} yrang carers fretn our commamities
explired thely reatvily ihis vear Gerough
T WATT-WIMENY AT SPATE Btk
with aris charily Create Theywarked
with professienal srissts ot Edan Wik
in Kingsion, Paddingian Ceniral
SouthGata in Bath, Sarvey Qeays,
Winitedey in Foraharn aral 23 vt heod
affice to daliver arealive activitias,

R entivenng mg places.
0,
90,6
of nerr car pariing
spaces are frae
S
improvements driving performance.
Ve investad £4 maltion enhanang the
ERTOUTENL 3 our Locsk cenire Tallgawe
i Colchester, reconfiquring the car park,
improving landscaping and Signaga,
adding 3 playground and installing
asenesolm«:mdudmgnne
igned by local schoolchidren.
ERY growth in the year tollowing
completion of the warks was 14%.
Promoting wetlbeing
We have cornpletad our programene of public
realmiimpr < al Paddington Centrat,

umed locoinade with the launch of 4 Kiagdom
Street. Landscapad areas and outdoor seating
reate places 1o relax and spend Bime outside the
oifice and an art installation ™ Message from the
Unszan Woeld™, a tribute 1o compuier SCenizst

Alan Timing. now spans Lhe widih of Bishops
Badge Road enlivening the spacas undarnaath
the bridge.



.

— We

Over 10%

tamgel redad fond & beverage aflocation

a1 Broadgaie. Carvendy less than £

Qocupier mix - Segment mix  Quvcapier service
Gcogpisrsand Balmnlmﬁmnt Supporting oGtuptars and
CRIAGATS € 3y g and uses British Land value add
Upgrarfing the offer
Snee aoquining Ezling Brostway
in Z00Y, vos hava re- U0 38 of the
centre o newy eroupiars. This inchidies
Trandds Slrarizd by he enheneed
* envirenmen fntiwoing qur £13 mdlion
redurbishanan) such a5 Srigyle and
Clas Ohdson. We have ransformat the
dntng effer with now brands incuding
Wzgensemnz, Wasab Limeyand, Turtle
Bay and Chicken Shap.
Bringing people logether

Seasonal events at Brozdgate

included ice skating at Christmas,

which altracted 24,080 skaters and

. live screening of sporling events,

over the summer, suthas the
Clympics and Wimbledon. Our

A

regular

include Br
Live, gur weekly music session

and ourartisan food markets

which are held twice monthty.

Customer service
On site hospilality
and customer service

Events

w2 ad F.000 5 i of reled spate
Ftuding a ropitop restaursnd
This busldis on the yocess of

Cirdie, whoch broughl
1t new brands to this part af tha
Gy, =nd i instrumantal i raating
avitra, mied use desimsiion
31 Broadgate.

Innovating to drive fostfall

Thes year vwe expandad -Eats from e
Strea!. o pop-up dining cercept which
sawr e British Land Rewismastar bus visid
10 4] our Regionalt and Lot retail centres
serving the best in British strezt tood.

The concapt was extended Later in the year,
with "Strest Style’, a fashion and beauty
event, wchith ran 3Cross Soven retall contres.

" These indtiatives vwiden aur relatl, dindng and

lejsire affering. and create more dyniamic
shopping eEmvionuments.

Leveraging technology to enitertain

We lamched Freazy's Chiisimas Adventure,

an app-based childresi's gamz, a1 21 Regional

and Lotal centres across o porifolio.

The virtual present hunl ran over six

werehs and was one of the UK's targest ever

augmentad reality games in redail proparty.

Tha app was downloaded almast 4,080 times
gahevating over 14, 500 campeiition antries.

Memorable experience

Bfmglngpmp&e&ogahsr Creating lasiing, posilive

and attracting visitors

impressions
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GUR STRATEGY - CAPITAL EFFIéEENCY

Capital

Disciplined use of capital

We allocate capital, manage our finances
and partnerwith like-minded organisations
to deliver sustainable long term vatue,

Capital allocation

W Lake a disciplined approach o allocating
our eapital We forecast returns for each of
our propertias annually and we are active

in selling assels with lower prospective
returns, providing capital fer rei

The scalie and nature of our portfolio and

our actions to creele oplionabity in Lhe last

few years mean that we have a range of value

enhancing devetopment opportunities availabie

1o us. We believe that we will maximise relums

over the medium tern by retaning Rexibility

to pursuz many of these opportunities when

markal dmand justifies il. The benefils to

sharzhelders of 2 mdre immediate capital

return are an important consideration for

the Board and this is assessed periodically
longsidz other uses of capital.

inte opportunities wilh greater returns (or
shareholders. Assets with lower prospactive
returns are generally those where we do nol
have the 6pportunity to apply ocur ptacemaking
experlise 1o create value. This includes single-
tet ralant and those ts where the
greatesl opportunities far ys to add value hawe
already been realised, such as completed,
well-et developments. These properties are
often attractive to investors who wish to take
a more passive approach to property ownership
or who atlribule greater value lo stable incemne
over a longer ime horizon.

We have choices over how to invest our capilal
and assess the returns available both on
opporiunities within the portfolio and acquiring
new properhes. Often investments within the
porilolio, or acquinng properties adjacent ta
our exisling hotdings, result in complementary
benefits_ enhancing returns. This is particelarty
the cate on our campuses. Risk on investments
within the portiolio is atso moderated by

our existing knowledqe of properiies and
slakeholders such as occupiers and

planning authorities.

Developments have delivered some of our
strongest returns, but are inherently higher
risk, particutarly when pursued ona specu!alwe

For more information on our development
pipetine, see tables on pages 29 to 31

Debt and leverage

W= empliny both daht and equity financing.
Wz manage the mix between them o balaance
the benefits of teverage, including a greater
wome returmn, against the risks, indluding

a magnification of the wnpact of property
valuation movements. Loan tg value {LTV|
on a proportionally cansolidated basis

5 our primary measure of leverage. We
aim to manage our LTV through the property
cycie such that our financial position would
remain robust in the event of a significant
fall in propenty values. This means we do

not adjust our approach to leverage based
on changes in properly markat yields.

The scale of our business, the quality of our-
assets and the security of our rental stream
erable us to access a broad range of debt
finance on atlractive terms. We raise debt
from a variely of sources across a spread

of maturities to ensure the Group and its
joint ventures and lunds are appropriately
financed with actively managed refinancing
risk. We also maintain significant undrawn

basis. We manage our develap

carefully, limiting it to 15% of the tolal porﬂolao
by vatue with a maximum of 8% 10 be developed
speculatively [i.e. without a pre-let or sale)
atanytme.

Gur development exposure moves within this
range depending on our appetite in the prevailing
markel conditians. Reflecting the uncertainly
leading up to the EU referendum and since its
resull our specylative development exposura
has moderaled lojusi £%.
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revolving loan facilities to provide flexibility
and support current and future requirernents
of the business.

Far more on our approach to financing,
see pages 43 to &5 for our Financial
policies and principles,
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Oxer the last frce veurs
e haoe sold £4.8 billion
of assets and reinoested
£4.2 billion in acqudsitions
and decelopments

better aligned with our

strategic priorities.”

Supersiore sales

V2 b comiinued o dizpose of supsrsivres
vetty £226 madiion of sates since March 2035
Standaione supershores are now 4% of

our porifolie, down fromn 33% & 2012

We sold Debenhiems’ fiagship Oxfond Streed stoce
for £460 miltion i July 2014 on terms agreed ahead
of the referenduem. Thas disposal refiects the resulis
of bur capital allocation protess and our sirategic
forus on mulii-let asseis vhere we can gontrol

the vider envirennas).




I . i
?ogaiherwnh GBI our foind vaniuie

parinar we

:gl:l'lB.

¥

1 oreate a vihrant, winld dass, mbed
wse dessinannnl In 2015 we coonplated

tharad

1 of Broad Cirdz

>

amamzmauasm ooeupatian of
5 Broadgale We have tirr cammanced

20,080 =q ftof retsd

40

of sseds in joint ventures and funds

Crystatlising value from development
Along with our Oxford Proparties, we
exchanged onthe sale of The Leadenhall Building this
yoar. This dacision lo sell reflecied that the grealest
value creation oppartunities from developmant and

- leasing had been reatised. The price, whidch was
ahead of vaduation, orystalicsed an annualised IRR
of 27% since our comimitmenl to develop in 201
and dernonshrates rwvesiors’ continuing appetie
for wall Lo, well located buldings in Londen,

Sl.Sbn

assets sold since March 2016

Making sense of BREEAN

on qur elifice schemes is less than I%ddwg“
mmmhwm

with styorg h

o ren)

ly raiRgs
andadmhrg}mm:mm-;mssnhﬁm
that they perform better owar tine, providivg high
qualily spaces that premole wellbeing and ane
futureprooted

mdmmedﬁngemgmhm

Ao sq fi

of BREEAM Excellenl offices, shops,
homas and tatcure space

£378m

imvested in development and acqusitions

a

Ve are fitling 26.000 sq R of solar
panelsat Serpentine Green,

following the success of a pilat at

St Staphen's, Hyll, This mslallalmn .
is expected to generate a returh on
Ewesiment of 13% over Zyears and
save 3,300 tornes of carbion. as well as

reduding reliance on tha Natianal Grid.

97%

of all elactncity we purchase across
our portioln comes from renevwahle
sources, working lowands 100% as

an RED partmer

Strategic parterships

We yse strategic partnerships to achieve
bensfits of scale and spread risk. Around
£0% of our owned assels by vatue are th juint
ventures and lunds, indeding Brozdgale

angd Meadowhall. Within these struciores,
we typically provide asset management, .
developenen). cerporale and finance senvices,
for whichwe eamn fees, enhancing our averall
returns and strengthening our relationships
with pariners, key customarns and suppliers.

Energy efficient by design

We focus on achieving high sustainability
stangards on our develepments, oplimising
energy efficiency and generating renswable |
energy on site. rather (han buying afisels for
¢arbon neutratity. Our spproach delivers cost
savings for occupiers, well managed buildings
for the paople who work, shap and tive in
them and better assets for wasiors. We have
delivered energy savings for occupters of

£13 million aver six years_at the same time

as optimising lighting, lemperatures and air
qualily for wellbeing and efficency. We are
alsoimpruoving energy modelling and poting
Soft Landings to close the gap between
efficent design and performance.

For more information on
carbun reduction, see page 38.
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OUR STRATEGY - EXPERT PEOPLE

Expert People

The knowledge and skills
to deliver

We employ Expert Peaple and wark
with speciatist partners tocreate insight,
dewlopsﬁltsatdhnftdapadty.

QOur 650 exnployees are split between British
Land and our properlymanagement business
Broadgate Estales. The scale of our operations
has enabled us 1o silract an exper L leam. with
the range of capzbilities requered to own and
operate real estate swrccessfully. and respond
to the changing needs of our markels. We
have access to @ tread network of contacls,
SpanMing acoupiers, planners, Government
and local suthorities, strategic partners

and investors, sawe see marny of the mast
allractive invesimeant opportunitizs aswell as
partnering 2nd funding possibilities. We work
closely with indusiry experis and specialists
s0 we develop huildings which benefit from
the lalest iechnoiogies and provide spaces
that promote weltheing and produclivity.

Qur peaple strateqgy focuses on oreating

a team who can deliver Places People Prefer.
Nurturing tatent and supporting development
is an impartant part of the culivre at British
Land. We have 2 formal annual appraisal
process for each member of our eam and
empower all ernployees to progress their
careers wilh personal devetopment plans.
We operate 3 range of onfine resources (o help
employees develop their skills and work with
Cambridge University tg run a Leadership in
Real Eslate programme. Forty of eur stalt have
benefited from this progr amme since i was
launched in 2014. We are also rolling ol
training fecesed on pilching and negoltiating
skills, recogmising the importance of these
aspects of cusiomer engagement as well

as peaple management. This year we have
embedded new capabitities, particutarly in.
cuslomer-focused research and marketing,
where we are using data analytics to generate
insights into customer behaviour and digital
resourcas to keep them up to date with
activitizs around the portfolio. We are invesling
in technolagy aoross the business, upgrading
our core operational systems_and using
arlificial intelligence solutions 1o help ensure
our network is beller prolecled. We are mindful
of cyber security and have enhanced our

24

saCurily position as well 35 rolling oul oyber
awareness trawing across both Britksh Land and
Broadgate Estates. As our business becomes

- increasingly mixed use. we are also inproving

the way we work across our teams leveraging
skills from different parts of the business
across the whole. Gur Insight team now warks
aoruss the portfolio and we are increasingly
integraling operations across our Core leam
at Brilish Land and Breatdgale Eslales in
functions such as technology, HR and Rnance.

We are focused on cresling a culture which
encourages diversity amd indusion, sa the poticy
lhroughout British Land is o emptay the best
candidales available in every position regardless
of sex, race, ethaic origin, wationality, coleur,
age, religion or philosaphical belief, saxua
oriemalion, marnage or civil parinership,
pregrancy, maternily, gender reassignment
or disability. We are a membey of People

in Property, a forum for Human Rasources
directors in real estate. 2nd a signalory to
their guidelines on diversity and inclusion in
recruitment. We are also working lowards the
MNationat Equality Standard, which sats out
equabty, diversaty and inclusien criteria agairst
which businesses are assessed annually.

Far the second year running, Chris Grigg
was ranked in the top 20 Ally Executives by
Qulstanding and the Finanaal Times and
we are pleased that BL Pride, our leshian,
gay. bisexual, transgender {LGBT| and alties
network established in November 2015
marched in the 2016 London Pride Parade
i support of the Albert Kennedy Trust.

Our women’s network had a very successiul year,
hosting four career management warkshops
for women, as well as [ur In Canversation’
events which are open to everyone. Parentat
teave coaching has been introduced and the
menloring scherne we pitoted last year tor
waormen has now been rolled out across the
company, offering guidance and support to both
male and female employees. We currently have
three lemale Sireciors an the Board, Lucinda
Bell, Chie! Financisl Officer, and Lynin Gladden
and Laura Wade-Gery, bolh Non-Executive
Directors. As at 31 March 2007, 47% of
employees across British Land and Broadgate
Estales were lemate, including threa gut of 10
of our Executive Committee. This placedusin
the top 20 of FTSE 108 companies having at
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3%

e T vearkeng trwards apprantoas making
up 37h of aasr UK supplier warkborce by 2020

least 33% women's representation across
Exzoutive Committes members and their diract
reparts as reported in the Hampton-Alexander
Raviaws in Movamber 2086,

Promuoting health and wellbeing acress the
business 1s an important part of our culture.
This year we larnched a Wellbeing Eommiltes
wehich will Jocus on mental health and personal
wallbesng and we have updated our policy on
Shered Pareatal Pay to provide equat enhanced
benelits for ail parents follwing the birth or
attopiion of a child. We also et oul new flexible
working gindelines and are leveraging
lechnalegy la enhance Both produttivily

and enrployes wellbeing. We encourage

the recruitment of underrepresented ethnic
rinoritias through our support fer initatives
such as Pathways to Property, Budding N
Brunels and UrbanPlan UK. These schemes all
encorage young peaple from a wide range of
bachgrounds 1o consider careers in real estate.
Oy volunteering programme olfers our stalf
opporiunilves to connect with local communities
and develop their skills, particularty through
skills-based volunteering for example as charity
trusteas a2nd school governors. 70% of British
Land stalf took part invelunteering actiaties
and 6% undertock skifts-based volunteering
throughout the year.

Both British Lang and Broadgate Eslates
particpate in the "Best Companies’ survey
published in The Sunday Times._ This survey
provides an objecbive measure of employee

¢
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Being an apprentice at
Meadowhall and then
progressing into a permunent
role here, evcery day is
different and I am akeays -
Jaced with something

new, which I enjoy.”

Chloe Simmonite, Customer Service
Assistant at Meadowhall

Devetoping fulure tatent

Over 108 apprentees have worked
on the construction of Clarges
and 4 Kingdam Streal

our Brighi Lights sialts and
empleyment pregramnmne.

We entered a new design partnership

with the Royal Collega of Art, the worlds
nurmber one art and design university.
challenging students o produce oreative
responsaes (o development epportunities
across ouwr porifolio. This year, the first

af a three yaar partnership, has szen
students considar opportunitias to innevate
in the resigential and office markats. -

Providing training, skills ard employment
Through our Bright Lights progzamme,

we helped around 70 young pecple embark
on careers in retall and hospitality this yaar.
We delivered Bright Lights Starting Outin
Retail and Hospitality in partnzrship with our
retail ant leisure otoupiers and The Source
Skills Academny. which we established

with Sheifietd Cily Coundil in 2003,

of Bright Lights retatt and hcspllahly

tr progr ¥

satisfaciion and valuable feedback on howwe
can focys our actions in this arza to improve
further. As pari of our continuous programmz

of employee engagerent, both Briish Land

and Broadgale Eslates hos! company meetings
where directors update the team on business
acivittes. finanaat resulis snd strateqy. .
Colleagues al alt levels of the business ame
offered the opportunity to partitipate in our
wedl-established all-employee share schemes,

aligning their inlerests with those of dwraholders.

We have long recognised the imporiance of
daveleping the sikilled worklorce of tormormow
for our business and markets. Through aur
Bright Lighls shills programme, we partner
with occupiers, suppliars and local avthornities
to suppart apprenticeships, training, work
exparience, internships and employment at
our places. We support the Pathways o
Property scheme, and are pleased to have
recvited one of the graduates to join our wvwit
graduate scheme, starting in Septemer 2017.
Over 21,500 people benefiled fromn our skills,
amployment and educational initiatives this
year. Qur Supply Chain Charter sels out 12
principles we require our suppliers to work
towards and we partner with occupiers and
supgliers on fair working practices induding
the Living Wage Foundation.

Our respact for human righis is ambaddad
in how we do business. We are a signatory

| tathe UN Global Compact which sepports 3

care set of values, including human rights_ and

have made appropriate disclosures in respect

of the Modein Slavery Act. We arz also a

memnber of APRES, an aclion programme on
resasnsile and ethical sourting 227055 the

my 119
] F M F
Brush Land 52% A8% 52% 48%

Brosdgote Estates  57% &7T%  57% 48%
Group tolal 3% ATHR 57% 48%

Read more about our Expert People and
thedr vizows 3t wans britishiand com/blogs
To read rare aboust skdls daveloament

go lo wee brtishland com/fskills

For tur Saprlly Chain Charter go to
brtishiand P i

For mere inforemation on the Baand

of Directors see pages 55 o 5.

For cur Modarn Stavery Act Disclosure
g0 to werse britishland com/msa

@ritich Land is in the

Top 20

off FTSE 100 comganaes having al least 33% women's
TRpresantaion acmes exacuiive cominitiee members.
2t divect repurts. as veporied in the Hampton-
Alerander Reviewr, November 2016

Helping womon sucreed

Oui waren s Retwark hasted conwes saton
events with Nicola Sharw, CEO of High Spesd 1,
Natasha Strombery. Founder of Genderbuzz
and architect Amanda Levets, who designed
tha Museumn of Art, Ardhiteciuse and
Tedhnology in Lishon and the entrance,
gallery and coamrtyaid of the VEA.

Supporting vulnerable young pecple
We partmer with the Albest Kennedy Trust,
a charity which provides acourmmodation
and support los vl hite LGBT peopt
We sponsor a room in Lheir safe house
and this year seven British Land volunteers
spent time at the safe house helping with
decorating and gardening.

British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017
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Srrategic Reporo

OUR KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

How swe performed
over the past year

Qur priorities in the year were

Customer Orientation
-~ Improve understanding
of our customers.
- Provide spaces reflecting
evDling tusiomer needs

Right Places

= Use placemaking
o delivar improved
cuslomer experience

- Accelerate delivery of
murlti-tet Regionat and
Local lifestyle revail
Progress Canada Water
vision and mastarplan

Capntal Efficiency
Deliver budget

- Progiess developments
2langside material pre-tets

- 'Conlinue o sell singta-let
and non-core Retail

Expert People

- linprove Company
organisatianal
eflectiveness

~ Embed placemaking
across the business

‘What we have achieved

- Atraciing rewiler and teizure booupiers o aew
formats and new localions

- Providing the Rexibility for existing occupiers to upsize

~ 30060 cusiomenrs survayed 35 part ol our True Yalue
of Stores research

~ Around 40,000 shoppar sutveys conducted actoss
our Retail porifolie eath year

= Nearly 4 (100 office wrkers survayed on Geir
perspectives on the workplace

- LIm sq it of leasing across Retaill and Difices, 8% ahead
ol ERY

- Over 700,000 sq ki af space under ofter or in advanced
negoliations atross office developments

- 85.000 sq [ of space 2t or a short term or meamyhile
basis, which entiven our campuses and address lease
expirtes whila presemng plionality lor redevel

- Progressing our vision 2t Broadgate: on site at 100
Liverpool Streel [520.0040 sq fil: planming submitied
an a refurbishment of 1 Finshury Avenie (288 000 sq t)
and 135 Bishopsgate [325,000 sq it). with increased cetail
and leisure provision at both; planning achisved on a
redevelopment of 283 Finsbury Avenue {563,000 sq fi]

- Entire 310,000 sq It of office space under offer for a pre-let
at 1 Triton Square redevelepmeal, Regent's Place

- Publiz reaim improvemants completad at Paddington
Central ahead of launch of 4 Kingdom Street

- Inthe West End. oHice space at our recenily compleied
developments al & Kingdom Sireet, 7 Clarges Sureel
and Yatding House are now around 805 let or uader
offer al rents ahead of pre-referendum FRVs ona
nel effeclive basis

- 7.4% increase in Underlying Prolit 1o £390m i
— EL5bn ol assel sales exchanged 9% ahead of valuation
- E881m retail disposats including E400kn Debenhams
Dxlord Street and £226r suparsiores, Increasing
rulti-let % of retadl portfolio lo 783 IMarch 2014: 71%)
~ Sate of our 50% interestin The Leadenhatl Building.
ahead of valuation [£1.15bn, 1004%)
- Acquisition of NewGeorge Sireal Estate_ adjacent
to Orake Circus and proposed leisure scheme
~ Acquisition of 10-40 The Broadway adjacent
lo Eating Broadway Local relail centre
— Increased our ownership of Hercutes Unit Trust
to 76.5% (2015 75.3%)

~ QOrganisational design initiatives and IT improvements
implemented to improve efficiency

~ Combining British Land and Broadgate Eslales
resources inlo Cenires of Excellente for Technology,
HR and {inance gperations, teveraging besl praclice
and geaerating efficiencies

- Bright Lights skills and employment grogramme
launched, working with our occupiers ang suppliers
to busld people’s skitks and help them find employment

- 29 people benefited Irom pitching and negoliating \raining

- Continuing focus on creating an inclusive culiure which
celebrates diversily; successhul year lor our Women's
Network and BL Pride with Wellbeing Commitiee
formed in the year
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Cur objective

Deliver sustainable long term
value for all our stakeholders

~ Office Agenda websitz launchad to engage with ey
gecrsfon mahers at cusTeni and potential ocoupiers

- Eommenced it oul of 25.000 sq 1t of Nexibte
waorkspace pitol at Broardgate [or the digitat team
of an exxsiing eccupier

- Commitied to both the WELL standard for
Weltbeing ard the WiredScore Platimem rating
for intarnat connecifaty and airastneciure 2
100 Liverpool Sireet

~- BAT shopper score for perceplion oi wellbeing
21 our RetoM assets and B9% occupier scere lor
sersse of pride in office space at our campuses

- Planning submilted on 322 000 sq it Leisure
Hall 2t Meadowhall: on track to complete T80m
relurbishment before the end of 2017

- Planning achieved for 538,000 sg N mixed use
re-development of Eden Walk, Kingston

- Completad Glasgow Fort lersure quarter and on
site with a leisure extension al New Mersey, Sgeke

- Progressing plans at Canadas Water with public i
consuttation in May Z017; on track to submit
planning around the end af the: inancial year

- Applying our Locatl Charter so eur places
bacome part of their tocal community

- EL7m communily programme benefiting 35,600
peaple {2016: £1.7m and 22500} including children
and pbseekers

- Augmentad reality games atross tetatl
portiolio and established programame af
evenls al gur campuses

- LT¥reduced to 299% [26 9% proforma for sale of
The Leadenhall Buitding] Irom 32.1% at March 2016;
no requirement 1o refinance until sarty 202% !
- 2.3m sq A of planning consents secured with a '
Turthar 1.3m sq it of planning applications submittad
- 3% of developmenis on track o achieve BREEAM
Excellent for offices and Excellant or Vary Good for
retail [2014: 82%: 2020 target: 100%}
- 35% reduction in landiord energy intensity and M‘lﬁ
reduction in carbon intensity versus 2009, index scored
12036: 38% and 4% respectively; 2020 target: 55544
- 98% ot waste dverted {rom landiil (2014, 78%;
2020 targel: 1009

- Ranked in the lop 200l FTSE 100 companies having
al least 33% wornen's representation across Exce
anddirect reports, per Hamplon-Alexander Review

- 1018 of employees and 72% ol supplier worklorce

at our managed properties paid the Living Wage

Foundation Wage [2016. 100% and 72% respectively)

- L7%apprentices in pital shudy of lier 1 suppliers and
3.1% for tier 2 development suppliers (2020 Largel: 3%]

- 90% British Land employee volunteening and 165% shills-
based volunteering ir: local comeunities {2016 B4%
and 16%; 2020 targets: 90% and 20% respectivety]

- Pelicy on Shared Parentat Pay updated to provide
equal enhanced benefits 1o all parents

For definitions see Glossary on pages 177 to 179,



Our KPis - how we measure up

@

Total accounting return (TAR)

7z

2016

2% 26.5%
Cuostomer satisfaction @
Ouviol 10

2014 7.9
2015 7.8

We exiensively survey the users of our places
to assess our performance and identify
opportenities for improvement

Total property retwms @
vsIPFD
2017 ek ~150bps
in tine

2015 18,4 JRECHS

We have undarpertormed the IPD benchmark
\his year reliecting aur lack of exposure o
Industrial. the strongesi performing categary. Our
Retail ang Offices portiolios each gutperformed
their respective benchmarks by 70 basis points
and 10 basis points respechively. ’

Loan to value (LTV)
— proportionally consolidated

2015 35.3%
We manage our leverage such that LTV should

nol exceed a maximurn threshotd if market
ytelds were 1o fise o previous peaks.

Best Companies survey
2017 One to watch
One star
One star

- Total accounting retumn is our overall measure
of pactormance. tis the dividend paid plus
the growth in EPRA NAY per share

- During the year, we generated a TAR of 2.7%.
Our dividend increased by 3.0% 10 29.2 pence
per share and our EPRA NAV decreased by
0.4% to 915 pance per share

I
Sustainabilicy performince O]
- Duw Jonss Sustainahility Index World
and Europe 2016: 95th percentite
- FTSE&Gaod 2014: 95th percentile
- Glohal Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark
Z016: Eurcpean Sector { eader Diversified

We use industry-recognised indices to track cur
sustainability performance. We were pleased

to have heen awarded the Queen’'s Award for
Enlerprise: SuStainable Development 2014,

oy t commitment
% of standing investments

3T
2016 £0.5bn I8 38%
2015 £0.6ba

] 3%

5 lative de

¥

Devzlopment supports vatuz and future income
growth, but adds dsk. We keep our committed
development exposure at less than 15% of our -
investment portfolio, with a maximum of 8%
develaped speculatively. !

Weighted average interest rate’
— proportionafly consolidated

®

2018 3.3%
2015 3.8%

Our law cost of finance supporis our
financial performance and we have
had success in reducing it.

The Best Companies survey published by
The Sunday Times provides an extensive and
abjective measure of emiployee engagement

Links to remuneration

Long-term @ Annual

Encentive Plan

Incenlive award

Far cur Remuneration Report
see pages 73 to 88.

Risk indicators and incentive measures

Risk indicators we monitor:

~ Forecast GDP .

- The margin between property yields
anid kang lemi borvowing ooests :

- Propertycapital growih and ERV

growih torecasis
Management campensation linked to:

+~ Total accounting returm relative to relevant

camparalor groups

Rick indicators wa monitor:

- Consumer conflidance

- Employment forecasts for
relevant seclors

« Market letting risk lvacancies,
expiries, speculative develogment]

Management compensation inked to:

- Company repslabion with all stiakeholdars

= Suppoerling the delivery ol sustainability
objectives

Risk indicators we monitor:
-, Property capital relurn and ERV
growth lorecasts
- Total and specvlative developrnent exposure
- Proegress of developments against plan

Management compensation linkedto: .
- Todal properiy returns relativa to tPD
- Execution of targeted aoquisitions
and disposals
- Progress on key projects including
developments

Risk indicators we monitor:

- Covernam headroom

- Period until refinancing is requined

- Percentage of debi al fixed interest rates.

Management compensation linked to:
- Execulion el debl financings.
- Progress on strengthening the dividend

.Risk indicators we monitor;

- Unplanned executive depariures
t o

| p tion linked to:
- Qualily of people and management renewat

For how we manage rigk in delivering
Our stralegy see pages &6 to 53.
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Steategic Report

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

Our high quality portfolio continues
to generate strong income streams
with high occupancy and long leases;
we also have optionality to create
value from our development pipeline

Market and strategy .

It is nearly one year since the UK voted to |

the European Union. In that ime, the economy
has oulperformed expectations, with GDP
projeclions for 2007 revised upwards to an
average of 2% and unemployment below 5%,
its lowest in over 40 years. However, we have
enlered 3 prolonged peniod of uncerizinty and
_ businesses will lace a number of headwands.
Minghul ol this background, but lacing a clear
nieed to move lorward, occupiers are continuing
to make dedsions, bul glans are taking longer
ta come to frustion,

This is reltected in our markets. IPD capital
return fell 2.4% in the three months immediatety
fallowing the referendurm but since then, six
rnonths of positive capitat returns totalling

2 8% have par tially reversed this position,

On the investment side, overall volumes are
down year on year. However, London offices
saw a pick-up in aclivity lowards the end of
2016, and momentum was sustained into 2017,
with a number ol high prolile transactlions.
cancluded at tight yields, generally ahead of
valuation. This included our exchange of The
Leadenhall Building, which demonsirates the
continuing appeal of high guality, well locaked
properlies in London_ In retail, activity has
heen subdued with a lack of quality stock being
broughi ta the market. This has resulted in
limited transactional activity in Thulii-let retal,
although long term, secure income assels
refmain attraclive 10 a range of invesiors,

We expect Brexit-related headwinds to impact
our accupational markets. ln offices. it will be
same years before we have clanty on the impact
of proposed regulatory changes which may
affect occupier dernand, partcularly in financiat
services. However, demand from more crealive
setiors, which has accounted for a growing
share of aclivity in recent years, has held up
well, and we are encouraged that a number of
{eading global companies have reaffirmed their
commitrnent {o London since the referendum.
Vacancy rates have risen from low levels to
rmarginally above long term averages in both the ¢
City and West End lollowing recent development
completions. We expect further supply to apply
dawnward pressure on market rents, bui

our experience logay 1s that the fight spacen
strong lacalions continues to command rents
around pre-referendum tevels. Centrat London

28

<139bn

partiolio vatuation

3.1%

\otal property retsn

1.1%

ERV growth

-1.4%

vatualion movement

8.3 years

waightad average unexpirad tease lerm

98

occupancy rate

44

carhon intensity reduction since 2009
lindex scaret -

development is forecast 1o be a1 elevated
levels, but we are increasingly seeing plans
being deferred or cancelied, and a significant
proportion of the supply proposed in 2019
and 2020 remains uncommitted.

Retaiters are facing a more chatlenging
environment with cost pressures from a
nurnber of sources intluding the Nationat
Living Wage, business rales in sume areas

and impoert costinflation. These lactors will
heighten their focus on the best space, where
to date, demand has held upwell. Onthe
consummer side, conhidence will be vulnerable
1o poliical 2nd economic uncertaindes and we
have seen some evidence of softening retail
spend in tha first part of 2017 with inflation
impacling disposabie income.

Our view is that Brexit wiil accelerate
polansation in our markels. In recent years
we have positioned our business to benefil
from the tong term Irends driving demand

fur space, by providing places which reflect
prople’s changing lifestyles. Qur data-driven
approach to understanding how people use our
properties quides investment and placemaking
activilizs across our portiolio, as well as our
approach to largeling anincreasingly broad
range of oocupters. We provide places with

3 Mend of uses and a mix of services in
altractiva environments. accomnmodating

the preferences of Qur occupiers, their
customers and employees. This is mast
effective where we control the wider
surroundings, underpinfing our focus

on our multi-let retail proper bes and

aur London campuses.

Portfolio performance

Our portfolio saw a vatluation falt of 1.4% over
the year. Tha decline ol 2.8% in the lirst hall
was primarily due o culward yield shift of

19 bps. This was partially olisel by a valuation
increase of 1.4% in the second half when yields
maved inwards by 5 bps and we henefited

from the impact of sales, particularly our

50% interest in The Leadenhall Building which
exchanged in the year. Vatuations were also

supported by conlinuing ERV growth.

Tha value of our Retail portfolio was down 1.8%
reftecting total outward yield shift of 14 bps.
with 18 bps movement in the lirst hali parisalty
offsel by 3 bps cantractlion in the second half,
‘We saw variation within Retail, with the sirongest
ERY growth on our mutii-let portiolio at 2.4%.
This was 2.5% alt our Local centres, marginatly
ahead of our Regional centres at 2.3%. We

saw a valuation fall on supersiores of 5.2%.
reflecling a fall in ERVs of 4.0%. bul a sironger
performance across our other single-let assels
wilh valuations up mare than 5%. This reflected
the sate of Debenhams, Oxford Street and
lease extensions and rentincreases agreed
across our Homebase portiotic.

Dtfices were down 0.7% with outward yietd
mavernent of 15 bps for the fult year, as 21 bps
expansion i the §irst hali was partally offset
by & bps conlraclion in the second balf. We saw

Valuation ERY  Total property

Yaluotion oErneEnt grovith return

Year ended 3% March 2017 &m % % %
Rerait 6.654 118 1% 35
Offices & Residential TMH5 9.5 0.5 3.0
Canada Water 2N [10.8) 0.9 8.1
Tatal 13,940 1.4} LA 31
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the largest valvation falls on assets with nzar
termn expiries, particularty those properties
vacated by UBS al Broadgale. Conversaly,
UBS's new budding 5 Broadgate gawnad invatuz
brenefiting from a long lease with RP! inked
uplifis_The value of The E eardanhall Building
also increased reflecting the sale price
agreed 24% above valuation.

The value of Canada Watar fell 10.8% reflecting
the valuer's reassessment of development
risk and returns, particutarly on residentiat,
as wall as planning and feasibility cosis

not recovered. This &6-acre regenarstion
opportenity is valued at £6 millon per acre.
The next majsr value craation slep is expedied
to be on securing planning.

Qur porticlio outpertermed IPD at the sector
{eved with Relail and Offices 40 bps and 40
bps ahead on a capital returns basis. Overalt
we underparformed the 1PD universe which
comprrses 20% industrial assets which
performed wall this year, by 110 bpsona
capilal return basis and by 150 bpsona

iotal return basis. .

Investment and development activity
The gross value of our investment activity
since 1 April 2014, as measured by our share
of acguisitions, disposals, capital spend on
developmants and other capital projects was .
£2.5 biltion. This includes E1.5 billion of sales on
average 9% shaad of valuation, at an averegs
yietd of 4%. Net divestment was £1.1 billion.

Offices sales included our 50% interest in

The Leadenhalt Building, which exchanged .
in March for a headline price of £1.13 biluon
[100%). The sale, to C € Land, is conditional
upon C C Land shareholder approval. A Specal
General Meating of the shareholders of CC
1.and has been convened on 18 May 2017

" to approve the ransaction. We expect the

" transaction to complete shortly thereafter,
This transaction is 2 good exarnpte of how
qurstandalong office assels pronde liguidity
allowing us o develop and trade opportunistically.
Al our campuses we fecus on delivering -
sustainable relurns over the long term.

In Redail. we made €881 miltion of disposals.
3% ahead of valuation, comprising £709 million
of single-let properties and £172 milbon of

Sz.obn

i!k.sbn
£0.5bn

1.4m sq ft

leiting= and renewals

1< b

+8%

mulli-lat assels whidh ware nol alignad

with gur strategic goals. The largest sate was
Bebenhams, Oxford Street for a price of £400
millicn. We sold £224 miltion (E410 millien gross
value) of superstores including £116 million as
partof our Tesco JV swap transaclion which
axchangad and completed afler theyear and,
resulling in the termination of the last of our
five Tesco joint ventures. Inaggregale, aur
Tesco joint ventures delivered an annualised
return of over 10% since the first one was
established & 1997 Over the lasl five yoars, we

have now sotd aver E908 million'ef superstures. .

reduding their weighling in the Retail portiotio
fror 2256 to 8% and in the overall portfolio
from 13% o £%. Mulli-lel retail now accounts
far 785 of the Retzil portfolio increasing from
71% at the star of the year.

We have pmgmssed sales at each of

our residential schemes with £56 million
exchanged over the yeas, on average 4 5%
ahead of valuation with a turther £27 million
.reserved 2l prices in line with March 2017 . .
valuations. Sates al Aldgate Place were
exchanged at prices in line with valuation,
leaving just one apartment to sell. At The

Retail Oifices Residential  Canada Water Total
From 1 April 2016 . &m tm £m [ £m
Purchases' 187 - - 8 ‘195
Sales'? 881 160%) {561 - 1.544}
Development Spend . 20 132 2t 0 183
Capétal Spend 9N 18 - - 109
Net Investment 1583) 1459) {35} ‘18 n.o59
Gross Investment 11479 759 77 18 2,033

On a propartinnatty consolidaled basis including ithe Group's share of joinl veniwres and funds

' Indudes £43m acquisitions and £118m dispasals that exchanged and completed post year end as part
of the Tesco JV swap transaclion resulting in a net £73m disposal of supersiore assets; also includes
a further £49m acquisition that exchanged and compleied past year end.

? Qlwhich. £575m Dffices sales and £19m Resid

tial sales ¢

pleting posl year end.

Britich Land | Annual Repart and Accownts 207

Hempet Colleclion, sales accelerated followang
the launch i March 2017, and a reduction i
prices by i0% A1 Clarges, Mayfair we miend o
matket the remamng 11 zpariments lollowing
completion i late 2017 but we agreed the sale
of one of the l2rger 2partments in the year zhead
of valuation {ollowing 3 one-oH approach. Tivs
2cinaty reduces our residentizl properiies to
seit to £210 milion of whach (150 million is

at Clarges

QOur £195 million of acquisiiions in the year were
focused on adjacencies W existing hekdings.
fipiably our L4 mallion acguisition of e New
Gezorge Street Estate in Plymouth which lies
betwean Drake Circus and our proposad leisure
sthemes and our £6% raillion purchase of 10-40
The Broadway, Ealing which 1s adjacent lo our
Ealing Broadway Local retail centre. In both
cases these stquisitions complement b
enhance our existng plans.

Development spand totalled £153 million in the
year. We completad almast 200,600 sq it of offica
space al 4 Kingdom Stres!, Paddinglon Centrat
and 7 Clarges Streel and 187 apartments

at Aldgate Place [Phiase Hand The Hempel
Callection. Capilal expenditure endianding our
asseis was £167 millien, indluding extensions
and unit reconfigurations at our multi-tet retadt .
asselts with direcily associated inome uplifts.
Wa have invested ££4 millicn improving cur retail
environments, notably at Meadowhall which
accounted for £23 million, 25 parl of pur £60
million {100%) refurbishmant_ This complaies
atthe end of 2017, and is the most significant
investment in the tentre since it opened in 1990,
ensunng thal it continues to meel cgnsymesrs’
evotving expectations. We are atready seeing =
goeod respsise from occupters wath 37 long tesrn
letiings and renewals signed here i the year.
We have alsa invested £5 million enhancing the
public realm at our London campuses, primarity
Paddingten Ceniral, as  part of a £12 million
investrnent programmne. -

Foltowing development completions, our
speculative develapment exposurs has reduced
10 below 4% Thas is well within our irternat

risk threshold for speculatve devetopment.
This threshold was reduced to 8% of overall
portlolio value from 10% in the year. reflecting
a rmoderation of our appetite for speculative
devalopment risk given uncertainty in aur
markets. Qur mosl significant commatment

is 100 Liverpoaot Sireet at Broadgate: tetalling
521,000 sq R, including 70,000 sq it of ralail.

it 1s due lo complele at the end of 2019, with
costs to come of £152 miltion |British Land
share]. We alse commaenced a 66000 sq fi
leisure development 3! New Mersey. Speke
which is largely pre-let and expecl to complete
the residential etement of Clarges, Mayialr
Later thas year.

Construction cost forecasts continue (o

suggest a slowdfown in the rate of growth over

this year and next, despite increasing pressure
oq npul costs. Qur experience suggests that

I costinflation is marginally lower than it has
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PERFORMANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

DeveJopments
Brich tand share
. Caprent Cost o ERVielf Residential Spac

sgi vedue ERV ° underefler  exchanged (-t
A 3 March 2N7 oo m Cm Oy Emn om k-
Completad in yaar 489 343 37 16 1 -
Committed £8 578 218 2 1 278 &%
Near lerm 1.083 345 338 &3 25 - &%
Medium tesm 303
Canada Water 5.500
Bnaz oresolidyiodd batsis induding ke Group's share of joinl yenluies and funds lexept aies
wh;d\ s showm at 1O0%.

* Spepdarive devel das Plars CosEs o come lass pardantage pre-soldfpre-tet as a

Wlmﬁmmmmmmmnm@mwmﬂwcmﬂmlmpmlm

for cammiirnant o neat term oppas unities.

been over the iasi wo years. Howsver, we
continue tetakeac view and maintain
piudent allowances within project budgets

o reftecl specilic sectors ang Imaumns 'nm
of the C0sSts oh our committed develop

halding cosis. On the relail side, we are refining
our ptans for @ 104800 sg ft teisure scheme at
Dirake Cércus in Plymouth and we expect to start
on site pext year. In tolal, thegse commitrments

L to £338 millien of spend and would lake

programme have bean fed.

Our divestments, lotafling (1.5 hillion ghis year,
our pianning activity and progress on leasing
discussions inpgrove o cplicnality and leave
us well placed te make timely densmns on
commit s in vur develop pipelina,
Our completed developmanis arse substantially
let, with 2imost 80% of the office space at

£ Kingdom Street undler offar, and over 80% of
the office space at 7 Clarges Street lel. Leasing
discussions en our commsitied pinstine are
progressing andwe are under offer on all of
the office space at cur propased redevelopment
of 1 Triton Square. This activity enables us

1o progress developments whil st keeping
specylative commilments al an appropriate
level We secured planning consents tolalling
2.3 mitlion sq ft i tha year across the portlolio
and submitted planning applications on a further
1.3 milbon sq i This provides for a much wider
range of opportunitiasin the near and medium
terva (hanwe had at the stact of the yeac.

In our near lerm pipeline, we expect (o commit
to the refurbishments of T Finsbury Avenue’
{288,000 sq it} and 135 Bishopsgate (325,000

sq it] al Broadgate. in the coming months.
Iollowing receipt of planning and agreement
with our joint venture partner. Qur plans at both
include increasing retail and leisure space by
88,000 sq ft including 2 cinema and rool terrace
bieing added 1o 1 Finsbury Avenue. Royal Bank

- al Scotland will be surrendering Lheir lease at
135 Bishopsgate in June 2017 ahead of expityin
2019 and we will raceive a paymeni of £34 million
{100%) compensating for the remaining lease
term and ditapidations; we are already secing
good interest on a significant portion of the space
here. At 1 Tnilon Square we are currently under
ofter an all af the eifice spaca, and have received
approval irom the London Borough of Camden
for our redevelopment. Subject o completion of
the planning precess and the pre-let, we expect
to cornonil and to start on sitein March next year.
This will coincide with Lhe expiry of short term
leases agreed 1o mamitain optionality for the
redevelopment of this site while mitigaiing
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our speculziive devalopment commitrnent to 6%.

Looking further ahead, our rnediur;': term
pipeline covers a range of usas, induding
office-led development in London, and reiail and

-| mixed yse developments across the country and

3t Canada Waler. The majority of these projects
are inceme producing. including 283 Finsbury
Avenue and Eden Walk] or are held at low cost
{Blossom Sireet and the proposed leisure
scheme at Meadowhall) providing us with

eal optionality on the liming and nature of eur
ommibnent. The total polential cast assodated
wilh these opportunities is £1.4 biltion plus
Canada Water. Wa wiil maintain an appropriale
level of developrment risk, and so on our
oHice-led developments. commitment is likely
to be influenced by the progress of pre-let
discussions. We have a disciplined approach
to capitst allocation and relain the flexibility

to respond 1o the changtng environment.

Bpportunities at cur campuses include the
105,000 sq ft Gateway Building al Padding|
Central where we are in advanced negolialions
wilh an operator for a boutique hotel on the site
of the current managemeni suite, We expect
lo proceed i these discussions are successiul
subject to planning. We are also working o
enhance the exisling conisant for 3 240,000 sq [t
office buillding al the site of 5 Kingdom Street.
inthe meantime, we have lel space on a short
term basis to Pergola Paddington Central,
who are creating an B50-capacity pop up dining
concepl which benefits the broader campus.
Al Broadgate, we have secured planning for a
563,000 sq ft redevelopment of 283 Finsbury
Avenue; UBS have vacated 2 Finshury Avenue
ant we have secured short term lettings on 90%
of this space whilst their tease al 3 Finsbury
Avenue remains in place (break in lale 2018),
Looking further forward, we expect to take
vacant possession of 1-2 Broadgale in summer
2019 and are working up our plans for a 375 000
sq (t scheme which will include a substantial
retait element. At Blossom Streel. we have
secured hell cansent an 3 360,000 sq fi offica-led
mixed use development.
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Our re12R opportunities indude 5 372,000

5q {t leksawe extension al Meadgwhatl, We have
submitied sur plans and expect 5 Secision over
tha surnmzr writh 2 veesx 1o Starling on site in
2018, Our plans erwiszge 2 muiti-level Leisure
Hall with dining and enlertainment oplions
longside high guality intesnal and =xternal
spaces for events and community use,
induding new restaurans, 3 pew CRema,

calé court and gym.

Tdan Walk is 2 538,000 o4 it mizad use,
regEneraiion scheme m Kingsien, which we
mmmmmmmuss in March 2017, we
ach Far our gevelop which
HK:lHde&&ﬂrerﬂaﬂlaMmslmmumls_ :
380 nevr homes and 35,000 sq ft of high quality,
madenn and fexible affite space. Our proposal
wall areate an estirnated 600 additienal jobs for
local peeple. We 2re progressing our plans to
mmﬁmoﬂlﬁmsﬂe and expect
tog e davelop tin 2019 but in the
reearimhe the scheme is intome producing
with a pield of 3 6%,

Canada Wales 15 the mest sigrificant
development opportunily i our rvedium terin
pipeline: the shopping centre and leisure scheme
remam ncome produting with 2 yizld of 2.8%.
We are warkizg dinsely with the London Borough
of Southwark_ the Greater Londan Authority,
Transpart for London and the lecal community
on our masterplan for the 46 acre site, with plans
for up to S S million 55 M of space sross a wide
range of uses. This includes 2 million sq It of
workspace and 1 million sq i of retail and leisure
space longside educalional and cullural uses
and up to 3 500 nevw homes. These will include

2 mix of atfordable and market priced housing
as well as a more targeted provision, including
student a0commodation The rewsed masterplan
integrates printples of sustainability 2nd
weltberng which wall create a new urban

centre for Londan. Dur active programme

of engagement with the lecal community and
other stakeholders includes our {oarth public |
consudtation which started earfier this maonth
2nd we are targeting submission of a planning
application around the end of the hinancial yzar.
We wall evaluate phasing of the project and
potential funding structures as we move closer
to securing planning. In the meantime, we have
been engaging with a wide range of potential
occupiers and are encouraged by the interest. In
the short term, we have areated an exciting new
events space af the Printworks lo raise the public
profle of the area and to generate income, as
well as testing the appetite for this kind of fadility
within oyr plans. The space las already played
host to Secrel Cinema and Mulberry in London
[ashion week, and now regutarty hosts cultural
events. In total. almest 100,090 people have
attended events there.

More details on the pnrlfnlm propeity
performanice. individual developments and

T assels sold and acquired during the year

- tan be found in the delafled supplementary
tables on pages 15210 171,



Our actions this year have
positioned us to exploit
Opnmwduy we have created
in our development pipeline

Committed

100 Liverpool Street, Broadgate

520,000 sq fc

Completing: 2019

Office led development at the gatzway of our Broadgate
tampus, adjacent \a few Liverpool Sireet Crosseail
station. Plans include Mquflnlram‘!amm

Ctarges, Mayfair [residential)

34 apartments

Completing: 2017

Mixed use development comprising 34 leopy
apartments of which 40% pre-sold lby vatuel,
¥1 apartments to sell on completion.

~

New Mersey, Speke (teisurel

66,000 sq ft

Completing: 2018
Leisure extension, 4% pre-let and anchored
by an 11-screen Cineworld.

Near term

1 Finsbury Avenue, Broadgate

288,000 sq it

Target commitment: 2017

Refurbishunant with & mix of retail and teisure al
ground flgor_ inctuding a cnema, with more Alexdble
office space on the upper floors and roof terTace.

1 Triton Square, Regent's Place

366,000 sq it

l‘arget mmmhnem - HN7

ing building adding 125,000
sqilolofhcz space. Ul‘ldl'!l olfer for pre-!el of enire
office space.

Drake Circus, Plymouth fleisure}

104,000 sq ft

Target commilment: 2018

Leisure extension will inciude a 12-screen Cineworld,

13 restavrant units and £20 car park spaces.

Medium term

Gateway Building, Paddington Central

105,000 sq ft

Tmmm:m:r
Boutique hotel and teapre scheme, providing
a new use to Paddingion Ceniral.

Blossom Street, Shoreditch

1| 340,000 sq ft

Planning obizined: 2018
Mxedusedaabpﬂmﬂmﬁmadﬁdn Our plans.
dharacier offices with a mix of floarplates

Jongside retad] and resid L g much of
the onginat fabre of the buldungs.

Canada Water

55m sq ft

Target planning sub sorc end of the fin 1 year
anmdmmmmahmtynhnﬂmt
D rnastarplan, 5.5 mllion sq B, envisages 3

covering
broad mix el warkispace. retzil and leisure. recitendtial
ant coenrunidy use. Existing uses provide anincome
yietd of 3%
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seratedic Repurt

RETAIL PLACEMAKING

We've had a successful year. We hovoe
leased well, our operationad metrics
continue to outperform and wee
grown our rents, particularly where

we have tnvested

Chares Maudsley
Head of Relail and Leiswre

Our Relail business has had a successhul
year, evidenced by our continued slrong
leasing, our operational meirics which are
outperforming and our ERY growth which is
ahead of the marketl, parlicularly whera we
have invested. This is cur tenth consecutive
year of outperiormance on a total returns
basis. This is testament Lo our strategy,
which is lo create sutstanding places lor
modern consumer ifestyles.

The growth of online has driven polarisation
in feiail| as occupiers are increasingly {ocused
on the best. and the most appropriale space
to profitably grow sales across alt channels.
We expect Lhis irend Lo accelerate in the
coming years, as retailers face a range of
headwinds such as cost inftation and weaker
consumer spending while the lerms on
which the UK leaves the EU are negoliated.
For many of our occupiers, the best space
means a number of flagship or "hub™ stores
supplemented by a netwark of more convenient
oullets which ensure suffident coverage and
are an important part of entine fulfilment
networks, including ctick and collect. This
mircors our strategy in Retail which is ta
operate both Regional centres, attracling
visitors from a wide catchment lor planned
teips. with a breadih and depth of cetail and
teisure, and Local centres which litinto the
daily life of communities and are more
canvenient and accessible.

Retail hightights of the year

- Qur Retail portfolio

£0.6bn

portiotio vatuation [Briish Land shard

' 9800

ocoupancy rate

8.6 years
lesse tength o first break
annual foolfatl

Gur paor tolio has lha
polential to reach

60%

of the population

Saurce: CACI Retail Foolprint 2004
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Local — Mavflower, Basildon

156,000 sq ft
3m

Regional - Fort Kinnaind. Edinburgh

560,000 sq ft
13m

annual lootlall

Growing food & beverage and leisure
across our waulti-les portfolic

1o

o=

% of rant

March  March
013 MW

March

March  March
205 W18 2007

Cur focus is on gur ocougiers and thair
customers 2nd we use a range of sourtes o
understand n=eds. We angage with tonsumars
dirscily through shopper surveys ang collect
date on their onling interacbions. generating
incaghis ahout how, when and whese peeple
lika to shop. This quides everything from cur
investrment in the portfolio i the ocoupiors

we are iargeting, enabling us to positizn o
centyes 1o be the best in their caichmnend, for
the range of shopper missions they serve. A
high level of customer services is 2 key element
of our offering and w2 now Man3ge our fefait
assels in-house through Broadgsie Eclaies;
this transilien was cempleted in the year and
we have been very pleased with: hew this bas
enabled us to deliver a consistent and 2 high
standard of service across gur r2izit portiolio.

This year, footfall and in-store s2les fuitich
exdlude click 2nd collecl ard the boast o online
from physical stores), cutperformed their
benchmerks by 260 bps and 220 Bps respactivety,
but bath were It averall. Ditfering dynamics
were eviden! across our portfolio, wih foatiall
al our Regional centres dovn 1.9% byt siles up
0.3% illustrating how peegle are visiling these
larger cenires less lrequently, but spemding
more, At gur Local centres, footlall was up 2.1%
bul in-store sates ware down B.73% refiecting
greaterclick and collecl usage al Lhese sites
which is not included within in-store sales. Qur
True Value of Stores resedrch, conducted in the
yearwith retail consudlanry Blohalls Huciratad
the important role physical steres playin boosting
sales across other chennels, induding click and
collect. On average, dick and collecl usage is £6%
greater at our Local centres than the national
average and click and cotlect customers spend
around 50% more than the average shopper.
This outperformance illustrates thaiin a
polarising markel, gur centres are atiracting 3
dispreportionate share of consumer demand.

This year; despite a more uncertain Gading
envirenment, and with the portfolio virtually fult
21 98%. we lel more space. on belter lerms,_ 1o
awider range of accupiers than in the previous
year. Letlings and renewals lotalling 1.3 million
sq ft were signed in the year, on average 10.8%
ahead of ERV. Our Regional cenlres accountad
for approximately two-thirds of this actimly bui
both Regional and Local centres adhieved leasing
terms which were strongly ahead of ERV. '

Qur leasing covered a broad range of sectors,
but we were particularly successiul in fashion,
homewares and food & beverage which
accounted for 25%, 27% and 15% of leasing
respectively. Reflecting our customers’
preferences, our plans are to increase the
teisure and food & beverage allocation across
our portfolio from the current position of 10%
lup from £% four years agol, and we made good
progress on this in the year with 133,000 sq [t of
lettings. We are particularly pleased thef ssver 2l
of our atcupiers have chosen cur assats for their
first out of town locations including Thaikhun,
Wahaca, Smiggle, Superdry. Chartes Clinkard
and Pret-A-Manger. This success reflecis an
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Grex 3000 chletran 1ok paat in the Young Raadars
Prograomme ergsnised #n parinarship valh the
iaitiome) [ fesoty Toust acrass 22 centres i owr
of cur partnershey,

incressingly sephistoaled pitching process
which leverages our insighls o halp prosgective
ermgiars yndarsiand cur offer and positiening
vithin our caldhments. A number of operators,
wduding Primark, S0 Sports, Sports Directand
Schhurh dhose to loczie more of their Ragship
stores wilh s in the year. by adding to their
existing space al our Regional cenlres. At our
Local cenlres, we saww new lettings to Witko,
River island, Nande's and more community
focused occupiers such as Explore Learning
and loczl gyms. We are also appealing to mare
premium brands, particularty where we have
irvesied and Meadowhall is a good example of
this. Neal's Yard, Nespresso Hawes & Curlis,
Flannrels and Ghost Lorvion all signed in the
year as ouwr £560 miklion [100%] refurbishment
programme nears campletion.

This strong demand for our space is reflected in
the se-tetting of 70% of the 247000 sq flof space .
returned to vs fellowing BHS administration,
with long term leases al levels significantly

in excess of previous passing rent.

Like-for-like rental growth [exctuding
suimender premiurns] was 2.0%, driven by our
sireng leasing activity as well 3s rend reviews
with over 120 reviews settied on average 3.4%
ahead of passing rent and ahead of valuation
assumpiions. This year we renewed eight
Homebase leases, tolalling 283.000 sq ft
extending the tzase term te 15 years. increasing
rents and providing a significact capital uplift
for our single-lat portiotio.

ERVY growth across our mulli-let properiies
was 2.4% and this performance provides strong
ewsdence thal owr stralegyis working. investment
in our assels, guided by our insighls has driven
demand for our space, bringing our porticlio lo
near full ovcupancy, 2nd generating the demand
tension needed to drive rents. We are particularly
pleased lha! ERV grewth atross assels benediling
from our ivestment was 3.29, which was ahead
of the portfolio average. At Colchesler ERV
growth was nearty 14% following completion of
our £6 million investient Lo improve the public
reatrn there, including a new playground, the
addition of public art and reconliguration of

the car park.
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Strategic Repuore

RETAIL PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

66

The changes British Land is making to its centres will
wnake them some of the very best around. The concept
of continually updating the experience, finproving the
public realm and getting the balance right betwween
retail and leisure is so important. The investinent

in their assets is spot on.”

Timothy Melgund, CEO Paperchase

Entivening our places
Events such as the live sareening of sports, theatire and fiim,
drive footfell to gur centres including SouthGate. Bath,

Development spand in the year was £20 million

3 5% . and induded a new letsure guanter at Glasgow
hd Fort. waith four new restaurants and a mulk-
totsl property return storey car parik adding 600 spaces and increasing
- car park Gapacity by over 30% to accommodate
) groweing visitor nusabers_ This follows leisure
_1 8% . anid retai extensions in 2013 ard 2015 which have
. underpinned improved operational performance
valuation mavernent _{ atthe centre. The cenire is now ranked tep in

s category by CACHin Scotland. Owr leisure
exiension at New Mersey, Spehe, where

1 6% constryction commenced this year witl add
- an tl-screen cinefna, pre-tet to Cineveorld,
ERV growth and six restaurant units, significantly enhancing

the leisure offering 21 this cenlre. Opening
i summer 2018, we have already pre-let

sl 2b restayranis to Wagamama's, Mando s and TGI
Ly n Frittay, Ths year we achieved planning Consenis
gruss investment activity on 840,600 sq I, covering a renge of activity irom

: large mixed use developments to small-scale
Fepravenneals to exisling properties, providing
S 881 optionality for the lutvre.
m
reiall disposals at average yield of 4.3% This year. capitat spend in Ihe Retail portiolio

totalted £91 miltion of which just gver half were
initiatives delivering an immediate intrease in

790kw income. The remaindar were inilizbives to enhance
environments with longar tarm benelits for

ol solar panels across five centres, our assets. The refurbishment programme at

with more planned Meadowhall was the most significant of these,

atcouning for £23 mitlion [Bribsh Land share).
This is part of our £60 million [109%) upgrade
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1.3m sq ft

of redad] ketings and rehewas

+119% ‘

lettmgs and rerewals dheed of TRV

fonifall growth 2head of the Bomchmmak

2200bps

in-slore 52105 growth 2haad o e bandhmt

40

Starting o n ke programone. part of
Braght Ligis

21

ol aur o e 9 5wkl
augmentad raality games during the yesr

46%

more dick a7 collect usage at e Leca)
feqires thern the natizns! wersge

compleiing inlate 2017. Al Teessidz, we are on
site wilihva £30 million refurbishmen) programme
to coincide with the centre's 25th anniversary.
Our improvaments focus on the public: realm
and customer service faclities and vell detivar
more fexble space for our ocTupions.

Qur insight has also guided our placemaking
aclivities agrass the portiotio. This year we
staged a virtual Chrisimas present hunt at 21
Lotal and Regional centres. the largest ever
augmented reality game in UK relad property.
Eats from the Street_ showrasing ihe hes) UK
street food redurned ie ten of our centres andwe
launched Street Style a fashion and beauty event
which ran across seven of our assets. Our Young
Readers Programme, run in parinership with the
HNationat Literacy Trust and real neoupiers, is
its sixth year 3nd we are pleased that over 5,000
children toak part this year. Sur Bright Lights
skills programme provided work placements
with our retait and leisure accupiers for 70 local
unemployad young people of wisch 755 moved
into permanent johis soon alter. kitialives such as
these help enliven our ptaces, attracting nevw and
repeal visitors lo our centres and foster sronger
conneciions with local communilias and our
occupiers. The people who live in and arount cur
assels are an important part of our catchment
an their loyalty is increasingly relevant as
custorners have greater choices arownd how

and whare they shop.



OFFICES PLACEMAKING

We’?oehadastrongjear. We have made

good progress letting space across our

development pipeline and our campuses
are appealing to a broader range of
occupiers than ever before

Tim Roberts
Head of Offices and Residential

Qur Oifices busmness has had a sirdng y=ar.

The porifolio is virtually {ull and we have made
goad progress lelting space agross our recendty
compleizd, commilted and near term pipeline.
In tine vith our strategy to creale culstending
ptaces tor modemn professisnal and consumer
lifestyles we are increasing the mix of zses
across our campuses, le appealto 2 broader
rangea of pooupiers.

.Office take up in central Londen has been led

by the tachnolegy and media sectors, which
are now the most signihcant component of
dernand, accounting for nearty one third of
achivity in 2014, With its poc! of internationa!
talent and reputalion for innovation_ London

has proved to be a magnet for these new

ang growing companizs. This trend is

driving a change in the Iype of space which

is succeeding, with 2 growing emphasis on
Rexibility, co-working and veelibeing. a5 weall
as envirorments which are compatiile vith
the way people’s work and leisure time overlap.
Finangal services accounted lor under 20%
af take up, less than hall the figure in 2010.
This trend may accalerate turther wilh
regulztory and policy changes follovang Brexdt,
but the feedhack we have is that the preference
of fingnedial services companias is lo retain the
mazjority of their operalions ia London because
guarwhelriingly thds is where their employees
want Lo live and work.

Our Offices portfolio in London

£6.3bn

poriloin valuation [British Land sharel
989
occupancy sate

. Cars
18 v

1zase length to first break

* Pro forma for sate of
The Leadenhatl Building.
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Seearedic Heparr

OFFICES PLACEMAKING CONTINUED

Our campuses
Bruadgate (30% interest)

Regeat’s Place

Paddi_[.lglon Central

Standalone
7 Clarges Street, Mayfair

Qur siraiegy fecuses an providing the nght
space. the right services. and the righi
environmenis to meet this broader specirom
of demnand. We have engaged more actively
with the users of our space. and this vear,
lzunched the Office Agenda’ an online
platform where we share key insights with
warkers and deoson makers on topica! issues
mehyding 1he rote of real eslate in Aratiing
2nd retaining talent and ‘smart’ offices.

Our surveys of nearly & 000 office workers
and dedsion makers provided valuable
insighl into what makes a greal place to
waork. helping our eccupienrs refine thesr
oftce strateqy and enabling us o beiter
reflaci their needs

Al lh2 portfolio levet, this includes broadening
the range of uses onour campuses with a
higher altocation to retail and leisure, a5 well
as deiivering more flaxible office space with
Aourplaies whith are easily divisible, enabling
us to target a wider range of occupiers. At the
catnpus level, we are applying sur placemaking
framework by enhancing and entivening ur
assetswith a comprehensive programme of

2.8%

iz preperty returm

07
0.5%

The success of sur sppreach s demoenstrated
by our lessing aclivily, which this y2ar totalted
272000 sq fi, 1.4% abvoad of ERV. 33.000 sq It
related o relail, beiSUNe 0r CORMMUNItY SPace.
We bave el a further 85,000 sq it on a short
term or mesmmiwle bass, 204ing uses which
enliven our campuses and address lease
expiries while presarving oplionalily for
redevel i W were pl dthat a

9

events including exhibitions,_ art instalkat
conceis, wellbeing activities, pop-up shops.
bars, markets and restaurants, and bive
screening of sports, theatre and fikn. We also
partner with our occupiers on community
iniiatives, such 35 the Regent's Placa
Communily Fund. where our partnership

wnth octupiers has inrested £30,000 this year
to sugport local © ity projects, making a
pasitive difference and strengthening our links

-with local communities, We survey occupiers

aeross our campuses and our results show that
satisfaction levels are high, and have improved
over the last two years, parincutary amongst
key decision makers.

66

They arent just landlords.
They take a real interest
in the campus.”

Harry Tsakalotos, EBRD
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of nur major cocupiers re-committed
0 our campuses im the yaat: inctuding
Facebook who hanre agreed tesmns o further
extenid their axtopation of 106,000 sg f1at 10
Brock Streel. At 20 Trilon Streal, Eimenrsional
Fund Advisors hava agread to a re-gear, tzking
their l2rm o 10 years loriginad expiry June
20208, veith an additional 1200055 R ang
Credit Agricole have agread 1o extend their
140,000 sq fi lease at Broadwalk House from
2017 to 2025. This actvity, 25 well as the inal
leRlings at Marile Arch House and The

L eadenhall Building has increased like-Tor-like
renl acress ihe otfice portfolio by 4 5%. .

We are also leltng well across our recently
completed and naar term pipeline whilst
successhully expanding owr mux of uses. At

4 Kingdern Street, Paddinglon Central, we
ware atmost 8% under offer on the office
space within a week of completion in A'prilk

In aggregale, these teases are on terms 3%
aheat of pre-referendum ne, effective ERVS .
and ever 23% zhead of cur Ir
Commllee D 2R W
Z014. We have signed a hwo year tease with
Pergola Paddinglon Central for an 850-capacty
pop-up dining destnation onthe site of S
Kingdom Street. The venue will leatuce sote

of London's most pepular restaurants and
bars. including Patty & Bun, DF / Mexico and
Raw Press and the offering witl change each
season. Ml Broadgaie, we are addressing
vacancies 2t 2 Finsbury Avesw e with 90.000

s ft of short lerm tettings, including to

Thealre Delicalessen, a fintech company

and an architeckure pracuce.




We started on sita at 100 Liverpool Sirest in
the yzar. i sits 21 the gatewsay lo our Broadgate
campus, adjacent lo Liverpos! Streel siziton
where the first Crossseil services will
commence next year. It covers 52000 sq it
{anincrease of 140,080 sq it and i= dasigned
to be divisible into uniis as small as 300 sq &t
with shared lacilities catering to damand from
smaller businesses. 90,000 sq fl is altotaied
to retail and restaurants, and we are
committed to both the WELL standard lor
wellbeing and the WiredScore Plainum rating
for internel connectivity and infrastruciure.
This development is a good itlustration ¢l
our strateqy in Offices to daliver byildings
which meal evolving cust ds and
appeal to a broader range of scoupiers.
The redeveloprent is expectad o more

than double rents ai the buitding.

The next phase of development will see the -
mix of uses continue 6 evolve. Qur revised
plans for a 288,000 sq It refurbishraent al

1 Finsbury Avenuz indude a cinarnz, relail
and restaurants at ground floor, and cur
proposals at 135 Bishopsgate allocate £3,000
sq ft to retail. We have submitied plans for
refurbishroent of these buildings, and are in
discussionswith prospective occupiess on
nearty half of the combined space. We expect

249000 sq ft

lettings and renewals

+14%

{ettings vs ERV

£1.15bn

headline sale price of The Leadenhall Building
[1o0%|

sISOm |

davalopmen and capital spend

700000 s ft

ol tettings under. olfer or in advanced
neqobiations across gur campuses

0 comnil (o both refurtishments in the
corming months with an assonated cost of

| £90 million. At Paddington Central we are

in advanced negoliations with an operator

1o pre-let 3 boulique hotel and atl day dining
voncepi on the 5Ac of the existing mesayaient
suite {the Gatewsy Buildingl. Al Ragent's Place
we are pleased thal we are under offer on

318 900 sq ft representing all of the office
space al our propased redevelopment of

1 Triten Sguare, and received approval from
tha London Borough of Camdan last weak.

This means thal 20ress ur campuses,

wi are under ofler or in advanced nagoliations
on over 130,000 sq it of space wath significand
discussions ongomg 2aross the London
business with potental occupiers on a further

| B59.000 sq it of space, which could trigger

Rerther devalopment commitments.

As part of our campus offering we wilk

shortly launch a branded Rexible workspace
offer which enables us to capiure incremental
dernand from the increasing number of small
businesses laking space in Landon as well

23 meeting a growing need amengsl our
existing orcupiers for flexible space for specific
projects and leams. Our first flexible dealis
on 25,000 sq tat 2 Finshury Avenue, extending

Enle ing our «

our relationship with 2n exisling oroigier

21 Padfingien Cenirat, whe need atdifional
strengihens existing relationships 2rg altrzcis
v COCUHETS (0 uT Carmpus, potemtisly cur
oore oroupisds of the future. We have aliocated

‘further spate 30ross QuT campases intluding

21 & Kingdom Streel, and we have commenczd
fit-eut 2cross 83000 sg i,

Follewing the exchenge 6f The | eadenhall
Building, our siendaions office porticlio
avooerts for 22% of Ofivces. AL 7 Clarges
Sreet, the 51,008 sq ft eifice element of gur
mixat vse development in Mayfair, we were
plaased that over BO% of the spare was el
or under affer ust fower menths alter its
laumch in Seplember. We achieved an
average renl of £113 pst, o terms in Bne
with pre-referendian rel effactive ERYS. .
desnonsiraing the continring demand for
quality office space in Lendon. At Yalding
Hotrss §29.000 sg it) vee have tot four of the
six Roors and are under ofier on the Rnal
two. Like The Leadenhall Bultding, these
are buldings where v can develop and
trade opportunistically, to provide tiquidity
in our pertfofio 2nd exhance returms.

Pargota, an 850-seater cutdosr dining concept at Paddington Central,
wall host some of Londen's most popular bars and restaurams.
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Strstegic Report

CLIMATE RELATED PERFORMANCE

In a changing climate, our futureproofing
programme creates comamercial opportunitics
and helps us anticipate regulation, resource
constraints and stakeholder expectations

Carbon reporting

We actively inanage greenholuse gas emissians
aaross our business. Our energy elficiency
programma has saved occupiars £13 miltion
Gross OVeT SiX years ang we Te committed to

usmg 100% electnicity fram renewable sources.

British Land was inctuded in the COP
Climate A List of the lup 9% of global
corppanies tackling dimate change.

Ouy 1zrgel ko cut carbon inlensity by 55%

by 2020 versus 2009 lindex scored] exceeds
sueace-based targets, reflecting our support
for the COP21 commiimant 1o limit globat
warming to 2°C.

We have reporied on all emjssion sources |
reguired under the Companies Act 2004
[Swrategic Report and Directors’ Reports)
Regutations 2013. These sowrces fall within our
consolidated financial stalernent and relate to
head office aclivities and controlled emissions
{ram our managed porticlio. Scope Land 2
emissions covers 97% of our mulii-let managed
portiolio by value. We have ysed purchased
energy consumplion data, the GHG Protocel
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard
[revised edilion) and emission factors from the
UX Government's GHG Conversion Factors for
Company Repacting 2014

Scope 1 and 2 emissions intensity {tonnes COxe)

-

Emission from combustion of fuets has
increasad by 1%, largely due to wazther
alfeciing gas use in Offices. Emissions from
purchased electricily has decreased by 12%,
targely due 1o changes in UK grid emission
factors and changes i our porifolio.

For consistency with previous years, carbion
data & this Repariis calculated wsiog

the lgcation basad methodology. When the
market basad mathodelogy is apptied, owr
carbion emissions reduce by 28,001 wanes,
factoring in that mosl of the electrialy we
purchase comes from renewable sources
IREGO backed].

As the graph opposite shows, Scope 3 emissions
assodated with our places are signaficanity
targer thanthe Scope 1 and 2 emissions that

we have rore influence over. Scope 3 ermssions
corne from activities that we dont directly
manage, such 35 wsitors ravelling by car

to shopping destinations, occupiers” enargy
use in the space they lease fromys and the
manufaciure of consiruction materals for
developments. By undersianding and menitoring
Scope 3, we identify and prepare lor future risks
from shilis in energy and carbon regulation
and, at the same lime, take steps to reduce
our impact on dimate change.

{ well pasitionad through our hulureproohing focus.

Year ended 31 March 2017 2me 2009
Per m? - Dtiices net 1ettable areal [LES 0a75 [ikpi:d
Per m? - Retail. enclosed 0.067 6.073 0174
Per parking space - Retail: open air 0.084 0043 0106
Par (m - Gross rental and relaled income from managed portfolio’ 67.39 79.48 -
- Absolute Scope 1 and 2 emissions { CQO:e)
Year ended 31 March a7 s .t
Combustion of fuel: Managed pertiolio gas use and fuel use
w British Land awned vehicles 748 7284 5134
Opéraﬁn of facilities: Managed porticlio refrigerant {oss from
- an conditiorung 481 644 ~
Purchase of electricity, heat, steam and cooling for our own use:
WManaged portiolio electncity use WY B0 41386

! Grogs Rental Income [GRI} irom the managed portfolic comprises Group GRIof £442 million [2018: £451 andltiond,
sus 100% of tive GRI geperated by joint ventures and bunds ol L&37 miltion 12015: £45) milion), less GRI
yenerated by assets guiside the managed poritolio of E259 million 12016 £315 mitlion).

a8
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Our carbon foatprint! _
I \

W Scope 1 0.13%
O%oepe? 0E85%
BSmpel  FR0T%

* Based on 2012 and 2014 data.

For markel based data, see our
Sustainability Accounts 2017 at
www.britishland.comfdata

Opportunities and risks
We commissioned a review of climate ratated
apportunities and cisks in 2817 Quc partialiois

Opportunities include.

- Antiopating occupier demand for climate !
resiliend properties

- Delivering energy and carbon cost savings
[2017: {13m gross)

- Generating on sale energy 2017; 2,588MWh)

~ QOulperforming Building Regutations
12012-2047: 21 2% helter on average)

Risks nclude:

- Rising energy costs

- Energy and carbon texalion, suchas
the CRC Energy Efficiency Scheme

~ Climale tegislation, such as Minkmum
Energy Elficiency Standards [2017: 4%
of portfolio at risk

- Flood risks_impacting on asset value
and insyrance costs [2017- 3% of
portiolio high risk]

- Costincreases linked with carbon-intensive
conslruction materials

For aur full methodology, explanation

of changes and PwC's independent
assurance, see our 2017 Sustainability
Accouats at weew britishland.com/data



FINANCIAL REVIEW

It’s been an active year with £2 billion

of capital activity, increasing financial
capacit ] iding flexibility to i !
in opportunities within the portfolio

et Faniot o

£30m  £195m
378, 2920,
?MISp . 89.51_)11

299,

LTVs=

2. 4%

Total accounting return's

' See Glossary for definitions.

3.1%

Weighted average interest rate®

2 See Tablz Byithin supplamentary disclosure {or reconciliations

o IFRS metrits.

? Spe Note 7 within hnanoal statemeats lor catculation

tor catculali

¢ See Note 17 within financial

and reconciliation to IFRS metrics.,

* On a proportionally consolidated basisincluding Lhe Group’s

share of joint ventures and funds

Overview

We delivered a good sei of resulls espadally in the context of an
uncertain environment, with Undarlying Profil growth of 7.4% and
undertying earmings per share [EPS growth of 10.9%.

EPRA net assal valiee per shire [NAVE decreacad by 0.6% reflecing a
porifolio valuation fall of 1.4% on 3 propertionally consalidated basis. It
also includes the impact of no tongar ireattng the 1.5% convertible bond
as dilulive, as the shave price was below the exchange price of 493 pence
all the year end. Esclaxding Yhis adjustment, NAY decreased by 1.7%.

We have been active, with £2.0 bilien of gross capital activity |€1.3 biltion
of net capitzl activityl. This comprises £1.5 billion of disposals of prirarity
single-let Retall assels and aur 50% interast in The Leadenhall Building
which completes aiter the year end. We have reinvesled £0.3 billion in our
developments and capital expenditure aoross the portfolio, and made
£0.2 billion of 2cquisitions, primarily of assats sdacant o existing holdings.

The net proceads from thic acthdly improva our financial resilience and
provide capaaity for reinvestment into our portfolio, particularly en the
broad range of developsnent gpporiunities within our existing pipeline.
The proportionally consolidzted knan Wo value ratio It TV] has decreased
1o 29.9% from 32.1% 31 March 2016, Qur actions have reduced the
praportionally consolidated weighted averages interest rate lo 3.1%
from 3.3% at March 2014, Adjusting for the receipl ol proceeds from
the sale of our 50% imteresl in The Leadenthall Building, LTV s 26 9%
and the weighted avarage inderesi rate is 3.4%.

Underlying Prolilincreased by 7.4% to £370 million; the impact of net
sales has been mora than offsel by like-for-like rental growth, financing
ackivity and a reduction in administrative The Group's operating

" cost ratio has reduced by 100 bps to 15.6% 12015/14: 16.6%].

IFRS profit before tax lor #he year of €195 millien is lowear than the prior
year profit of £1,331 million, pnvnartly due to the negative property
valuation movement in the year.

As previously announced in May 2016, we increased the dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2017 by 3.0%. Loohing lorward to nexl year
we intend to increase the dividend by a further 3.0% to 30.08 pence
per share, walh a quarterly divtdend of 7.52 pence per share.

Presentation of financial information

The Group financial statements are prepared under IFRS where
the Group's interests in joint venieres and funds are shown as a
single ine ilem on the ;eome statement and balance sheet and
all subsidiaries are consolidated a1 100%.

Management considers the business principatly on a proportionalty
consolidated basis when satiing the sirategy, determiming annual

- prigrilies, making investmernt and finanang decisions and reviewing

performance. This mcludes the Group's share of joint venlures and
funds on a line-by-line basis and excludes non-conlrolling interests
in the Group's subsidianes. The financial key performance indicalors
are also presented on this basis. ' ‘
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

A yincome stalemeni and suminary balance shaei which
reconcile the Group income siatements o Britsh Land's interesis

on a praportionalty consolidated basis are includad in Table Awithin

the supplementary disclosures.

Management monilors Undertying Profil as this more accurately
reflacts the Group's limancial performance and the underlying recuming
performance Of our core property rental aclivity. as opposed to FFRS
metrics which indude the non-cash valuation movement on the property
portiolio. I is based on the Bast Practices Recommandations of the
European Public Real Estale Assaciabion [EPRA) which are wadaly

used afternate meltrics to their IFRS equivalens.

Management aiso monitors EPRA NAY as tus provides a vansparent
2nd consistent basis 1o enabla comparnison betwesn Eurcpean property
companies. Linked la this, the use of Total Accounting Retura atlows
mznagement o mondtor refurn to shareholders Yased on movements
in 3 consisiently appliad metric, being EPRA NAY, and dividends paid.

Lozn Lo value iproperhonally consolidaled] is also monsterad by
manzagement as a key measure of the level of geit employed by the
Group o meel its strategic objectives, atong with a measurement
of N=k. i atso altows comparison lo other proparty companies
who similarty monitor and report this measure.

Income statement

1. Undertying Profit ‘

Underlying Profit is the measyre that is used inlamally to assess
income performance. No company adjusimants have been made in the
cwrrenl or prior y2ar and tharelose this is the same as the pre-tax EPRA
2amings measure which indudes a number of adjustmants o the IFRS
reported profil before tax. This is presented betow on a proportionally
consolidated basis: ‘

201" 07

Saction Em £m

Gross reatal income £54 843
Properly operaling expenses 34l 133
Net rental income 11 520 810
Net fees and other income 17 7
Administrative expenses ’ 13 19¢) 188
Net financing costs ) 12 g0} fsn
Undertying Profit 363 I
Non-conlrolling interests in Underlying Profit 14 14
EPRA adpistmgnis’ 954 {209]
IFRS proft before tax 2 1330 195
Underiying EPS : 4 340 Iep
IFRS basic EPS 2 Wip 88p
Dividend par share 3 2B36p 29.20p

' EPRA adpstments consist of investment and development property
revatuations, gainsflosses on invesiment and trading property dispesals,
changes in the fair value of financial instruments and assooated dose out
cosis These iteens are presentad in the “capital and other” column of e

consol dincome sy
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1.1 Net rentalincome {€m}

mé

7

The £10 mitiien decreasa in nat rental income during the year vas the
resailt of like-for-like growth and leasing of developmenis garGally
offisatting the impact of capital actmty and lease expiries.

1 theforlke rents! income growth was 7 3% exctuding the impact of
surrender premia. Retall grewth was 2.0% [1.6%% incluting the mmpact
of currender pramial. This was driven by strong leasing activity. 255el
managernent aclivities, such as splitting units, and additiznat termaer
and car pari mcome. )

Olfice and Residential like-for-tike growih was 4 5% jusk owar hail

of this was due 1o the letting up of completed developments that are
naw in the like-for-tike portfotio, pradominantly The aadenhall Building
amt Marble Arch House winch are both now full. The remander is
axtributabls 1o slrong rent revizw activity, partiaularly st Regent's Place.

Lease expiries relating to properties in our development pipeline .
reduced net rends by €8 miltisn, induding £3 million at 108 Livernos!
Straet where we are on site and £3 mallion at 1 Triton Square which
is under offer for redevetopment on a pre-let basis: we have received
approval for this development from the London Borough of Camden.
The successfut latling of our recently completed development
programme provided £10 mitlion of additional rent this yearn,

This brings the net impat! of developmenis on net rental income

1o £2 million. '

Looking shead to next year, we expecl transaclions compleling

posi year end to reduce rent by £18 million and iulure tease expiies
relating ko properties in the development pipeline to reduce rent

by €& million. Rental income growth will be driven by the letting

up of develapments and tike-lor-like grawth.

1.2 Net financing costs (€m)

fisol

rales

rarsac-



Financng cests were £2% mithion lower this year.

Debt related transactons ovar the Last two years, induding the 1359
mitlion zero coupon convertible bond, reduced cosls by £16 million this
yeat. In the current year we used sales proceeds (o repay unsacured
revolving credit fadlities and we compleled the early repayment i the
£293 mitlion TBL Properties Lirnited secured loan. We agreed one year
exlensions on a Inial of £1.4 billion of cur unsecured fadlities and agreed
a nzw £100 mitlion bilaterat facility. Qur liability managemant, which

is NPV positive, reducad NAV by 4 pence per share.

Qur approach to inlerest rale management remains 3n imporlant faclor
in reduding interest costs. The decision to keep a porlion of gur debt at
floating rates has seen us benefil from Lower rnarkel rates which has
resulied in a reduction in linancing costs of £9 mitlion. The proportion
ol our projected debt held at fixad rates is 60% on average over the

next five years At 31 March 2017, our dabt pro [orma for the sale of the
Leadenhall Building was 78% fixed on 2 spot basis.

1.3 Administration expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by £8 million this year as a result
of managing down our cost base and lower vanizble pay. The Group's
operaling cost ratio has reduced by 100 bps to 15.6% [2015/14: 16.4%].

1.4 Undertying EPS

Undertying EPS was 37.8 pence [2015/14: 34.1 pencel based on Undartying
Profit 2fter tax of £390 rillion [2015/14: L343 million). The increase in
undertying EPS of 10.9% is more than the increase in Underlying Profit

of 7.4% as the 1.5% convertible bond is no longer dilutive. AS the share
price was below the §93 pence exchange price at year end, no dilution
adjustrnent was made [201514: £ million interest added back and
shares increased by 57.8 million), in line with EPRA guidance.

2. IFRS profit before tax

The main difference between IFRS profit before tax and Undertying Profit
is that it includes the vatualion movement on investment and development
properiies and the [air value movements of financial instruments.

In addition, the Group’s investments in joint ventures and funds are
equily accounted in the IFRS income statement but are included on

a proporlionally consolidated basis within Underlying ProfiL

The IFRS profit before tax for the year was £195 million. compared

\o a pralfit belore Lax for the prior year of £1.331 million, This reflecis
the valuation movemnent on the Group's properties which was

£760 million less than the prior year and the valuation movement

on the properiies held in joial ventures and {unds which was £338
million less than the prior year, in both cases resulting {rom outward
yield shift and a lower level of ERV growlihin the current year.

IFRS basic EPS was 18.8 pence per share, compared to 131.2 pence
per share in the prior year, driven principally by property valuation
movements. The basic weighted average number of shares inissue
during the year was 1,029 mittlion [2015/16: 1.025 mittionl.

3 Dividends

In line with the wniention anngunced in May 2016, we increased the
dividend by 3.0% for the year to March 2017 which gives a full year
dividend of 29.20 pence per share.

The fourth interim divid\énd payment lor the quarter ended 31 March 2017
will b 730 pence per share. Payment will be made on 4 August 2017
to shareholders on the register at close of business on 30 June 2017,

The increase in Underlying EPS of 10.9% resulted in a reduction
in the dividend pay-out ratio lo 77% | 2015/14: 83%).

in propoesing the dividend for the coming y=ar, the Board teok inte account
the currend market emvironmend. our target peyou! fange and drivers of
next year's profits. il is the Board s inlention lo intrease the dividand by
3.0% in 201715 to 30.08 pence per share, with a quarierly dvdend of
152 pence per share. reflecting confidence in our ablity Io grow inoame
over the madam lerm.,

Balance sheet

W6 T

Seriion fim £m

Properties at valuation 1§ 648 13940
Other non-akreni assels 138 156
. 147856 14,098

Other nei cerrent Giabilities 1257 - 1344
Adjusted nat debt & 1475 14,229
Oiher non-current liabilities [20] 83 )]
EPRA net dssets fundiluted] 947 9498
DBdution impact of coswertible bond £08 -
EPRA net assets {diluted] 10,074 2498
EPRA NAY per share 4 9%  9Sp
Non—tontrelling interests” S 77 5%
1.5% convertible bond ditution L4 )] -
Other EPRA adjustments' . 13320 1zZrn}
{FRS netassels 5 G819 9478

¢ Emmmsmmmam lnmﬂameﬂmmnwhedgesam
related dabt adjustiranis, tr2 mark-1o-marfiat on the comvartible bands as well
as daferned Laxation on property and dernvative revalualions. They mdirde v
vatvation surplus on irading propérties and are adjusted for the dlutive mpact
of share optiens. 2015016 atsa includes an adjustrent for the dilutive impact of
the L5E cenvertiblz band maturing m 2017, Mo dilution adjustment is made for
H\emmuﬁihmmmpmwwhblebmdmamrmgmm Dﬂailsufl!he
EPRA adjustinonts are mcluded in Tabla B within b si y discl

4. EPRA nat asset vatue per share Ip}

38
1 =
t:'.::lD m w

Undpr- Dndmdsﬁzwm 15% Oher 2007
g:{i aaim hond
oncts  dbhution
raversal

The 0.4% decrease in EPRANAV per share rellects a valuation dacline
of L4%. Values fell by 2.8% in the lirst six months, followed by an upward
revaluation of 1.6% in the second half of the year. The movement in the
year reflected outward yiald movemant of 15 bps, partially offset by .
ERV growthof 1.1%. Net sales exchanged of over £1.5 billion, incuding
Debenhams, fxford Street and The Leadenhall Building, provided a
positive coniribubion le the partfolio capitat return of 0.9%.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

" Relail valuations were down 1L.8% with outerand viald movemanl of

14 bps partiatly off szt by ERV growth of 1.4%: the multi-lel portiolio saw
stranger ERV growth of 2 4%, driven by good leasing activity. Further
informmation on Retall valustion parformanca can bs found on paga 32.

Ohce and Rasidenial valuations were down D.5% with cutward yield
‘movement of 15bps partially offsel by FRY growth of 0.5%; We agroed
the sale of The Leadenhall Building at a price 26% ahead ol the 30
plember 2016 valuation and the valuers have recognisad the majority
of this increase in the 31 March 2007 valuation. Furtharinbormation on
Office & Residenial valuation performance can be lound on page 35

Tha 4 pance empact of finarce trensaction custs primarily relates to earty
repayrient of term debi and termination of assocated wlerest rate swaps.

There is 3 12 pence benefit to EPRA NAY due lo the reversal of the

1.5% corvertibte bond dilution inciudad in the 2013416 reselis. As the
share price was below the 693 pance exchange price at year end, no
ditution adjustment was made [2015/14: CA00 million debt deducted from
nat assel value and diluted number of shares inareased by 57.8 mitlion].
Excluding this adjustmant, NAY dacreased by 1.7%.

5. IFRS netassets

IFRS net assets at 31 March 7017 were £9 476 million, a decrease of
£143 million from 31 March 2014, This was primarily due to IFRS profil
before tax of £195 million being less than the dividends pa;d in tha year
of £296 mitlion.

Cash flow, net debt and financing
&. Adjusted net debt {Em]'

' Adjusied net debt is a proportionatly tonsolidated measure. I represents bhe
Group net debt as disctosed in Nate 17 and the Group's share of joint venture
and funds’ nel debi excluding the mark-fo-maskei on effactive cash fiow hedges
and related debt adjusiments and Ron-conirolling inlerests_ A reconciliaien
between the Group nat debt and adjusied net debl is included in Tabte A wathin
the supplementary disclosures.

Capial activity reduced debt by ED.5 bilion in the year. Compieted
disposals during the year incluted the sale of Debenhams_ Oxford Sireet
for £400 miliion, a porifolio of non-core Retail assets for 191 mitlion and
eight supersiores totalling £111 million [British Land share}. Acquisitions
completed in the year included the New Georga Siceet Estate in Plymouyth
for £64 million which will now be managed as an integratad part of
Drake Circus. Other inve is inciuded develapment expenditure

of £189 million and capital expenditure of £74 million related to asset
management o the standing portfolio,
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Mel divesimenl intluding iransaclicns completng afler the year end
increased to £1.1 billien. This induedes e exgectad connglelion of the
sate of The L eadenhall Building sale ke £57% malion {British Land shara]
and the completion of tha Tesco JV¥ swap ransaction resuliing in a nai
divestment of £73 million of supersiore assats.

We receved a £10 millinn capiz| peyinent recepived in Dacember 2005
from UBS in relation to the devel W 2nd ecoupation of S Broadoate,
and subseguant il of 100 Uuerpnal Smaea. inctugding 8-16 Brozggate.

7. Fimancing :
Groap Propartionzily consolidhated

208 7 ' s 7
MNetdebifadusted nst deb? €3,617m €C309%4m CA765m  €4,223m
Prinapal amount .
ot gross.datt £3.552m £3,069m  3089m  €4,520m
Loan te value 23.2% 4% 321% 299%
Weighted avarage
interest rate 2.6% 4% 3.3% %
Interest cover 33 L5 30 . 34
Weighled average .
debl matunity 7.2 yoars A% years Blyears 77 yeary

! Groupdata as presented i note 17 of the Fnencio? statemenzs. The
consalidated figures indude the Group's shane of joint ventwe and funds' et debt
and exclyda the mark-to-martet on offertive cash Sow hedges and relaiad Jaii.

The balance sheal remains resilient. 1TV and weighted average interest
rate on drawn debt were reduced and interest cover improved. Qur
proportionally consclidated LTV was 29.9% at 31 March 2017, down 220
bps from 32.1% at March 2014 mainly reflecting the impact of disposals.
This redyces by a further 300 bps to 26 9% oro {nrma far the sale of The
Leattenhal! Building. Neie 17 of the Bnandal si2iemenis sets o the
calculation of the Group and proposiionally consolidated LTV,

The strength of the Group's balance sheet is reflected in British Land's
senior ynsecured credit rating which continues to be raled by Filch at
A~ with the Outlogk upgraded lo Posilive.

Our proportionatly consolidated weighled average interest rate reduced
to 3.1% at 31 March 2017 from 3.3% at 31 March 2016, This reflects
a &0 bps reduction principatly as a result of our financing actvity

and decisions, partially offset by a rise of 40 bps due to repaymeni

of cheaper facilities wath sales proceeds received. This ificreases

10 3.4% pro forma far 1he sate of The Leadenhall Building.

Our weighted average debt maturity is eight years.

Bnitish 1 and has £1.8 billfon of committed unsecwied revobving banking
facilities. OF these facilities, €1 7 billion have matrities of more than
two years and £1.3 billion was undrawn at 31 March 2017. Based on our
current cammitmants, these facilities and scheduted debt maturities,
wie have nb requiternent o refinance wiil eerly 2021 regardless of
whelher our convertible bonds are cash or equily setlled.

Further infarenation on our approach (o financng is provided in the
Financiat policies and principles section on pages 43 o 45.

Lucinda Bell
Chuel Financial Olficer



FINANCIAL POLICIES AND PRINCIPLES

We focus on having an appropriate
balance of debt and equity funding
which enables us to deliver our

property strategy

Leverage

We manage oui use of debl and equity finance
10 balance the beaehits of leverage against ihe
risks, inctuding a magnification of property
valuation movements. A loan to valuz ralio
LTV ] measures our leverage, primarity on

a proportionally consolidated basis including .
our share of joint ventures and funds and
excluding non-controlling interests. At 31
March 2017, our proportionally consotidated
LTV of 29.9% was higher than the Group
measure of 22.6%.

We aim ta manage our LTV through the property
cycle such that our finanaal position woutd
remain robust in the event of a sigruficant fall
n property values. This eneans we do nal adjust
our approach io leverage based on changes

in property market vields. Consequently our
LTV may be higher in the low point in the

cycle and will trend downwards as rarkel
yields tighten.

Debt Gnance

The scate of our business combined with the
quality of cur assets and realal income means
that we are able o éppr'oach a diverserange of
debi providers o arrange finance on altractive
terms. Good access (o 1he capilal and debt
markets is a competilive advantage, allowing
us {o take opportunities when they arise.

The Group's approach to debt finanting for
British Land is to raise funds predaminantly on
an unsecured hasis with our slandard inandat
covenants [set out on page 45). This provides
Aexibility and low operationat cost. Our joint
venlures and funds are each financed in
‘ring-lenced’ structyres without recourse

to Bntish Land for repayment and are

secured on the relevant asseis.

Presented on Lhe following page are the
five guiding principles that govern the way
we structure and manage debt.

Monitoring and controlling cur debt
We monilor eur dett requirement by focusing
prindpally on curvent and projecied bosmowing
levels, avallable fadilitizs, debt maturity and
interest rate exposure, We undertzke sensitivity
analysis In assess the impacts of propesed
transaclions, movements in interest rates

and changss in progarty values on key balance
sheet, Liguidity and profitabilily ratios. We

atse consider the risks of a reductionin the
availability of Anance, induding a temparary
dissupltion of the debt markets.

Based on our curreni commitments and
avaitable fadlities, the Group has no requirement
to refinance unill earty 2021 firrespective of
whether the setilsment of fhe 1.5% 2012
corvertibte bond is with equity or debll.

British Land s committed bark facilities lotat
£1.8 billion, of which 1.3 bitlion was undrawn

_al 31 March 2017,

For more on managing our risks, including
financial risks, see pages 4610 53.

Managing interest mte exposure

We manage our interest rate prufile
independenily from our debt, considering the
sensitivity of undertying earnings to movements
in rarkel rales of inlerest vver a five year
period_The Board seis appropriate ranges

of hedged debt over thal period and the

longer lerm. ’

Our debt finance is raised at both fixed and
vaniahle rates. Danvatives [primarity interest rate
swaps and Caps] are used to ackhieve the desired
interest rate profite across proportionally
consolatated net debi. Currently 60% en average
of projected net dabl is hedged over the next five
years, with a decreasing profile over that pericd.
The use of derivatives is managed by a Derivatives
Commiliee, using delegated authorily from the
Board. The tnterest rate management of joink
ventures and funds is considered separately

by each entity's Board, taking into account
appropriate factors for its business.
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Counterparties

We moniter the aredit standing of our
counierpariies 1 minimise ow sk exposune
in placing cash deposits and arvanging
derivatives. Regular reviews are madsa of the
extamnal oredit ratings of the cougterparties.

Foreign currency

Our palicy is to have no malerial enhedged
net assels or liabitities denominated m
foreign currendies.

Whan allraciive termns are available, the
Group may choose te boarow in currendies
other than Sierling, and will fuily hedge the
foreign currency exposure.
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FINANCIAL PGLICIES AND PRINCIPLES CONTINUED

Qur five guiding principles

Diversify
GUT Sounces
of finance

maturity

of debt

Maintain
flexibility

We monitor finance markels and seek ip access different sources of finesce whes: the relevant marked condilions are favourshle
o me=t the needs of our business and, where apprepniale, those of our joint ventures snd himds. The sczle and quality of o
bysmess enables us o acress a broad range of unsecured and secured, recourse and RoR-recourse gebt.

We develop and mezintain long term relztionships with banks and debt ivestors. Wa aim (o avoid relsnce on particeter sources

of funds and borrow from a large number of lenders from difierant sectors in the market across 2 renge of geographical areas,
with a totz of 30 debt providers in bank faclities and private piacements alone. We work o ensure That detn providers understang
our business_ adepiing a transparent approach to provide sufficent disdosures 1o enabte them to evatuate their exposure within
the gverall context of the Group. These factors inorease our allractivenzss o debi providess, and in the Last five years we have
arranged £4.6 billion [Brilish Land share £3.9 billion} of new finance in unsecured and secared bank {an faclities, US Private
Ptacements and conwvertibie bonds. In addition we have existing tong daied dehentures and securitisation bonds. A Funepean
Meadusm Term Note programma has alse been maintained to enzlifie vs to aotess Steringfuto unsecured bood markets

when it ts appropnate for our business,

£4 5bn

teRal drawn daibhi iproportbonatly consolidatedt

The maturity profile of cur debt is managed with 3 spread of repaymnest dates, reducing our refinancing Tisk in respect of Uming
and markel comifions. We monitar the various debi markeis se k21 we have the ability (o act quitkly 16 2rrapge new finance
a5 opportunities arise which meel our business needs. As a result of eur fin2ncing activity, we are comiartably ahead of our
preferred refinaacing date horizon of noi less than two years.

The current range of debt malturities is within one to 19 years. in accerdance with sur yswal practice. we expect 16 refinance
facilities ahead of their maturities.

4.7 years

awrage deb? matunty [proporionatly consolndated]

Irn addition to our drawn debl, we always aim lo have 2 good level of undrawn, comiitted. unsecuired revolving bank fadlities.
These laliies provide Anancial liquidity, reduce the need 1o hold resources in cash and deposits, and minimise costs arnising
from the ditference between barrowing and deposil rates, while reduding credit exposure. .

We arrange these revolving credit lacilities in excess of our commitied and expected reguirements 10 ensure we have adequate
finandng availability {0 support business requirements and new opportunities.

£1.3bn

undrawn revolving oredit facitties

Dur Facitities are structured to provige valuable Hexibility for iivestment activity execution, whether sales, purchases,
developments or assel management initiatives. Qur revolving credit facilities provide full operationat flexibility of drawing and
repayment land cancellation if we require] at short notice without additionasl cost. These are arranged with standard lerms and
finandial covenants and generally have maturities of five years. Alangside this unsecured revolving debt our secured term debl in
debenteres has good asset secunty subslitulion rights, where we have the abibity to move assels in 2nd oul 6 the secyrity pool.

£1.8bn

totat revalvng credil faalines

We use both debt and equity flinancing. We aim Lo manage LTV through the property cycte such that our financial position would
remain robust in the event of a significant (all in property values and we do not adjest our approach o leverage based on changes
in property markei yields.

We rmanage our interest rale profite independently from our debt, setting appropriate ranges of hedged debt over a five year
pen?d and the longer Lerm.

299 A 3.6x

LTV {proportionatly o lidated]  seniorunsecurad interest cover (proportionalty consolidated]
credil rating '
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Group borrowings

Unsecured fnandng for the Group indudes
hilateral and syndicaied revolving bank ladlites
bwith initiat berras usustly of five years, often
extendable): US Private Placements with
malurities up to 2027; and the corertible
bonds maluring in 2017 and 2020.

Secured debi Tor the Group lexcluding debi

in Hercules Unit Trust which is covered under
‘Borrowings \n ouT joint venlures and funds

is providad by debentures with lenger maturivas
up 102635

Unsecured borvowings and covenants .
The same inancial conenants apply across
each of the Group's vnsecured facilities.
These covenants, which have been consistendly
agraad with all unsecured lenders since
2003, are: .
- Net Borvowings nol to excezd 175%

of Adjusied Capita! and Reserves
- NetUnsecured Borrowings not to

excezd 70% of Unencumbered Assels

Mo income or interest cover caties apply
to these facilities, and there are no ather
unsecured debl inancial covenants in
the Group.

The Unencumbered Assets of the Group, not *
subjact to any security, stood at £6.6 billien
as a1 31 March 2017.

Although secured assets are excluded

from Unencumbered Assets for the covenant
caleulations, unsecurad lenders benedit from the
surplus value of these assets above the related
debt and the Iree cash flaw from them. During
the year ended 31 March 2017, these assels
generated £49 million ol surplus cash after
payment of interest. in addition, while

" vestments in jonl ventures do not form part
of Unencumbered Assets. our share ol {ree
cash flows generated by these ventures are
regularly passed up o the Group.

Unsecured financial covenants

At 31 March

Secured borrowings '
Sacured dabi with recourse lo Britist Land is
providad by debentures at fixed interest rates
with long maturities 2nd imited amortisation.
These are secured againsi a comhinad poal of
assets with common covenants; the valuz of
those assets is required to Cover the amount
of these debentures by a minimum 6f 1.5 times

| and net rentelincome must cover the interest

ai teast once. We use aur rights under the
dehentures to withdraw, subsiitute or add
properties lar cash collateral] in the security
pool. in order to manage these cover ratios
affectively and deal with any assei sates.

Secured debt withgul receurse 1o British
Land comprises a ixed rate debenture of £30
million for 8LD Property Hotdings Lt to 2020
secured by a small portiolio of proparties.

The £295 million setured bank lean for TBL
Proparties Limited land ils subsidiaries} was
repatd earty on 30 Seplemnber 2016,

Borrowings in our juint ventures and funds
Exiernal debt for aur joini ventures and

funds has been arranged through long daled
secyntisations or secured bank debt. according
to the require ts of the business of

each venlure.

Hercules Unit Trust and its joint ventures have
term loan fadilities maturing in 2019 and 2020
arranged for their business and secured on
property portiolios, withoul recourse to Bntish
Land. These loans include LTV ratio fwith
maximumn levels ranging from 0% Lo 65%)
and income based covenants,

The secunilisations of Broadgate [£1,616 million],
Meadowhall |€670 million] and the Sainsbury's
Supersiores portiolio |€367 million). have
weighted average maturities of 114 years,

97 years. and 5.9 years respeclively. The key
linancial covenant applicable is to meet interest
and scheduled amortisation lequivalent to 1

014 2015 2016

013
% % % ® %

Nel borrowings te adjusted capital and reserves’

N 40 38 34 Fal

Nel unsecured borrowings to unencurnbered assets? 23 AN 28 29 25

Highest during the y2ar to 31 March 20017,
134
T 9%

tmes coverl; there are no LTV cavenanis.
amortrsation with the balance ouwistending
reducng io approdmately 20% to 30% of

the arignel smount raisad by expecied fimal
Thera is po obligation on Bnitish Land to
remedy any breach of theze owvenants in the
d2il amangement of joint vardures and funds.
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MANAGING RISK IN DELIVERING DUR STRATEGY

Eﬁ'ectwe risk management is
integral to our objective of delivering
sustainable long term value

Luciada Bell
Chair of the Risk Commiitiea

For British Lang, effective risk management

15 @ cornerstone of delivering gur strategy

and integral o the achisvernen! of our objective
of delivering sustainable long term vatue. We
antain a comprehensive risk managernent
process which serves lo identify, assess and
respond to the principal risks lacing our
business, including those risks thal could
threaten the Group's solvency and liquidity, as

well as idenufying emenging risks. Qur approach |

is not interuled to eliminate risk entirely. but
instead iomanage our risk exposures across
the business, winlst al the same lime making
the most of our epportunities.

Ouwr risk management framework
Our integrated approach combines a top
down strategic view with a complemneniary
hatiom up operationat pracess oullined in
the diagram on page 47,

The Board is responsible for the gverall
approach to risk management with a particular
focus on determining the nature and extent

of exposure to pnncipal risks it i1s willing to
take in achieving its strategic objectives.

This is assessed in the conltext of the core
strengths of gur business (as summarised on
the right} and the externat enwironmenl in
wiich we operale - this is our risk appatite.

The Audit Committes takes responsibility for
overseeing the effectivensss of risk management
and internal conirol systems on behatf of the
Board, and also advises the Board on the
principal risks fating the Group inchuding these .
that would thweaten its solvency or liquidity.

The Executive Direciors are responsibte for
delivering the Comnpany s siralegy and ging

British Land core strengths

-~ High quality portfolio focused on
multi-tat retait acress the UK and
office-led campuses in London

- Placemaking 1o create Places
Pagpte Prefer

rigk. (ur risk managemend framework
categorises our risks into external, strategic
and operational risks and the Risk Committee
tcomprising the Executive Diractors and chaired
by the Chiel Financial Officer] is responsible for
managing the principat nsks in each categoryin
arder (o achieve the Group's performance goals.

Whitsl responsibility for aversighi of risk
management rests with the Board, the effective
day-tg-day management of risk is embedded
within our operabionat business units 2nd
forms an integral parl of kowwe work. This
bottorm up approach ensures polenbial risks
areidentilied al an earty slage and escalaled
as appropriale with mitigations put n place

1o manage such risks. Each business unit
rmaintains a comprehensive risk register which
is reviewed quariarly by the Risk Commitiee,
wnth significant and emerging risks escalated
ta the Audit Committea.

To read more about the Board and
Audil Committee’s risk oversight,
go o pages 65 and 70.
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» Cystol orientation lo respond
to changing Uifestyles
- Diverse and high quality occupier base
- High accupancy and long lease
lengths provides secure cash fRows
- Mixed vse development expertise
- Ability to source and execute
attractive investmeni deals
- Efficient capital struclure with good
access to capital and debt rarkets
~ Sustainability embedded in
our strategy

To read mere about Our business
model, go to pages 10 and 11,



Ouwr risk appetite
. Changain
internal risks {inctinfing current eptimal threshotds) mthe year
® tvestment «  Execytion of largeted acqaisitions and disposals in " @
sirategy linz with plan loverseen by Investment Commitiee]
- Review of owerall portiolio prospeciive performance IRRs]
- Peicentaga of portfolio inlmn-cure SeciNs
@ Developiment - | Total development exposure <15% of portiolio
strategy - Specvialive developmeant exposure <B% of portfolio

[2018: <10%)
Progress en exaouton of hey development projects
agains! plan

@ reort

Unplanned executive departures
Employee engagement { Bast Companies’ survayl

(z) capial

structure

LTV should nol exceed a maxirmum threshold in an
economic dovmiturn if market yields were W rise lo
previous paak levels
Cavenant headraom

@ Finance

strategy

Period untd refinandng is required of not less than
wo years
Percentage of debt at fiked interast rates over pext
five years

@li‘ml@

sstainabitity

Market lelting risk including vacancies, upcoming
expines, and breaks and speculative developmeanm
Weighted average unexpired lease term
Concentration of exposure {0 indridual occupszrs
or sactors

® @ @ @

Ourr risk management framework
Top down Bottom up
Strategic rick management Operational risk management
Review éxternal emvironment /‘\‘-\\
Robast assessment of prindpal risks
- BOARDY Assess effecineness of nsk
i ; Auor
Set nisk appetite and paramaeters COMMITTEE management syslems
Determine strategec ackion points Report on prncipal nsks
-__‘_____\/ ard uncertanties
Identity principal risks T T
Direct delivery of stralegic aciions RSR Consider cornpleteness of
in line with risk appetite c&rg&rﬂr‘fg identilied risks and adequacy
] - DIRECTORS * of mitigating actions
Monitor key nisk indicators -
Caonsider aggregation of nsk
M\/// exposures across the business
Execute stralegic actions //A‘____L__
Report on key risk indicators Report current and
BUSINESS emerging risks
UNITS -

—_—

Identify, evaluate and
rmligate operational risks

recorded in nisk register

;
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Our risk appetite

The Group's risk appetite is reviewed annuziiy
a5 pari of the annua| srategy revtew process
and approved by the Board. This evaluaion
cuides the aclivns we t2ke in axecuting our
strategy. We have identifizd a suite of Key Risk
Indicaters IKRIs) 1o menitor $e Groug's nsh
profile [as summarised en tha lefi}, which

are reviewsd quarterty by the Risk Committes,
1o ensure thal the acivities of the business
remain valhin our mish agpetite 2nd that our
risk exposure is well matched (o danges
our business and our markels. These include
the most denificant pedgemants affeciing

qur risk axposure, induding our 2sset
selection and investrment stratagy: the fevel

of oroepational and developrent exposwe
ani our financisl leverage. ’

The Baard has considered the Group's risk
appetite in Gght of the avtcome of the YK's
referendum on continued membership o -

the EU. Qur strategy, whichis based on

lorg teren irends, endures; we had atready
positicnad the business kor a rangs of outcomes
wilh modes! development exposure, high

.eccupancy and robust finances. However, we

have a range of taclical levers to addrass the
evalving polilical and economic uncertainties.

We have modarated our developmeant ackivity,
reflecting inoraasad yncertainty. We riduced
ourinterna! risk matric for the maximum
we vl develop speculatively froim 10% of
the parifclio to 8%, although our curvent
exposure is much lower al §%.

Our finandal position is strong; our
proportionally consotidaied LTV has reduced to
279% rellecting assel sales and qur finanang
has an zverage lerm of eight years on drawn
delitwath no requirement to refinance untit

early 2021. .

| The Board considers that the G}oup's

risk appelitz is appropriate to achieve
our sirategic objectives. Qur businessis
both resiliant ang well placed to capture’
value in the long terra.
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MANAGING RISK IN DELIVERING OUR STRATEGY CONTINUED

Our risk assessment

¥ey strategic
pritities
aftected

rincipat
rahks

Change
mrsk -

inyear

£xternal risks

®8®

(D) Ecoromi

@

(2) Polivcat ang
ragulatory
outlock

L8O

@ Commarcial
properiyinvesior
demand

4®

@

@

1%

<)

LIkalihood

(5) Avaitabiity and
cost of Fnance

®

(&) Camastrophic
business event

@8

@ @

Internal risks

@ Imesiment

@8
stralegy

| R

®
® ®

Development g

strategy

@ People
Capilal

sinuciure

~ impact
Nate: The above Mlusirates prnapa risks which by their nates chhnethap
mmﬁaﬂtmﬂﬂm&wswmaﬁeﬂw&hﬁnﬂmmm
Kev

Strategic priorities

@ ®

Change year on year
@ Unchanged

@

® Finance Custorner Urientation

sicategy

@ Income g

sustainability

Right Places Increased

Reduced

SR
®

Capital Elficiency

" Our changing risks and focus
The Board has undertaken a robust assessmeni
of the principal risks and uncertainties that the .
Grougis exposed toin light of the lang term
trends we are fating [see pages 12 and 13] and
inlight'of the EV referendum resull. Several of
our principal risks are elevated as a resuil of the
increased polilical ang economic uncertainty
[as shown by the risk heat map above].

Looking forward, risks that alse could be
impacled while the lerms and timing ol exii are

gotiated, and p ially beyond are: investor
and occupier demaand, availability of finance,
execulion of investment strategy and income
suslainabilily. We remain mindful of patential
headwinds going lerward and gur risk appetile
and tactical decisions will reflect the evolving
envirenment 1o ensure the business remains
both resilient and well positioned to capture
upside in the uture.
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Expeﬂ Pecple

Also, several of our printipal risks have evplved
in nature; the requlatory eavironment is how
recognised within a broader Political and
Requlatory Quitook’ risk; and the ‘Oevelopment
Stralegy risk has been expanded ta include
development cost inflation.

Other areas of focus lor the Risk
Comemitter during the year included:

~ Culture

- Cyber security

- Asset level crisis plan

- Fraud and whistiehlowing

- Eifectiveness review of our risk process

Buring the year, we have undertaken an
effectiveness review of our fisk management
procass, as well as an inlernal audit. Our risk
management grocess appropriatety
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supporis the eflectnre managemeant

of risks, whils maintaining a practical
approach and meeting the requirements
of lhe UK Corporate Govarnance Code.

We have buill on our existing process by
embedding risk management discussions
in the relevan busihess Unit management
comrmiliees and provided training for our
sk specialists across the business.

This year we hosted a majur cvil contingencies
exercise sirnulabing 2 large scale cntical
incident at ene of our multi-let retail assels.
This was underiaken with support from several
police forces, fire and ambulance and other
national agencies and enabled us 1o 1est our
capabilities and preparedness in the event

| of a significant emergency.



The prindipat nsks facing British Land are
summarised on pages 56 ta 53, induding
an assessmen of the potentizlimpaci and
likelihood and how ihe risks have changed
inthe year, logether with how they relaie
o our strategic prierities.

The Strategic Report was approved by
the Board on 16 May 2017 and signed
onits behalf by: )

Lucinda Bell
Chiel Financial Olficer

Viability stateinent

Assessmrent of prospects

The Group s annual corperate planning
process indudaes the complebon of 3 sirategc.
reviovy, Neassecsing the Group's rick appatite
and updating the Group's forecasts.

The Group’s sirateqy providas the focus for
our annvas] prionitizs and s lermially reviceed
annually. This precess is led by the Chiel
bxzartve thiough the Bxeartve Commitiee and
ncudes the active engagement of the Board.
Pari of the Boand s nole is to consider whather
the strategy tekes 2ppropeiie account of the
Group's prioigel rishs. Tha Lales! vpdates

to ke sirategx glan 2nd Graeup's sk appeite
weere approved by the Board in March 2017,

The siralegy anid risk apgalite drive the

Group’s forecasts. These cover a five year

periad 2nd consist of 2 base case forecast
which indedes cormmitted transaciions onty,

- and a forecast which also mcludes nons

cerumitizd iransactions the Board axpects
the Group to make in line with the Group's
sirategy. A five yaar forecast is considened to
be the opiimal tatance betwzen the Group's
leng termn business mudel to oeale Places
Pecple Prefer and the kact that property
investment is a tang term business dwith
weighied avorage lease lengihs and debt
rmaturitias in excess of fve years), offset bythe
progresshely unnelishle nalyre of (orecasiting
mlater yoars, paricularty given the histonicalty
oydical nature of the UK property indusiry.
Assessment of viahility

Fer the reasans outlined ahnee, the period over

" which ihe Directors consider it feasible and

appropriate to report en the Group's viahility
is the five year period lo 31 March 2022.

The assumplions undarpinning thess forecast
cash ftows and covenant compliance forecasts
were sensitised o explore the resilisnce

of the Group to the poterntiat impact of the
Group's significant risks. or 3 combination

of those risks.

The pricipal risks tahle which follows on
pages 50 to 53 summanises these matters
that could prevent the Group from delivering
onils sirategy. A number of these principal
risks, bacause of their nature or potential
impact, could also thresien the Group's
abilily to confinue in business in ils crrent
ferm if they were to gocur;

The Directors paid parlicular altention to the
risk of a deterioration in economic outlook
which could impact property andamentats,

ircludinig investor and occupier demand which

would have a negative impact on valuations,
and give rise to a reduction in the avaitability of
finance. The remaining printipal ricks, whilsl
having an impact on the Group's business
medel. arenot censideired by the Direclers

to have a reasonable ikelihood of impacting
the Group's viability over the five year period
1031 March 2022,
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to be sevare but ptausile; and to take hull
aorourd of the availehdity of mitigating actions
that coasld be taken ko avoid or reduce the
wnpact or ocourrence of the underlying risks
relzting o 2 Sgle ‘downiunn SCensno
- Downtum in econemic oullook: Key
assumpiions including aorupancy, veid
perigds, rendal growth ang yields were
sensiiised in the ‘downlum scenario’ to
reflect reasonably lixaly levels asseosted
with an econonic downium, fcluding:
- areduction in cocupier demandg, with
a fall in oocupancy rate of 5% and
Offices and Reta® ERV dedines of -
Z9% 2nd 5% respectively
~ 2 reduction in iwestment propecty
dornand o the tevel saen in the last
severe downturn in 008/2009, vth
outward yield shalt to 8% net instiad yield
- Restricted availability of finance: based
on the Group's curTamn commiimeants and
avattable ladlities there is no requiremeant
{o refinance unill early 202%. In the normal
course e business, inznong is arrengad in
advance of expected requiremants and the
Dhreciers have reasonable confidence that
additionat or replacement dedl laoiitres wall
be putin place. In the "dowmitan scenana.

the tnllowing sensitivity of this pakion

was conducted:

- areductionin the awilabiity of
finance, for the final twa years of the
five year assessmenl in lantdemn with
the Group's refinancing dale

The oulcome of the “doanturn SCRNEHD"

was that the Group's covenant haadroom
hased onexisting debt li.e. the tevel by which
irmvestment properly velues would have Lo fall
before a indndal covenant breach ocours)
decreeses from the current 58% o, atits
lowestievel. 119, ndicaling Covanans on
exishing faclities would not be breached.

In the "downiurn scenario’, mitigating
actions would be required to enable the Group
1o meet s future lizbitkies at the reflinancg
date, principally through assel sales, which

" would allow the Group to continue lo meet

its liabilities over the assessmernt penod.

- Viability statement

Having considared the forecast cash Rows

ard covenant carnpliance and the impact of the
sensitivittes in combination in the downium
scenano’, the Direclors confirm that they have
a reasonable expectation that the Group witl
be able lo coniinue in operation and meet ils
lighilities as they fall due over the period

to 31 March 2022

Going concern

The Direclors also considerad it appropriate
to prepare the financial slatements on the
guing concern basis. as explained in the
Governanca review.

Toread more information on going
concern, go to page 45,
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Srrarcgic Repuart

of palitical evants. Whare sppropnate we
act with ather industry parbcipanis and
tive bodies Lo contribute Lo the

UK, and on speclic polides
and regulation introduced. debale on regulatsry changes
pacticulacly those wiad
drectlyimpact real estate
or ouT custormens.
Commevial Reduction ininvestor demand - The Risk Commiltee reviews the progerty marked
. For UK real estate mnay result quarterly io assess whethar any changes to the
m in falls in asset valuations and market outlock present risks and opportunities
Lvestar could arise fromvariationsin: ~ which should be reflected in the exzcution of
demand - healinof the UK econarny 8 Shrslegy and owr capital allocation plan. The
the § ® Cammiliee considars indicators sych as margin
- ﬂ'emu': between property yields and borrowing costs
investcnt i the 2nd property capital growth forecasts wiuch are
~  weadabiity of finance and considerad alongside the Cormmittes members”
+  relalive atiraciveness knewiedge and exparience of market activty
of oihar assed classes and rends
- Wefocus on prime assets and seetors which
we believe wilt be 1ess susceptibie over the
medium term bo a reduction in occupier and
nvestor demand
- Strong relanonshups with agenis and direct
Emvestors active in the marke:
- We stress tes! our business plan lnrthe
eftect of a change i property yvields
Key
Change from last year Our principal Key Risk Indicators

are hightighted wathin How we

Ri;k re has i ed monilor and Manage the risk’.

@ No significant change in fisk exposure
Risk exposure has reduced
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®

PRINCIPAL RISKS )
External risks
Risks and How we monitor Change in
impacts and manage the risk the year
Economn: The UK econamse climate - The Risk Committee rerews ihe scomomic The UK ecoaamy has rematved rofust and
outlook t future s in mvmlm\mopaamquaﬂmwm la:edmsnsrl?mmemeuediwamme&
inderest rades present risks hedher ammp ch 10 the LOUTrL S NPT in
and opportunities in property riouk justity a re of the risk mmmam&,mﬂmﬂm
ang financing markets and the appetite of the busmess mdm@m&mmmﬁﬂmﬂ
busivesses of our octupiers lm!:cal dudz forecast growth o 2607, There is asSetiaied
which can impact hoth the - uﬁ;:rﬁud EDP mmmsmmﬂmm&lmmlw
delivery of Gur strategy and “_"'m' erest rates and dlatond - chamges. witlh 2 wite specorum of
our finandal pesformemee. cansidered, p— tirkgurianm wiaws ahmn g 7
::fgmunmmuﬁ « and farmgn exchange maricis heve boan vlatte.
We stress test our business plan against pamm'ru-.!v ﬁmhmnwm a
a diremhe in econamEc sutlbod to enswe zm 3. by the o
aur fmandal posilian s suthcenity fesahl
and resilisnt e - Sl of ol B g s et
- O resilisnd business model focuses on a high Huaroa Hive yie stale s daved awmy
quatity portfndio, with secure mcome slams amd sk axp ws up o dowaty g to
ant rubust finanoes = ta thee Bt hoth
vestsal awnd well possiione] b coptune upsads in
e futwre.
Politico] and  Sgnificant political eventsand - Whilst we are nol able to influencs the sutcome Thresre resmasms sbout tha nature of
’ fatorv ™9 latory changes, induding of significant political events, we do Lake the Britaim's exl (rorn and Juture relations with te EU,
refu . the decision lo leave the EU, unwtauntwrelalzd!amdvmtsam!ﬂ-emgt alongzrie how this could swpatt the UK economy.
outhook: baings risks pri by in ible ourtcomes wite a0counl whan makang Hﬂhmmmeqiahﬂgammca!andm
oo areas:; malegxmnmhnmgm PG CIRTERNR ¢ ETTREENS UFoLi LR
- reluctance of invesiors - Internally we review and monitar propesals and .
and businesses tomake emerging policy and legislation Lo ansure that we Ve gre & that b T e of e
iwvestmend and oocupational Lake the necessary steps to ensure compliance. busmess. wiah its tong laasas, high ocoupancy and
detisonswhilst the gutveme  Additionalty we engage public affairs consdtanis vobsi imangal pesiion, tegather vith the actions
PN remains uneertain and to 2nsure that we are praperty brisfad on the we hir tzken, leaves our business well positioned.
- on delermination of the potential policy and requlatary implications

Investment volummes wers: toser in 2014, atthough
there has been a pick-up in 2ctivity More recantty,
parucuiatly in centrad Londen offices. UK property
continues 1 2ppez! to-certenivestors undarpinned
Ty the relatively wide yield aen belween propecty
yinids and long f=rm interesi rates. jurther
supporied by asvency movements.

Tive market for the most altractive 2S5ets remains
Liuid and in the central Londan olfice markat there
have been 2 number of hugh profile transactions.
including our saleol The Leadenhall Building.

Prime yelds have remained hrogdly Stabla,
although markel pricing is becaming incragsingly
palansed vwith some soltening n densand for more
mw:daryasse&s We have continued to be active

exchanged on the sate of £1 Sbitlion
ofa:-..sﬂ.s.h overall %3 shead ol valuation,



isks and How we mronitor Change in
impacts and manage the risk the vear
Ocoupier irng invonne, rental '~ Tha Risk Commiltes reviews indicators.of inrefad demand remained itn in the year, despite
desnard growth and capital performante  octupier demand quarterty itiuding consymer v umcereinty from Consummers and retadiers alie.
coutd he atharsety cardidence surveys, and employment and ERV Horivey, redallers are fading a more chalienging
and temamt by weahering ; growth ferecasts, slongside the Commiltee enviramment with cost pressares from 2 number
defalt d: o andt oooupier faflures hers' knowledse and experience of scospier of soarres indluding the National Living Wage, the
. resultig bram variations in pimmzﬁngpafwmncemleamgamuﬂy mmmredﬁmmmﬁ
the healthof the UK ec ¥ i Ginding eyecution of cur siratagy due to the poun and brom the
ard corresponding weatoning  _ qtla!ﬂ]fdnresrsiﬁedamlpm' requremeants of establishing erni-charmet ptadormms.
of consymer confidence, w,;mih%:,_&m 2 Th m A These v s razan thit retad :aeiuﬁqty
birkiness sttty and ecoupiars pewfn‘rmr QTGS CCOUgEET foctsing an the most profitable stores, where they can
ireestment. mﬁﬂzmﬁM;MM grom sahes with tower cotupenty osts. Cur continuad
Changing consumer s anmgmngbasssnmalwecanbepmatmm upgratiig of emviraraments 2l our (2158 groperties
: ! s inch 9 - eto ; ?uﬁlmbaﬂnﬁmnmm polarisadion.
”ﬂfﬂi{":"md‘mﬁ;ﬂmﬂ:ﬁ - Gngofm'gmgagmtmlhmrotcupiers.ﬂmqh
mﬂd‘w"“'mmgmma‘, W“ﬂmﬂ"&fﬂmmm“’egﬂ Wile rcupier demand in the London effice market
tlings, nowrtechnologias, tugether with our occuplers o rg waysobest has baen more cautious post refcrendum, take-up
e legeiasion zad aliamative mﬁtﬁmeudwqmqmmts e pickad up with overall ie-up ovar the year @ line
Locammrwmmeaﬂm - e sustaiabitity strateqy links action on oonupiar vaith b baq yoar suisrage. bonwdan's booad appeat
than antidipated ohsols iealth ard wellbeing enarqyaﬁiummmy mreEn that demand has continuad W originate from
of curbusidngs if evaliing and sustainable d loourb siratagy. T avenge of fwstnies inchading strong demand from
mmm Ousoualandmmwﬂlzrgalsldpm the grestive and technology sectors. We have seen
te are ot el [ ywith newr legisd and resp m@m&ammmmwmwsm
customer demands; for axampte. wee:peclalt Q FReCENt P campleiions and expact
office developments to be BREEAM Excellent - ﬂuhapﬂydmmﬂwummmmis
howveuar aecatieralig polarisaiion leveards higher
ity plaves wikl provide suppert kar nerds in the
b2t lotations.
As&tﬂﬂaspobqandmgﬁa@my’dimgesxising
Frean the UK's deperiurs from the Bl suth as
migraion controls and passpariing, office occupiers
Zso late chalengas as ihey 2dap 1o evomamer.
social and tedimetegy changes. Qur foous is on Lonvdon
camparses which prowid: atiractive and engaging
eTrR “ﬂﬂﬂareim,. 5 Fleaoble to suit the
ch 2nd scate of cantrat London
MWMmmwﬂle
Feosn any shift in denmnand.
Availability Reducedaciabilityoffinance. - Marketbarrowing rates and resl ectate oredit Theare has b crdrived waladity reathng
and cost © mayosherselyimpact abitity to mmmemmedbyﬂmeﬁﬂﬁmmnme mmmmm
refinance debt and/or drive up quarterty and reviewed regutartyin ondar toguidz H: there remeins good avalabdity of knance
of fimnce cost. These factars may also qurfinandng actions in exscuting our strategy in dei and capitel markeis {seased and unsecured]
result in woalier invrestos ~ A2 menitor our projected LTV and our debl ] o UK REITs and offser good quality real eslate
demand for real estate. raaﬁ:mts;:sévaalinmltggmﬁ bveestars. Davetopment Inance walthoot prelels
Requlation and capitst costs reports fooused on borrowing tevels, debl matusity, i mare dfbrull oobtzin

(‘atnsmq)hnc An external event srchas

usiness
cvent

ami!lemergemy induding a

markets including property
and financel and cause
significant damage and
disruption to British Land's
poﬂfclm and operations.

avadlable laclities and inferest rate expasure )
" Fate X We have contratd taachéeve aliractive financings and

We maintzin good Long terrn relatonships with agreed ane year exkensions on a tai! of £1.4 bllion of
ot key financing partnars o unsecured fzclliies and agreed a new £100 rmillion
The scale and quality of our business enables bitateral lachity intheyear

US to 200ess a diverse range of saurces of finance
with a spread of repayment dates. We aim abways
tohave a good level of undrawn, committed,
unsecured revolving factities to ensurewe
have adequata inandng avallability to support
busmess requirenients and opportunities
Wemtkmﬂ\mdusllybodiaandnlhenﬂm
org tons bo participate in any debate
on emerging finante regulatiens whers our
interesis and these of our industry are affected

We mamiain a comprehensive crisis response The Hiwne Office threat leved from intemational

plan acress 3l business units aswall asa terrersn remains “Severe. Qur husiness coatinuily
head office bysiness cantinuity plan plans 2nd asSel 2msgency protedures have been
The Risk Committee monitors the Home Gifice reviewsad and enhanced ""‘5‘3 appropriate.

terrorism threat leveds and we have access o -
to security threat informalicn servicas Wemnm\dfuldtybersemmyrdtsalﬂhave

anhanced our seamity positien as well as rolling

Asset emergenty procedures are regularly ot wani Briti
et cirto o, oy e s g s bt B
security measures are in piaca al properiies . menitor U cybar threat landscape including
and development sites that mnpact on our supply chain and any

Our Sustainability Cormiliee manilers . mmhmlrnns of new reguiations.

erwironmentat and climate change risks.

Asset risk assessnents are carried out (o
assess a range of risksincluding security,
fleod, environmentat, health and satety

Wa have implemented corperate cyber security
systems which are supplemented by incident
managament, disaster recovery and business
continuity plans, all of which are regularty cenpesad
to he able ko respond to changes in the threat
landscape and arganisational requirements
We atso have appropriale insyrance in place
across the portfotio
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PRINCIPAL RISKS CONTINUED .

Internal risks
Risks and How we monitor Change in
impacts and manage the risk the vear
hmedmieni  Inendertomeetourstrategic - Durinestment sirateqy is determined o be Whitst the cutloak & our morkets will remain
mmg_v' objectives we aim to invesl cons! with our langel risk appetite and s based unceriain lor soms: tme, we have @n endyming
h in and ext from the right on the evatuation of the external envinonment shrateqy which is bazed on long tesmn trends and
Respoa‘ﬂ'hle properties at the right tirne. - Prog Finst the stra; and continung Lhis positions. eur high quality pu tolio to bensfid
executives: Underperformance coutd mmﬁf&mmnﬂaﬂmsw from incressing palansztion and fo sitract a
Chais Grigg. result from changesin ateach Risk Committes with referonce 1o the bruadar range of oocupiers. bt lave with our
[Chartes market sentiment as well as proper ty markess and the extama! econamic shralegic pricdities. we have accaleraied o
Raudslay, inappropriate determination Environment farys an Westyle onent=d raal estals; wa have
Tom Roborts and execution of oar property racydnd capial o madinniss reiurivs and ve
5 - mmmmanm%m!@tm . .
L] .
msz:y including: uflhe‘ , ‘ , m_ are geitng Cleser 10 oy Teshomers.
ardecighig Broup's curént and prospective asset portfolio [Buring the yesr we have sxchangsd an £15 bilion of
ot o ~ indwidus! ivestment dacsions are subljact i assel disposals 51 9% shove vahuiian. We have been
- - bming “:QSF“F'\‘B mmrﬂ:evﬂuamws_ambywmu dmscplined in our msestmand activity, with €195 malinn
dvestment decisians = Haeuiuding daration of returns dmmmwmrﬂydpwns%m
- exposure te developmants relative o rigk adjustad hurdle rates ¥ m:’nd[m"ﬂm
~  3SSeI. Eanant megion - Ravizw of prospective performance of indwizhsal capital spend an develop red gl
ConCEntration 355635 ang thetr business plans

- Co-Twestmel arangemenls - We loster oolleboraiive relabionshigs with
A Co-nvestors and enter o gumership
agreaments which balapce he interests

af the parties. -

Denelopment Usvelopment provides an - We our tevels of total and speculaty Devﬂwnmﬂhmheunmmmﬂmam
Strategy opporhmity o outperformance Mmmﬂmeasammdme andvwe have da

but usualty brings with it ywestnent portfolio watue wiiten a targe renge opponumtaesmmﬂ\enpmmahtylowugressmm
Resporsdle olevatedrisk. 1aking into acooun? associated visks and the the Gme isAghL I a moTe uncartsn environmant, we
execytives: Thisis reflected inour impact on key financiel mairics. This & manitored our cuTrent spanative devalopmeni
Chris Grigg. decision-making process _ guarterty hy the Risk Conursites along with expasine o anly 47 of ihe pordolio, We are progressing
CThartes around which schemes to progress of developmen®s againat plan planning and pre-iat disoussions across the pipstine
Maudsley. devetop, the timing of the - Prior 1o committireg to a devalopment, the Group and position=d oursetues1a make dmely dacisons
TimRoberts  developrment, g5 well as the undariakes a detailed appraisal averseen by our on oo develppenents going forward.

execution of these projects. invesimen! Camirutize inCluding Considersiion 1

Development strategy of retums redative (o risk adjusted burdle rates ::; m o tf;mmenl programene.

addresses several development - Pre-tels are ysed to reduce development letting
risks thal could adversaty impact nisk where considered appropriate

underlyingincomeandcapital  _  Competitive tendering of consiruction contracts
pertormance induding: and, where appropriate, fied price contracts
- dowtopmentlelling exposure  entaredinto .
~ constrichion iming - Detailed selechon and close snonitoring of

and costs linttuding contracioss incdluding covenant reviews

constructon costinflation)  _ iencad development management leam
- major conractor failure clusely moniters dasign, consiruckon and
- adverse planning judgements ovarall delivary process

- Early engag t and strong deiationship
with planning authorities

- We also actively 2ngage with the communities
inwhich we operale, as detailed in our Locat
Charter; 1o ensure that our development activities
consider the interests of alf stakeholders

- We manage environmentat and sooal risks agress
our developmend supply chain by engaging with
our suppliers, including through our Supply Chain
Charter, Suslainability Brief for Developments

and Health and Safety Policy
Key
Change from last year Gur principal Key Risk Indicators
are hightighted vathin ‘Howwe
Mhonitor and managa the risk’. - } -

. Risk exposura has increased
@ No significant change in risk exposure

Risk exposure has reduced
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Change in - -

‘Risks and How we monitor
impacts and mamage the risk the year
Penple A number of critica busi - OurHR stralagy is designes b maemize Expart Poagls is.ona of the four core foous areas
. proc i decysions lie risk through: of onr sEralegy. We ampowner our peepls D make
w inthe hands of afew people. — inlormed and skilled racruitmen prOTESSES dﬁmdﬂmmgwmﬁﬂy‘;arm .
Chris Grizgg - Failure tn recnuil. develop - t@lent pertormance management and bave intvoduced a mumber uum:mas it
2nd retain staff and Diraclors lorkeynﬂes mgamu\a!aﬁecumm business
with the cight siitls and SuCTRsson planning . and ta promote wellbaing and haalth, inthrdmg -
experiance may resullin - highly comnpeditive comg _and‘ il effarmyg enharced Shared Parental Pay s
[ underprarformance ~ people development and braing 1D emnAnyEes.
¥ the effecti braing
:;cpuaamuaxﬂdm - Therikis meanuged through amployee Ahnmazmmmmauﬂmm
- g mwwmmm mmmmw“m@
tusiness perforinante " surveyl, emplopes hanover and towramrdis the Mations| Equality Standard,
N te:mnmmm%mmmlhsum@lhe
mrmber of unplanmed excutive For rmere on cur Expart People.
in efdditioh 10 cehducitng exil TS oo pagas 24 and 25,
U - Wemagm-mhmnsuppheﬁmmmaww
5 ip rhanaging key risies duding
haalth and safety. fraud and brihery and ather .
sozial ang emironmeniael risks, as dzteied &
gur Supply Chain Charter
(hpiml Our capital structure - Wemagemnmdémmmmﬂi:mlu Baﬁasvaeshae!nelmsrmmmﬂwme
structare 7 recognises the batance batance the banefits of leverage agzinst the risks, waichilled arerege Gterest rate on draan d2ibt have
b between . induding a magnificalion of the inmypact of propesty mmmcmmw Theimpact
— leverage risk and Rexiblity. valuation movamenls of invastrivent activly in the yoar was a nal décrease
Resporsitde _  evarage - W aitn o manage our LTV through it propety Ew debl of £0.5 billion, The sirengthof tha Grogp's
expcutives: Epital reterns, both cyde such thal e fnancizl posithon would rermazm batanbe shest is reflactad in cur sanjar weetured
Lastinda Balk positive and negative robust in the event of a significent 128 in praperty credit radng which was reattimied by Fitch 21
_ Antrease inleverage valyzs, This maans we do not 285wst our spprosch A- and etz was vpgradad o Podtive’,
increases the risk of to levavage baced on changesin proparty " Farrigd financial olici
abreach of cvenanis markel yialds e oi‘::;r‘s oty .
on bammowing faclities - We manage our fvestmant activity. the see and 83 -
and may increzse timing of which can be unaven, as well 35 o
Finance costs developmen! commitmanis to ensure thal our
LTV leval rermains appropniate
- Weleverage our equity and adhicve benclits of
stale while spreading risk throwgh poi ventures
and funds which are typically partly fnanced
hy dehi withoart recoursa to British Land .
Finance Finance strategy ~ We have fve key prindples guiding our fmancing Gaven he quality of our business. we have continued
sl:m!eg\' addresses risksboth to which are employed tegedhes b manage the risks e achézve altrattive inancings which improwe
mmmmsn!mnand in this area: diversify our sournces of Rnance, phase arnings and bguidity. As wetl as baing well priced,
Responsible  profits generated. maturity of debt pertfolio, maintets igudily, our financing is robust vath an average term of exgiv
executives: Failure tb managa refinancing maintain fllexibility, and maintain sirong balance years.om drawn debl and no requirament for the
Lurcinda Bell revuirements may result in a sheet metrics | Sroup ko refinance until sarly 2021. Cur committed
shortage of hmnds o sustain - e monitor the period until refinandng is required, bank latilities total E1.8 bilion of which £1.3 billon
the operations of the business which i5 a key determinant of linancing activity, 2nd was undrawn al 31 March 2017,
) or repay ladlities as they regutarty evaluate the finaswiad covenant headroom K .
fall due. - Waare committed o maintaining and enhancing :: mﬁ?;:r:; polices.
relatimships with our key finandng peitnars
- We aie mindful of relevant emerging requiabion
wihch has the potaniial lo inpset the way thai
we finance the Group
Income We are mindful of maintaining - We undertake comprehensive profil and cash baspﬂénemmai.my_meqmmyn!m;purﬂuﬁo
s‘us!mminln\ sustaingble income streams Rgw tarecasting incof porating stenario anatysis and epvimanments has continued to attraci strong
whichumderpin a stable and 1o model the impact of proposed rarsactons om.gpiaintaralwilhguodleasingpa‘!m‘nme
Respansible  grquing dividendand provide  _ Pro-active assel managenent 2pproach o - Ourincome sireams 2re secure; underpinned
mdah"es- the platferm from whichto maintain strong eccupier line-up. We manior by a high quelity. diverse accupier base with 98%
MLLIGH& Bel.l._ grow the business. cur market lelting exposure incliting vatancies etoupancy and an average lease length 0f 83 yoars.
T Wemlsdamlamabﬂlly uproming expivies and braaks and speculative
HEY- of aurinoone streams in: develnpmentaswellasmrwenghtedmrage We actively manage the impact of sur investment
Tim Roberts - execution of invesiment . unexpired tease tevin mﬁwi Ia"‘: dﬁfem' exgiries on o incoma al
strategy and tapital - We have a high gualily and diversified occupier & wETe G Sofp
b 3 L AT b heesadwinads far our occupiers, however we continue
recycling. notably timing base and COm ep Lo expact our high quality pertiolio to benefit from
of reinvestment of sale to individual occupiers or sectors intreasing polarisatien.
proceeds - Weare proatiive in addressing key tease breals
- namandslnrtlure andezmneslormmmtsepmn_dsnlvemﬂ:y
of leasing activity - Weactively engage with thee
~ nature and bming of in'which we operate. as delated in our Locat
asset managarnent and Charter, 10 ensure we provida bufldings that
devaloument activity meet the needs of all relevant staleholders
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Governanee -

Governance and
remuneration

Board of Directors

Chairman’s governance review

Qur governance structure

(Govarnance review

Report of the Audil Committee

Report of the: Nonnination Commities

Remuneratton Report | .
Letter from the Chairman of the Remuneration Commiitee
At a Glance
Annual Report on Remuneration

Directors’ Report and addittonal disdlosures

Directors’ responsibility statement

SouthGate, Bath tright]
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Governancy

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Our Board develops strategy

and leads British Land to achieve

long term success

About the Board
Board Compaosition as at 31 March 2017

Board of Directors

_‘?ﬂt\
D
N ' /

W Non-Executive Chairman
U Indeperdent Non-Executive Direclors
8 Erenttie Direcioes

.Directors” core areas of espertise’
Property

Finance

Retail and consuiner
Public sectar
Academic m

* Samea Direclors are represented in more than one category.

Executive Directors” appointments

S50% 50%

appointed internatly 2ppointed externally

Length of Nop-Executive Directors' teoures.

wosrapws (TR

S04 years [l

Over 6 years

Board Committee membership key

0 Audn 9 Rermuneration
Commiltee member Commillee member

0 Nomination O Chairman ol a
Committee member Board Cammattee
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Non-Executive Chairman

John Gildersleeve @

Appointed as a Nen-Exacutive Diracior in September 2608 and as
Chairman on 1 January 2013,

Skills and experience: John is deputy chairman and senior independent
director of Spire Healthcare Group pic and deputy chairman of TalkTalk
Telecom Group PLC. He was formerly chairman of Carphone Warehouse
Graup, New Look Retail Group, EML Group and Gallaher Groyp; a
non-executive director of Dixons Carphone plc, Lioyds TSB Bank PLC,
Vodafone Group and Pick n Pay Stares {South Africal and an executive
director of Tesco ple. [B.3.1] €,

Executive Directors -

Chris Grigg

Chief Executive

Appainied te the Board in January 200%.

Skills and experience: Chris has more than 30 years’ experience in

the real estate and financial industries in @ range of leadership roles.
Untit November 2008, Chris was chief executive of Barclays Commerdial
Bank, having juined Barclays in 2005. Prior to that, Chris spent 20years
at Gotdman Sachs. Chris 15 a non-exeécutive director of BAE Systems plc,
a member ol the board of the Britsh Propecty Federation and of the
executive board of the European Public Real Estate Association.



Executive Directors

Lacinda Bell

Chiet Financial Officer

Appointed to the Board in March 2011 and as Chief Financial Officer

in May 2011

Skills and experience: Luanda is a chartered accountant with over
25years of industry experience. She is Chairman of Broadgate Estates
Limited, British Land's property management business, Lucinda

is a non-execulive directar of Retork plc. where she is Chair of the
Audit Comnttee and a member of the Nomination and Ramuneration
Committees. She is a member of the Accounting for Sustainability
CFO Leadership Network.

Charles Maudsley
Head of Retail and Leisure
Appointed to the Board in February 2010.
Skills and experience: Charles joined British Land from LaSalle
Investment Managernent whera he was Co-Head of Eurepe. Managing
Director of the UK business, a member of the Management Board
and an International Director. Prior to jotning LaSalle he was with
" AXA Real Estate lnvestrnent Managements for seven years whare
he was Head of Real Estate Fund Management in the UK.

Tim Roberts

Head of Gifices and Re<idential

Appuointed to the Board in Juty 2006,

Skills and experience: Before joining British Land in 1997, Tim
was 3 pariner at Drivers Jonas, in the Investmeant Agency keam.
He was lormerly a non-executive director of Songbird Estates.
Tim is Trustee of LandAid, the progerty indusiry charity. and
Chair of their Grants Commitiee.

Senior Independent Director
Lord Turubull @ @
Senior Independent Director

Appointed as a Non-Executive Director in Aprit 2006.

Skills and experience: L ord Turnbull enlered the House of Lords in 2005
35 a Crossbench Lile Peer. He relired as Secratary of the Cabinet and
Head of the Home Civil Service in Juty 2005, Lord Turnbull previously .
held the positions of Permanent Secretary of HM Treasury and
Permanent Secretary at the Department of the Environment, Hewas -
formerly a non-executive director of Prudential PLC, Arup Group and
Frontier Economics Lid and chairman of BH Glebal Limited. Lord
Turnbull will step down from the Board at the end of the 2017 AGM.
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Governznee

BOARD OF DIRECTORS CONTINUED

Non-Executive Directors

Aubrey Adams @

Appointed as 2 Non-Executive Directar in: September 2008,

Skills and experiente: Aubrey is group chair of L&D, the housing
assacialion and residenlial developer. He is also chawrrnan of the board

of rustees of Wigmore Hall. Aubrey was formerty head of property within
RBS's Restructuring Division, and has varicusly been a non-executve
direcior of Pinnacle Regeneration Group Limited, senior independent
director of Associated British Ports PLC. non-executive chairman

of Unitech Corporate Pars PLC, Air Pariner PLC and Max Property
Group PLC and chief executive of Savills PLC.

Lynn Gladden @ '

Appointed as a Non-Executive Director in March 2075.

Skills and experience: Lynn is Shell Professor of Chemical Engineering
at the Universily of Cambridge. commussiener of the Royal Commission
lar the Exhibition of 1857, a fallow of the Royal Society and the Royat
Academy of Engineering and a non-executive director of !P Group ple.
She was formerty a member of Lhe Council of the Enginearing and
Physical Sciences Research Council and held the position of pro-vice-
chancellor for research at the Unwersity of Cambridge until the end

of 2015,

58 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017

Simon Bormrows §

Appainted az 2 Non-Exacytive Director in March 2011

Shills and experience: Simon is the chiel execuiive of 3 Group pic 2ni a
member of the supervisory board of Peer Holdings BV, the Dutch holding
company for 31's irvestment in Action, the non-foad discount relaiter. Ha
woried for 28 years in the banking and finance industry, most recenlly as
chairrnan of Greenhill & Co. International LLP. He was also chiel executive
officer of Baring Brothers Inlermational Limited. the corporate linance
divisian of G Barings and was 2 noh-execulive director o Inchcape pic.
Simon vall step down from the Boaid at \he end of the 7017 AGM.

William Jackson @@

Appointed as a Non-Executive Oirector in Aprit 2011,

Skitls and experience: Willlarmn is Managing Pariner of Bridgepoint, one
of Eurape’s leading private equily groups, which he has led since 2002.
He also serves as chairman of the board of Pret A Manger and president
of Dorna Sparls SL, the nghts holder 10 the Moto GP wortd moloreycling
championships. He has served on a range of boards during his career
and has extensive operational and ransactional experience. William
will become Senior independent Director at the end of the 2017 AGM.



Laura Wade-Gery ©

Appeinted 25 3 Mon-Execulive Directar in May 2015

Skills and experience: Laura is 2 trusiee of the Royal Opera House

and Aldeburgh Music and a member of the Government Digital Strategy
Advisory Board. Belween July 2011 and September 2016 Laurawas -
exacytive director Multi Channet at Marks and Spencer Group plc.
Previously, Laura served in a number of senior positions at Tesco PLE
and was a non-executive direcior of Trinity Mirror plc.

Tim Score @ Q" ,

Appointed as a Non-Executive Director in March 2014,

Skilis and experience: Tim is a non-executive director of Pearson plc
and HM Treasury, an independent member of the Feotball Association’s
audit cornmitlee and a senior advisor to Brunswick Group on linancial
mallers. He was chief financial olficer of ARM Holdings PLC from 2002
to 2615 and has held senior hnancial positions at Rebus Group Limited,
Wiltiarn Baird plc, LucasVarily plc and BTR plc. From 2005 to 2014_he
was a non-executive direclor of National Express Group PLC, including
time as intenim chairman and six years as senior independant director.

' As from | Aprt 2017, .

Lord Macpherson of Earls Court @°

Appairted as 2 Non-Freruiive Oiracter in Dlecomber 2614
Skills and experience: Lord Macpherson is chairman of C. Hoare &

Co and a director of The Scottish Americen Irvestment Campany PLC.
He was the Permnaneai Searelary to the Treasury lor over i years ram
2005 to March 2016, leading the depariment through the tinantal cnsis
and the subsequent period of banking reform. Lord Macpherson trained
as an economisl working al both the CBl and Peat Marwick Consulling.

Astrom | Aprt 2007,
Company Secretary

Elaine Willinms

Skills and experience: Elathe was appointed Company Secretary and
General Counsel in 2015. She was {ormerly Deputy Group Company
Secretary at HSBC Holdings pic and, prior to that, a partner

at Freshiields Bruckhaus Deringer,
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Goveritifve

CHAIRMAN'S GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Welcome to the Corporate

Governance and Remuneration
sections of our Annual Report

John Gildersleeve

Non-Executive Chairman

Directors’ meeting attendance during the year
ended 31 March 2017 (A.1.2) &)

British Land hos a highly effective Boatd, as onoe zgam confirmed by thas
year's Board evaluation. Lord Macpherson, fsrmerly Permanent Secrelary
o HiM Treasury, was appointad as 3 Nen-Executive Direcior in December 2ié
and we have recently announced that Preben Prebamnsen, Chief Executive of
Cligce Brethers Group phc, will join, the Boand on 1| Saptember 2007, These
appointrness will further sirengthen the diverse i of gkills snd experience
of our Direclors.

Lord Tunnbull and Simon Borrows will retire from the Beard 2t the end of
the 2017 AGM. Lord Turnbull has served @s a Director for mare than 11 yoars
anl Simoen for two thres year tlerms. buwould {ike to thank fhem both for thair
vatuable contribulion as Board membess. Lerd Termbull will] atso siep down
as Senior Independant Director and will ke sucreeded by Williaon Jackson.

All Directors, other than Lord Turnbull and Simon Borraws, will stand for
election or re-election at the 2017 AGM_ We recognise the value that Directors
who seqve for many years bring Lo the Beard and are delighted that Aubrey
Adams, who wilt have served as a Non-Executive Director for almost nine
years hy the iime of sur 2017 AGM, has 2gresd o sarve for & lurther one
year (eqTh a5 an independent Non-Executive Director. Aubrey's considerable
expenence in the property secior is an important part of the mix of skills and

i

John Gildersleeve we
Chris Grigg_ ' i
bubrey Ademas w
Lucinda Bell "
Simon Bormows ) w7
Lynn Gladden . 1]7
William Jackson ] v
Lord Macpgherson s
Chartes Maudsley } nr
Tun Raberts wnr
Tim Score ' ) n?
Lord Tumbult I
Laura Wade-Gery? . &7

* Lord Macpherson was appointed to the Board on 12 December 2016,
? LavraWade-Gery was unable to atlend one Board meeling due o
travel dissuption,

As reporied in the Chief Executive’s review, we have delivered good resulls
in an eventhal year as wa have continued with our strategy of differentiating
our space by providing places which reflect people’s chanrging lifestyles.
The design and delivery of our sirategy continues o be supported by our
robust governance structure which ensures effective decision-making
based an the right information. The Board plays a valuable role in
encouraging debale about cur strategy and its implementation
and overseeing lhe identification and management of key risks.

More information on Qur strategy can be found .

on pages 14 and 15.
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Aedge on eur Board. The precess is under way o recruil an additional
{lirector with property seclor experisnce 1 further sireagthen the Board,

Read our 8oard biographies on pages 56 to 59,

Corporaie adiure is increasingly an area of focus for investors, goveinance
advisory bodies, our custorners and other stakeholders. The Board s
cornmilied la influencing and shaping British Land’s culiure and beliaves
thal setting the “tone from the top’ and streng governance wnderpin a healthy
inclusive cutiure, which is a key par of delivering long lemmn business sbecess.
The Board has supporied the executive teamn in the significant amount of work
that has been done uusyearmremlomng nhe bdlawmﬂtniaremected

of British Land employees, incr 9 g 2nd contiruing
o develop 2 more diverse and inclusive cullune at Bnllsh Land B

Read about aur diversity and inctusion initiatives on pages 24 and 25,

The Board will continue to focus this year on monfioring Brish Land's cullure
and promoting goed governance that supports epanness antd atcoenlabality
throughout the business, including open engagement with siakeholders.
Further details on the impact on culture of sirategic and finandal deasions
can be found on page 62

We walcome feedback from shareholders. Your feedback helps us shape
our governance stnucture and the way we do business. ! look forward to
hearing your views at_and in advance of, our 2017 AGM. '

John Gildersleeve

Non-Executive Chairman



OUR GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

Non-Executive Chairman
- Leads the Board and ensures it
operaies effectively

- Maintams 2 culture of apenness and debate

- Ensures effective dialogue between the
Beard and shareholders

Board

Boand of Directors

~ Resnonsibie iof long term surcess
of the Comapany

- Develops

- Determines raature srd extent
of significant nisks

— APPTOYES MAFT ransackions

independent Non-Executive Directors

- Work with andl challange Executive Directors
~ Provide an indapendent, external perspactive
- Coniribyte vsth a broas ranges of experiesnce

and exparirse

Chief Executive and Executive Directors

- {ay-to-day managament of the business
and implementalion of siralegy

- Owerall resppnsibility lies with the Chicl
Executive, with specific 2reas delegated
o the £xaoutive Dineciors Retail,
Finante Ofices)

Board Commstlees — report on their activities to the Board

Audit Committee
"~ fhersaes financial and narrativa reporting
« Provites assurance to the Board on
effeclivenass of internal control, sk
management systems and audil processes
- Reviews eifectiveness and abjactivily
of external and internal audilurs

Audit Committee Report
see pages 67 to TO.

Nuomination Committee

- Leads process for Board appoiniients
and successipn planning

- Ensures Board and senior mansgemani
havw appmpnaia skills, nowlzdge and
experience (o operale effeciively ang
deliver stratzgy

Nomination Committes Report
see pages 71 and 72

Remuneration Committee

- Sels remuneration policy and remuneraticn
of the Chainman and Executive Direciors

- Approves annug! ang long lerm
performance objeclives ami awards

Remuneration Report
see pages 73 1o 88

Managemeﬁt Committees — report on their activities to the Board and its committees as appropriate

Executive Committee

- Considers day-lo-day operational matters
Tor runniag the business
- Reviews performance of the Group's
assets and development programme

- Reports to the Board

- Members are the Executive Direclors
and senior executives_ chaired by the
Chiel Executive Officer

Health and Safety Committee

~ Reviews performance against targeis and
dreves actions in pursuit of the Company's
health and safety goals

- Reports to the Risk Commiitee

- Three subcornmittees: Construction,
Managed Porifolo and Head Oflice

{nvestment Committee

- Reviews, appioves or recommends
capital transactions

- Recommends major transactions
for Board approval

- Reports te the Board

- Members are the Executive Birectors,
chaired by the Chief Executive

Sustainability Committee

- Reviews and monitors
progress ageinst sustainability targets
and key initiatives

- Assesses emerging sucial, environmental
and ethical BEsues, assessing associated
risks and consideration ol mitigating actions

- Reports to the Risk Commitize

Risk Committee

+ Manages strategic and gperationaf risk in
achieving the Company’s performance goals

- Recommends appropriate risk appetite lnels
and monitors risk exposure

- Reviews operation of risk management
processas

~ Reports 1o the Audit Commiltee

- Members are the Executive Directors,
chairad by the Chief Finantiat Officer

Community Invéstment Committee

- Ovarsees the sirategic managament
of tha Cornmunity lovestment Fund

- Approves and monitors atl spend under
the Community Investment Fund

~ Reports to the Risk Commiiles
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GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Our governance structure isan
integral part of the way we design

and deliver our strategy

Compliance with the CGode

The Board has continued to apply 4ood govemance practices during

the year and considers that tha Company has fully compliad with the

UK Corporate Governance Code [the Codel This section of the Annual
- Repori autlines how w; have applied the Code’s principles and provisions
throughout the year. We are reporting against the Code which applies o
companies with reporling periads beginnimg on or after 1 Gciober 2014,
A copy of the Code is available 3t www.fre.orguk

Far ease of reference, this is howwe d -ate our compli
throughout the Governznce and remuneration section of the 2017
Annusl Report:

@ A. Leadership @ D. Remuneration

@ B.Effectiveness ) E. Relations with shareholders

@ €. Accountabiltity

Leadership

The Board's core responsibilities include setting Brtish Land's
slrategic aims and leading the Company as it works 1o achieve these
aims and atlain long term success. The focus on strategy by the Board
continues throughoul the year with annual Sirategy Days providing an
opportunity to discuss, challenge and devetop the Company's sirategy
as explained in the bax below. Progress in detivery of the agreed
strategy is considered at Board meetings during the year. The strategy
1s kept under review in light of Company perfonmance and changes

to the external environment.

Strategy Davs

The anaual Sirategy Days provide Non-Executive Direclors in
parbicwlar with a focused apportunily to consider. develop and
challenge the Company's strategy. As well as considering the
Group as a whole. consideraiion is given o kay paris of the
Group's current and prospective asset portfolio.

IR 2017, ihe annual Strategy Days were held al the beginning of
March. The Executive Directors, senior exacutives and external
quesis delivered a number of presentations to attendees providing
in-depth analysis on aspecls of the business and the externat
environmenl. The days were carehully siructured 1o achieve

3 balance between presentations, debale and discussion.

Areas focused on at the 2017 Strateqy Days included: corporate
strategy. Canada Walay, Office sirategy, Relail strategy. lechnology
oppartunilies and challeages.
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The division of responsihiities betvween the Chairman twhe s
resgonsible for runoing the Beard] and the Chief Executive vhe
15 responsibie fer running the Company's businass] is set out
inwriting and agpproved by the Beard (A2 19,

The Board deleqates authonty for snsuring that the husiness is
runin accordance with the agreed strategy to the Chief Exetutive,
with responsitility {or specific aneas of the business detegaled o
the ather Exacutive Directors. The Exaculive Mirectors are invelved
in, or aware al, all matar activities and ace therafore extrematy well
placed to ensure that actions taken align with sirategy.

The major dedisions reserved jor Board approval and other dedisions
dalegated o the Exacutive Direciors are formally documentad and
reviewed regularly 1A 1.1 ©. The Exacutive Directors make decisions
wilhin thesa pradefined parameters although any activities outside
the ordinary cowrse of business may still be taken lo the full Board
for consideration and approval where this is cansidered appropniate,
sven if they fatll within those parsmaters.

The parameters and conlrols set by the Board within which the
management underiake the dyy-lo-day running of the bBusiness ensure
that decisions are laken by pzople with the cormect authority to make
these decisions. Management Committees deal wih their speafic areas
of responsibility before making dedsions lwhere authority has been
granied| or befare recomenending actions far Board-level approval.

The Chairrnan meets with individisal Directors outside focmal Board '
meetings as part of each Director’s contenumg contribution to the

Company [A & 2| ©. This pracess allaws for open, hwa-way discussion

about the elfectiveniess of the Board, its Committees and individual

Directors. In this way, the Chairman remains mindful of the views of

individual Directors and can act a5 necessary o deal with any issues

relating to Boacd affectivensss before they become a nisk to the Company.

Culture and composition of the Board

The camposition of the Board is fundamental to its success in
praviding strong and effective {eadecship: the heeadth of kaawledge,
skills and experiente of our Non-Executive Direclors is detailed in
their biographies on pages 56 10 59. The Naminaticn Cormmities

is responsible for reviewing lthe composiiion of the Board and its
Committees and assessing whether the balance of skills, experience,
knowledge and independencs is appropriate to enable them: to operate
effectively [8.2.2|9.

Following recommendations by the Nomination Comenitiee, L ocd
Macpherson was appoinied a Non-Executive Director in December 204
ang we have recendly annaunced that Preben Prebensen will joinasa
Non-Execulive Direcior and member of the Remuneration Commitles
in Septecbier 2017, These appoinuments vall further strengthen the
nix of skills and expertence on the Board.



William Jackson will sucteed Lord Tumbull as the Sentor Indapendent
Director al the end of the 2017 AGM when Lord Tumbull retires as

a Direcior and as Semor Independent Direclon. Simon Borrows wall
also step down as a Director ai the end of the 2017 AGM.

Lord Macpharson joived the Audit Comemiltee and Tim Score joined
the Nomination Committea on 1 April 2017

Qur rigorous and transparent procedures for 2ppointing new
Directors are led by the Nominalion Cemmittez. Non-Executive
Direclors are appoinied for speafied terms and all contimunng Bireciors
olfer themselves tor etection or re-election by sharsholdars al the
AGM cach year, it the Beard, on the recommendation of the Nomination
Commiltea, deams it appropriate that hey do so [B7 1

Aubrey Adams will have served as & Nan-Executive Director for almest
nine years by the ime of our 2017 AGM. Whan 2 Nan-Exaautive Director's
tenure goes beyond nine years, their independence is carelully revieasd
and monitored. Following a particularly rigorous review of Aubrey’s
conlributions and independance by the Nemination Commitlea,

the Board determined that he remains independent m characler

and judgement.

The Board has appreved the recommandaltion of the Nemination
Comsmittes that it is appropriate for Aubrey Adams to remain in olfice
asanindependeni Non-Executive Director, and a member of the Audii
Committee. for a further year, notwithstanding the length of his service,
Aubrey’s considerable expertise in the property sector is an importanl
part of the mix of skills and experience on our Board and we recognise
the importance of continuity and the vatue that Direclors who serve

for many years bning to the Board. We are delighted he has agreed

to siand tor re-election. The recruitment process to recruit an
additionat director with property sector experience is ongoing.

The Board considers that Aubrey Adams, Simon Borrows, Lynn Gladden,

William Jackson, Tim Score, Lord Turnbull, Laura Wade-Geryand Lord
Macpherson are indepandent. In making this determanalion, the Board
has reviewed the Nomination Committee’s assessment of whether each
Direclor remains independent in character and judgement and whether
there are relationships or circumstances which are likely to affect,

or could appear 1o affect, that judgement [B.1.119. )

The Board believes that the Non-Execulive Directors are of the slature
and have the experience required ta perform their roles as independent
Directors properly. Following this year's Board evaluation, the Board
believes each Non-Executive Director standing for re-election at the
2017 AGM continues to Tullit effectively and remains committed te their
role within British Land. The terms and conditions of appointment of
Non-Executive Direclgrs are available for inspection al the Company's
registerad office and at the AGM [B.3.2}©.

The Board culture is one of openness and constructive debate; the
Directors voice their opinions in a relaxed and respectiul environment,
aliowing coherent discussion. The Chairman is responsible for
maintaining this culture. He does so by ensuring information of an
appropniate quality is provided in a imely manner before Board meetings
which leads to focused discussion in the boardroom. When rusning
Board meetings the Chairman maintans a collaborative atmosphere
and ensures that all Directers contribute to debates. The Chairman
arranges informal meetings and events throughout the yaar to help
buitd censtructive relationships between the Board members.

We continue 10 hgve a strong min ol expﬁiﬂxedil:diﬁdualson =
Board with the majority being mrdependant Non-Executive Directors
whio are able to ofler an extemal perspaciive on the buswess. 2nd
constnxtarely challenge the Exaartive Diredters, particularly when
developing the Company’s straiegy 1B.1.2]1€2. The Non-Execubive
Direciors scrulinise the parformance of managameni in meeting thair
agreed gozls and objectives. and monitor the reporting of performance.

Tha high calibre of dehale arad the participaiion of alf Directors,
Executive and Non-Executive, 21low the Board to utibse the expanience
and skilts of the individual Directers to their maximum petentzt and
make dadisions thal are in the best interest of the Company.

Culture
Brilish Land recognises that:

- the behaviours and altitudes exhibited m the wey British Land
conducts business and i its relaticns with stakeholders are 2
keyindicator of, and have a matanial impact on. our culture and

- alignmemn of our businass dedsions with cur cdture, values
and strategyis key {0 demonsiraking cur commitmeni io
developing 2 long testn sustainable busness :

The Board takes accoun: of these factors when oonsidering
strategic and linancial deasions.

Effectiveness

Regular Board and Curnrnitiee megtings are schedaled throughoul
the year and the Directors ensyre that they allecate sufficient bme to
discharge their duties eHectwvely. Octasionally, Board meelings may
be held at short notice when Board-ievel dedsions of a ime-critical
nature need lo be made.

For rieeting attendance, see the tabte on page 60.

Non-Executive Bireciors’ {elters of 2ppoinbment set out the time
commitments expecled and each Diraclor's sllendance record is
considered when assessing whether they should stand for re-etection
by sharehotders. The Nomination Committee considers thal all the
Directors continue 10 devote sufficient titne to discharoing their
duties to the required high standard.

Bnitish Land’s policy is (0 allow Exacutive irectors lo take one non-
executive direclorship at another FTSE company, subject to British
Land Board appraval. External appointrnanis of the Directors are
disclosed in they biographies and fees earmed by Executive Directors
are disclosed on page 86 of the Rernuneration Repori [0.1.219.

The Direclors are required lo nolity the Company of any polantial
conflicts of inlerest that may affect them in their roles as Direclors
of British Land_ All potential coaflicts of imterest are aulthorised by
the Board at the earliest opportumty and the register of Directors
interests is reviewed by the full Board ai least 2nnually.
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Luvernanee

GOVERNANCE REVIEW CONTINUED

Key arcas considered by the Board
during the vear:

- oulcomes of the annual Sirategy Uays and progress
towards agreed ouicomes

- consideration 2nd approval of risk appetite

- prncipal risks faced by the Company

— Brextand ks 2ffect on the Group

- reparts of the actiaties of the Audit (inctuding risk],
Remuneralion and Nemination Commiltees

- updates on the business, external environment gnd
inestor retabions .

- updakes on the portfolio, including possible developments,
acquititions and disposals

~. updates on flinanding and capital structure

- results of the Board performance evalvation

- election 2nd re-election of Directors at the AGM and
Commitiee membership

- confiicts of interest

- approval of year end and hall year financal results,
the Annus! Reporl and the Notice of AGM

~ approval oi 1he dividend policy and declaration of quarierly
interim dividends

- culture

- people including Iraining and development and
successioh planning

— health and safety

- sustainability

- cyber security and information technotogy

The Mon-Execulive Directors are kept weil informed of the key
develagments in the business through regular reports incluting a
Management Report delivered by the Chief Execulive at each Board
meeling_ 2 Finance Reporl and regdlar vpd on the activilies of the
Risk and Sustainability Committees. Throughout the year presentilions
and reporls on spacific aspects of the bysiness and individual assels
are alse delivered, 2long with updates on the regulatory and external
environmant. Specific input fram the Non-Executive Directors is also
soughlwhen significant invesimery dedisions and strategic initiatives
are reviewad and discussed.

Care is taken lo ensure that infformation is dircutated in good time
before Board and Committee meetings whenever possibte, and that
reports are presented dlearly and conlain the appropriale ével of detail
to enabie the Board to discharge its duties. It is the Company Secrelary's
rote 1o tacititale effective information flows between the Board and

its Cammitiees, and b senior manag t and Nan-Executive
Uirectors, As a result, the Non-Executive Directors are able effectively
o i [+ nt of the busi and the impl tation of

the sirategic sims as welt as being able to assess the performance

of the Chairman and Executive Directors (B.5.11 €.

The Cermnpany Secretary is responsible, through the Chairman,
for advising the Beard en all aspects el gavernance (B.5.218.
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Board training and devalopment

British Land provides 2t Nen-Exeryiive Directors with a teilored
ang thorough induction which includas brisfings on Uirectors’ dutias,
Broup sirategy. sne-io-one medlings with Execulive Direclors and
other sentor executives. They are also provided with the opportunity
10 vish hey properiies and developments B4 119

The Chairman reviews traimng and development needs with the
Directors annuatly 1B £.2) €. Board members are provided with
apportuiiies o ypdate and r2lresh their knawledge thooughoul
the year, ensyning thal they are ablz to fulfil their rolz as mambars
of lke Beard and its Compniltess effectnaly. During the yoar ended
31 March 2817, the Board considerad papers and preseniziions on
tegal and regulatory develepinenis, techrology oppor iunilies smd
challenges and sustainability-relzted devalopments as wall 2s
recalving regular briefings on the views of stakeholders, the
externd emvicanment and regulatony maiiers.

Board evatuation

The effectiveness of the Board 2nd its Commitiees is revizwad
annuslly, with an independent, externally facilitaled review being
conttucied ot least once eveTy thiee years. The naxt external
reviewwil be undertakenin 2018{8.4. 216,

In 2017 ansnternal evaluation of the Beard and its Commiliees -
was conducted by the Company Secretary ant General Counsel
1B.8.1142. in 2ddition ko the formal evaluation, the Chairman met
each Non-Exacudive Director individually during the year io discuss
their contribution to the Board. The Sender Independent Director
ted the appeaisal of the Chaitman's performance by the Mon-
Execulive Directors, with the views of the Executive Directors

als0 being faken inlo consideration B.6.3 ©.

The Chairman and Chiel Executive presented their appraisals

ol the performance of the Chief Executive and other Execulive
Direclors respectively. These appraisals were laken intg acceunt
when considering the performance of the Board as a whole as
well as in relation to annual and long lerm incentive awards.

The evaluation of the Board and its Comenittees conctuded that
the Board and its Carmittees conliaued ta eperaie effectively
wilh a high standard of performance throughoul the year.

Accountability

The Board is responsible for preparing the Annual Report and confirms
inthe DiFectors’ responsibilily stalernent sat oul on page 71 that they
helieve that this Annual Repert, kan as a whole, (s faic_balanced and
understandable, and provides the infarmation necessary lo assess
Briizh Land’s positien, perigrmance. business mods! and sirategy
C1.11%2 The basis sn'which the Corepary creates and preserves

value over Lhe long term is described in the Strategic Report IC.1.2/€3,

The content of the Annual Report is prepared by the relevant responsible
individuals across the business. Spedlic sections are reviewed by
Department Heads and Executive Committee members as appropriate,
ensuring that key stakeholders are involved throughout the process.

The Executive Directors gre dosely involved in drafting and revievang
their seclions of the Annual Report, A detailed and robust due ditigence
process is conducted lo verify key staternents made within (he Annual
Reporl prier 1o its thorough review by the Audit Committee and ;
prasentation to the Board lor consideration and approval.




The procedure undar taken to enable the Board to prowde the iair,
balanced and endersiandable confirmaton o shareholders has been
revievsed by the Audit Committea. Meetings to review and document the
key considerations undertaken o ensure that information presented is
fair, balanced and enderstandable are held between the Chief Financiat
QOfficer, Head of lnvestor Relations and the Group Financial Controlter
and othar appropniate amployees. A datailzd repart is then presenied

" 1o the Audit Corpmittee which indiudes 2 surmmary of the process
undertaken (o satisfy managemean) thal ihe conﬁrmaum to be
givan is appropaiaie 2nd accurale.

RH( management and internal controt
The Bourd determines the extent and nalure of the risks it is prepared
to teke in ardar to achieve the Company's sirategic ohjectives.

The Board has responsibility for the Company s overall approach o
rizk managameni and inlemnat control. The Board's responsibililies
includs ensuring the design and implementation of appropriate

risk management and internat control systemns. Oversight of the
elfzctiveness of these systems s delegated to the Audit Carnmittee
which undeslakes regular reviesws to ensime that the Groupis
identitying, considening and mibgabing, as far a5 practicable,

thz mast approprizte risks for the business [ 2.316.

As well as complying with the Code. the best practice recommendalions
in ‘Guidance for Risk Managament, intermal Contruol and Related Financial
and Business Reporting’ have been adopted and the Company’s internal
control lramework bas been assessed against the inlernationatly
recogmsed COSO Intermat Control Integrated Framework. The latler
assessment showed that all key conlrol elements are.n place.

British Land's approacho risk, including the roles of the Board. Lhe
Audit Commiltee and the Exacutive Risk Commiltee in setling risk
appetitz and monitoring risk expasure, is delailed in the “Managing
risk mdehvenngourshalegy saction an pages 46 0 47 (C.2.11&.

Formal and ransparent aryangements exist lor considering how
carparate reporiing, risk management and internal control principles
are applied and for mzintaining an appropriate relationship with the
Company's awditor.

The Group's iternsl control systeon is built on the following fundamental
princptes, and is subject to review by internal sudil:

- adefinad schedule of matters reserved for approval by
the Board

- adetailed authonisation process: no material commitments
are entered into withou! thorough review and approval by
more than one authorised person

— lormal documentation of all sigmficant transactions

- arobusi system of business and linancial plarning: including
cash Rows and profitability forecasting, with scenario anatysis
performed on major corporale, property and financing proposals

- arobust process for propecty investment appraisals

- maonitosing of key autcomes. particularly expenditure
and performance of sign'ﬁcanl investments_ against budget
and forecasi

- dearlydelined pobcues and review of actual performance
againsi palices

- benchmarking of property pedormam:e agamst external
sources such as Investment Pmperly Databank

- keyconirols tesling’

~ acomprehensive property and corporate insurance
programme 2nd a formal whistie- blowing policy

The Audit Committee reviews the effectiveness of tha Group's
systam of internal contrel annualty, inchzding the systems of conlrgt
for rmalenial joint veniures and funds. Duning the course of its review
of the risk management and internal conirel systems during the
year ended 31 March 2087, and to the date of this Reporl, the Audit
Committze has nol identified, nor been advised of. 2 faiting or
weakness which it has delermined to bz sigrificam [C.2.319.

A number of polides and procedures have been adepted by the Group
16 ensure thal we not enly meet our legal obligations, but also behave
ethically, act with integrity and protect our assets from the unlawiul
actoaties of others. These indude poliaes on ant-bribery and
cormuption and fraud awareness and kmov-your -client procedures.
Al employees are made sware of the Group's poliges and receive

fraining appropriste o thewr roles and responsibiliiies.

Viability and going concern
The vizhility stalement is szt out on page 49 [C.2.21 .

The Group has censiferable undrawn debl facilities and cash deposils
in excess of currend draws banking faciliies. There is substantial
headroem agsinsi the covenants for its unsecured banking ladlities,
i alse benehts from a diverse and secure incorme sbream from leases
with long average tease lerms.

Having assessed the principal risks and other matters discussed in
connaclion with the viahility statement. the Directors believe that the
Group is well placed lo manage its financing and othar business risks
salisizclorily, and have a reasonable expectation thal the Company andg
the Group have adequale resources ko continue in operation for at least
12 menths from the dale of the Annuat ReporL They therelore consider
it appropriate to adop? the going concesn basis of 2ccounting in
preparing the finandal statements IC.1.31@.

Taxation

Qur printiples of good govennance axiend o our responsible approach
lo tax. H remains important tocur stakehetders that this 1s aligned to the
lang term values and strateqy of the Group. The Chief Financial Officer,
with clese involvement of the other Executive Directars and senior
management, is responsible for developing the Group's approach

‘to lax. Atax update is presented (o the Audit Commiliee annually.

Lommunily investment

British Land's approach te community investment s set aut i our
Local Charter which detaits how we build trust by making pesitive
contributions locally. Our Community Fuading Guidetines set out
how we altocaie funding, with 2 particular focus on initiatives dase
to our assais that provide opporiunibies to locat people through
education, eraployraent and training. Both documents can be
found on our website 2t www. britishland.com/policies

Qur financial donations 1o good causes during the year totatled
£1,351,000 [2015: £1,371,000). Our Community Investment Commiltee
approves all expenditure from our Communailty Invesiment Fund

and reports lo the Executive Committes on an annual basis.

tn addition to funding projects approved by our Cormmunity investment
Eommillee, the Company also supsonts fundraising and payroll giving
for causes that matter to stall. This support includes:

- 50% upilift of stafl payroll giving contributions lcapped at £5.000
per person and £50,000 per annum for the whole organisation] and

- a staff matched funding pledge, matching meney raised for charity
by staff up to £750 per persen per year
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We also support fundraising by the on site ieams managing
our retail and office properties around the UX by:

- matching up to €750 for two site lungraising initiatives
per year, per location and

- exientng our sta{f matched funding pledge to on sile employees
of Broadgate Estates Limited, our wholly-oeenad subsidiary

Brilish {_and do2s not make gonations o potitical arganisztions,

Remuneration
The Direciors’ Remuneration Report (s el cut on pages 73 to B8,

The Remunaration Policy was approved by shareholdars al the 2016
AGM andis summansed on page 75. The full pelicy is available on
our website: www.britishland.com/committees. We ave nol making
any changes io the Remuneration Policy this yesr.

Relations with shareholders

The Boartd remains commil ted to maintaining open channels of
communicalion with shareholders. tisimportant that we dearty
axplain the Company's strategy and objeclives and thal feadback is
listened to and any issues and questions appropriately considered.

British Land has a dedicated lnvesior Retations lzam which

reports to the Chief Financial Officer. Investors and anatysis recerve
regular communications from the Company throughoui the year,
inctuding Investor Relations events {ses box 1o the right), one-to-ane and
group meetings with Executive Directors and property or asset lours,
as well as reqular contack wilh the lnvestor Relations 12am. During

the year, the Chiel Execulive, Chiel Finandat Officer and our Investor
Re\ations leam mel with representatives from over 205 institutions.

We periodically commission an independent invesior perception

study which is presented te the Board. -

The Chairman encourages all Directors to aitend the AGM, providing
retail shareholders in particular with an opporiunity to hear from the
Board and tv question the Directors in person.

Signilicant emphasis is placed an the imporiance of feeding shareholder
views, both positive and negative. back to the Board, The Chief Executive
provides a wrilten report 10 the Boeard at eath scheduled meeting which
includes direct markel feedback an aclivily during the pericd. [E.1.116
[E1.29. :

British Land aims to be informalive and accessible to all shareholders.
Aunouncermnents relating to the Group's linancial rasulls and othes key
emallers are grovided in a limety manner la beth refail and institutionak
shareholders. Qur website also provides a number of case studies

for stakeholders inforgnation covering topics from assel profites

to sustainability atthvties. Sharehslders are alse able to contatt

the Company directly via the contacls page on our website:
www.britishtand_com/contacts

We are pleased with the tevel of engagernem with sharehotders achieved
during the year and the Board alsa recognises the impaortant contribution
of providers of capital other than shareholders. namely our lenders and
bondhotders. We maintain a requiar and open dialogue with our debt
praviders to help us understand their investment appetite and criteria.

. As ever, our Senior independent Direclor remaias available to address
any concerns shareholders may wish te raise, other thanwa the usual
channels ol the Chairman, Chief Executive or other Executiva Directors
R
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| Novembes 2016 -

Key imvestor relations activities daring
the vear included

May 2014 ~ Full year resuiis presentaiien
- Full year roadshow, London
- Investor property conference, Netherlands
- Private dien! investor reundiable, 1 ond

June 2015 - lmvestor roadshow, Edinburgh
~ lrestor pregerly conference, Londen
- _Investor property tour, Paddingtan Cenbral

July 2015 - Analyst roundiable, Relail sirateqy, London
- 01 rading update
- AGM
- US Privale Placement imvestor briefing,
leleconierence

Septembar 2016 - Investor property conference, London
- Investor readshow, US
—_Private diient readshow, London

Hali year resafits presentation
- Halfyear moadshow, London
- _nvestor properly confarenca, London

December 2016 - Direct investor roadshow. Canada
- _Investor preperty conference, Seuth Africa

January 2017 - 03 trading update
- lwestor progerty conference. Londen
— Analyst and irwestor praperty tour,
Clarges, Mayfair

February 2007 - _Investor roadshow, Nethertands

March 2017 - Investor sustainability workshop, Landon
- Investor property conference_ | ondon
- Private dient roadshaow, London and Edinbergh
~ _Investor raadshow, Edinburgh




REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

We monitor the quality and mtegnty
of the financial reporting and

valuation processes

Tim Score

Chairman of the Audit Commitiee

Audit Committee members’ nttendaﬁce
for the year ended 31 March 2017

Fimn Score [Chairman] 141,21 @
Aubrey Adams

Committee compasition and governance

During the year, the Commities was wholly composed of independent
Non-Executive Directors. being Aubrey Adams. Simon Borrows

2nd mysell 25 Committee Chairman. With eifect from 1 April 2817
Lord Macpherson joined the Committee.

British Land has announced that Simeon Borrews will ratire from
the Board, and this Committee, at the conclusion of the 2017 AGM.
1 would like to thank Simon for his valuable contribulion as a
member of thic Commitize.

The Boand remains satisfiad that each of the Committee members
is appropriately qgualifed and experienced to ungertake their
roles. For the purposes of the Code, | am deemed to meel the
specific requirernent of having significant. recent ang relevani
financial experience IC.3.119.

By imitation, membars oi manag W attend Committee mestings.
These indude the Chisf Finandial Officer, Chief Executive Officer,

‘Company Secretary and General Counsel, Group Financial Controller,

Head of Investor Relations. Head of Financiat Reporting and Head of
Planning and Analysis as well as represealatives of hoth external and
mnternal auditors. The Commillee met privately with both external
and internal audilors three limes during the year and is satisfied

that neither is being unduly influenced by management.

glala|

Simnon Borrows

Terms of reference

The Comumnittee’s role and responsibilities are set gut in the
lerms of reference which can be found on our website at
wwrw_britishland.com/committees [C 211 €21C.3.212IC.3.31Q2

| am pleasad to present the report of the Aadit Cornmittee for the
year ended 31 March 2017

This year, the key areas of focus for the Commitiee have been:

- serutinising the valuation of investment and development properies

- moniloring the effectiveness of the new internal audilor and
reviewing lhe internal audit plan

- agreewng 2 best practice policy for the appeintment of the
Company’s external valuers

- reviewing Lhe appropriateness of continuing to publish interim
managernent statements and

- menitoring the quality, consislency and integrity of the Comipany’s
tmancial reporting, including assessing whether the Annual Report
15 fair, balanced and understandahle

As Committee Chacrman, | addironally hotd reqular meetings

with the Chiel Financial Otficer and other members of management.
These meetings provide me with a belter uidessiarding of key issues
and idenify those matiers which require meamnghul discussion at
Committee meetings. | also meet the exlernat audit pariner, internal
audit partner and representatives from each of the vatuers to discuss
any matlers or concerns they have.

During the year, the Committee received reports from management,

external and internal auditors, exiernal aluers and the Risk Commitlee.
These reports have aliowed the Committee Lo scrutinise and ask questions
where lurther clarification or discussion was required. Further details
ot the work underlaken by the Committes are set out in the section on

"Key activilies during the year” on page 68.

3
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEF CONTINUED

Role and responsibilities
The principal responsibilities of the Commiitee ara:

1 Extemalaulli! — Dversight and remuneration of the extarmal
dit g effectin and making recommendations
1o the Board [ lheappmnlmelﬂol and the policy fos, non-audit
senvices provided by the external auditor

2 Financiat reparting — Monitoring the integrity of the Company's
financial statements and a2ny feimal 2meats relat
to finanaial performance, ang considening significant finanaal
reporting issues. judgements and eslimates

3 t angd devalop propedty valsations -
Considering the val process and the effectiveness
of the Company's valuers

4 Rick management and internal controls REViE‘Ni“gAﬁ;e
syslem of intermat contrad and risk managemean

44}

Internal audit — Monitoring ang reviewing reports on the work
perforvmed by the internat audstor and reviewing effecliveness,
audil plans and resourcing

Kev activities during the vear
The key activities undaraken by the Commiliee are sef gut belovw.

1. Externat audit
The Commitlee is responsible lor overseeing the relationship with
the external auditor and for cunsidering their terms of engagement,

remuneration, effectiveness, independence and continued objectivity.
Tha Commillee anaually reviews the zudit requirements of the Graug,

for the business and in the context of the external esvironment, placing
greal impartance oh ensuring a high quality, efiective external audit
process. In parlicular, during the year, the Committee reviewad
and approved the annual audil plan and reviewed the findings of the
external audit and managermen!’s responsi findi

s la those g5.

Iny accordance with besi praciice and its own terms of reference,

the Commitiee undertakes an annual review of the performance

ol the external auditor. During this review, the Comrmittee considered
the external auditar’s techmical competence. strategic knowdedge.
reporting, their indap e_and compliance with rel t
statulory, regulatery and ethicat standards. [C.3.8]1©.

The Committee nnted the resulls of the Financial Reporting Council's
Audit Quality Review {AQR] of PwC's audil of the Company. along wilth
their performance on other audits of listed companies.

The Commiltee reviewed PwC's performance during the year ended
31 March 2017 and was content with the gquality of the audit work
undertaken and the § dedge and competence af the audit team.
The external auditor confirmned to the Commitiee that it maintains
appropriate intermal safeguards to ensure its independence and
objectivity. The Commiltee considered and approved PwC's
assessment of iLs independence and has recommended to the
Board that a resolation for the reapp! L of Pwl as external
auditor be put ta shareholders at the 2017 AGM IC 3716,

Brivsh Land undertooak a tender of external audit services in 2014
resulting in the appointment of PwC as external sudilor. This is the
third year that PwC have audited the Annual Report. The Committee wali
consider the needt o7 a competitive lenger for the role of external auditor
every five years, with a competitive tender taking place at least every
tenyears. There are no contractual obligations which would resinct
the selection of a diferent auditor. The Comimittee will also ensure
that the retatien of audit pariner is undertaken as required by
legistation o the extent Lhat this is not undertaken earlier by PwC.
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Provision of non-audit services [C.3.812

The Commuites has adopted 5 policy for the promsion of non-audil
services by the external suditor. The policy helips to safsguard the
external auditor’s indepandence and chjectvity 2nd was reviewed
and updaled during the year. The policy allows tha external auditor
1o provide tha lollowing non-audit senvces 4e Britsh Land where
they are conaulerad 1o be the most 2pprepriaie provider:

— Audii relatad services: induding format reporting retating 1o
borrowings, sharsholder and othar circulars and work in respect
ol acquisitions and disposals. In some drcumsiznces. the exterpal
auditor is required 1o carry out Lhe work because of their office.
In ather droumslances, selection would depead on wihich firm
was bast suited to provide the services required

- Sustainabilily assorance: Pw curtenity provides an assurancs
apinian lo the Company over selecied sustainability data.
This appointment is revigwed annuathy.

in addition, the pmmcnls that appiy o rvan-audit fees ars:

- Tolal non-audit lees are limited o 70% of the sudit fees in any e year.
Details of the audit and non-audit fees paid during the ysar are sat out
inNolz 5 on page 109, The audil and nea-apdit lees or the three yoar
average are cilculated in line with lhe methodology set ot in the
2014 EU Regulations and indude fees lor jerd venlures and [unds

- Commuitez approval is required where there mighi be doubls
as lo whether tha external auditor had 2 conflict of intzrest and

- Pre-approval by the Audit Commiltee Chairman is required for
each additional project or incremental fae over £25 000 [previously
£106.000) and Commiltee approval required for any additional
projects over E100.000

During thz yaar one engagement relating to Susiainabilily assurance
required 2pproval, This was aparoved by the Audit Commities Chairman
on the basis that PwC were best placed to provide this service and

that it created no conflict of interest with their nole as external auditor.

2. Financial reporting .

At the request of the Board the Commitlea reviewsd ihe content and ione
al the preliminary results press release, Annual Report and hall year
resulls as well as ihe quarterly trading upgates.

The Committee received a broad outline of the Annual Report structyre
and content early in the process. Further drafits of the Annual Report
were reviewed by the Commiltee prior to fermnal censideration by the
Board, with sufficient time to allow [eedhack. The Commiittee considered
the key messagesincluded in the Annuat Report, hall year results and
the trading updales issued during the year. As well as content and tone
of results, the Committee paid particular attention lo financial reporting
riliers it considers lo be important by virfue of size, complexity, tevet of
Jjudgement required ard potential impacl on the financial slalemenls and
wider business model. dentification of the issues deemed to be significant
toak ptace following open and frank discussion between the Commilteg,
Chief Financiat OHicer, PwC, internal audit and other relevant British
Land employees.

Following the Commitlee’s review. and receipt of an external audit
opinion from PwC. the Commillee has salishied ilsell thal controls
over the accuracy and consistency of the informalion presented in the
Annual Report are robust. The Cormimnittee recornmendad (o the Board
1hat the Annual Report presented a fair, balanced and understandable
overview of the business of the Group and that it provides stakeholders
with the necessary information to assess the Group's pesition,
perfermance, business model and strategy [C.3.4) €.

The Committee alse considered the continuing use of interim management
stalements between the full and half year announcements. Having taken
inlo account the views of investors, the Committee recommended o the
Board that the Company should cease publishing intesin management
statements from 1 Aprit 2017



The significant issues o

sderod by the C

the table below (C 381

Significant isspes in relation to
financial statements considered
by the Committee during the vear

ftee during the year ended 31 March 2017 and the actisns taken n address these issues, are set oul in

How these issues
were addressed
by the Committee

Viability
statement

Going convern
statenrent

Vahumtion
of property

Accounting
for signiftcant .

trans:}chmﬁ

REIT status

Revenue

:ecogmuon

Whether the assessment
urdertaken by roanagasent
regarding the Group’s long
tesm vighility appropniately
reflects the prospects of

the Growp antd Covers an

apprepniate peniod of time. |

The appropriateness
of preparing the Group
financiat statements an
a going concern hasis,

me-val_uaﬁon of irvestment
ang development properties
conducted by external veluers

- is inherently subjactive-as it

is undertaken on the hacis
of assumptions made by
the valuers which may not
prove to be accurate.

Tha cutcome of the valuation
is significant to the Groupin
terms of investment decisions,
resulls and remuneration.

The accounting treatment

of significant property
acquisitions, disposals and
financing transactions, is 2
reeurring risk fer the Group
with non-slandard accounting
entries required, andin

SOME c3565 managament
judgement applied.

Maintenarice of the Group’s
REIT status lhrough compliance
wilh certain conditions has

a significant impacl o the
Group's sesulls.

For certain ransactions,
judgement is applied by
management as 1o whether,
and to whal extent, they
should be trealed as revenue

- for the financial year.

The Committee considerad whether the assessmeant performad by management adequately
reflected the Group's risk appetite and printipal risks as disclosad on pages 50 o 53; whather
tha pesiod covarad by the slaternent was reasonable given the sirsteqgy of tha Group and the
environment in which it eperates; and whether the assumplions and sensitivities idenbfied
and stress tested represented severa bul plausible scenanos in Lhe conlexl of scivency

or liguidity.

Following thes evaluation, along with consideration of the external 2usditor s report, the
Committee agreed with management’s assessment and recomimendad the viabdiity staternant
for approval by the Beard. The viability statement, together with lurther details on the
assessment undertaken, s sel out or page 47 of the Strategse Report.

The Committee reviewed management’s analysis supporting the going cencern basis

of preparation, indluding considaration of forecast cash flovws, avedability of commitied

debt faclities and expacted covenam! headroom.

The Committee also received a report from the external auditer on the resulls of the testing
undertaken 0n management’s analysis. As a result of the assessment undertaken, the
Comemniltee satisfied ilsell thal the going concern basis of preparation remained appropriate.
The going contern statemant is set out on page 45 of the Corporate Governance Report.

The exiernal valuers presented their reports o the Commilles pries (o the hall year

. and full year rasults, providing an overview of the UX properiy markel and summarising

the perfarmance of the Group's assels. Significant judgements were also highlighled.

The Commillee analysed the reports and reviewed the valuation outcomes, chatlenging

. assumptions where thought fil. In particular this year, the eHact of the EU referendum

on property valuations and market senkiment was examined in datail.

Tha Commiltee was satistied with the vatuation process and the elfectiveness of the
Company’s valuers. The Commillee also approved the relevani valvalion disctosures
to be included in the Annual Report.

The Commillee reviewed managemen papers an key judgements, induding those
for significanl transactions, as well as the external auditor’s findings on these maliers.

In particular, the Committee considered the accounting treatrnent of The Leadenhall
Building lransaction_ the disposat of Debenhams, Oxford Sireel and the impact of share
price movernents on the accounting treatment of the 2012 conver libde bond, |nclud|ng
the change in dilulive impact on the Company’s key metrics.

The external auditor confirmed that managament's judgements in relabon lo these
transactions were appropriate. The Commitlee agreed with this conclusion.

The Committee reviewed the Company s carnpliance wath the REIT tests. Management
presented details of the methodology a2nd resulls of their process for REIT lesting,
highlighting any change in long termn irends and the current level of headroom.

The external auditor presented the conclusions of their review of the REIT tests perforaed
by management and the Committee concluded that the Company s REIT status had heen
maintained inthe year.

The Commiitee and the external audilor considered the appropriateness of the accounting
treatment applied by management in relation to revenue recognition. In particular the
Committee considered the accounting of significant payments received in the year in
relation lo the development and occupation of 5 Broadgate and wera satishiad with their
treatment as capital items.

The Cemmittee considered the scope of the accnunlmg standard and agreed with the
reasonableness of the judgement made.
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3. Investment and development property valuations

The exlerna! valustion of Bnlish Land's portioho is a key deternminant

of the Group's balance sheel, perionmance =nd senior management's
rermunerzbion. In accordance with its terms of reference, the Committes
adopis a rigorous approach to ng and ¢ ing the valuation
process and the eifectiveness of the Greup's valuers, Knighl Frark, CBRE
and Jones Lang LaSalle. The Commltee reve the affacin s of the
extzmat valuers bi-annually: leausing on a quanlitaiive analysis of capital
values, yield benchmarking, aveilability of comparable market evidence
and major oulliers 1 subsector mevements, with an annual quatitative
review of the level of senvice received from each valuer.

The valuers atiendad the Committee meetings which considered the
half year and annual resylls. ang presented Lheir reports including
providing confirmation of the valuation process, markel conditions
and sigraficant prdgements made. Pwi reviewad the valuations and
valuation process, having had full access (o the valuers 1o determine
that due process had baen followed and appropriate information used.
it reported s findings to the Commiliee. The valuation process was
also subject to regular review by internal audit.

British Land has fixed fee arrangements in place with the valuers

in relation lo the vatualion of wholly-owned assets, int line with the
recommandations of the Carsberg Commiltee Report. Copies of the
valuation certificates of Knight Frank, CBRE and JLI, ¢an be found
on the carporate website ai www.bhritishland.com/reports

The Company has adopted a best praclice policy on the appointment
of externat valuers The pelicy covers duration of appointments and
the number of valuers engaged across the portfolio. Implementation
of the policy will commence during the year ending 31 March 2018
ard further details wilt be given in the 2018 Annual Report.

£, Risk management and internal controls

The Committee is respansible for overseeing the elfectiveness of

the Group’s risk management and internal control systems on behalf

of the Board. This Committee has oversight of the activities of the Risk
Comrnittee, receiving minates of all Risk Commillee meetings and
discussing any significant meatters. Prior 1o the announcement of full
year and half year resyulls the Commttee reviews the Group's principal
risks. This includes a commentary an how risk exposures have changed
during the peripd and any emerging risks in the Company’s risk register.
In particular, consideration has baen given to the effect on the Cornpany’s
external economit and inlernal stralegic aims fotlowing the EU
referendum result, geopolitical unrest and capilal growth kirecasts.
The Commitiee reviewed management’s response to these matiers
including impact on near term budgeting and fyture investment and
development stralegy. The Commitiee considered and recommended
the Group's risk appetite 1o the Board for approval, ensuring that &

was set at an appropriate levet to achieve sirategic goals without laking
undue nisk. The Cormmitlee reviewed the status of key nisk indicators
throughout the year against the risk appetite sel, with focus on those
that were oulside oplimal ranges.

Half-yearly, the inlernal audilor reports to the Commitlee on the
effectr ofr gement’s internal controls, including a thematic
analysis of control issues identified by management. Internal audit
and the Risk Committee work closely together to ensure that identilied
nisk areas are incorporated in the internal audit plan and similarly.

the findings of intermal audits are taken into account when identifying

' and evaluating risks within the business. For the year ended

31 March 2017, the mternal auditor confirmed that the syslern

of risk management and internal cantrols had been effective.

Further detaits of the Company's mlernal control systems can
be found on page 45 of the Corporate Governance Report.
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5. intermal audit

As sei outin the 2018 Annwial Repert, a formal tendes of interna! zudit
seraceRs wes wmdsrtaken during the first quartes of 2115, A selection
panel was esiablished which | dhaired, comprising the Chizf Financial
Officer, Company Secralzry and General Counsel and senior members
of the Finance team. The principal aiteria considered by the panel
mcludad the skills and experience of the proposed teams, coltura! fit
with British Land_ insighi and exiernal perspeciives lo add value and
expecied fee arrangements. Emst & Young LLP IEY] were identifiad
as the preferred Gndidate and appainted o the role fultowmg
approval by the Board onthe T ittee’s neco

The Committes reviewed and 2ppraved the idernal audit plan for the year,
including a consderation of its atignment te the pnncipal risks of the
Group and s joint ventyres. EY have altandad ail Committee meetings
during the year to present their chsesvabons ansing from the audits
undartaken and the status of any resulting management acions.

Internal audits undartaken by EY and reviewad by the Comnittee in the
yeur Wrdluded: propesty developraen sduding grocurement, hrd party
coniraci management, property valustions amd statistics, property
managament Conlvac? acquisitions, preperty disposals and the wider
risk management process, treasury, payroll and human resources,

The audits revealed no significant i h a number af process
and control imgs 15 were suggested and implernented in the year
by managemant. EY alse prowided assurance aver Lhe effectiveness of
key financdizl controls in the year and & aumber of advisory revisws were
conducied over business continusty and |T processes induding the cagoing

d: and impl ion of 2 new finance generat ledger sysiem.

The performance of internal audit was monitored throughout the
year through the review, chatlenge and discussion of EY's findings.
The Committee reviewed the internat audit charler which deftnes
£Y's role and responsibilities. A forenal rediew of the effectiveness

of the inlern2l auditor was underiaken and, as 3 resull of this review,
the Commiltee beliaved that EY discharged its duties effectively
IC.3.419 guring the year ended 31 March 2017

Other matters discussed and reviewed by the Committee
In addition w the key areas set gul above, the Commitlee considered
the lollowing matters during the year ended 31 March 20017

Reporting and - Changes ke accounting policies
external aydit - Annual audit plan and extemal
auditor's recnuneration
Risk andinternal  — Review of the Treasury Policy including
control liquidity. interest rate and foreign '
currency management
~ Anii-iraud and ant-bribary and carruption
policies and procedures
- Whistieblowing arrangements [C 3.51@
- Cybersecurily
— Risk expozura and reward outoome
— Insurance lor covporate, gruperly
and development nisks

‘Internal audil - Annual internal audit plan

- Internal audit charter setbing out its role
and responsibililies
Othes ~ Reviewing the Committee's terms of reference
~ Annual lex update and approach to tax

- F ion of the Cammiliee’s eflectiveness

Tim Score

Chairman of the Audit Committee



REPORT OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Committee leads the process

Jor Board appointments

John Gildersleeve
Chairman of the Nomination Commiliee

Nomination Committee members® attendance
for the year ended 31 March 2017

John Gildersleewe [Chairman] [A1.2)@ 2/2
William Jackson 272
Lord Tumbull 2/2
Role and responsibilities

The Committee's role and responsibilities are set out in
its lermss of reference found an the Cornpany's website at
wwrw britishland.comfcommittees 18211,

The Commitiee’s principal responsibililies are:

- revievang the siructure. size and composition of the Board
arid its Commitlees and recoinmending changes to the Board

- considering succession planning for Directors and other
senior execulives

- reviewing the independence and time commitment
requirenents of Non-Executive Directors and

- making recommendations as (o the Directors standing
for election or re-election 3t the AGM

Weilcome to the report of the Nomination Committea.

The Commitize considars that the Board consists of individuals with
the right balance of skills, experience and knowledge to provide strong
2nd eflective: leadership of the Company. The majority of the Board

are independent Nea-Executive Directers, aad the Board's cellective
experience covers a range of refevant sectars, as illustrated on page 54,
As well as a breadth of property and linancia2| experientce, many Boad
members have personal experience of working in the retait and
corporate ewiromments that are typical of many of our occupiers.

In December 2014 Lord Magpherson was appointed as a Nen-Exacutive
Director, In addition, on 1 September 2017 Przben Prebensen will jom
the Board and the Remuneration Cammillee. Detsils of our appointment
process are giver on page 72,

We recagnise the importance of continuity and the value that Direclors
who serve for many years bring. Avbrey Adams will be approaching
the end of his ninth year 25 2 Nan-Executiez Director by the ime of
our 2817 AGM.

Aubrey's considerable experbse in the property seclor is animportant
part of the mix of skills and experience on our Board. The Commitiee
undertook 3 rigorous review of Aubrey's contribulions to the Board and
the Audit Commiltee and his independence and determined that Aubrey
remained independent in character and judgernent. We are delighled

[ 10 recommend that Aubrey be invited to Sesve as an independent

Non-Executive Director for a further one year term. The process to
recruil an additional Non-Execulive Direclor with property seclor
experience is under way [B.2.31€.

- Committee compaosition and governance

Membership of the Commitiee remained unchanged during the year
to 31 March 2017 and compnsed Witham Jackson, Lord Turnbull
and myself as Commitiee Chaimnan. With effect from 1 April 2017,
Tim Score, Chairman of the Autit Committee jomed the Commitiee.

We announced in March that Lord Turnbull will retire from the Board,
and its Commiittees, at the conclusion of the 2017 AGM. | would like

to thank Lard Turnbull for the support and advice he has provided

to the Nomination Cornmitiee during his 1erure. His guidance and
experience will be missed, '

The Committee met twice during he year. By invitation, Tim Score
and Chris Grigg, Chief Executive, aitended both meetings.
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Governance

REPORT OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE CONTINUED

Key activities during the vear )
During the year. the Committee has underlaken each of dls principal
responsibilitizs as set out on page 71.

Camposition of the Board and Committees

The Commiliee raviewed the composition of the Board_ and considened
whether the range of skills, experience and knowledyge thel the Directars
bring coniinue to provide strang and effective leadership of the Comparsy,
and their length of tenurs.

The Zygos Parinership iZygos), an external search agency, was engaged
by the Committee to assisl with the recouitmeant process in relation

1o Lord Macpherson and Preben Prebensen. Zygos” mle induded

the preparation of detailed role spedifications, searching for and
benchmarking suitable candidates, ang producing detailed parsonal
probiles for the Commitiee’s considerabion, Otier than the provision

of recruitmant consultancy services, Zygos does not have any
connection with Brilish Land {B.2.81€.

‘The Boand's collective expenence covers 3 range of relovant sectoes.
as illustrated on pages 56 to 57. The Commitiee considered the skills,
sxperience and knowledge of each candidate as wall 2s thair ability
1o provide the appropriate level of scruting and challenge expecied
ofindependant Non-Exacubive Directors.

Throughout the year, the membership of the Audit, Remuneration
and Nomination Committaes comprised independent Non-Executive

- Direclors to the exient required by the Codez [B.2.113. Wiliam Jackson
succeedad Lord Tumbull as Chairmnan of the Remuneration Commiilee
following the 2014 AGM when Lord Turnbull retired from that rele.
Lord Turmbuil ramains 3 tember of the Remuneration Comanittes
until the conclusion of the 2017 AGM when be will stand down as
a Director and Senior Independent Direcior. William Jackson witi
succeed |ard Turnbull a5 the Senior lndependent Direcior at thal Gime.

On 1 April 2017, Lord Macpherson was appointed to the Audit
Commiltee and Tim Scare joined the Nomination Cornmittee.

The Committee undertook a detailed review of the continued
independence ol each of the Non-Executive Directors, the bme
commitment requireq and whether it was in the best interests of

" the Company for each Director to be recommended for re-appoinkment.
Betailed consideration was given 10 each Non-Executive Direclors
contribuiion to the Board and its Comemiltees, together with the overall
batance of knowledge, skills, experience and diversity on the Board.

In accordance vath the Code, all continuing Directors will retire at the
Annual General Meeling in 2017 and submit themselves for election,
in the case of Lord Macpherson, or re-election by shareholders,
Foltowing iher review, the Commities is of ihe opinion that each
Direcior continues to demonstrate commitment to his or her role

as a member of the Board and its Commitlees, discharges his or

her dulies effectively and thal each makes a valuable contribution

to the teadarship of the Company for the benefit of all stakeholders.
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Succession

The Commities regularly reviews the adequacy of succession
arrangaments tor the Board, including the Chisl Exccutive, and sther
mesnbers o senfor managemeni. The Chizf Execulive is respansible
for develeping succession plans lor the remaining Executive Girectors
and sephor management which are pr ted to and Coar d on
by the Commiliee. The Chairman is responsible for develaping the
successon plan for the Chief Execetive, which is considered at teast
annuzity by lhe Commiltee.

Board diversity

British Land pays full regard to the benefils of diversity. induding
gendar diversity, beth when the Nomination Commilies s searching
for candidales for Board appsiniments and when the Campany is
seanching for candidates for other appaintments.

Brish Land currenity has three female Board bers; Lynn Gtadd
andg Laura Wade-Gery, both Non-Execuiive Bireclors, and Lucinda Balf|
Chief Finandal Officer. This represents 23% female Board membership
[2015: 25%). The pencentage of lemale Board members is expected
return t¢ 255 once the ed Board changes have taken glace.

Achieving 2 inos e diverse Board. intluding increasing i the percentage
of lemale Board mambers, will be subjact 1o the avadability of suitable
candidates: the Board musl ensure that apgointments are of the
candidates best able to pramote the success of the Company.

Subject o this requirement, the Board remains committed to further
strengthening dnersity, including female representation, al Beard

and senior management leval.

Focus for the coming vear

Far the coming year. the Committee will continué ta review and
davelop succession planning for Executive Directors and senior
management and will oversee the iriennial sxternally farlitated
Board evaluation

John Gildersleeve
Chairman af the Nomination Committee



REMUNERATION REPORT: LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Our Remuneration Polky

aligns management incentives

with our strategy

William Jackson
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Remuneration Committte members’ a&endance
during the vear ended 31 March 2017 (A1.2)©@

Wiliam Jackson {Chairman] 48
Lynn Gladden - ' Fi/}
Lord Turnbult® &f4
Laura Wade-Gery A4

' Whlbam fackson succeeded Lord Turnbull as Chairman with etfect from
the conclug:on of the 2016 AGM.

Role and responsibilities

The Committee’s role and responsibilihes are set out i
the terms of reference lound on the Company’s website
at www_britishtand comf/committees D 2 1 (D 2 1@

The Cornmiltee’s key areas of responsibility are:

- Setting the remuneration policy for Executive Directors and
the Company Chairman; reviewing the remuneration policy
and sirategy for members of the Executive Commitlee and
other mambers of executive management whilst having
regard to pay and employreent conditions across the Group

- Determining the tolal individual remuneration package of
the Company Chairman, each Executive Director, Executive
Coemmiliee member and olher members of management

- Maonitonng periormance against conditions attached to all annuat
and long-term incentive awards to Executive Directors, Executive
Commitlee and olher members of managemernd and appraving
the vesting and payment oulcomes of these arrangements

- Selecting. appointing and setling the terms of reference of
any independent remuneration consultant or consuttants

Daar Shareholder

On behalf of the Board, 1 am pleased o present the Directors’
Remuneration Report for the year endad 31 March 2017

Ths is my first raport s Chakrnan of Bniish Land's Remuneration
Commiltee, having suoreeded Lord Turnbull 2t the 2016 AGM. | woutd
like 1o thank 1.ord Termbull for his stewardship over the lasl faw yaars
and am grateful that he has remained en the Committee unbl this
year s AGM and continued to offer his knowiedge and experience

of remunaration matiers within British Land. We took forward to
welcoming Preban Prebensen, who will join as a Non- Execulive
Director 2amd a member of this Committes on 1 September 2017,

Britrsh Land aperates te high standards of remuneration praclice.

We weoulid like te thank shareholdess lor reflecting thas with thair support
for the Remuneration Policy at the 2016 AGM. Gver 97% supported
the new Remuneration Policy and over $6% supporied the Directors
Remunerztion Report. .

The performance measures that determine the levels of variable pay
for Executive Directors are fully aligned with the Cempany's business
slralegy. These measures are mainly relative and have the objective

ol incentivising the Direclors to detiver higher returns than the market.
This means that it in any year the Company delivers weaker performance
on a relative basis, vanizble pay is lower, and if it delivers stronger
performance, variable pay is higher.

Over the year under review, despite the Company delivering good
financial resulls in an eveniful year, our relative property sectar
perflormance has been slightly above or just below market tevel rather
than delivering the dear oulperiormance we aspire to achieve, As 2
result, payouls fromn our annual incentive plans are lewer than last ysar.
We expect the LTIP maturing this year will lapse as will hall of the MSP
awards vesting in June 2017 The Committee believes thal this gulcome
shows that the Company's remuneration polinias ara working correctly
in the interests of shareholders and ather stakeholders.

Wea are not making any revisions io the approved Remuneration Policy
this year. However. we are aware of the current debale on remuneration
practice and reqularly review and challenge largel selling for Execulive
Direclors. We ensure this complies with best practice but alse that the
largeis sel align management actions with our sirategy and the long
term interesis of shareholders and other stakeholders. During the year
we have continued to take into account the views of our shareholders,
invesior representalive bodies and governance advisory organisations
in the way the Remuneration Policy is applied. In particular we have
responded 1o feedback abuut the importance of simplifying executive
pay and remuneration reporling as well as ensunng that remuneration
is aligned with our strategy.
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Governsnes

REMUNERATIGN REPORT: LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

CONTINUED

When our Remunerstion Policy was introduced in 2016 we moved ko one
single long term incentive arrangemant and celected three perfrmanca
measures which dosely align with our tiraiegy fsee full delails on page
77. In 2017 we are continuing to simplily cur remuneration struclure

by reducing the number of quaniitalive maasures for the annual incentive
arrangements, from five Lo two, and inbroducng weightims for the
propartion of maximunn atnuasl incantive swaerd opportunity representad
by each measure. The three measures that will no tonger 2pply are
adequately covered by the remaining mezsures in the Annual Incentive
Plan and LTIP. The remaining perfermancs meagsures, set sutin full

on page 75, heller atign dhe annual incentive awands mada w Exaculive
Directors with British Land's sirategic focus on creating Places Peaple

bl el

Remuneration in respect of the vear commencing
1 April 2017
Salary and fees
The Commities has discussed and ¢ d the Company
salary process for alt eraployees. i has also reviswed the basic sataries
of the Executive Directors and the Chairman's anmuzt fee and anchuded

Ces 5

that these should in unchanged for the coming year.
Annualincenlives

We have simptlified the performance 2% far the \
incentive awands and introduced st weightings ta each re.

For the coming year, 7i'% of any goiential award will be dependent on

Prefer and delivering sustainable tong term value for all S,

In this Rernuneration Report, we have also further enhanced our
disclosure of howwe assess Executive Direclors performance for
annual incentive purposes.

Our continuing focus on better alignment of remuneratien with
strategy is reflected in our dedision to use the investment Property
Databank HPD} March Annual Universe benchmark when assessing
pertormance against the Totat Proparty Relurns maasyre tor annual
incentive awards and LTIP swards for the yaar commencing 1 April
2017. The March Annual Universe benchmeark is more appropnale

far this purpose as the companies from which assat related information
is sourced are more representalive of gur pear group. In addilion
measuring our periormance against this benchrnark, which inctudes
sales, acquisitions and developments and so iakes accaunt of active
assel rmanag 1L, positively supporis achi i of the Company's
strategy. We weight this benchmark to reflecl the seciors inwhich

our assels dre classified,

Remuneration in respect of the vear ended

31 March 2017

Rermuneration within British Land coatinues to be clusely tied o the
financial performance of the Group and the extent to which both short
and long terrm sirategic objectives are met.

The annual incentive plan payout is based on performance against
unlevared capitat return, total proparty return and profit growth,
together with qualdative measures supporting Ptaces People Prefer
and indiwidual objectives. However, the guantitative objectives of total
accounting teturn vs property majors and ERV growth aganst (PO
were both below median and 25 a result, do not contribute to the
awacd. The resull of our performance gives an award of around
ane-third of the maximum_ equivalent Lo approximately 50% of basic
salary. This is a significant reduclion gver earlier years and shows that
our pay structure is truly variable and reflects performance achievad.

The LTIP awards granted in 2014 and vesting in June 2017 are based
on relative performzance for the three years endad 31 March 207
These are expected 1o lapse in full. In addition, only half of the MSP
award made in respect of 2014 is expected to vest. Once again these
significant reductions in share-based variable pay show htvw the
structure is atigned to per formance outcomes over the longer term.
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Tulfy achieving financial targets with 20% based on achieving
quatitative and 10% on individual targeis. Duer dadicion (e reduce

the her of quantitaiiv 25 will protduce dearer targets.
Further informahion is provided on page 75.

SUCE

Long-term incentives
The firsi long-term incentive awards under the Remuneration Palicy
approvad in 2016 will be grantad during this coming yaar.

Diversity and inclusion

The Committee carefully monitors the Company's strategic focus on
diversity and inctusion 208 has undertaken pregaratery analyses for
the disclasure requirements of gender pay reporting. Full disclosures
will be punlished on our website when complete. Diversily data is
gwen in the Strategic Report on pages 24 and 25.
Remuneration consultants )

In early 2017 a tender of remuneration advisory services was
undertaken. A panal was establishad to gversea the lender on bahalf

of the Committee whose members inciyded Chris Grigg. Lord Turnbull,
and Ann Henshaw IHR Directarl. | chaired the panel Several providers
wers invited to present io the panel and, after due prooess and
deliberation, the Committee appainted Kom Ferry Hay Group Limited
to be its remuneration adviser with effect from 21 March 2017. We
would like la thank FIT Remuneration Consultants LLP, and Alan Judes
inparticular. for the advice, guidance and suppor prowded over the
years. We wish Alan a good retirement.

Recommendation

British Land continues to strive to apply best practice in its remuneration
polides and to listen carefully to shareholder feedback We therefore
hope that you all show your support for our approach le remuneration

by voling for the Diractors Remuneration Report at the 2017 AGM.

‘Vilham Jackson

Chairman of the Remuneration Commitlee



- REMUNERATION REPORT:- ATA GLANCE

Executive Directors’ Remuneration

The charts below show the 2017 aciual remuneration anainst polential opporiunity for the year endad 31 March 2017 and 2814 actuasl recnuner ation
for each Exgeutive Directar. Full disclosure of the single iotal igure of remuneration for each of the Diractors is set out in the tsble on page 78.
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Summary of Rernuneration Policy

The Remuneration Policy summarised below was appreved by sharchelders on 19 Julf 2016, The Po!icy is effective until the third anniversary of ils
approval or a revised policy is approved. whichever is the soonar. The Remunesation Palicy is sel oul in full in the 2016 Annual Reporl and is available

on our website www_britishland_com/committees

Element of Link to strategy Framework
remuneration
Fixed Basic Atiracts and ratains Expert People with Maximum level cannol be grealer than the upper quartile of the
salary lhe appropriate degree of expertise and comparatar group. Reviewed annually and increases typically in tine
experience o deliver agreed strategy. vath inflation and general salary ncreases throughout the Group.
Maximum fee af £1.5008 p.a. in aggregaie for all qualifying
appomntments lo subsidiary boards
Benefits Benefils are restiricted to a maximum of £20,000 p.a. lor car allcwance
“and the aiwunl required to continue providing othar taxabte and
non-laxable benefils at a similar level year-on-year.
Pension Dehlined benelit scheme - targat benafit is the pension that can
contnibution be provided by the 31 March 2012 lifetirne altowance H 1.8 million]
’ uplifted by RPL.
Defined conlribulion arrangements — cash altowances inlieu of
pension are made at between 15-35% of satary.
Variable Annual Performance measures retated 1o British  Masimum opportunity is 150% of basic satary. Two-thirds is paid in
incentive L.and’s strategic locus and the Execulive cash when granted with the remaining one-third lnet of tax) used to
Director’s individual area of responsibility  purchase shares on behalf ol the Executive Director {Annuat Incentive
are set by the Committes atthe beginning  Shares] which must be held for a further three years from the date
of the linanciat year. of grant whether or not they remain an empleyee of Bribsh Land.
Long-term - Total Property Retum [TPRHinks Maxirnum value of an LTIP award is 300% of basic salarywhich may
incentive . reward lo gross property performance.  be inthe form of performance shares or markel valuz oplions or a

- Total Accounting Return TAR] links
reward Lo nel property performance
and shareholder distributions. '

- Total Shareholder Return (TSR]
directly correlates reward with
shareholder returns.

combination of both.
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Cruveruatney

REMUNERATION REPORT: ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

How we intend to apply our
Remuneration Policy during the
year commencing 1 April 2017

The {oltowing pages set out how the Commiltee intends to apply the Remuneralion Policy during the coming year

Executive Directors’ Remuneration

ic satari
Basic salaries have been set al the following unchanged levels for the year commendng 1 April 2017,

Basic shlbary
Diredor . . €
Chris Grigg 840,000
Lucinda Bell : £93.000
Charles Maudsiey © ARG ST
Tun Roberts 446,250

Annual Incentive awards

The maximurn bonus opportunity for Executive Directors remains at 150% of salary. The per{ormance measares for the Annual Incentive awards
have been selected to reflect 2 range of quantitative and quatitative goals that supportihe Compaviy's key strategic objectives. The performance
measures and weightings for the year commencing 1 Aprit 2017 will be as follows:

. Propartion of annual

ncentive as 2
Measure of tnaxinurn opportunity
Quantitative measures ' . o8
- Total property return relative to 1PD lsecior reweighied) . 7%
Prolit growth relative to budget : 28%
Qualitative measures 20%
Right Places . - Progress on key projects including developments 5%
Cuslomer Orientation - Company reputation with all stakeholders ) ‘ 5%

Capital Efficiency ~ Execulion of targeted acquisitions and disposals ) ' '

~ _Progress on strengthening the dividend %
Expert People - Promaoling an inclysive, perlormance driven culture %
Individual objectives Performance against individual success factors ) 10%

The Commiktes has sel largets for the quantilalive measures and will disclose these in the 2018 Remuneration Report 25 they are felt to be
commercially sensitive. In assessing how the Executive Directors periormed during the year commencing 1 April 2817, the Commilttee will take
inta accoun! Lhew perfarmance against all of the measures and rake an assessient in the round to ensure that performance warrants the
tavel of award delermined by ihe table above.

During the year, the Commitiee considered whether the current invesiment Property Dalatiank [IPD] benchwmarks against which the performance
of annual and leng-lerm incentive awards is assessed were the most appropriate measyres. Following discession with the Commiltes's adviser.
management and our own deliberations, the Commillee agreed that the sector weighted 1PD March Annual Universe benchmark which inciudes
sales_ acquisiticns and devalopment s and so fakes inio account aclive assel management as well as being 3 more represeniative peer group,
would be most suitable.

As a result of this decision, from 1 April 2017, the disclosed performance against 1P0 meltics {er the annual incentive plan will be hased on 1PD
estimales. These estimates will be adjusted once the |PD March Annuat Universe dala becomes available. No annual incentive payments will
be made. or LTIP awards granted, 10 Executive Directors unlil the IPD March Annual Universe dala is available and the Enal oul-turn known.
The final awards under the annual incentive plan will be detaited in the next Remuneration Report.

“
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Long-Term incentive awards

The lirst LTIP award undzr the new Remuneration Policy will be made to Executive Direcloers during the year commencing T April 2017, his
anlicipated that the gran! size of LTIP awards to be smade in the year commenting t Aprit 2017 will be 250% of salary ler each Executive Director.
This is below the maximuem availzble undesr the poticy of 300% of salary approvad by shareholders tast year.

The performance rmoasures that apdly (e this, and any future, ETIP award will be as follows:

The grawth in value of a British
Land sharehalding over the LTIP
performance peried, assuming
dividends are reinvested to
purchase additional shares.

directly correlate reward with the
return delivered to sharehalders.

N - Link to strateqy , Measured relative to . Weighting
- Tetal Property Return {TPR] The TPR measure is designed to TPR performance will be assessed 2gainst the " 40%

The change in capitat value, link reward te sirong performance  performance of an IPD bendhmark.

less any capital expenditure at the gross property level.

incurred. plus net income. TPR

is expressed as a percentage

of capital employed over the

LTIP perfurmance period and

is calculated by IPD.

Tatat Atcntmhng Return (TAR} The TAR measure is designed TAR will be measured relative te a camparator group 40%

The growth in British Land's to link reward lo performance consisting of the 17 larges| FTSE property companies

EPRA NAY per share plus at the net property leve! that that yse EPRA accounting fincluding British Land).

dividends per shire paid gver takes account of geaning and our

the LTIP performance period. distributions to shareholders.

Yotal Shareholder Roturn (TSR} The TSR measure is designed to 50% of the TSR measure will be measured relative to 20%

the performance of the FTSE 100 and 50% of the TSR
measure will be measured redative to the performance
of a comparator group consisting of the 17 largest
FTSE property companses that use EPRA accounting
fincluding British Land).

Perfarmance against the LTIP measures will be assessed over 3 period of three years. 100% of the proportion of the award altached to each
measure will vest il British Land’s performance is at [easl at the upper quartile level. If performnance against a measure is equal to the median,
20% of the proportion attached to that measare will vest and if performance is below median the proportion ailached o that measure will lapse.
There will be straight-line vesting between median and upper quarlile perfarmance for each measura.

Chairman’s and I\on—l‘hiecnl:n‘e Directors’ fees :

Fees paid to the Chatrman and Non-Execulive Direclors are positioned around the median of our comparator group of compames [FTSE llll)
companies with broadly similar market capitalisations to British Land] wilh the aim of altracling individuals with the appropriaie degree of expartise
and experience, The lee siructure set out betow was adopted al the 2016 AGM and no changes are preposed for the year cornmencing t April 2017

Chairman’s annual fee £369.340
Non-Executiva Oirector's annual fee _E£61,000
Senior Independent Director’s annual fee €10.000
Audit Commitiee or Rermuneration Committee Chairman’s annual fee £20,000
" Audit Commitiee or Remuneration Commitlee member's annual fee £8.000
Nomination Committee member’s annual fee F4 000
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REMUNERATION REPORT: ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

How we applied our Remuneration Policy
during the year ended 31 March 2017

The tolluwi;\g pages sel out how we imptamanted the Direclors’ Remuneration Policy during the year ended 31 March 2817 and the remunaration
received by each of the Directors. R

Single total figure of remuneration (audited information)
The fotlowing iables detail all el s of rey ration receivable by British Land s Directors in respect of the year ended 31 Mardh 2017 and show
comparative figures for the year anded 3t March 2016,

Other
emsinthe  Pensiohbr
Taxable nahreof peresion Annual Long erm

- Satary/tees benefils remuneration  altowance intentives  incentives Totat

2017 217 Faiih) 2017 . 2m7 mr m7

Expoutive Directors . oy E0un £000 £000 £000 [rieh] 005
Chris Grigg B4D p) % 295 L8 356 1,945
Lucanda Bell . 493 23 13 78 245 153 1.005
Charles Maudsley &48 22 3 87 23% 147 © 987
Tim Roberts A48 2 12 85 222 167 957
204 206 2006 206 2018 e 2006

{060 {600 200 (£ B €000 £600 €000

Chris Gtigg 840 21 33 %4 840 1,595 3.423
Lucinda Bell . 69:_! 21 e 82 A1) 693 1.727
Charles Maudstey 444 22 L1 & 4t0 a8 1,780
Tun Roberts 448 2 17 - 106 400 817 LBi1

! Thz LTP #eards granted (o Executive Directors in June 2014 will 25t on 23 June 2017, These LTIP awards are expected to lapse in full. The MSP awards granted
to Execytive Directors in June 2014 will vest anv 30 June 2007 The TSR elermnent of the 2004 award is expecied mlapsem tullwhita the GIG element is expacted 10 vest
at 100%. Full detaits, including delails of the perfermance conditions, ane et oul on paga 81

* The LTIP swards granted to Execytive Directlors in June 2013 vestad on 5 August 2014, These LTIP awands were subject 1a the same peribimance conditions as the
LNIP aveards grantadin 2014 {see page 81). In the 2015 Annual Report, we disclosed that tha TPR element of the 2013 LTIP award was expected to vest at 69% while
tha TAR stement was expected to vest al 44%. The actual vesting parcentages were confirmed in July 2016 as 89% for TPR and 43 7% for TAR. The 2016 camparative
numbers set out in the above table reflect the actual vesting values of the rds, replading Lthe ast ing vatues disciesed in the 2016 Annual Reporl. The MSP
awards granted to Executive Directors in June 2013 vested 6n 2 August 2016. These MSP awards were subject lo the same per formance tondibons as the MSP awvards
" granted in 200 [sez page 81). As disclosed in the 2016 Annual Report, the TSR elernent of the 2013 award did not vest while the 616 element was expected io vest at
100%. The vesting percentage lor the 61G element was confirmed by the Committee in July 2014. In the 2016 Annual Report the share price for the period 1 January
1o 31 March 2018 was used. This has now been replaced by the actual price on the date of vesling.

Fees Taxable henefits® Total

) . 2017 2014 2017 2018 2m7 2015
Chairman and Non-Executive Directors [ 0] £000 £000 . Looo £000 oo
Johin Gildersleeve [Chairman) 349 349 A9 40 18 429
Aubrey Adams 49 48 - - ) 4y 48
Simon Borrows & 8 - - 8 48
Lynn Gladden . &9 67 1 1 70 48
William Jackson B7 70 - - 87 70
Lard Macphersort 17 - - - 17 -
Timn Score 8y 88 - 1 89 8%
Lord Yurnbull 8y 97 - - 8% 97
Laura Wade-Gery £9 Ak - - 49 44

“ Taxable benehis include the Chawman’s chautieur coct 30d expenses incurred by ather Non-Executave Directors. The Company perades the tay gross up on these
benefits and the Fiqures shown above are Lhe grossed yp values,
! Lord Macpherson was appointed as a Director on 19 December 2016,

78 British Land [ Aanual Repoart and Accounts 2017



Notes to the single total figure of remuneration table
Executive Directors

Fired Pay laudited information}

Taxable benefits: Taxable benefits include car allowance, privale medical insuramce and subsidiced gym mambership. The Company provides the
tax gross-up on subsidised gy membership for employzes and the figures indudad on the previous page are the grossed up values.

Other items in the nature of remuneration include life assurance. parmanent heatth insurance_annual medical chack-ups. professional
subscriptions, the vatue of shares awarded under the all-employee Share Incentive Plan and any notional gain en exeraise lor Sharesave options
that matured during the year. Buring the year ended 31 March 2017 thers were no matuiilizs of Sharesave awards held by Executive Directors.

Pensions: Neither Chnis Grigg nor Charles Maudsley parlicipate in any British Land pension ptan and instead recenve cash altowances of 35% and
15% of basic salary respeclively in lieu of pension. For the year ended 31 March 2017, these payments amounied lo £294 000 for Chiis Grigg and
£446.938 for Chartes Maudstey.

Lucinda Bell and Tirn Roberts are both mambars of the British Land defined banafit pension scheme. The table balow details the defined banefit
pensisas accrued at 31 March 2017

Executive Director €000 e
Lucinga Bell B 105 &0
Tim Roberls ‘ ! 86 50

! The acorued pension is based on service to the year end and final pensionable salary at thal date.

There are no additional benelits that will bacome receivable by a Direclor in the event that a Direclor redires early.
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REMUNERATION REPORT- ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

_ Variable Pay
Annual incentive
The level of Annual Incentive awaid is determinad by the Commiltee based on Brilish Land's periermanca and each indivigual Execuntive Direclor's
performance agains? their individual \argels during the year. For the year ended 31 March 2017 the C itlee’s ! @ tonmes are 2l
o0l betow,
Rangeof
betveeen 25% and 100%
. 100°L pay-oud
Bhpy-out Whpay-orn o
tropay-out lparformance  pay-gut abave Outcome
beiowthis inlnewdh this maximem as%of
LO0% &.00% - Targetrangsof matching sector weightod index
Unteverad to nutperformingit by 1% Capita! greavth of -3.0%,
Progarty capl 4% o outpes formang weighted PO tedex by 30boe;: Retail
retun s § cutperiormed by 28bps gnd Ofmes ouiperiormned
Property by WBxps Ueir SeThur indites
returns 367% 550% - Targelrangs of matching sector weighted ingex
Totat o outperforming & by Y Tetsl progesty rehemn of
hogtakia Wb 4% @ 3.3% cuipesr forming weighted IPQ Index by 20bps.
Ratasl oudpertormed by $lps 2 Diftces maiched
. Total accounts 000% 0.00% - Targetrange ofmedian totop rank. Taial acoounting
¢mhm coturn vs lmg 1He @ rekumn o 2.7, below the estimated median of the
proparty majers property majors by 30bps

C00%  0.00% -Tmaﬂ;elmsui hi h‘%.mERV igh .
t 1o nutperforming it by growth
:f:m ,,Ef,v rorth uw @ 1,18 underperforming weightad IPO Ladex by 30 &ps:
N Retail eulperformed s secter by 70ops, Offices
underper formed by 150kps

- Target rangs of matehing the bt
12.06% Rwammﬁuﬂmmmﬁ

Undertying Profitys

;‘i,ﬁ:mm budget 14% ® 8.00% butye. {This tangst is comnernciatly sefsitive so has
no! heon dsdosed}
Sub-total 0% Sub-total 15.67% 23.50%

500% 750% - Contraths exchenged for The Leadenhall Bedding

Prograss on ~ Sale of 335 - 338 Nehenhams store fvatue £408m],
ke){p;u‘ecls Chiswnck atd Croydon Sammsbury's Fen
. ncueiRg - Planning suocess ai Blossem Strael, Walk,
P ® ' Kogpmtocgpad
t ated - Planning Moadowhall subritted SQ‘B'E
?;a?.ilinns - Progress an Canatda Waler vision and plan
disposats : - Clarges BU% lel. 100 Liverpodt Stroet radowdopment
started on site
Company 250% 3.75% - Gustomersatistaction sture maimained 218 1/10
nlz:wtaﬁonwlth - Mamizined incluson in oix four large 56 Indices:
Curst 2 YRS . [Dow Jones Sustamabiity idices 2016 World ang
Grientation ad'é'ﬁ",;':,?m"g 5% 4 Frsrope, FISEGoud tnedox 204 and BRESE 2014}
suslainabilily - Significant fooifall and sates oulperforance
ohjectives of enchmarks by just over 200bps
Progress on 250% 375% - Abeadon Profitvs Budget
Capital f;’:fg‘;‘;\“‘d“‘! 5% , - Rernain top quartile position of WAIR £3. T2
Efficiency  ng Execotion of Vs average spreat i Suap rale Mmainiained

debt financings

250% 3.75% - Recruitment of Head of Carnpus Regents Place,

Cuality of ' : Direcior of Leasing, Direcior of Marketing. HR Dirertor
E::;" peopleand 5% . - Best Companies One to Watch
® renewal : - Gne of the first FTSE 100 comparses i introduce
Pad Shaned Parental Leave
Sub-total 20% Sub-total 12 50% 18.79%
Quantitative and qualitative 28179, 42 75%
Individual Measures 10% 500% 750%'

Towt 33.17% 49.75%

K QOul of the 105 apportunity the Commil d the indvidual contribution against a series of preset objectives dlasely a1 d I the gqualitath Bs sat
Gul ins the lable sbuve. The Committee determined that the tevet of award would be 7.50% of basic salary for each Executive Director except for Chartes Maudsley
whe received an additianal 2% of basic salary reflecting his personal perlsrmance and that of the Retail business.
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Long-term incentives {audited inforenationd

The information in the long-larm incentives column in the single total figura of remuneration table Isee page 78] relates 1o vesting of awards granied
ungder the follovdng schemes_ including, where applicabte, dividend equivalent paymms on those awards and iateresi acorued on those divsfend
equivalents.

Long—term Incentive Plan ILTIP)

The awards granted to Executive Directors en 23 June 2014, and which wili vest on 73 June Ztll? were subjact io two equally weighted performance
conditions over the threeyear period to 31 March 2017. The hrst measured British Land’s TPR relative to the funds in the Decamber IPD UK Annuat
Property Index [the Ind=x), while the second measured TAR relative 1o a comparator group of British Land and 16 olher property companies.

The TPR element is expecied to vest ail 0% based on British { and's adjusted TPR of i3 7% compared to the funds in the Index of 11.93% The TAR
" elementis expected to vest at 0%. The aclual veshing rate of the TAR etement cn anly be caleculated ence resulis hive been publishad by all

of the companies within the comparator group. The actial percentage vesting will be confirmed by the Committaz in due courss and indudad
in the 2018 Remuneration Report.

Eshimsted valuz Estimand dividand

Numer of parformance of gaand on vesimyg eqevelen and derest

Executive Directer sheres awarded in 2014 €060 : e

Cheris Grigg 233,804 0 0

Lucinda Bell . ’ 135,898 [ 0

Charles Maudsley . - 124,208 0 0

. Tim Roberts 124.708 0 ]
Matching Share Plan iIMSP]

The performance conditions for the MSP Malching awards granted on 30 June 2014 were [il TSR relative to a comparalor groug of British Land and 16
other property companies and {iil British Land’s gross income growth [GIG] relative to the IPD Quarierty Universe {the Universe]. These performance
conditions are equally weighted, The MSP Matching awards willvest on 30 June 2017,

Aon Hawitt has confirmed that the TSR element of the award will not vest as British Land’s TSR performance over the period wes 1.5% comparad to
a median of 12.7% {or the comparalor group. The GIG part is expected Lo vest at 100% as British Land's annualised GIG over the period is expacted
to exceed the growth of the Universe by more than the upper hurdle of 1.5%. As 2 resull, 50% of the MSP Malching awards granted in June 2014 is
expected o vest. As disclosed for the 2014 LTIP above, the aclual percentage vesting wall be confirmed by the Committee and included in the 2018
Remuneralion Reporl.

Estimated value Estimated dividend

. MNumber of Matching of award on vesting otuavalemt
Exncutive Director ) ) . o Shares awardadin 2014 €000 EDOn
Chris Grigg 101,766 309 &7
Lucinda Bell ' £3.818 . 133 2
Charles Maudsley 47.584 145 22
Tun Roberts . 47584 . 145 22
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Share scheme interests awarded during the year (audited information)

Lnp

The tolal value of each Exaculive Dlndur 5 LTIP award for the year andad 31 March 2017 was equivalent to 200% of basic salary al grani. At grant
each Direcior can ivficale a prefernence as o the proporiion of the award that they with lo receive as either perionmance shares o5 markel value
aplions. The shara price ysed to determinz the face value of performance shares and the fair value of oplions, and thareby the number of
performance shares or oplions swanded. Is the average over the three dealing days immediately pricr to the day of awerd. For the award granted
on 22 june 2014, this share price was 730.5 pence. The performance conditions attachad to these awards are idaniical to these for the awards
grented in 2014 vinch vest in June 2017 and ar= e\ oul on page 1.

Performance shares
Pescaniage vesting on
Numnher of . Erd o achisrmnent of minkmum
pertormance aceviive  portammance pesforrnance thesholt
Executive Director Gramdate shares granted £050 porind  Vesling dow ®
Chris Grigg 22/06/2016 - 29979 1650 T 7262019 5
Lucinda Bl 22/06/2018 134 976 286 30347057 muznw 25
Charles Maudstey 22106120146 12217 8922  3N32NY  22/Ba200% 5
Tim Roberis 22/05/20%6 41,088 46 JUNI20NT  22{06F201% s

Market Value Oplions

Negnber Endof achievement of minsmum
- ofoplions  Facevelus Fairvelue Exsraseprice  perforrance performance thrashold
Executive Birector Grant date granted €0n) | oo pende pariod Viesting date . *
Tun Roberls . 22j05f2006 244,353 1,785 &44 7305  3BIN01R 22882019 25

d Opduﬁfytwl?yvalued Hair vatue] at ane guartes of the face valyg of 2 performance share

MSP
The MSP awards rade 1o Executive Directors in June 204 were the final awards whith would be made under tas Ptan.

The tatal lace value of the MSP Ma!ching Share gward granled to each Execybive Direclor was agual to two-thirds of their gross annual incentive
awand in respect of the year ended 31 March 2006, The share price used to delermine the number of Matching Shares awarded was 5996 pence,
being the market value of the Company’s shares on the day the proportion of the annual inceniive was deferved.

Matching Shaﬂes
Number of ' : Pertentage vesling on
Percentaga Malching Entd ol arhieecnnent of renichum
: ol basic Shares  fFacewalye  performance - performance threshotd
Executive Tirector Avard data satary avarded (3] perind  Vasting date . i)
Chris Grigg 29/0412016 &7 25,718 560 31/63/201%  29/04/2002 5
Lucinda Bell ) . 29/08/2016 55% 47206 273 NI BReITnY %
Charles Maudsley 23/84/2016 1% &7.206 273 3209 9osaah 3
Tirn Robarts ' 29/06/2014 60% 646,056 266 3UM32019 790802019 5

The perfarmance conditions attached to these awards are idendical io those for the MSP awards vesting in June 2017 detailed on the previcus page.
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Directors’ sharcholdings and share interests (audited information)

Tirectors” sharehotdings at 31 March 2017 '

The following table shows the Directors’ interests in fully paid erdinary British Land shares inctuding shares hald by connecied persons and,
for Executive Directors. including MSP Bonus Sharas and shares hetd in the Share Incentive Pian [SIPL All imerests are benefical.

. Holdfing 21 Holding at
Director 31 March 2017 3% March 2006
Chris Grigg_ ' ' _ 1,252,348 1.118.0%0
Lucinda Ball ] : 226,098 152,894
Chartes Maudsley . 230,383 158.887
Tim Raberis : 244, & 173,042
_Uohn Gildersieeve - 5,220 5.220
Aubrey Adams B ‘ 30,000 20,008
Simon Borrows . 300,000 306,000
Lynn Gladden 7837 1,665
William Jackson ' ' 123,858 120,304
Lord Macpherson' 2,300 nfa
Tim Score 22415 12,693
Laord Turmbult 21,258 20,40
Laura Wade-Gery £,831 1,678

' Lord Macpherson was appomted as a Director an 19 Dacember 2016 and purchased shares in the markat on 14 March 72657,

Shareholding guidelines
The rinimum shareholding guidelines require Executive Direclors to hold ordinary shares with a vatue equal to a sel perceniage of salary.

There is no set timescale for Executive Director to reach the prescribed targei but they are expected to retain nat shares received on the vesting of
tang term incentive awards uniil the target is achieved. Shares that count tawards the helding guideline are unfeltered and benzehdially owned by the
Exacutive Directors and their connected persons. Deferred annual incentive shares, MSP Bonus Shares, SEP matching, dividend and iree shares
and all unvested awards do nol count lowards the requirement. .

The guideline shareholdings for the year commencing 1 April 2017 are shown below:

Unfeitered i
Guideline as holding as Total holding as
parcentage . U}r:ie‘;‘tered p«c:;age of Total of a

of basie Guideline ingal  basic 2 shareholdingal of basic salaryat

Executive Directer : salary holding' 31 Marth?é"? n Mal‘diagl'l 31 Mach M7 31 March 2017
Chris Grigg . . 225% 309,834 1,176,870 355% 1,257.368 213%
Lucinda Bell ] 150% 121.230 186,806 233% 226,058 280%
Chares Maudsley 150% 109,734 190,587 261% 230,383 J15%

Tim Roberts 150% 109.734 203,296 8% 284714 335%

' Calculated on a share price of 410 pence on 31 March 2007
? See Directors’ sharebholdings table above which inciude MSP Bonus Shares and all shares hetd inthe SIP

The shareholding guidelines lor Executive Direciors were last increased with effect from 1 April 2015 when the holding reguirement for each Director
was increased by 25% of basi salary. The Commillee continues lo review the guidelines and the Directors’ shareholdings.

Alihough there are no shareholding guidatines for Non-Executive Direclors, they are each encouraged to hold shares in British Land. The Cempany
facilitates this by offering Non-Executive Diractors the ability 1o purchase shares quarierly using their post-tax fees. During the year ended 31 March
2017, Lynn Gladden, Witliarn Jackson, Tim Score, Lord Turnbull and Laura Wade-Gery have each recewed shares i full or part satisfaction af their
Non-Executive Oirectors’ fees.
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Aoquisitions of ordinary shares after the year end
The Execuiive Directors have purchased or been granted the ioHowing hulty paid urd’mary British Land shares unier the lerms ol the parinership,
matching and dividend elements of the Share Incentive Plan:

Date ot
. perhase of qu:hasz- Panr-aéup Maltching Dividand
Exeaptive Drectar aveard shares sharas
Chris Grige wBieslan7 645274 3 48 -

’ 05/05/2017 458978 93

IS05/2017 - 6724674 22 &b

Lucinda Betl . 18/04/2077 6456274 73 46
' 0o/ 27 658974 193

. 15/05/2017 £72.878 2 A4

Charles Maudshey 18/04/2057 b46. 274 24 - 48
0902087 658974 71

1/05/H7 672676 22 &4

Tim Roberts o : 18r04/2017 646274 23 46
UO5/2047 458978 189

1052017 672 674 |22 44

ir addibion, on SN:ml 2017, the icllawing Non-Executive Directors were alioited shares at a pnce of 01 pence per share in full or parl satisfaclion of
thei fees:

) Shares

Non-Executive Ditector altatted

Lynn Gladden ‘ 1,883

Williarm Jackson : . ) 1083

Tim Score : 7 : - 23999

Laura Wade-Gery 83t
Unwvested share awards

Womber
outstanding  Subjectio End of
at 31 March perfnﬂnance ce

Exeagive Director Date ol grant 7 peviod! Vesting date

Chris Grigg LTIP performance shares 23/06M14%  233.804 Yes 31/0317 230417

‘ LTIP perfermance shares 2270615 154,949 Yes  3WO3NB  22/04518

LNP peciormance shares . 22/86116 29979 Yes 31/03N1%  22/05/19

MSP Malching Shares 30/05/14 181,766 Yes 31/03/17 30008117

MSF Matching Shares 29/0615 24,348 Yes /318  29/06/18

MSP Matching Shares * 29006/ 16 96718 Yes /0317 2900619

Lucindz 8ell LNP performance shares ' 230614 135,898 Yes 3V/Q3N7  23/06/77

- LTIP performance shares 22106115 121,294 Yes 310318 220048

LTIP performance shares 206416 134976 Yes  I303N?  22/06M17

MSP Matching Shares 300414 L3814 yes 3403717 an/osN7

MSP Matching Shares . 29/06/15 £0.950 Yes 31/03N8 29048

MSP Maiching Shares 2900616 47,206 Yes 30319 25/oe17

Charles Maudsley LYIP performance shares 23/06N4 124,208 Yes JY03INT 2308017

LTIP performance shares 22/06/75 | 109.756 Yes 31/0318  22fu4/18

LTIP perfarmance shares ' 26Ns 22 Yes NN 2200609

MSP Matching Shares 30/06/14 47584 “Yes 3V0INT 30006017

MSP Matching Shares 2910615 44,226 Yes 31/03/18  29/6N18

MSP Matching Shares 2900616 47.206 Yes /03119 29706119

Tim Roberts LTIP performance shares 706G 174708 Yes  IVOINT  7YOENT

LTIP performance shares 2200615 109.756 Yes 31/03N18  22/04)18

LTIP performance shares - 22066 61,088 Yes 31706319 22fosh9

MSP Malching Shares ' 30/08/14 47.584 Yes 310317 30/08/\7

MSP Matching Shares 29/665 44 682 Yes JVWO3/1B  29/06N"8

MSP Malching Shares 2906114 £6,056 Yes 310319 #9/06119

* The LTIF and MSP awards granted in June 2014 are also included wathin the “2017 Long termn incantrvas™ column of the sirgle otal hgure of remuneration table on
page 78 The degree to which perfortnance measures have been, or are expecled to be, achieved, and the resultant pmpu-tnms of the awards that 2re expected to vest,
are delailed on page 81,
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Unvested option awards (not available to be exercised)

Rhurnder

ot %
a1 21 March

Expastive Dinedor Dase of grant 07 pENE  MRIEIETS pariod’ exerdsahly wni-
Chris Grigy N LTIP ophs 22/06015 206579 B4 5 Yes U318 22/06f1B  2HOIDS
Ludinda Beit Sharesave optiens YOG4 1567 5#9 Mo nfa  DIO9NT 2800218
Sharesave options 2200615 1.2N £9790 No nfa 010918 28fu2/19
Timn Reberis ‘ Sharesave gplions 19/0613 2348 S10 Mo nja = 0VOY%/i8 28f02/1%
' Sharcsave options 23106114 3135 S7A0 No nfa 0169 BRUN
LTI aptions 22/06/16 244353 7305 Yes  3W03NV  2206N9 22164126
Yested aption awards lavaitable to be exercised)
Numtear
a3t March Oplianprice  Exsrcisable
Exrcutive Director Daiz of grant 2017 pence unikit
Chyis Grigg LTIP oplions 29106109 751 387  29/04/19
LP aplions 13/06/10 1073875 447  1UL20
LTIP options 28861 &95.652 575 284
L2 aptions 1602 743894 538  afowE
Lucinga Bell L.TIP options 11/04/10 67952 447 NS0
L.A1P oplions 1412110 11,754 o 14/t
L TiP eptions 14f09/12 1318289 538 14009722
L TP options 05/08/13 154,742 &0 05/08/73
Other disclosures
Servite contracts .
Al Exacuiive Directurs have rolling service cantracts with the Company which have nolice periods of 12 months on either side [D.1.5/€).
The letters of 2ppointment of Non-Execulive Directors are subject to renewal on a triznnial basis.
Normal rotice Normal nobice
Bate of service peniod ko be given paniod to be gven
Director confract by Company by Director
Ehris Grigy 1W/12£2008 12months 12 months
Lucinda Bail 0/a3/20n 12 months 12 months
Chades Maudsley a3/11/2009 12 maonths 12 manths
Tim Roherts 14/11/2006 12 months 12 months
Unexpired term
appoipimant al
Director 3 March 2007
John Gildersleeve [Chairman] 21 months
AubreyAdams S months
Sirnon Borrows? 36 months
Lynn Gladden . i2 months
William Jackson' 1 month
Lord Macphersen 32 months
Timn Score 34 manths
Lord Turnbull? 12 months
Laura Wade-Gery 13 manths

* Ona 23 March 2017 the Board approved the renewal of Wilkiam Jackson's appoiniment lor a further three year lerm, effective trom 11 April 77
7 Simon Borrows and Lord Turnbull wilt both retire from the Board al the conclusion of the 2087 AGM.

In accerdance with the Code, all continuing Directors stand for etection or re-eteclion by the Company's shareholders on an annual basis (B.711 €.
The Directars service contracts and letiers of appointment are available for inspechion during normat business hours at the Company’s registered

affice and will also be made available prior ta the AGMIB.3.21€).
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Covernaneye

REMUNERATION REPORT: ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

The Company may terminate an Executive Director’s 2ppointment with immediate effact withoul notice or peyment in lise of nolice under certain
circumstances, prescrbed wathin 22ach Direclor's servce conbract. The appointment of the Chairman or any Non-Exsortive Errecior may be
rerminated immedialely without notice i they are no! reappointed by shareholders or if they are removed frorn the Board under the Comnpany's
Articles of Assooation or if they resign end de not offer thernselves lor re-election. In addilion, thair appointmenls may be tarminated by gther
the individual or the Company giving three menths writien notice of terminztion {or, for the Chatrman, six months” writien notice of termination).

Neither the Chairman nor the Non-Executive Diteciors are

the peried up o the termination] for loss of office for any reason.

Executive Directors’ external appointments

to any Co

P ion fother than aociued and unpaid foes and expensces for

Executive Directors may take up one non-executive directorship at annther FTSE company, subject to Brilish Land Board 2pproval.

Chiris Grigg was appginied a non-execulive direcior of BAE Systems plc on 1 July 2013 Duning the yaar to 31 March 2017, Chris Grigg receivad a fee
of £84 060 linctuding £9.600 of expenses! Irom BAE Systems plc, which he reiained in full (2014: £85,495). Lucinda B2l was appoinied 7 non-executiva
director of Rotork pic on 10 July 2014 During the year to 31 March 2017, Lucnda Belt received a fee of £47910 from Reterk plo, wivich she retained in

full [20V4: £43.625] ID1.21©.

Retative importance of spend on pay

The graph below shows the amount spent on remunaration of all employees fincluding Executive Directors] relative to the amount spent on

distibulions to shareholders for the years to 31 Mardh 2007 2nd 31 March 2016, The remuneration of employses inor

4 by 2.5% rel tothe

prior y2ar, while distnibutions to shareholders lncneasm# By 3.1%. Distributions 1o sharchglders include ordinary =nd, where offered, sorip dvidends.
Mo scrip alternative was offered during the year ended 31 March 2017, The graph also shows the sphil betwezn properity income distributions iPID

and non-property income distrituons {non-PIBL
Relative importance of spesd on payv

wregr, TR e |
[ T .-

Remuneration of employees Distribuiions to shareholders:
including Directors: B PID cash dividends paid
W Wages and salaries to shareholders.

Annual Incenlives
B Social security costs

B PID lax withholding
M Non-PiD cash dividends

301546 ] s B Pension costs paid lo shareholders
IR BN 7~ B Equiy.certed share-based B Net cash equivalent of naw
. payments shares issuved undey PtD
: Sonp dividends
Tolal Shareholder Return and Chief Executive's remuneration Total Sharcholder Reon
The graph opposite shows British Land’s Tatal Sharsholder Retumn for Rebased to 100, 1 April 2009
the eight years from 1 April 2609 Lo 31 March 2017 against that of the
FTSE Real Estate lavestment Trusts [REIT] Talal Return Index for the 400
same peried. The graph shows how the tolal retum on a E100 investiment
in the Company made on 1 Aprit 2009, would have changed aver the e
ewghi year period measured, companred with the iotal return on a E1G0 } / -
invesiment in the FTSE REIT Total Relurn Index. The FTSE REIT Totat 360 N
Return Indax has been selectad as a suitable comparalor because it \
is the index in which British £ and’s shares are classilied. /
The base boinl, required by the regulations govermng Remuneration 00— 4/ .
Report disclosures, was close to the bottom of the property cycle at /::__-—://
1 April 2009. Since British Land’s share price had not fallen as much /
as the average share price of the FTSE REFIs Sector at that ime a
higher base point for subsequent growth was set. o
t k1| n 2 3t k] N an n
The table belgw sets oyl the tolal remuneration of Cheis Grigy, Aml Math  Mach  Mach  Madh pach March March samk
Chief Executive, over the same period as the Total Shareholder e =0 an mz = e s @ mw
Relurn graph. The quantum of Annuat Incentive awards granted .
each year and {ong term incenlive vesting rates are given as a W The Bntish "‘_"'d Compary PLC 8 FTSE RENS Sedtor
- . N _ SouTta: Aon Hewilt
percenlage of the maximum opportunily avalable.
Chief Executive 2009110 2010/1} 20012 21213 20134 20M0/15 20015N4 N7
Chief Execulive's single tolal figure
of remuneration (£000] 2082 2,329 5353 4.810 5398 £,55! 3.623 1945
Annual incentive awards against
maximum opportunity (%] 47 83 75 75 90 2% 67 a3
Long term incentives awards vesting
raie against maxirnum oppor tunity (%I n/a n/a 99 83 98 93 54 15
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Chief Executive’'s remuneration compared to remuneration of British Land employees .
The t2ble below shows the percentaye changes in different elements of the Chiel Execulive’s resnuneralion relative lo the previous nancal
year and the average perceniage changes in thoss elaments of reruneration for employess based at Bnitish Land's head office over the
same period. Head office employees have been chosen as an 2ppropniale comparaior group for this purpese as emplayees based at
British Land's head office carry out work of the most similar nature to the Chisl Executive,

Forstagz change

Valuoof Vazlu= of Ciwetf Ehangaan O rTwInarStion
Chief Evacutive Exzcutine Chix Exacutive of Britich |_and
rammersion 2017 femmeraton 2016 remuneETaiion 2mployess

feemumeration element €000 [Li200) ]
Salary . B840 84D 1] 54
Taxabla henefils 3 21 109 143
Annual Incentive . 418 840 -50.2 -15.6

Rermuneration Committee mambership

Membership of the Commitiez remained vachanged during the year and, as 2t 31 March 2017, the Committee was comprises wholly of independant
Mon-Executive Direclors, namely Lynin Gladden, William Jackson, Laura Wade-Geryand Lond Turnbull. Attendance by each member al Commitiee
meetings 1s set out on page 73.

During the yaar ended 31 March 2017, Commiftes meatings were allended by Chris Grigg [Chief Executive), Elaine Williams ICompany Secretary
and General Counsel], Ann Henshaw [HR Directard and Joff Sharpe IHead of Operations), ather than lor any ilem relating to their oan remuneration.

The Committee Chairrnan holds regular meetings with the Chairman, Chief Executive and HR Director lo discuss all aspects of remunesalion
within Brilish Land, He also meets the Commiliee’s independent remuneration advisers prior ta each substantive meeting Lo discuss mallers
of governance, remuneration policy and any concerns they may have.

How the Committee discharged its responsibilities during the year
In addition to the Commitlee’s key areas of responsibility, during the year ended 31 March 2017, the Commitiee also considered the
lollowing matlers:

- Reviewing and recommending to the Board the Remuneration Report 1o be presented for shareholder approval

- Consuttalion with major investors and deliberation of outcemes in relation lo amendments to the LTIP

~ Appraisal of the Chairman’s anaual fee; remunerstion of the Execulive Directors induding achievement of corporate
and individual performance; and pay and annual incentive awards below Board-level

- Analysis of competilors’ remuneralion structure and sutcomes

- Seiting performance meaasures for annual incentive awards

~ Granting discretionary share awards, considering the extent to which performance measures have been mei and,
where appropriale, approving the vesting of annuat incentive and long-term incenlive awards

- Reviewing and updaling the Commi{lee terms of relerance

- Consideting gender pay and future reporling requirements

- Recewving updates and training on carporate governance ang remuneraiion matlers from tha independent
rermuneration consuitant

- Reviewing and tendering the role of independent adviser o the Commilies
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Crenvermanes

REMUNERATION REPORT: ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED-

Remunaration cansultants (0.2.11&

Alan Judes provided independent remuneration advice to the Committee prior to August 2018 when his firvn, Siraleg:c Rarmuneration, merged

with FIT Ramuneralien C lianis LLP. Fellowing the merger. the Committes racened indapendent remuneration athace fnom F1T Remuneration
Consultznts L1 P The memged finmisa mmnba"ni the Remuneralion Conisulianis Group and adheres lo that group's Code of Conduci. Stralegic
Remuneration and FIT Remuneration Censullants LLP also provide adwvice ta British Land on human resources and share plan matters. Sirategic
Remuneration was. appaintad as re ralion adviser by the € ittea following 2 compatithee tendar process. The Comamniites assasses the advice
given by its advisers (o satisiy itsali that iLis objective and indegendent. The adviser has a private meeiing with the Conumittes Chairman Gnce a year
in accerdance with the Code of Conduct of the Rernuneration Consultants Group. Fees, which arz chzrged on 2 bme basis, were {126,765 {exciuding
VAT] [2016: £48.400 excluding VATL

With affect from 21 March 2017, Ko Ferry Hay Group Limited wera appeintad to provide independent remusnieralion atvwce o the Committee.
Korn Ferry Hay Group Limited did not charnge any fees for the period from their appointenent 1031 March 2017,

Voting at the Annual General Meehng
The results of the sharehoider votes on the Direciors’ Remuneration Policy and Direciors’ Remuneration Repart at the AGM held on 19 _uly 2014

are set gulin the table below.

" Resclution Vates for BRr  Voesageinst  Bagunst Toivalesces]  Valeswithheld
Agproval of Directors’ Remunaration Report 715,113,263 95.01 29.890.657 399 TE BRI 11.704,372
Approval of Directors’ Remuneration Policy F21344.638 5713 21494580 287 74B.438.804 7.862.489

This Remuneration Report was agproved by the Board en 156 May 2017,

William Jackson

Chairmean of the Remuneration Commitlee
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DIRECTORS REPQORT AND ADDITIONAL DISCLGSURES

Directors' Report and additional disclosures

The Directors present their Report on the affairs of the Group, together
with the audited linanoial statements and the report of the auditor for
the year ended 31 March 2017, Information that is relavant o this Repori,
and whach is incorporated by reference, including infformalion required
inaccordance with the UK Companias Act 2006 ant Lisling Rule 9.8 4R,
can be located in the {eliowing sections:

{nformation Section in Annual Report Page
Fulure developments of the Strategic Report 6025
business of the Company

Risk faciors and prindpal nsks Slralegic Report 441053
Financal insiruments - Siraiegic Report 43
risk managemenl objectives

and policies

Dividends Strategic Report 41
Sustanability governance Strategic Report 38
Greenhouse gas emissions Strategic Report 38
Viability staterment Strategic Report 49
Going concern statement - Governange rewnew &5
Governance arrangements Governance review 621088
Employment policies and Sirategic Report 241025
employee involvernent :

Capitalised interest Finangat statements 115t 114
Additional unaudited Dther information 16010 173
financtal information vnaudited

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The Annual General Meeting of The Brtish Land Company PLC will be
held at The Hyatl Regency London — The Churchill, 3¢ Portman Square,
London WiH 7BH on 18 July 2017 at 11.00am. Furthar information is
available in the Notice of AGM [E.2.41 €.

The AGM is the principal occasion when shareholders ars able to
ask gueslions of the Board and main Committee chairmen [E.2.3]1 6,

Board of Directors
The names and biographical details of the current Directors and
details of the Baard Cammitiees of which they are members, are
set oul on pages 56 to BY.

" The Service Agreements of the Executive Direclors and the Letters
of Appoiniment of the Non-Execulive Direclors are summarised
in the Direclors’ Remuneration Report on pages 8% and 86 and
are availabte jor inspection al the Company’s registered office.

In accordance with best practice, all continuing Directors witl
retire at the AGM and will offer themselves {or election or
re-election, as required.

Directors’ interests in contracts and conflicts

of interest

No contract existed during the year in relztion o the Company's
bustness in which any Director was matenally intesested,

Directors have a stalutory duty (o avoid situations in which they
have. or may have, inlerests that conflict with those of Britsh Land
unless that conflict is first authonsed by the Board. The Company
has adapted procedures for managing condflicts of interesl and the
Aruicles of Association also condain provisions vohich allow the
Direciors to authorise potenbal conflicis of interest.

Directors must notify the Chairman and the Company Secrelary of

all new outside interests and actval or percewed conlflicis of interest
as they arise. New interests or conflicts are considered by the full
Board al the next meealing and the full regisier of interests is reviewed
at lzast anrually. Furthermore, the Board reviews the policy on
Drectors’ interests on an annual basis. Following the lasi review

in November 2016, the Board conduded that the policy continued

o operalz effectively.

Directors’ liability insurance and indemnity

The Company has indemnified each Director agamst any Lability
incurred in relation to acts or emissions arsing in the ordinary
course of their duties. Thet ity arrang; is are qualfying
indemnily provisions under the Companies Acl 2005.

o,

The Company 3lso has in place appropriate Directors” and Officers
liahility insurance cover in respect of potentiat legal action against
its Direclors A1 3169

Share capital

The Company has one class of shares, being ardinary shares of

25 pence each, ail of which are fully potd. At 1 March 2012 there
were 1,041,035 058 ordinary shares in issue. Further details relating
10 share capital, including mevements during the year, are sel out

in note 20 1o the financial statements.

At the AGM in 2015, the Directors were given the power by the
shareholders to make market purchases of ardinary shares representing
up 10 10% of its issued capitat al that time and o alloi shares vwathin
certain imits. These authorilies vall expire al the AGM in Julty 2017

and renewals of those authorities will be sought.

Tha Company has not purchased any of its own shares undar the authority
given at the 2014 AGM. Therelore, during the whole of the year ended
31 March 2017, the Company held 11,264,245 ordinary sharesin treasury.

Waiver of dividends

Bliest Limited is a shareholder wha acts as trustee [Teusieel of the
Company’s discretionary Employee Share Trust IESTI. The EST holds
and. from time (o trae, purchases British Land ordinary shares in the
marke\, for the benefit of employzes, including to salisfy cutstanding
awards under the Company's various employee share plans. A dividend
waiver is in ptace from the Trustee in respect of all dividends payable
by the Company on shares which it holids in trust.
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Gaverieings

DIRECTORS REPORT AND ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

Substantial interests

As at 31 March 2017, the Company had been nonfied under the
Disclosure and Transparency Rules [GTR 5] of the {pllowing interesis
inils ordinary shares:

Interests in of ardmary

ardnary shanes as.at

shares 31 March 2017

Blackrock, Inc. 84222397 831
Norges Bank SLA37.045 £995
APG Assel Management NV 51212198 4973
GIC Privale Limited A1.121,137 3.993

o dhanges to the abave indormation were received during the pariod frem
1 Apnil 7017 to the date of signing this Report. Notifications made to British
Land under DTR S are amilable on the Investers section of our website.

Articles of Association
Thes Camnpany’s Articles of Association may only be amended by special
resolution at a general mzeting of shareliolders.

Suhject o applicable {aw and the Cornpany’s Articles of Assedation,
tha Directors may exercise alt powars of the Company.

Significant agreements
There are no significant agreements to which the Company is party that

take effect. alter or terminate upon a change of control of the Company.

Pavments policy

We recognise lhe irnportance ol good supplier relationships lo the
overall $uccess of our business. We manage dealings with suppliers
in a [air, consislent and transparent manner and have signed up to
the UK Governmen s Prompt Payment Code.

Events after the balance sheet date
There were no reportable evants after the balance sheet date,

Political donations .
The Campany made no politicat donations during the year [2016: nil].

Health and Safety
We have relained formal recognition of our focus on health and safety
through a successful audit of aur OHSAS 18061 accreditation. We continue

to improve oue approach io health and safely management lo ensure that

we consistently achieve best practice across all activities in the business
|consiruction, managed portfolio and head office] to deliver Ptaces People
Prefer ¢ our employees and our customers.

RIDDOR® Year ended 31 March 2017

Tota! RIDDOR
Actidents Accidant Frequency Rale
17 2014 zZnz? 0

Constructicn 2 3 0.08 034 per 100,000
. ' : hours worked
Retarl 0 23 0.01 o per 108,600
. feotiall
Offices 8 6 3.5 18.85 per 100,000
workers
Head Difice [ n o 1} per 100,000
full time

equivalents

" Reporting of Injuries, Diseaces and Dangercus Occurrences Regulations 2003,
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Auditor and disclosare of information
Eachol the Directqrs 2l the dale of approval of this Report confirms that:

- 50 faras the Director s aware, there 15 7o relevant sudit informaltion
that has (ol been brought 1o the attention of the auditer and

~ the Biractor has laken aH reasnnable sleps o make himsell/
herself aware of any relevant audil infermation and lo establish
such informaltion was provided to the auditer

Pwi has indicated its willingnass o remain in officz and, on the
recommendaiion of the Audit Commiltee, a resotubion lo reappoint
PwelC as the Company's auditor will be propoesed at the 2017 AGM.

The Campany coafirms that it has comgplied with The Stztulory Audit
Sanvaces tor Large Companies Market ivesligation [Mangatory Use
ol Compeiitive Precesses and Audil Commiltez Responsibilities]

‘Order 2014 [Article 7.3), published by the GMA on 28 September 2014,

The Directors’ Report was approved by the Board on 14 May 2017
and signad on its behalf by

Eline Williams
Company Secretary and Genaral Counsel
The British Land Company PLC

Compaay Number. 08621320



DIRECTORS RESPONSIB!LITY STATEMENT

" The Oirectors are responsibie for preparing the Annual Report,
the Bireclors’ Remuneralien Report and the inanoial stalemants
in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare finandal statemants
for each financial year. Under that law the Threclors have prepared the
Group iinancial statements in accordance with Intermational Finanaal
Reporting Standards IFRSs] as adopted by Lhe European Unien, and
the parent Company financial stalements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Acoepted Accounting Practice {United Kingdom
Acceuniing Standards and applicable Lawi:

Under Company taw the Directors must nol approve the financial
starements unless they are salishied that they give a true and fair
view of the siate ef alfzirs of the Group a2nd the Company and of
the profit or less of the Group for thal peniod. In prepanng thase
financal statements, the Direciors are required lo:

~ select suitable accouniing policies and then apply thermn consistentty

- make jedgaments and acoounting estimates that are 1 L]
and prudent

- state whether (FRSs as adepled by the Furopean Union and
appliczble UK Accoenting Standards have been followed, subject
o any material fepartures disclosed and explained in the Group
and parent Company finandal stetements respectively and

- prepare the financial statemants on the going concém basis
unless it is inapproprizte lo presume that the Company will
condinue in business

The Direclors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting recards
that are sulficiznt to show and explain the Company's lransaclions

and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the linancial posilion
of the Company and the Group and enable them to ensure that Lhe
hnandal staternents and the Directors Remuneration Report camply
with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial
statemenis, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of lhe Company and the Group and hence
for taking reasenable steps for the prevention and delection of fraud
and other irequianities.

The Directors are responsihle for the maintenance and integrity of
“the Company s websile {_egislation in the Uniled Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of inancial statements ray difler
from legislation in other jurisdictions.

The Directors consider that the Anrual Report and Accounts, taken
as awhaole, is [air, balanced and understandable and provides the
inforrnation necessary for sharzholders to assess the Company's
pasition and performance. business rodel and strategy. ’

Each of the Directors, whose names 2nd functlions are listed on
pages 26 {0 57, confirm that fo the hest of their kneviedge:

~ the Group financial statement s, which have been prepared
acrordance with IFRSS as adoepied by the EY, give a rue and
fair wew of tha assels, lizbilities, financial pasition and profit
of the Group ang

- the Strategic Report 2nd the Direclors’ Report include a fair
reviaw of the davelepment and parformance ol the business
and the position of the Group, logather with a description of
the prinopal risks end uncer Binties that il faces

By order of the Board.

Lucinda Bell
Chizf Finanoat Qfhcer

16 May 2017
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Finanvial statemenes

Financial rstatements
and other information

Independant auditors” regort to the members -
of the British L and Company PLC 94

Finandal statements -
Consalidated income statement 106
Consolidated staternznt of comprehensive incoma 13
Consolidated balance sheel 102
Consalidated statement of cash flows ' 103
Consaolidated stalement of changes in equity 04
Notes to the accaunts . 5
Company batance sheet ) 144
Company statemneni of changes in equity 145
. Sugplementary disclosures unaudited 155

Yatding House, W1 [right}
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Finaneizh statenrents

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

OF THE BRITISH LAND COMPANY PLC

Report on the financial statements
Qur apinion
In our opinion:

- the British Land Company PLC’s Group financial statements and
Company linanciat statements {ihe “finandal statemenis | give a true
and fair view of the state of the Group's and 4f the Company's affairs
as at 31 March 2017 and of the Group s proft and cash Nlows for the
year then ended .

- the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
[IFRSs] as adopted by the European Union

- the Company linancial statements have been properiy prepared
in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice

- the financial slatemeals have bean preparaq in accordance with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financial statemenls, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Whatwe have audited
The linanaal statements. inctuded within the Annuat Repor, comprise:

~ the Consolidated Batance Sheel as at 31 March 2017

- the Company Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2017 .

- the Consalidated Incorne Slatement and Consolidated Staterment
of Comprehensive Income for the year then endad

- the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows lor the year then ended

- the Consclidated Stalement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended

~ the Naotes to the Accounts. which include a summary of sigrificant
accounting poticies and other explanatory information

Certain required disciosures have been presentad elsewhere in the
Annual Report, rather than in the notes to the fihancia! statemenis.
These are cross-referenced from the finandal staternents and are
identified as audited.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the Group financial statements is IFRSs as adopled
by the European Union, and applicable law. The financial reporting
{ramework that has been applied in the preparation ol the
Company financial statements is United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, comprising FRS 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’
{Uinited Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Praclice),

and applicable law.
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Our audit approach

Overview

Our 2017 audit was plannad and execuizd having regard (o the facl

that the Group’s operalions were largely unchanged in nature from the
previoys year. Additionally, thare hava been no signiiicant changes to the
valualion meihodology and accounting standards relevant 1o the Group.
In light of this_ our approach to the audit in lerms of scoping and areas
of focus was targely unchanged.

A full scope audit was pertarmed by the Group team for all subsidianes
of tha Group, angd the lollowing joint venlures: Broadgata, Meadowhall
and Leadenhall.

Materiality

- Overall Graup materiality: £135 million [FY16: €138 million] which
repreésants 1% of tolal assels

- Specific Group maleriality, applied to Undarlying Profit; £19.4 mitlion
{FY16: £18 million] which represents 5% of underlying pre-tax profit

Areas of focus

- WValuation of wwestmentl and development properties
- Revenue recognition

- Accounting for transachions

- Taxation

The scope of our audit and our areas of focus
We conducted cur audit in accordance with Intemnational Standards
on Audiling [UK and Iretand} [ 1SAs JUK & Ireland]’).

We designed our audit by delermining materiality and assessing the
risks of malenal misstaternent in the financial statements. In particular,
we looked at where the Directors made subjeclive judgements. for
example in respect of significant accounting estirnales that involved
making assumplions and considering lutare events that arewwherently
unceriain, As in all of our audits we also addressed the risk of management
override of internal controls, including evalualing whether there was
evidence of bias by the Directors that represented a risk ol material
misstatement due to {raud.

The risks of material missialement that had the greatest effect on our
audit, including the altocation of sur resources and effort, are identified
as ‘areas of focus’ in the tabte below. We have also set ou) how we
tailored our audil to address these spealic areas in order 1o prowide an
opinion on the financial staternents as awhole, and any commenis we
make on the results of our procedures should be read in this context.
This is not a complete list of all risks identilied by our audit.




Area of forses

How our st addressed the area of focus

Valuation of investment and development properties -
Reler to pages 67 and 70 [Repdrt of the Audit Committee], pages 105
to 107 (Accourding polices} and pages 115t 119 {Nates).

The Group's ivestmen! groperty porilolio is split between office and
residential properties in central London, retail and leisure praperties
agross the UK and the assets al the Canada Water site in Easi London.
The valuation in the Consolid2ied Balance Sheel is £9.073 miltion.

The valuation of the Grouy's investmen! property portfolic is inherently
subjective due to, 2among other (acters, the individual nalure of each
property. its location and the expected future rentals for that particuiar
proparty. For developraents, lactors include projacted costs lo complate
and iming of practicat completion.

The vatuations were carriad out by third party vatuers, CB Richard

Ellis, Jones Lang LaSatle and Knight Frank the valuers’). The valuers
were engaged by the Directors, and perfermed their work in accordance
vath the Reyal Institute of Chartered Surveyors 'RICS | Valuation

- Professional Standards. The valuers used by the Group have
considerable experience of the markets in which the Group operates.

in determining 2 pruperty's valuation lhe valuers lake intg account
property-spedific information such as the current tenancy agreements
and rental income. They apply assumplions for yields and estimated
market rent, which are inftuenced by prevailing market yietds and
comparable markel lransactbons, to arnive at the hnal valuatioen, For
developments, the residuat appraisal methad is used, by estimaling
the fair value of the completed project using a capitatisation methad
less estimated cosis to completion and a risk premium. ,
The significance of the estimates and judgements invalved, coupled
wath the facl that only a small percentage difference in indmdual
property valuations, when aggregated, could result in 2 materiat
misstaternent, warrants specific audit focus in this area.

Thers wera also cartain speahe factors alfecting the valuations
inthe year:

- the nature of the Canada Water site, which the Group are
currently masler ptanning as a combined large scale, mixed
use development site, resulted in our audit paying particular
tecus ta the relevant valuations

- properlies under development. completed developments thal
are nowvalued as slanding investment properties and standing
investment properties thal have been reclassified to developmeni

© properties, conlinue 1o be an area of focus

Wae read the valuation reporis for all the properties and confirmed that the
valualion approach lor each was in accordance wath RICS standards and
suitable lor use in determining the carmying value for the purpose of the
finanaal statements.

We assessed the valuers’ qualifications and expertise and read their
terms of engagemenl with the Group to determine whether there were
any matlers that might have affected their objectivity or may have imposed
stope limitations upon their work. We 2lso considered fee arrangements
between Lhe valuers and the Group and other engagements which might
exist between the Grovp and the valuers. We found no evidence lo suggest
thal the chijectivity of the valvers in their performance of the valuations
was compromised.

We ohitained delails of every propevty held by the Group and set an
expetied range for yizld and capilal value movement, determinad by
reference to published benchmarks and using our experience and
knmwledge of the markel. We compared the investmenl yields used by
the valuers with the range of expected range of yields and the year on
year capitzl movement to cur expected range. We also considered the

- reasonableness of ather assumptions that are not so readity comparable

with published benchmarks, such as Estimated Rental Value. We attended
meelings with managesnend and the valuers, at which the valuations

and the key assumplions therein were discussed. Qur work covered

the valuation of every property in the Group, but the discussions with
managameni and the valuers focused on the largesi properties in the
portlulio, properties under development or where the valvalion basis

has changed in the year, the Canada Waler site and Lthose where the yields
used andfor year on year capilal value movament suggested a possible
guilier versus externally published market dala for the relevant sector.

Where assumplions were oulside the expected range or otherwise
appeared unusual, zndfor valuations showed unexpected movements, |
wr2 undertook further investigalions and. when necessary. held

{urther discussions with the valuers and oblained evidence lo suppart
explanations received. The valuation cammentaries provided by the
valuars and supporting evidence, enabled us to consider the property
specific factors thal may have had animpact on value, including recent
comparable transactions where appropnate.

We saw evidence that zlternative assurnplions had been considered and
evaluated by managemen and the valuers, belore delermining the final
valuation We cancluded that the assumptions used in the valuations
were supporiable in light of available and comparable markel evdence.

We performed testing on the slanding data in the Group's information
syslerns concerning the valualion process. We carried oul procedures,
on a sample basis, to satisly oursetves of the accuracy of the property
information supplied to the valuers by management. For developments.
we confirmed that the supporiing information for construchon contracts
and budgets, which was supplied to the vatuers, was also consistent
with the Group's records for example by inspecting original construclion
contracts. For developments, capitalised expendilure was tested on

a sample basis to invoices, and budgeted costs lo complele compared
with supparling evidence lfor example construction contracts).

It was evidenl from our interaclion wilh management and the valuers,
and from our review of the valuation reports, that close attention had
been paid ta each praperly’s individual characteristics at a granular,
tenant by tenant level, as.well as considering the overall quality,
qeographic location and desirabitity of the asset as a whole.

No issues were identified in our lesting.
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Financial sgatemenrs

INDEPENDENT AUDITGRS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
OF THE BRITISH LAND COMPANY PLE CONTINUED

Area ol Totus Hirey copy 2uify ydressed the areg of fooas

Revenye recognition We carried oyt tests of candrols over the cash and accounis receivable

Reler to pages 67 to 76 [Report of the Audit Committeel, pages 105 processes and the related §T systems to oblain evidepee that postings to

16 107 {Accounzing palicias] and page 107 iNokes]. these accounts ware reliable. For rental income balances, we then usad -

' dala-enabled audh techpiques 10 idenlify all standard revenue journals

Ravenua lor the Group consists primarity of renal income. Renial postad using these systems and processes.

income is based on\enancy agreements vhes e there i a Stlandand .

processin place lor recording revenue, which is system generated. The remaining journals related to non -standard transactions. These

Thare are certain ransactions within revenua that wairant additional included raclassifications wittin revdnue, accrued incame, and bad dabt

audit focus because of an increased inharent risk of error due 1o provisions. For each calegory of non-stangsrd revenve summarised

their non-standard nature. above, we have padersiood the nature and as: 2d the re bleness
R of journals being generated, and periormed subsiantive testing over

These intlude spreading of tenant incentives and guaranteed rent a sarmple of these items. There have been e exceplions anising from

increases - these batances require agjustments made lo rental Gur testing over non-siandard revenye transactions.

come lo ensure revenee is recorted on a straght line basis .

over the course of the lease. For balances not included within rental income, such as service charge

income, we periormed subslantive testing ona ple basis, No i
were identified in our tesh

2

Aorsunting for transactions For eadh ransaction, wa understood the nature of the Iransaction and

Refer ta pages 67 to 70 IReporl of the Audit Comatieel, pages 115 assessed the proposed accounting treatment in relation to the Gruup s

to V07 lActounting palicies) and pages 108 (o 743 [Neies to the Accountsl.  accounting policies and relevant IFRSs. .

There have been a number of Lransactions during tha year. These For all acquisilions and disposals, we oblained and reviewed Lhe key

warranied addiional audit foous duzto e magraugs of Tarsachons SUPpOFIng dotumentation suth 35 Sales and Purdhase Agreemems

and the polential for complex contracival termas that introduce and completion statements. Consideration received or paid was

judgennent into haw they weare accounted for. Key ransactans agreed 1o bank statements. Na material issues were lound as a

subject to addilional audit focus were: resyll of these procaduras.

- acquisitions of investment properties for £88 million For the Leadenhall transaction which has been accounted for as a jeinl

- disposals of imestment properites for E670 million. inclrding venture held for sale, we assassed the accounting trealment in refation to
the disposal of Debenhams Cxford Street for £397 million ' IFRS 5 Non-cusrent Assels Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations and

- exchange of contracts for the Sale of Intarest in the Leadenhall 12528 Investments in Associates and Joinl Venlures. We have reviewed the
Holding Co Liersey) Limited Joint Venture which hasbeen sale and purchase agreement and agree thal the exchange of coniracts
sccounted for as a joint venture held for sale velyed at £540 miltion 10 sell the shares in the joint venture meet the critenia for recognition as

~ advanced funds recaivad on exchange of contracts for the sale held for sale under IFRS 5. We have audited the carrying value of the joint
of shares in the Leadenhall Joint ventyre recorded as a financial venture at March 2017, including the vatuation of the undertying investment
asset 206 corresponding finandial batibty for €144 rthon property. Mo material issues were ound in Telation to the carmying vatue.

~ amount of £ 10 million recetved from UBS in relation io the
development and accupation of 5 Broadgate. and subsequent We have canfirmed receipt of the advanced {unds received an exchange of
vacation of 100 Liverpool Street contracts, and lied this to the balances listed within the sale and purchase

agreement and to confirmations from the Group’s lawyers. The momes
received are held in a client account held by the Group's lawyers and
Feceipt is conditional on the completion of the sale. We agree with the
recognition as a financial assel and corresponding Uability.

For the £10 mitlion psyment lrom UBS we have reviewed the original
lease agreement and the amended lease agreement that details

the payment. We have agreed receipt of the amour: received 1o
bank statements. We concur with the treatment adepted.

Taxation We re-peclormed the Group's and annual REIT compliance lests,
Reler to pages 47 lo 70 [Report of the Audit Commiliee]. pages as well as those tests for the Broadgate REIT. Based on our work
195 (o 107 {Accounting policies and pages 111 200 126 INotes). performen, we agreed with managernent s astessment thal att
REIT compliance lests had been mel 1o ensure thal the Group .
The Group's status as a REIT underpins its business model and and Broadgate maintain their REIT status.
shareholder returns. For this reasen, it warrants special audit focus.
The obligations of the REIT regime include requirements lo comply We evaluated the lax provisions and petential exposures as at
with batance of business. dividend and imcome cover tests, The - 3% March 217 We used our knowledge of tax circumstances
Broadgale joint venture is also struchired as 2 REIT aad as such, and by reading relevant correspontence between the Group and
REIT compliance is alsa of relevance for this joint venture in Her Majesty’s Revenue & Customs and the Group's external tax
addition to the overall Group. ’ adwsors are satisfied that the assumplions and judgements

! used by the Group are reasonable.
Tax provisions are in place ta account for the risk of challenge
of certain of the Group's tax provisions. Given the subjeclive
nature of these provisions, additional audil focus was placed
on 1ax provisi
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How we tailpred the audil scope

We tailored the scopa of our audit to ensure that we perfermed encugh
wark Lo be able to give an opinion on the finandal statements as a whole,
2king inlo aocount the geegraphic structure of the Group, the accounting
processes and controts, and the indusiry in which the Group oparates.

The Group and Company finangial slaiements are produced ysing 5
single consolidation system that has a direct interface with the ganeral
ledger. We performad our audit procedures over the genaral ladger
syslem and tested the interface with the consolidation system.

Ahilt scope audil was per formed by the Group audit team lor all
sulsidianies of the Group. and the following joint verdures: Broadgate.
Meadowhall and Leadenhall. This gives coverage ever substantially
allof the Group.

In establishing the overatt approach 1o our audil, we assessed the risk
of material misstatement, taking inte account the naiure, [&elihood and
polential magnityde of any misstatement. Following this assessment,
wa applied prolessional judgement to determine the extent of testing
required over each batance in the finandal statemnends.

‘Materiality :

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality.
We set cerltain quantilative thresholds for materiality. These, together
with qualitative considerations, helped us 1o determine the scopz of our
audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the
individual financial statement line itemns and disclosures and in evabuating
the effact of misstatements, both indhidually and on the financial
statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgeiment, we delermined materislity for
the financial staternents as a whole as follows:

Overall Group materiality . E135 million {2016: £138 millionl.
How we determined it 196 of total assels. ’
Rationale for benchmark applied A key determinant of the Group's

value is direct property invesiments.
Due to this, the key area of focus

in the audit is the vatuation of
investment properties. On this basis,
wie sel an overall Group maleriality
tevel based on total assets. )

In addilion, we set a specific maleriality level of £19.4 million [2016:
£18 milkion| for items within underlying pre-tax profit. This equates to
5% of profit before tax adjusted for capital and other iterns. In arriving
at this judgement we had regard 1o the fact that the undertying pre-lax
profit i€ a secondary inancial indicator of the Group {Refer te Note 2

of the financial stalements page 108 where the kerei is defined in fulll.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them
misstaternentsidentilied during our audit of underlying pre-taxitems
abewve £1 million [2014: £1 million] as well as misslatement s below that
amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for quatitative reasons.
We agreed wilh the Audit Commitize thal we would report 1o them,
any missiatements identified during aur audit of capital and other
items above £6.7 million 12016: £6.9 million] as well as misslatements
below that amouni that, in our view, warranied reporting for
qualitative reasons,

Going concern :
Under the Listing Rules we are required 1o reasy the Direclors’
statement, 52t oul on page £5, i relalion to going concern. We have
nothing io report having periermad our review,

Under ISAs [UK & freland) we are required to report to you il we

have anything materisl to add or (o draw atiention to in relation to the
Directars’ statemant abovt whether they considerad it appropriaie to
adopt h2 going concam basis in preparing the finandal statements.
We have nothing matarial to 2dd or to draw atlention to.

As notad in the Directors’ statement, the directors have conduded
thal it is appropriate o 2d0p! the going concern kasis in preparing
the finandal statements. The going concarm basis presumes that the
Group and Cormpany have adequale rasources to remain in opesalion,
and that the Directors intend them to do 5o, for at least one year from
the date the financial statements were signed. As part of our audit
we have concdluded that the Directors’ use of the going concern bases
is appropaiale. However, because not all future events or condibons
can be predicied, these stataments are nol 3 guarantee as to the
Group's and Company's ability 16 continuz a5 3 going concern.
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Finupeial siaterneais

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR CONTINUED

Other required reporting
Consistenty of ather information and compliance
with applicable requarements

In our gpinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit;

- the infarmation given in the Strategic Report and the Directors
Repori for 1he finandal yaar for which the finantiat statemenis
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements

- the Siralegic Raport and the Direclors’ Report have been prepared
in accordance with applicable legal reguirements

I addition, in light of the intaledge and undarstanding of the Group,
the Company and their environment obtained in the course of the
2udil_ wa are required to raport if we have identified any material
misstatements in the' Siralegic Repori 2nd the Directors’ Report.
W= have nothing to report in this respect.

ISAs (UK & tretand) reporting
Under1SAs IUK & lreland] we are required to repest to you if,
in oUr optnion:

- infor ion in the A ;| Rﬂpﬂfl i5:

— materially inconsistent with
the information in the audited

" financial statements

- apparently matenially incorrect based
an, or materiably inconsistant with, our
knoudedge of the Group and Compary
acquired in the course of parforming
our audit

- otherwise misleating

We have no exceplions
to report.

We have no exceptions
to reporl.

- lhe statement given by the direclors on

page 84, in accordance with provision
. C1.1 of the UK Corporate Governance

Code lthe Code), that they cansider the
Annua! Report laken as a whole to be fair,
balanced and understandable and provides
the information necessary for members lo
assess the Group's and Company's position
and performance, business model and
sirategy is materially inconsistent with
our knowledge of the Group and Company
atuired in the course of performing
our audit

- the section of the Annual Report on page 69 We have no exceplions
85 required by provision C.3.8 of the Code, (0 report.
describing the work of the Audii Committee
does not appropriately address malters
communicated by us ta the Audit
Committee

98 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017

The Directors’ assessment of the prospects of the Group and of the
principal risks that woiild threaten the solvency or liquidity of the Group
Under ISAs [UK & krelandl we are required lo report to you if we have
anything material 1o add or to draw atiention o in relalion lo:

We have nothing

matenal lo add or

0 draw attention to.

~ the Directors’ confimation an page 85
of the Annuat Haport_ in accordance with
provision C.2.1 of the Code. that they have
carried oui 2 robust assessment of the
principal nisks facing the Group, including
those thal would threaten its business
maodel, luture performance, solvency
or liquidity

- the disdpsures in the Annual Report
thal describe those risks and explain how
they are being managed or mitigated

- the Directers’ explanation on page 49
of the Annual Repor i, in accordance
wilh provision €.2.2 of the Code, as 10
how they have 2osessad the prospects
of the Group, ever what pariod theyhave
done 5o and why they consider that period
0 be appropriate. and ther statement
as to whether they have a reasonable
expeclation thal the Group vl be able
to continuz in operation and meet its
Liabilities as they fall due over the period
of their assessment. including any related
disclosures drawing attention to any
necassary qualifications or 3ssumplions

We have nothing
matarial to abd or
lo draw atiention to.
Ve have nothing
material to add or
io draw aitentron lo.

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the Directors’
statement thal they have carfied oul a robust assessment of the
prinapal risks fating the Group and the Directors slatement in retation
1o the longer-lerm viability of the Group. Our review was substantially
{ess in scape than an audit and only consisted of making inquiries

and considering ihe Direclors’ process supporting their staternents;
checking lhat the staternents are in aligrment with the retevant
provisions of the Code; and considering whether the slalements

are consistent with the knewledge acquired by us in the course

of performing our audit. We have nothing to report having

performed our review.

Adequacy of accounting recorgs and information and
explanations received

Under the Conapanies Act 2006 we are requirad 10 report toyou if.
in our opinion:

- we have not received all the information and explanations
we require tor our audit

- adequate accounting records have not been kepl by the Company,
or returns adequate for our audit have nol been received from
branches notvisitad by us; or -

- the Company financial statemenls and the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with
the accounting recards and returns

We have na exceptians o repart arising fram this responsibility.




Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ Rernuneration Report - Companies Act 2005 opinion
In our oginion, the part of the Directars’ Remuneration Repori 1o
he audited has been properly prepared in acoondznce wath the
Companies Act 2006.

Gther Companies Act 2004 reparting

Under the Companies Art 2006 we are required 1o report to your if.

i gur opinion, certain discosures of Directors’ remuneration speahed
by lawe are not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from

this responsibility. '

Corporate governance staterment

Underthe Listing Rules wa are requared lo review the parl of the
Corporate Gavernance Statemenl relating to ten further provisions
of the Cade. We have nothing to report having performad our review.

Responsibilities for the financial statemerits

and the audit

(ur responsibilities and those of the Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors” Responsibitities Statement
sel out on page 91; the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statemants and for being satishied that they give a
true and fair view.

Dur respansibilily is lo audil and express an opinion on the linandal
statements in accordance with spplicable law and 1SAs UK & Ireland).
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Praclices
Board's Ethical Standands for Auditors.

This regorl. including the opirsons, tas been prepared lor and only
for the Company s members as 2 body in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for nio other purpose.
¥¥e de noi, in giving thece opinions, 2ccept or assume respansibility

for any other purpose or 1o any other person o whom this report N

is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly .
agreed by our grior consent in wniting.

What an audit of financial staternents involves

An audit involves obtaining evtdence aboul the amounts and disclosures
in the Financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that
the financial statements are free from material misstalement, whether
caused by fraud or error, This indudes an assessment of:

- whether the accounting poletties are appropriate to the Group's
and the Company’s circumstances and hava been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed

- the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by the Directors

- the overall presentation of the finantal statements

We priraarily focus gur work in these areas by assessing the Directors
judgemnents against avaitable ewdence, lorming our own judgemants,
and evaluating the disclosures in lhe financial statemenls.

We lest and examine informatien, using sampling and other auditing
technigues, to the extent we consider necessary Lo provide a reasunatile
basis tor us 16 draw conclusians. Wa oblamn audit ewndence through
testing the effectiveness of controls, substantive procedures or a
cormbination of both.

in addition, we read all the financiat and non-finandalinformaticn

in the Annual Raport to identify material inconsistencies wath the
autdited linancial staiements and to identify any infortnation that 5
apparently materiatly incormect based on, or matenzlly incensisiani
with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course ol performing

the audit. It we becoma awar2 of any apparent material misstatements
or inconsisiencias we consider the implications for our rapori.

With raspect to the Sirategic Report and Direciors’ Repori we
consider whether thosz reports indude the disclosuras required

by applicable legal requirements.

John Waters (Senior Statutory Anditor)
for and on behslf of PricewsterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountznts and Stzlutory Auditors

London
16 May 2017
- The maink e and integrily of The Brigish $and Campany PLC website

is the responaibility of the Directors; the werk ezrried o by the sudivors
aucept no responsibility bor any changes thet! may have oongred kg e
Rnancial slabernents since Brey were initisity presented om e website

- Legisialion in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination
of finandial ts iy differ from Ingistation in other jurisdicions. -
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Financial seatements

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

7 b 173
Undertying' wﬁ Totl  Underbing amcﬁ Yot
Nol= m m . Em im £irnn Om
Revenue 3 556 33 589 569 2 590
Costs 3 122 (281 48] 0128 m 139]
3 &34 7 441 441 i6 451
Joint ventures and funds [see 3150 below] (L m e 52 135 262 397
Adrninistralive expenses 84) - 184} 931 - 1931
Vzluation movement 4 - [§1.44] 144) - . 616 b14
{Loss) profit on disposat of invesiment properties .
and Invesiinesils - L] 51 - 35 35
Met financing cosls
- finanding tncome & ) 2 &2 [’ 5 . 65 70
- hinanaing chasges & 1861 1291 o9 1111) {34) 145}
: (78] 13 165) 1105 3 175]
" Profiton ardinary activities before taxation 404 1209 95 arn 954 1331
Yanation 7 1 3 33 33
Profit for the year after taxation 196 1364
Atiribuiable 1o non-controlling interests : 14 ny 3 T4 5 17
Attributable to sharehotders of the Company , avo ne7i w3 363 982 1345
Earnings per share:
- basic _ z 18.8p B2
- dituted® 2 ) 147 1197
Al resulis derive from conlinuing eperations.
2017 2016
Undestyng'  and other Vot  Underivmg'  and other Tolat
Note Em £m £m E&m £m Em
Results of joint ventures and hunds accounted ' )
for using the equity method :
Undertying Profil . ' 132 - 13 135 - 135
Valuation movernent ' : 4 - t93) w3 - 245 245
Capital financing costs - 4] &) - - -
Profit on disposal of investment properties, ' .
trading properties and investmenls - 18 18 - 8 18
Taxation ) . - 1 1 - il )
) 1 132 80) 52 135 262 397

' See definition in Glossary.
* Pror year diduted EPS has beencestated. See note 1.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

- a7 018
m Em
Proht for the year afier laxation . 194 1364

Other comprehensive {toss] income: .
tems thatwill not be reclassified subsequently to profitor loss:
Net acluanat loss on pension schemes 12 n

Valualion movemenis Gn owner -occupied properties - 19
[1F] 18

items that may be rectassified subsequently to profit or loss:

[Losses] gains on cash Row hedges B

- Group ‘ ) 21 {24)

- Joint ventures and funds . . 1 ]
1200 127

Transierred o the income staternent lcash Row hedges)

- Foreign currency derivalives - ¥4

~ Interest raie derivatives ' . 14 10

' 16 .. 12

Exchange dilferences on translation of foreign operations

- Hedging and translation - (%]}

- Other ‘ - 3

Delerred tax on items of cther comprehensive income . ’ . - 15)

Other comprehensive loss for the year ) ‘ e n2)

Total comprehensive income for the ysar ) ] ] - - 180 1352

Attributable to non-controlling interests : - - 3 19

Altributable to sharehalders of the Company ved 1,333
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Finanvial sfacomentds

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

2077 2013
Nate £m {m
Non-current assets .
lnwestment and development praperties ’ 0 9,073 9643
Bwner-occupiad properhes ’ 10 94 .95
' 9,167 9738
Other non-current assets
fnvestenents in joint vantures and funds ' i 2,748 3353
Qther investmenis . ¥4 154 142
Delerred tax assels 16 4 3
Inlerast rate and currency derivative assels . 17 217 167
12,308 13,463
Current assets .
Joint venture held lor sate ' n 540 -
Trading properties W 334 325
Debtors - 3 m”m .33
Cash and shorl lerm deposits 7 114 14
. 1159 472
Toalassels - 13,467 13875
LIABILITIES ' i
Current liabilities ’
Short term borrowings and overdralts 17 [£64) 174)
Creditors 13 1458] 1218]
Corporation tax ‘ : 301 118§
R - 13101
Non-current liabilities .
izbentures and loans 17 iz,817] 13,6871
Other non-current habilities . 15 [78i nh2z
Interesi rale and currency derivative liahilities 17 [144) 1137)
: 13,039} 13948}
Totalliabilities ' ‘ ‘ B 3ol 142561
Netassets ] . 9,476 9.619
EQUITY
Share capital ) 240 260
“Share premium 1,298 1295
Merger reserve 13 213
Other reserves . . ' {971 23)
Retained eamings ) 7547 74667
Equity attributatle to sharehalders of the Company . ’ o922 9342
Non-controlling interests : 255 277
Tolat equity 9,474 9.619
EPRA NAV per share® N . 2 M5p 91%p

Il -

John Gildersleeve Lucinda Bell

Chairman Chief Finaneial Officer

The financial staternenls on pages 100 to 141 were approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behat! on 16 May 2017,
Company number 421920
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

an7 s
Ngiz £m £m
Rental income receved from tenants 484 433
Fees and other income receivad &L 33
Oparating expenses paid to suppliars and emplo)raes' 11&9% 152}
Cash generated from operations 9 34t
Interzst paid ¥2] 28}
interest recaived 8 n
Corporation taxation repayments received 9 B
Distributions and other receivables trom joint ventures and funds l{l 59 58
Net cash inflow from operating activities U3 295
Cash flows from investing activities
Development and alher capilal expenditure 1225) (256}
Purchase of imestment properties 87) {243}
Sale of investment and trading properties 761 584
Paymenls received in respect of futyre trading property sales 8 At
Purchase of investments 9 -
Indirect taxes paid in respe‘(i ol investing activities m -
Inwestment in and {6ans to joint ventuses and funds 50 f2&1)
Capital distributions and loan repayments from joint ventures and funds 83 368
Net cash inflow from investing activities &m 30
Cash Rows from financing attivities
Issue of ordinary shares 3 5
Purchase of own shares L) -
Dividends paid i¥ 1295] 1235
Dividends paid to non-controlling interesis (173] hat -
Acquisition of unils in Hercules Unit Trusit (1] 61§
Closeoul of interest rale derivalives 13) 15
Cash collaleral transacliens - 28]
Decresse in bank and other borrowings 528) 99l
Drawdowns on bank and olher borrowings N mn
Drawdown of zero coupen 2005 convertible bond - 344
Net cash oistflow from linancing activities 1833) [518)
Netl inarease in cash and cash equivalents - &
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April 14 168
Cash and cash eguivalents a1 31 March - 114 114
Cash and cash equivalents consists of: ¢
Cash and short term deposits 17 114 114
1
i
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Fimanciul stareimients

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

Share  Shoe tonslion  wleton  Mergw  Retsned e’ vt
izl premnan recorve! | reSEve NSOV SIS Tolal inpresss  equlty
tmn [10) £ im £ L £m i £m
Batance at 1 April 2014 260 1,295 7) 145 213 7.657 9.342 w7 9.51%
Profit for the year after taxation - - - - - 7 m 3 195
Losses un cash flow hadges - - 21 - - - 21 - 21
Exchange and hedging Momments in joint veiluras ‘
and furds ) - - - 1 - - 1 - 1
Radlassification of gains on cash flow hedges
- Fareigh currency degivatives - - - - - - - - -
- inferast rate deriegtives - - 1% - - - 1% - 18
Met actuariat loss on pansion sthemes. - - - - ~ 12 wa - 12
Qther comprehensive floss] incoms - - s 1 - 2 ___ bhsl - ne)
Total comprehensive inteme for the year = - 5] 1 - 181 ¥77 3 180
Share issues - 3 - - - - 3 - 3
Fair value of share and share option awards - - - - - 2 2 - 2
Purchase of swmshares - - - - - ®) L] - (8)
Purchase of unils from non—cenbrolling interests - - - - - - - mnj [131)
Gain on purchasé of units from non-controlling interests - - - - - 1 1 - 1
Dividends payahle in yaar |28 8p per share) - - - - - 12980 (298] - 1296)
Oividends payable by subsidiaries - - ~ - - - - 18} &}
Balance at 31 March 2017 260 1,298 H2) 15 213 2547 9.2 255 947
Balance at 1 April 2015 258 1.280 1751 6 213 & 553 8,232 333 B.565
Profit for the year after laxation - - ~ - - 1345 1345 19 1.364
Losses on ¢ash flow hedges . - - 124] - - - [24} - 124)
Revatuation of ewner- accupied property - - 12 - - 19 - 12
Exchange and hedging movements in joint ventures
and funds - - - 131 - - 3 - 13
Red assification of [losses) gains on cash lowhedges
- Fereign currency derivatives - - 2 - - - 4 - F
- Interest rate dervaties - - o - c - - w - L
Exchange dilferences on iranslation of foreign operations - - 131 3 - - - - -
Het acwanial toss on pension schemes - - - - - m m - n
Defesred lax on tters of other comprehensive income - - {16] 1 - - 135] - f15)
Uther comprehensive llsslincome - - uvn 20 - . m - na
Total comprehensive income for the yaar - - [&]1] 20 - 1364 1,333 19 1,352
Share issues 2 15 - - - 112 5 - 5
Fair value of share and share oplion awards - - - - - 8 8 - 8
Purchase of units from non-controlling interests - ~ - - - - - 1591 1591
Loss on purchase of units from non-condrolling interests _ _ N _ (3] [H _ m
Dividends payable in year [28.0p per sharel - ~ - - - 1287) 1287 - - 1287
Tividends payable by subsidiaries - - - - - I - na) 11861
Adjustment for scrip dividend element - - - - - 52 52 - 52
Balance at 31 March 2014 260 1.295 ng7) 14 213 7667 9342 27 9619

¥ The balance at tha heginning of the curreni year includes £9m in retation to translation and (£ 118ml in redation to hedging (2015714 £Wm and (€84ml,
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
i

1 Basis of preparation, s:,gmﬁmnt accounting
policies and accounting judgements

" The inanaal statements for the year erded 31 March 2017 have been
prepared on the historical cost basis_except for the revaluation of
properties, investments hetd for trading and derivatives. Tha finangal
statements have alse been preparad in sccordance with taternaticnat
Financial Reporting Standards IFRSs) as adopted by the Eurapean Union
and interpretalions issuad by the IFRS Interpretations Committee IFRS
IC), and therefore comply with aréicle 4 of the EUIAS regulation. and in
accorgance with tha Companses Act 2004, in the anvent financial year
the Group has adopted a number of mirer amendments to standards
effective in the year issued by the IASB and andorsed by the EU, none of
which have had a material impact en the Group. The accounting polices
ysed are olherwise onssten) with thas? contaived in the Groug's previcus
Annual Report and Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2014

- Anumber of new standards and arnendments to standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not yel sffzciive for the csrrent
accounting period. Nene of these are expecied to have a matzrial impact
on Lthe consolidated finanoal statemanis of the Group.

Certain standards which could be expected 10 have animpact on the

Restatement

The IFRS dituled earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2015
has heen restated to reflect the el diluiive impact of the 1.5%, 2012
corwertitle bord. This resiatement reduces the diued eamings

per share measure from 1241 pence te ¥19.7 pance shown on the
Consolidatad Incorae Stalernant and wathin the assotated notes.
This is the onty inandizl measure within these linanca! statements
impacted by this restatemant.

Going concern
The hnandal statements are prepared on a going concern basis
a5 explained in the corporate governance saclion on page 65.

Subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates including funds}

The conschidated accoums ivclude the acoeesnts of the Brilish Land
Company PLC and all subsidiaries (entities centrolled by Bntsh Langl.
Conbrol is assumed where British Land is expused, or has the rights,
to variable retuins from its invotvernent with invesleas and has the
ability to affect those returns through its poweer over those inveslzces.

The results of subsidianas. jeint ventures or associates aoguired oF
dispased of during the year are induded from the eHactive date of
acquisilion or up to the sflective date of disposal. Accounting polices

consolidated linancial staternants are discussed in further detail bel

- IFRS 9 - Financial Instrumenis {effective year entding 31 March 20191,
The new standard addresses the dlassification, measurement and
recognition of financial assets andg financial liabibties. it simnplifies the
exisling calegories of financial instruments, introduces an expected
credit loss madzt and redefines the criteria required for hadge
effectiveness. On adeoption of the new slandard, these changes are
not expected to have a malerial impac! on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. There wilt however be limited changes 1o
presentation and disclosure,

- IFRS 15~ Revenue lrom conlracts with customers leffeclive year
endirig 31 March 2019]. The new standard combines a number of
previous standards, setling aut a five step model for the recognition
of revenue and establishing principles for reporting useful information
to users of linanaal statements about the nature, amount, iring
and uncertainty of revenue and cash Mlows arising from an eality’s
contracts with customers. The new standard does not apply to gross
reqtal income, but does apply to service charge income, managerment
and perfarmance lees and trading property disposals. The impact
of the new standard on these iterns of revenue is not expecled to
have a material impacl on the consolidated lmanual stalements
of the Group.

~ IFRS 16 - Leases leHeclive year ending 31 March 2020). For lessees, it
will resultin almost all leases being recognised on the balance sheet,
as the distinction batween operating and finance leases will be
remaved. The accounting for lessors will however ot significantly
change. As a result on adoplion of the new standard, these changes
are nol expected to have a malerial impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

The Group conducted animpact assessment of the above new standards
in the year, and concluded that whitst adoplion of these new standards
based on the Group's curment aclivities would tead to sorne limited chanaes
1o presentation and disclosure, they are not expected 1o have a malterial
tmpact on the consolidated financial skatements.

of subsidiaries, joinl ventures or assodiates which difler from Group
accounting policies are adjusled on consolidation.

Business combinations are acoounted for under the acquisition method.
Any excess of the purchase price of business combinations over the fair
value of the assets, liabiliies and contingent liabililies acquired and
resulling deferred lax thereon is recognised a5 goodwill. Any discount
received is credited to the inturna statement in the period of acquisition.

Allintra-Group transaclions, balances, inceme and expenses are
climinated on consolidation. Joint ventures and assodates, indluding
funds, are accounled for under the equity method. whereby the
consolidated balance sheat incorporates the Group’s share linvestor's
share] of the net assels of its joint ventures and associales. The
consolidated income staternem incorporates the Gioup's share

of joint venture and associate profits after lax. Their profils include
revaluation mavermnents on investment properties.

Distributions and other receivables from joints ventures and associates
lincluding lunds) are classed as cash Rows from operating achivilies,
except where they relate (o a cash flow arising from a capital transaclion,
such as a properly or investment disposal. In this case they are classed
as cash flows from investing actimties.

Properties

Properties are externally valued on the basis of fair value at the balance
sheel date. loveslment and owner-occupied proper ties are recorded at
valuation whereas trading properties are stated at the lower ol cosit and
nel realisable value.

Any surplus or deficit arising on revaluing invesiment properties is
recognised in the capilal and other column of the income stalement.

Any surplus arising on revaluing awner-occupied preperlies above
costis recognised in other comprehensive income, and any deficit arising
in revalualion below cost for owner-occupied and trading properties is
recognised in the capital and ether column of the income statemeni.
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Financtal spatetienes

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

The Cosi of proparties in the course of development includes atiributable
interesi and other assoasied ouigoings induding attribulable developmant
personnal costs. Inerest is calowtated on the dewelopment expenditu=e
by reference te spedfic borrowings, whete relevent. 2and otherwise on
the weighiod average raie interest rate of Britsh Land PLC barrowings.
Interast is not capitalised where no development aciivity is 1aking

place. A property ceases o be treated as a de\relopmem property

on practical complenon.

Investment progerty dispesals are recognisad on comptetion, Prafits
and losses arising are recognised through the capital and other column
of the income stalement. The profit on disposal i determinad as the
dilference between the net sales proceeds and the carvying armount of
the assetal the ¢ ent of the ace ting period plus capitat
expenditure in the period.

Trading properiies are initially recognised at cost less impairments,
and trading property disposals are recognised in line with the revenue
polides oullinad below.

Where investmeant properties are appropriated to trading properties,
they are translermed at markel value, If properties held for brading are
appropnated to investment properiies, they are lransferred at book
value. o determining whather leases ant related properties represant
operating or linance lesses, consideralion is given o whether the
tenant or Iandlord bears the risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial assets and Liabilities
Tradz dablors and credilers are intially recognised at fair valye and
subsequenity measured at amortised cost and discounted as appropriate.

Cther investments include loans 2nd receivables held at amortised

cosl and investinents held lor irading <lassified as fair value through
profit or loss. Amoarlised cos! of loans and receivables is measyred using
the effective interest methed, less any impairment. Interest is recognised
by applying the effeciive inlerest rate. Investments held for trading are
witially recorded at Fair value and are subsequentty externally valued on
the same basis at the balance sheet daie. Any surplus or deficit arising
an revaluing nvestments held for trading is recognised in the capital

2nd other calumn of the income statement.

Where an investrnent property is held under a head lease, the head
tease is initially recognised as an asset, being the sum of the premnium
paid on 2equisilion plus the present value of minimem greund rent
payments. The corresponding rent lability to the head leascholder
isincluded in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation.

Ueht inslruments are stated al their net proceeds on issue. Finance
charges including premia payabile on settlement or redemglion
and direct issue costs are spread over the period o redemption,
using the effective interest method. Exceplional finance chargas
incurred due to early redemption linctuding premiumsl are
recognised in the income statement when they occur.

Convertible bonds are designated as fair vatue through prefit or loss
and so are initially recognised at fair value with all subsaquent gains
and losses, including the write-off of issue costs, recognised in the
capitat and other cotumn ol the income statemend as a componenl of
net finanting costs. The interest charge in respect ofthe coupon rate
on the bonds has been recognised within the undertying compaonent
af net linancing costs on an accruals basis.
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As dafined bylAS 3% Gash ftew and {air value hedges are wahally recognised
at fawr value at the dole the dervative conlracts are antened inte, and
subsequenity remeasured at {air value. Changes n the fairvalue of
devivatives thal are designated and guatify as effective cash flow hedges are
recognised dirzctly through other oomprehensive InCome 35 2 MOvEMEent i
the hadging and wanslation reserve_Changes in the fair value of derivatives
that are designalad and qualify a5 effective [air value hedges are recorded
inihe capital and olhar column of the income statemend, along with any
changes in the fair valuz of the hadg=d itern that is atinbaiable 16 the
hedged risk. Any inefifeciive portion of all derivatives is recoanisad in the
capital and othar column of the income statermnent. Changes in the fair
value of desivatives thal are nol in a designaled hedging relalionship under
usﬁmmmdeddmcuymlhecapnalandnﬂmuiumnn{me incoma
Thesed foas are carvied 2t fair valuz on the balance sheet.

Cash equivalents arz limited to mstrumants with 2 matunity of less than
threz months.

Revenue

Revenue comprises rental income and surrender premia, service change
income, management and periormnance fees and proceeds from the sale
of trading properties.

-Rental moome, mduding bixed rantat uplifts  from investment property

leased gut under an operating lease is recognised as revenuz on a ,
straighi-ling basis over the lease term. Lease incentives, such as rent-free
periods and cash contributions Lo tenant iit-out, are recognised on the
same straighi-tine basis being an integrat pan of the nel consideration for
the use of the investment property, Any rent adjustments based on ocpen
market estimated rental valuss are recognised, based on management
estimates, from the rent review date in relation to unseitted rent reviews.
Contingent rents, being those lease payments that are not fixed at the
inceplion of the lease, mduding lor example rmover renls,_are

recognised in the period inwhich they 2re samad.

Swrrender premia for the early determination of a lease are recognised
as revenue immediately upon receipt, net of dilapidations and non-
recoverable oulgoings retating to the lease concernhed.

Service charge incume is recognised as revenue in the period to which
itrelates.

Management and performance fees receivable are recognised as revenue
in the period to which they relate. Performance fees are recogrised at the
end of the performance penod when the lee amount can be estimated
reliably and it is virwally ceriain that the fea will be received.

Proceeds from the sale of trading properlies are recognised when the
risks and rewards of ownership have been bransferred to the purchaser.
This generally occurs on complelion. Proceeds from the sale of trading
properties are recognrised as revenus in the capilal and other columan of
the income statement_ Alf other revenue described above is remgmsed
in the underdying coturnn of the income statement.



Tazation

Current tax is based on taxable profit for the year and 15 calculated
using tax rales that have bean enactad or subsiantivaly enacted at the
balance shesl date. Taxable profit differs from nel profit as reponadin
the income statement because il exdudes items of income or expense
thal are not 1axabtz lor tax deductiblel.

Delerred taxis pronded onitems thal may become taxable in the future,
or which may be used o ofisal against taxable profits in the future, on
the temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
Lahitities for finantial reporting purposes, and tha amounts used for
laxation purposes on an undiscounled basis. On business combinations,
the deferred tax effect of fair value adjustments is incorporated in the
consoiidated balance sheel.

Employee costs

The fair value of equity-seitied share-bassd paymen!s 1o employees
is determined at the date of grant and is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's eslimate of shares
ar options that will eveniually vest. in the case of opiions granted.

fair value is measured by a Black-Scholes pricing madal

Defined benefil pension scheme assets are measured using fair values.
Pansion scheme hahililies are msasured using the projectad unit credil
mathod and discounted at the rate of relurn of a high quality corporate
bond of equivalent term to the scheme liabilities. The net surplus Iwhere
recoverable by the Group) or daficit is recognised in [ull in the consolidated
balance sheel. Any assel resulting trom the calculation is limited Lo the
present value of aveilable refunds and reductions in fulure contribulions
Lo the plan.

The current service cost and gains and lesses on seftlement and
curtailments are charged o operaling profil. Actuarial gains and losses

© are recognised in full in the period in which they cccur and are presented
in the consolidated slatement of comprehensive income.

Coniributions to the Group's defined contribulion schemes are expensed
on the basis of the contracted annual contribution.

Accounting judgements and estimates
In applying the Group's accounling policies. the Directors are required
1o make judgements and estimales that alect the financial statements.

Significard areas of eslimation are:

Valwation of properties and investments held for trading: The Graup
uses external professional valuers to determine the relevant amounts.

The primary source ol evidence for property valuations should be recent, .

comparable market (ransactions on an arms-length basis. However,
the vatuation of the Group’s property portiolio and investments held
for trading are inherently subjective_as they are made on the basis of
assumplions made by the valuers which ray not prove to be accurate.

Other less significant areas of estimation include the valualion of fixed
rate debl and interesl rate derpvatives, the determnination of share-based
payment expense_ and the actuarial assumptions used in calculating the
Group's relireraent benefit obligations.

The key areas of accounting judgement are:

REH status: British Land is a Real Eslate Investrmant Trusi [REIT]

and dozs nol pay ax on its propasty Monene o gIins on property sales,
provideg that at least 90% of the Group's property income s disinbuted
as a dividend to shareholders, which becomes 2xable in their hands.
in addition, the Group has 10 meei carizin conditions such a5 ensuring
the propariy rentat businass represents more than 75% of 1olat profits
and ass:ts. Any poleniiat o proposed changes lo the REIT legislation
are moenitored and discussed with HMRE. I is Management's intention
that the Group witl conlinue 25 a REIT far the foresesable lutwra.

Accounting for joind veniures ard funds: ln accordance with IFRS 10
‘Conscligated Francial staterments, [FRS 11 oint arrangaments’, and
IFRS 12 Disclosures of interests i oiher entities’ an assessmant i
required to delesmnine the degree of control or influence the Group
exercises and tha form of any control 10 ensure thal the finanaal
slalement treatment is appropriate.

interest in the Growp's jind ventures is commonly drven by the terms

of the partnership agreements which ensure that controt is shared
between lhe pariners. These are accounied lor under the equily rmethad,
wherelsy the consclidated balance sheet yncorporates the Group's share
of the nat assets of iis jont ventures and assodates. The consolidated
income slaternent Incarporates the Group’s share of joinl vanture and
550031 profidls after tax.

Actounting for transactions: Property ransactions are comnplex in
nature and can be matenal to the finzndal slatements. Assessment is
required ta determine the mosl appropriate accounting treatmend of
assals arquired 2nd of potential contractual arrangements in the legal
doecuments for bolh acquisitions and di als. Manag t consider
each Iransaction separalely and, whan consndemd appropnale seek
indegendent acrounting advice.

Held for sale assel: On 1 March 2017 the Group exchanged condilional
contracls on an agreement to sell its interest in Leadenhall Holding Co
[erseyl Limited. a joint venture with Oxferd Properties. The net
tnvestment in the joint venture has been redlassified as a held tor sale
asset within currenl assets on the Group balance sheel, and the carrying
amout is disclosed separaiely from the investment in joint ventures and
funds within note 11 to the financial slatemenls.

Prigr {0 exchame. held for sale onifecia were nol deemed to be met since
the transaclion relates to an itliquid asset and is subject 1o significant
uncerizinty prwor to agreement of terms. Hawever, upon exchange the
sale is deemed highly probable as detailed terms have been agreed upon
by relevant parites. Al this poird management expect the carmying
armount of the Group's investment in the venture to be recovered
principally through a sale transaciion rather than continuing operations.
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Finvialb statemenes

NOTES TQ THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

2 Performance measures

Eamnings per share

The Group measures iinsncal parformance with referance o undertying earmings par share. the Europezn Public Real Estate Association [EPRA}
earmings per share and IFRS earnings per share. The relevant sarnings 2nd weighted average number of shares linduding diulion adjusimentsi
for each performance measure are shown below. and a reconaliation betwean these is shown within the supplementary disclosures [Table BL

EPRA earnings par share is catculated using EPRA earnings, which is the IFRS pmll‘t after taxation attributabte lo sharzholders of the Compary
excluding investment and developmeni property revalualions, gains/l on ing and trading preperty disposals. changes in the fair value of
hnancial instruments and aszecpted dose-oul costs and thew related {axation. In the mrrenlyear diluted EPRA parmings per share did nol include
the difinive impact of the 2002 convertibla bond. as the Group's share price was below the exchange price of 623 pence. IFRS diluied cammings par
share includes the dilutive impact as 1AS 33 ignores this hurdle to convarsion. In the prier year, both measures included the dilutive impact of the
2012 converiible hond, 35 the Group's share price was above the exchange price.

Undailying earnings per shars is catculated using Underlying Profit 2djusted {or undertying texalion (see note 7 Underlying Profii is the pre-imz
EPRA earnings measura, with additicnal Company afjustments. Mo Company adjustments were mada in either the ourment or prior year.

Fo1Y) . me
Retevant Relewny

Relsvant mumber Eamings Relevant rarher Eamings

earmings of shares per share aamEngs. of shares por share
Undertying
Undertying basic ;] 1,029 79 365 1023 5.8
Undertying diluted 3v0 1,033 378 . k) 1.089 3451
EPRA )
EPRA basic %0 1029 379 385 1.025 356
EPRA diluted 0 1,033 378 3N 1,.08% 343
IFRS ' '
Basic 173 1,029 188 1345 1025 1302
Gituted' - 140 1.0%% 14.7 1.303 1.087 1ne?

! Prior year diluted EPS has been restated. Sea note 1. '

Net assetvalue .

The Group measures linancial position with reference ta EPRA net asset value INAV] per share and EPRA triple nel asSet value [NNNAV] per share.
The nel asset value and number of shares jor each performance measure is shown below. A reconciliation batween IFRS nel assels and EPRA

nel assels, and the relevant number of shares for each performance measure, is shown within the supplermeniary disclosures [Table 8] £PRA neat
assets is a proportionally consolidated measure thatis besed on IFRS nel assets excluding the mark-to-markel on effective cash Aow hedges and
related debt adjustments, the mark-lo-markel on the convertible bonds as well as delerred l2xation on properly and denivative valuaimns They
include the valuation surplus on trading properties and are adjusted lor the ditulive impact of share options.

As at 31 March 2017, EPRA NAY and EPRA NNNAY did not inctude the dilutive impac! of the 2012 convertibie bond, as the Gmup s share price was
below the exchange price of £23 pence. IFRS nel assels indudes the ditutive impact following the treatment of IFRS earnings per share._ In the prior
year period, both measures included the ditutive impact of the 2012 convertible bond, as the Group's share price was above the exchange price.

a7 ) 00
Relowant Nat acseq . Relavany A assal
Relevam number walue per Refevant numbar wvalue per
net assels of shares share net asséls of shares. Share
Net asset wlue per share £m milion pence £m milban pence
EPRA .
EPRA NAV 9.498 1,038 15 16.074 1.096 19
EPRA NNNAV ) - 8938 1.038 851 . 9.640 1,096 ' 880
IFRS ’ ) ‘
Basic 2.476 1,029 ! 2519 1029 235
Diluted 2875 1,096 901 189 1.096 N4
Total accounting return

The Group alsa measures financial per(m—mar\ce wnth reference o tolal accounting return. This is calculated as the increase in EPRA net asset value
per share and dividend paid in the year as a percentage of the EPRA nel assat value per share at the start of the year.

my ' 6
Oecreasein  Dividend per Total  InoegseinhNAY  Dhvdend por Totat
NAV pet share share pad ancoumting . pes shane share paid SCOOUNTING
-pence pence return pence pence retum
Tatat accounting return 14} 28.78 2.1% 20 2802 14.2%

108 British Land | Anniral Repert and Accounts 2017



3 Revenue and costs

M7 2016
Undortyng  andoiiver Tatal  Underking  andeler Wil
o £m £m (201 frn &m
Hent recenvable ’ &9 - £49 £37 - &37
Spreading of tenanl incentives and guarantesd rend rdreases 1] - 4] i2 - 12
Surrander premia 2 - 2 2 - 2
Hnss rental income . 442 - &&2 451 - A£51
rading property sales proceads - 33 k<) - 2i 2
Serace charg2 incame - &2 - &2 72 - ”
Management and periormance fees lirom joinl ventures and funds) k. - 9 8 - 8
Other fees and commissions 43 - £3 38 - 38
Revenue ' 556 33 589 569 21 590
Trading property cost of sales - t24) 126! - ni i
Service charge expenses a2 - - {621 75 - 73
Property operating axpenses 25 - 25 26} - 28
Other fees and commissions expenses . 1351 - {3sl 30} - 30}
Costs A 126) 0148) hizs} 111} )
£34 7 A1 &41 10 451

The cash element of nel rental income recognised during the year ended 31 March 2017 rem properties which were not subjeci lo a security
interast was E276m [2015/16: £229ml. Property operaiing expenses relating 1o wwesbmenl proper as 1hat did nol generate any rental income
were (2m [2015/1é: Cim]. Conlingant rents of £2m [201916: £3m) were recognised intheyear.  °

4 Valuation movements on property

2017 16
£m £m

Consolidated income statement .
Revalualion of properties T (144) 616
Revaluation of properties held by joint venitures and funds accounted for using the equily mathod 93] 245
. ' 12371 84!
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income ‘
Revaluation of owner-gccupied properties - 19

(237] 889
5 Auditors’ remuneration - PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

om? 016

£m £m

Fees payable lo the Company's auditors for the audit of the Company’s annual accounts 02 0.2
Fees payabie to the Company's auditars for the audit of the Company's subsidiaries, pursuant to legislation [ ¥ 3 04
Total audit tees 0é 0.4
Audit-related assurance services } 0t 01
Total audit and audit-related assurance services 0.7 0.7
Other fees
Tax advisory services . - -
Other services ‘ [R] [iA]
Total 0.8 0.8

In addition 1o the ahove, PricewatechouseCoopers LLP were remunerated for non-audit fees in PREF, an equity acceunted praperty fund [see note 1),
The Group's share of fees lotalled £0.1m {2015/14: £0.2m]. PricewalerhouseCoopers ELP are not the external avditors to PREF,
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6 Net financing costs

=7 2015
& €
Underlying
Finanting charges
Bank loans. overdralls and denivatives . ' 3 Q0
Otherloans ‘ . 83) 128
Obligations undar head leases 121 121
) . (a6l Bzl
. Development interest capitalised ‘ 8 7
{80) 111}
Financing income
Depaosils, securilies and liquid investimenis 2 3
Loans to joint venlures ‘ - 2
2 ]
Net financing charges — undertying ' e) . hige)
Capital and other
Financing charges
Valuation movements on \ranslation of loreign currency debt ’ - 2
Hedging reserve recycling - 12]
Valuation movemnents on lair value desivabives j s 54
Valuation movements on {air value debt ) 1£8) 531
Recycling of lair value movemant on dose -oul of derivaties . o) R
Capital financing costs’ 15} 1291
Fair value mevemeant on rion-hedge acesunted. decivatives : ’ 7 -
. 29 134)
Financing income
Fair value movement on convertihte bonds A2 64
Fair value movement on non-hedge accounted derivatives - 1
‘ : ‘ .. a2 45
Net financing income - capital ) ) 13 31
\Het finan:ing costs
Total linancing income &4 70
Total financing charges . oy} 1145]
Net financing costs [85] 175)

' Primarily debenture bonds redemplion and tender uffer and purchase cosls.
i
Interesi payable on unsecured bank loans and related interest rate derivatives was £13m [2015/16: €19m). Inlerest on devaiopment expenditure

is capitalised at the Group's weighted average interest rate of 2.4% (2015/14: 2.6%). The weighted average interest rate ena proportionatety
consolidated basis at 31 Mareh 2017 was 3.1% [2015/16: 3.2%).
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7 Taxation

am7 2015
£m £m
Taxation income (expense]
Current taxation:
UK corporation taxation: 20% (2015/16: 20%] . ta (151]
Adjustments in raspect of prior years 4 17
Total current taxation income - ‘ 1 2
Deferred laxation on revaluations and denivalives - n
6roup total taxation 1 3
Attnbutable to joint vanturas and tunds 1 n
Total taxation income 2 2
Taxation reconcitiation
Profit on ordinary activities belore ation ' 95 133
Less: profil attribulable to joint ventures and funds’ 152] 13971
Group profit on ordinary activities before taxation C 143 935
Taxation on profil on ordinary actraties al UX corporation \axation rate of 20% {2015/16: 20%) 29] hen
EHects of:
REIT exempt income and gains ¢ o 161
Taxation losses n i
Delerred taxation on revaluations and derivatives - 3
Adjusiments inrespect of prior years & 17
Group total taxation income 1 33

' Acurrent laxation expense of Dl [2073/16: charge of Eim] and a daferved laxabon cradit of £ Im [Z0T5/16: expense of Cnall arase on profits attnktable to;mnlmﬁum
and funds. The low tax charges reflects the Group's REIT staius.

Taxation expense attributabte to Undertying Prolit for the year endad 3t March 2017 was a €nil [2015/146: £2m). Corporation faxztion pavable 2t
31 March 2017 was £30m [2015/16: £18m] as shown on the balance sheet.

8 Staff costs
2017 2014
Staff costs fincluding Direclors) £m Om
Wages and salaries &4 S7
Somal secizrity costs 8 7
Pension costs 7 7
Equity-setiled share-based payments & 10
83 a1

The average monthly number of employzes of the Company during the year was 261 [2015/14: 2601, The average monthly number of Group employees,
including those ervployed direclly al the Group's properties and Lheir cosis recharged lo lenanis, was 771 2015/16: 692). The average manthly
number of arnployees of the Caompany within each category of persons employed was as foliows: Retail: 54; Otfices & Residential: 71; Canada Water:
7. Support Funclions: 129, .

The Executive Directars and Non-Executive Directors are the key managemehl personnel. Their emoluments are summarised below and further
detail is disctosed in the Remunaration Report on pages 73 lo 88.

. . 7 200

Directors” emotuments €m &m
Shart term employee benefits 5.0 5.4
Senvice cost in relation to defined benefil pension schemes ; 02 02
Equity-seiiled share-based payments N 19 5%
(A 15
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S Staff costs continued

Staff costs
The Group's equity-setiled share-based paymenis Compnse the Long-Term incentive Plan (LTIP) the Maiching Share Plan MSPLL the Fund Managess
Pertormance Plan [FMPP) and various savings relaled share opticn schames.

Tha Company expenses an estimate of how many shares are likely 1o vest based on the markei price at the date of grant on (22 june 2014 taking
account of expected performnance against the relavant performance targels and service periods which are discussed in further delail in the
Remuneralion Report.

For all schemes except the Company's Long-Term Incentive Plan share oplians, the fax vatue o awards are equal to the market value ol grant dale.
The keyinputs usad te value share oplions using a Black-Scholes model granted vnder the Company's Long-Tesmn Incentive Plan are shown betow.

Long-Term Incentive Plan: Awards in the year ended 31 March 2017 n‘;;lmb
Share price and exerdisa price at grant date ' T3p
Erpecied aplion lifz inyears : S
Risk free rate - 11%
Expecied volatility 2%
Expected dnidend yeld e

Value pet oplion : . : B3p
Movernents in shares and options are given in note 20.
9 Pensions

The British Land Group of Companies Pension Scheme [the scheme'lis the principat datined benelit pension schame in the Group. The assats of
the scheme are held in 3 rustee-administered fund and kept separate from those of the Company. It is not contracted out of SERPS [State Earnings-
Related Pension Scheme} and it is not planned to admil new employees to the scheme. The Group has three other small defined benefit pension
schames. There is also a Dafined Contribution Pansion Scheme. Contributions to this scheme are al a flat rate of 15% of salary lor non-Oirectors
and are paid by the Cormpany.

The total net pension cost charged for the year was E7m {2015/14: £7ml. of which E4m [2015£16: £4mi relates io defined contribulion plans
and £3m [2015/16: £3m) relates 1o the current service cost of the defined benefit schemes,

A fuil acluarial valuation of the scheme was carried ow at 31 March 2015 by consulling actuaries. ADN Hewitt Assodates Lt The emnployer’s
contributions will be paid in the future at the rate recommended by the actuary of 72.9% per annum of basic salaries, The best estimate of employer
contributions. expected to be paid during Lhe year to 31 March 2018 is £5m. The majer assumpiions used lor the actuarial valuation were:

m7 2016 15 2014 2013

¢ % pa Fpa % pa % pa wpa
Discountrate 24 32 Y 44 &1
Salary inflation 49 48 £ 5.2 47
Pensions increase 33 32 32 35 31
Price inflalion 34 - 33 33 37 3.2

The morialily assumptions are based on standard moriality tables which allow for future mortalily improvements. The assumplions are that a
membar currently aged & will bve on average for a (urther 29.7 years i they are male and lor a further 31.7 years il they are lemale. For a member
who retires in 2037 a1 age 60, the assumptions are that they will Live on average lor a further 31.7 years afler retirement if they are male and for a
further 33.2 years after relirement i they are female.

Compasition of scheme assels
27 20146
] € £m
Equilies ' &0 52
Diversified growth funds 84 77
Other ' ] 10 8
Total scheme assets 154 137

The vast majority of the scheme assets are quoted in an active market.
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9 Pensions continued

The amount induded in the balance sheel arising from the Group's ubligations in respect of its definad benefit scheme s a5 follows:

2007 1113 ans M4 013

Ce e ‘ m £m frn Om Im
Present value of defined scheme obligations ' © o nen (2431 1845) nE o (e
Fair value of scheme assels ' , 154 137 139 131 20
Imecoverable surplus - C - - {6) 1
Liability recognised in the balance sheet 13 15 . §8) - -

The sensitivities of the defined beneht obligation in relation to the major actuanial assumptions used lo measure scheme Labilities are as follows: -

It
. Changein 017 218
Discountrate ' ' ' ' ‘ £5% 0 8 (sl
Salaryinflation : : +0.5% 1 1
Ponsions increase ' 5% 15 12
Pnce inflation . . . - +0.5% 17 13
History of experience gains and losses

27 F. 1A 215 173 2013
m om m &m -€m

Tolal actuariat loss recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income*
Amount? . ) 2l it 15 2 14
Percentage of present value on scheme liahilities N > 5 0.7% 3.6% 1.6% 3%

' Movemnents staled after adjusting for imecoverabilily of any surplus. )
? Cvadatoee loss rocogrusad inlhe &t k OF Cremprshes s incane i85 £4%0n {5414 EIZm.

;
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- 9 Pensions continued

Movements in the present value of definad benefit obligations W;‘ as follows:

a2my P11
€&m [1.3
ALY Agril _ 11831 {1458
Current service cost ‘ 31 3
Interes! cost . - 51 =]
Actuanial lloss] gain
{Loss) gain from change in financial assumptions : 9 &
Gan an scheme labilities, arising from experience ’ : ] 3
Benafits paid : ) 7 3
At31 March ' (1871 £143)
Movemenls in Lhe Rair value of tha scheme assets were a5 {ollows:
’ e 2005
) &n £m
At 1 April . 137 132
interest incorne on scheme assels B 1 4
Conlributions by employer A 7 7 &
Actuarial gain lloss] ‘ n i
Benefits paid . 15) i3)
At31 March : | 154 137

Through its defined benelii plans, the Group is exposed to a number ol nisks, the mos! significant of which are detailed batow:

Assetvolatility

The liabilitizs are catculaled using a discount rate sat with a reference to corporate bond yields; if assets underparform this yizld, this will create
adeficit. The scheme hotds a significant portion of growth assets lequities and diversified growth funds) which, although expected to pulperform
corporate bonds in the long lerm, create volatility and risk in the shart term. The allocation ta growth assels is monitored (o ensure it remains
appropniate given the scheme's long term objeclives.

Changes in bond yields .
A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase the value placed on the scheme’s liabilities for accounting purpases, atithough this will be partially
offset by an increase in the value of the scheme’s boad holdings.

Inflation risk .

The majority of the scheme’s benefit obligations are linked 10 inflation, and higher inflation will lead to higher Liabilies lalthough. in most cases.
caps on the Level of inflationary increases are in place to protect against extremne inflation]. The majority of the ascels are sither unaffected by or
only loosely correlated with inflation. meaning that an increase in inftation wilk also increase the deficit. '

Life expectancy

The maiority of the scheme’s obligations are to provide benefits for the tife of the member, so increases in tife expectancy will resull in an increase
in Lhe liabilines.
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10 Property

Property reconciliation for the year ended 31 March 2017

tvestmany
trrvessiyreent
. ang
Offeces 8 Carada Cuenes-
Retall  resxiantel Wiz Deelopmens  properties Tradng oorgeed
Lewat 3 Levd 3 el 13 Lewel 3  poperies Lot 3 Yol
{m m fm m £m Emn m Em
Carrying value at 1 April 2018 5.617 3.436 258 334 24643 35 ) 10,053
Additions “
- piroperty purchases ;1] - 8 - -} - - aa
- development expenditure 1 & 10 55 81 54 - 137
- capitalised interest and stafi cosls - - 2 3 5 ) 5 - 10
- capital expenditure on asset .
management iniliatives B2 9 1 - 92 - - ¥2
' 174 3 21 o8 256 &1 - 327
Deprecialion - - - - - - 1] m
Disposals [624) 39) - [&70] {28} - 1698)
Redassilicalions - mn 7 [Fal) 7 (xn - -
Revaluations induded in income statement f105) 57 {18) 3 hag) - - 1144
Movement in lenant incenlives and conlracted
rant uplili batances f&1) () - - &9 1 - 148]
Carrying value at 31 March 2017 5.021 3616 284 150 9.073 334 94 2.501
Head lease labilities [noie 15] ‘ [(¥+4]
Vatuation surplus on trading proper ties 83
Group property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2017 9.520
MNon:controlling inlerests _ 310}
Groeup property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2017 attributable to shareholders 9.210
)
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10 Property continued

Property reconciliation for the year ended 31 March 2014

Treestmend
brvestmment
and
Offices & Canada developrnent
el recdential Vater Davelopmants  propestios Trading Dewmes
Lol 3 Lvzh 3 lawll Laal3 Level 3 popIERT  C oooupked Total
im £m m tm &m £ m fm
Carrying value al 3 Apnil 20153 5584 2902 269 285 9,120 275 68 9,454
Addibons:
- properily purchases 4 34 .- - 238 - - 238
= development expenditure & & ] 43 54 3% - 13
- capitalised interest and siaff costs - - 1 3 4 5 - 9
— capital expenditure on 2sset
managemeni initialives . 91 24 - 116 - - 118
99 264 3 46 £2 54 - 578
Deprediation - . - - - - - L 1
Disposals [372] N3a - 7 {509] i - {520)
Reclassifications 135 22 - ({1 7i] 15 1 17 -
Revaluations indudad in income statemant 161 36% 4 82 &18 - - 516
Revatualion included in OCI - - - - - - i 19
Movernent in tenant incentives and contracted
rent uplift balances ) ? - - 19 - - 19
Carrying value at 31 March 2016 5617 3,434 256 334 92,643 325 3 10,053 .
Head lease Liabilittes [note 15) ’ an
Valuation surplus on tradig proper lies 85
Group property portfolio valuation at 31 March 2018 10,1M
Non-controlling interests ' (324)
Group property porttolio valuation at 31 March 2016 attributable to sharehotders 9.787

Property valuation
The different valuation method levels are defined below:

Level1: QGuoted prices [unadjusied] in aclive markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Inpuls olher than quoted prices included within Level | that dre observable for ihe asset or liability, either direcilyli.e. as prices)

‘orindirectly [i.e. derwed from prices).

Level3: Inputs for the asset or Liability that are not based on observable market dala lunobservable inputsh

These levels are specified in accordance with IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’. Property valuations are inherently subjective as they are made

on the basis of assumplions made by the valuer which may noi prove to be accurale. For these reasons, and consisteni with EPRA’s guidance, we
‘have dlassified the valuations of our property portfolio as Level 3 as defined by IFRS 13. The inputs ta the valuations are defined as ‘unobservable”
by IFRS 13 and these are anatysed in 3 table on the following page. There were no transfers between levels in the period,

The Group's otal property porifolio was valued by external valuers on the basis of [air vatue, in accordance wrth the RICS Valuation - Professional
Standards 2014, ninth edition, published by The Royat Instituton of Chartered Surveyors.

The infermation provided to the valuers, and the assumplions and valuations medels used by the valuers are reviawad by the preperiy portiolio
team, the Head ol Oflices, the Head of Relail and the Chiel Financial Officer. The valuers meet with ihe exiamnal audilors and also present direciy
1o the Audit Commiltee at the interinn and year end review of results. Further detaits of the Audil Commitiee’s responsibilibes in relalion ko
valuations can be found in the Repori of the Audit Commitiee fon pages 67 to 70).

Investment properties, excluding properties held for development, are valued by adopling the ‘investment method” of valuation. This approach
fowolves applying capitalisation yields 1o current and future rental steearns net of income voids arising from vacancies or rent-free pertods and
associated running costs. These capitalisation yields and future rental values are based on comparable property and leasing transactions in the
market using the vatuers professional judgement and market ebservation. Other faclors taken into account in the valuations include the tenure
of \he preperty, lenancy details and ground and structural conditions.
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10 Property continued

In the case of ongoing developmenis. the approach applieg is the ‘residuat method” of valualion, which is the irwestment methog of valualion as
described above_with a deduction for all cosls necassary io complate the development. including a nofianal finance coast, lgeiher with a lurther

atlowance for rernaining risk. Proparies held for developinent are generally valuad by adopling the highar o the residual mzthod of valuation,

atlowing for all associated risks, or lhe irvestrment method of valuation for the exshng asset. .

Copies of the valuation certificales of Knight Frank LLP, CBRE and Jones Lang LaSatle can be found al werw.britishtand com/reports

A breakdown of valuations spiit between the Group and its share of joind vemures and funds is shown below:

277 2015
Jaimt JpEnk
wentures YERTeS
Group andfunds Total Gronwp 2 hundfis Tait
) £m Em £m [ e &m
Knight Frank LLP 7.6 2883 2914 7529 357 n16s
CBRE 2,489 1,380 3,859° 2582 1,381 3943
Jones Lang LaSalle - 538 538 - - -
Total property portfolia valuation 9,520 4£,8M n3 10.m 2937 1HB.RLE
Non-controlling inleresks (310] 7 (321 3241 7% (s00}
Toal property portiolio valsation '
attributabte to shareholders 9,210 £,730 13,940 9.787 £.861 14,648
{nformation about fair value medsurements using unobservable inputs {Level 31 for the year ended 31 March 2017
Fair a ERV per sg ft Equivatent Yield Costs to complete per sq ft
31 March 2017 Valuation Min Max Average Min Max Awrage Min . Max  Average
tmvestment €m technigue £ € [ 4 % % % [ 4 [ 4 [
Irwestment
Retail 4,987 mettrodology 2 77 22 4 n 5 - 48 [
Irvesiment
Offices™ 3,693 methodology 7 17 54 4 . 7 5 - 150 20
Investment
Canada Waler 27 methodology 15 25 22 2 5 3 - 18 B
Residual
Developments® 150 methodology 18 2 54 2 ] £ - 616 S48
Total 9,103 ‘
Trading properties
at fair value £17
Group property
portfolio valuation 9,520
' Includes owner-occupied. .
? Includes Residential with an average capital value per sq 11 of €981 including developments at end valye and mixed use,
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10 Property continued

Information about fair valuie measurements ysing unoheservable inputs {Levat 3} tor the year ended 31 March 2018

Cairvalus at - B par eg R T Yinld Costs o 0ompiate per s R
3 Masrch 2016 Valuation »n Mat  Aerage M Max M Max  Average
Investment tm Yechnique £ £ [4 * b [ £ [3
’ Invesimem ‘ R
Retail 5.608 methodology 2 rE] 2 3 T 5 - £5 8
Irvestment
Offices ™ 3.492 melhodology 4 136 53 1 8 & - 150 15
Imvestment
Canada Watar 250 methodology 1 25 22 i S 3 - 5 4
Residual
Davelopmants! "~ 3583 methodology . 69 507 73 & 5 £ - &b4 447
_ Tatal 2673
Trading propesties
at fairvalue £18
Sroup property
portfulio valuation 10,171 -
* Intludes ovmer-octupied.
2 Indudes Residential with an avarage capital value par s R of £1,028 imduding developments al and valve and rixed use.
Information about the impact of changes in unubservable inputs (Level 3) on e fair value of the 6roup’s praperty portfolio for the year ended
31 March 2017
Fair value at Impact on valuations Impact onwal . tmpact on
31 March 2017 +5% ERV “FRERY  -Z5hps NEY +25bps NEY Shasts +S%aosis
. £m €m €m €n €m [ tm
Retail o 4987 2/ 12461 359 (k1] na n/fa
Offices' ) 4112 284 1224) 393 {332} nfa nfa
Canada Waler . m u iy 20 an nfa ofa
Dewelopments 150 9 N3 - A3 5 19l
Gmup praperty portfolio valuati 9,526 580 [544) 772 £489] 5 [§i]
'includes trading properties at tair vatue.
Information about the impact of changes in unobservable inputs (Levet 3] on the fair value of the G!I)lup's property portfolio for the year ended
31 March 20%
Fair value 8t Impact an valuzbions mpact oR valualions bmnpacl on waluations
31 March 206 HSHERV  -FBERY  -ZRpSNEY  «Zobyes NEY SSheasts +SHansls
Emn fm En frn £m Em Em
Retait 54608 136 (126§ 08 (87 afa afa
Offices’ aru Ji18 (304 478 {201 nfa nfa
Canada Waler 250 1 m n [1}]] nfa nfa
Developments 343 24 124) 9 I8l 12 h2)
Group property portfolio valuation 10111 489 1463} 708 16341 12 n2)

Hincliedes trading praperties at fair value,

118 British Land | Annual Repart and Accounts 2017



10 Property continued

All other factors being equal:

- a higher aquivalent vield o7 discount rate woald {2ad 16 a decrzase in ihe valuation of an asset;

- anmoraase in the current or estimated future rental stream would have the elfect of inoreasing the capital value; and
- aninareasein the costs to complete would lead to 2 decrease in the valuation of anasset

However, there are interrelationships batween the unobservable inpuls which are partially determined by market condstions., vhich would impact
on these changes. Thare were no transiers between valuation levels in the pariod,

Additional property disclosures — intiuding covenant information

At 31 March 2017, the Group property porticlio valuation of £9.520m {2015/14: £10.111ml comprises freeholds of £3,576m 12015/14: C6.184ml; wrtual
freeholds of CRG9m {2015/14: E¥04ml: and long leaseholds of £3.135m [2015/14 £3.02im]. The historics! ans of properties was £6,.024m [2015/16: £6.554ml
The property valuation does not indude any investmenl properties held under operating leasas [201514: Cnil).

LCumulatree interest capitalised against investmenl, developrmant and trading properties amounts Lo £99m [2015/16: £88rni.

Properties valusd at £8.882m [2015/14: £2 55%m] were subject to a security interest and other preperties of non-recmirse companies amountad
to £1,158m [Z015/16: £1.244m), totalling £3.040m [2015/14: £3 863ml.

Included within the property valuation is £62m {2015/16: £110m) in respect of acorued contraciad rentsl uplilt income. The balzance arises through the
IFRS Ireatment of teases conlaiing such arvangemenis, which requires the recognition of renial incoma on a strawght-tine basis over the lease term,
with the difference between this and the cash receipt changing the carrying value of the property against which revaluations are measurad.

11 Joint veptures and funds

Sumimary movement for the year of the investments in joint ventures and funds

vun?; Funds Total Equly Loans Totad

Em Emn &m e [ m

At T April ZFI'IG 3,109 284 3353 2833 520 3,353

Additions - 5% 3 62 . 13 Ay a2

Disposals (4] - 130l - i30i 1301

Share of grofit on ordinary aclivities afier taxation &4 8 52 52 - 52
Distributions and dividends: ' ‘ :

- Capital . 7 - 1) (73} - (73

- Revenue . - 145} fi4} 59 59 - 59

Hedging and exchange movernents 1 - 1 1 - 1.

Rectassification of venture as held for sale assel isee page 124] 1540} - 1540} f355} ligsl 1540)

At 31 March 20Y7 2525 241 2,786 2412 354 2,784

Additional investments in joint ventures and funds covenant information

Al 31 March 2017 the investments in joint veniures included within the total investments in joint ventwres and funds and joint vanture held for sale was
£3,29%m 12015/14: €3,348mi, being the £2,766m total investment shawn above, plus the E540m joint venture held for sale, {ess the nel nvesiment of
£7m [2015/16: C5m] in PREF, a property fund in Continental Europe.
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11 Joint ventures and funds

The summarised income statements and balance sheets betow and on the in!lwmg page show 0% of the resulls, as2is and batnhies of joand
veniuras and fuinds. Whare necessary these have been restated to the Group's accounding pofices.

Joint ventures’ and funds’ summary finandial staterents for the year ended 31 March 2017

Broadyate MSE Property @ Samstany
BT Inlamedizte Suparsiores - Tesoo Jaont
Lig* Haldings L Ld Veniures®
Norges Bank
Euro Blusbell LLP lrestment
Pariners ) IGIC} Managamena J Samshury pie Teson PLE
City Offices  Shepping Centres
Property secior : . : Broadgale Meadowhall Suparsiofes Supersiones
Group share : 59% S0 ) 5%
& st @ state A £ Em £ Erm
Revenwe’ 245 99 &% i
Costs 521 §23) - -
) %3 74 49 19
Administrative expenses - : - - iz
et interest payable ' {e2l B ‘ 121 1)
Undertying Profit ' 1t & 28 8
Net vatuation mavement nas) 1] 117] 2
Capital finanding cosls - - na -
Profit on dispesal of invesiment properties and investments - - 3 3
ILoss) profil on ordinary activities before laxation {74} 40 . 27 241
Taxation ) - - - 2
{Loss) prefit on erdinary activitios after taxatian . 74} 40 zn (z2)
Other comprehensive income 1 — - i
Totat comprehensive income 1731 &0 1271 [Fa)]
British Land share of total comprehensive {expense) income {37 20 nsj 110}
British Land share of distributions payabte 3z 17 55 4
Irvesiment and trading properties 4.478 1.842 7%y 375
Current assels 2 5 - -
Cashand deposits 290 37 7 2
Grugs assels ATT0 1884 784 327
Gurrent liabiliies (a8} 141 221 21
Bank and securitised debt : .794) {668} (387 1185
Loans from joint venlure partners 357 ' 13%7) - -
Other non-current liabilities ' 15¢) (23l - ' 14
Gross liabilities «  f2.295) 10491 ) {389 171
Net assets 2475 a3s ks 136
British Land share of net assels less shareholder loans 1237 &17 199 &8
' Includied within the Broadgate REIT net valualion movernent is a E28m payment received in December 206 tnon UBS A G. in relation to the ! and.

occupation of 5 Broadgate. and subsequent vacation of 100 Liverpoot Street,_ including 8-10 Bioadgate.

* Tesco joint ventures include BLT Holdings 12010} Limited as al 31 March 2017,

3 USS joint venturres include the Eden Walk Shopping Centre Unit Trust and the Fareham Progerty Partnership.

* The Leadeahall colurmnn shows the equity accounted profit and loss for tha period. Due 1o the transaction which exchanged in March 2017, the et investment in this
veniure was reclassified as a held for sale asset fsee page 124).

= Hercules Unit Trust joint ventures and sub-{funds includes 50% of the results of Deepdale Co-Dwnership Trust, Gibraltar Limited Partnership and Vatentine
Co-Ownership Trust and £1.25% of Birslalt Co-Ovmership Trust. The batance sheet shows 50% of the assets of these juint ventures and sub-funds.

¢ induded in the column headed ‘Other joint ventures and funds’ are contributions frem the following: BL Goods Limiled Paztnership, The Aldgate Place Lirnitad
Partnarship, Bluabution Prapers iy Manag UK Limited, City of London Office Unit Trust and Pillar Retail Europark Fund IPREF). The Group's ovenership -
share of PREF is 5%, howaver as the Group is not able (o exercise control over significant dedcisions of the fund, the Group equity accounts for its interesi in PREF.

7 Revenye includes gross rental income at 100% share of £437m [2015/14: E45im].
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uwss Leadenhall Hornutes Uni Tars (Bher Tetat
e SouthGate Lirrdted Jaint Holding Co ot vennues ol venbizes Toral Group share
Partrarship Venitures® Dersey Ld* _and sub-funas® and G 017 o017
Universitizs ’
Superannuation
Aviva Scheme Group Oxlord
lrvestors PLC Properlies
Shaopping Shopping City Offices Retail
Cenires Centres Leadenhall Parks
S0 SG% S0% Varous
€m £m Lr] &m &m Em &m
17 14 43 35 1 522 260
{5 151 1ol {4} (] {180) . 50
12 ? 33 31 -~ £22 210
m - - - (] (14} [F)]
)] - - (4 - 1152) 781
10 ? ' 3 27 H] 264 132
[&) 171 107 11&) - 183 (93}
- - - - - nz (4]
~ - - - 3L 3L 18
1 2 140 n 33 105 51
- - - - - 2 1
& 2 140 1t 33 107 - 52
- - - - - 2 1
4 2 140 1 3 109 53
2 1 70 5 17 53
H - 5 14 ' 132
fm Ern Fm fm (27)] £m £m
264 247 - 603 1 B,52% 4,285
t 1 3 52 &4 32
8 7 - i0 28 399 200
m 255 - (313 a 8,992 & 497
[&) (6 - no ha {192) 1951
- - - - 9 - 3,153} s
- 122} - - Izt (708} {354)
128) - - K - 1151 (58]
(32} [28) - (153 31 {4,148] 12.085]
281 227 - 443 50 4,524 2,412
21 4 - 231 25 2,412

The borrowings of joint veniures and lunds and their subsidiaries are non-recourse to the Group. AU juirnd ventures are incorporated in the United Kingdom. with

it exception of Broadgate RET Limiled, the Eden Walk Shopping Centre Unit Trusi and Leadenhall Holging Go Llersey) Limited which are incorparaled in Jersey.

Dithe ium{s. the Hercutes Unit Trust [HUT] jeint venlures and sub-funds are incorporated in Jersey and PREF in Lurembroury.

These linancial statemnents include the results and financial pasition of the Group’s interest in the Farsham Property Partnershap, the Aldgate Place Limited Partnership,
_ the BL Goodman Limited Partnership, the Auchinlea Partnership and the Gibraltar Limited Parinership. Accordingly, advantage has been taken of the exemptions
provided by Regutatian 7 of the Partnership [Accounts] Regulations 2008, not to altach the partnership accounts to these finandial statements,
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Finanvial stateinents

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

11 Joint ventures and funds condnued

The summarisad incoma staiements and balante sheeis below and on the following page show 100% of the results. assels 2ad liabilities of joint
ventures and funds. Where necessary these have been restated to the Group's accounting pelicies.

Joint ventures’ and funds’ summary financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016

Brpadgate MST Proparty 6t Sainshuary :
e Intarmnadiate SuperEiEs Tesco _omme
Lid Holdings Lid L Ventures®
Morges Bank
Eury Bluzbel LLP Investmen! ’
Parlners IGIC) Managamen] ) Sainshury plc Tesco PLT
) CieyOffices  Shopping Centres.
Property sector Broadgate Meadowhall Sugersions Superstores
Group share . S0% - 50% S0% S0%
Revenue® 2464 102 56 9
Cosls - {13:1) 31 {1 .=
%6 7% 55 17
Adminisiralive expenses - - - -
Net interesl payable - (86 (381 124) 4]
Underlying Profit 1 &3 | 10
Net valuation movament 334 50 138} (1]
Prolit on disposal of investment properties and investrents - - 2 -
“Profit on ordinary aclivities before taxation 444 93 3 1
Taxation - - - 1
Profit on ardinary activities after taxation a44 9 [E 2
Other comprehensive income lexpenditure] .5 - - 3
Total comprehensive income 449 7 13) S
British Land share of total comprehensive income 225 44 2 3
British Land share of distributions payable ’ 44 7 i 4
s sed balance sheets Em m & £m
Investment and trading properties ' 44622 1786 944 354
Current assets ' : 4 5 2 _
Cash and deposils 93 32 BO [
Gross assets ANe 1,823 1.028 360
Currenl liabitities 177 131 130l 31
Bank and securitised debt 14842 1694) 462 1184)
Loans from joint venlure partners (KR} (289 - -
QOther non-current liabilities 1651 {24} - 1151
Gross liabilities 12,315) 11,010} 15921 1202
Nel assets 2,604 813 534 158
British Land share of net assets less sharehglder loans 1.302 407 268 79
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Le=denhall Harmdas Unst Tros)

The SouthGate Limited ﬁ Holsfing Co font ventures jok 1$ T m;ﬁ
Partnership Verilures? Uersayf Ltd and stdr-junds? -and Buredts* 28 204
Universities
Superannuation
Aviva Scheme Group Oxiord
Invesiors PLC Propertlies
Shopping , Shapping City Offices Retad
Cenlres . Cenlres Leadenhall Parks
S0% 50% 0% Various
tm &n Em £m o=m £m €m
19 12 15 38 6 531 266
(3] 131 {10) 17} 11} [99) {&4)
13 g 5 n 5 432 22
m - 1] 1) 2 o} 15
1} - - 18 - {164} {82}
n 9 % 17 3 258 135
& 12 24 4 7 90 25
- - - - 30 32 18
15 2 148 21 40 780 3%
- - - - . Al {2 1)
- 15 21 148 7 ” 778 ki /4
- - - 121 - [ 3
1% 27 148 ” a7 784 400
8 1 74 10 b3 400
& é 3 59 3 179
£m tm - tm m &m €m €m
247 252 942 612 108 9,889 £.944
2 1 - 4 14 32 8
5 7 5 9 13 £70 239
274 260 %7 825 155 15,391 5,201
4} (5] 13 17) 51 1215 mu
- - - 1391 - 13,321} 11,660)
- 120 13451 - 1631 {1,040} 1520}
(28] - - 14) |18} 1154) legi)
132) {24) 1371 1150} (132} 14,730) 12,368}
242 234 576 475 23 5,661 2833
21 17 . 208 239 12 2.833
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Finanvial scarements

NOTES T0 THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

11 Joint ventures and funds continued

Joint venture held for sale .

On ¥ March 2017 the Group exchangad conditional contracts on an agreement 1o sell its interest i Leadenhall Holding Co Dersay) Limsied,

a joint ventura with Oxford Proparlies. The transactian is expeciad ta compiete in the first hatf of the next Rnanciat year. 2nd thevelore the nel
nvesiment in the jeint venture has been recognised as a hald-for-sale asset from the date of axchangzs. The neti ent 25 at 31 March 2017
15 surnmarised below. ’

Joint venture held for sate — summarised balance sheet for the year ended 31 March

gtttz o
" 2017 %6
. fm &mn
Investrnend progerty 1075 -
Current assets ’ . 17 -
Current liabilities : 3k ] -
Loans from joint venture partners 1371 -
Netassets 708 -
British Land share of net assets less shareholder loans 55 -
Gperating cash flows of joint ventures and funds [Group share)
207 20156
m m
Rental incomne reteived from tenants . 207 208
Fees and other incame received - i
Operating expeases paid to suppliars and employeas - (20) 18]
Cash generated from operations 187 191
Interest paid 84) 841
Interest received : 1 1
UK corporation 1ax paid 2 i3
Fareign lax paid ) . - i}
Cash inflow from operating activities © 102 102
Cash inflow fromoperating activities deployed as:
Surplus cash retained within joint veatures and funds 43 73
Revenue distribulions per consolidated stalernent of cash flows 59 58
Revenue distributions split hetween controlling and non-controlling interests
Aliributable to non-controlling interests } & 4
Attribytable to shareholders of the Company 55 54
12 Other investments
7 1l
investment Loahs, Ivestment Leans,
heidfor  recstebles held for  recenabies
tradding and other Total trading and ovher Tozl
fm fm £m £m £ Em
At 1April ! 101 [A] 142 99 280 377
Additions - 25 F ] - 35 35
Disposals - 12 [Fi] - 12721 12721
Revaluztion . (8} - L] 2 - 2
Depreciation - 3 {3l ~ 21 L2t

At 31 March 93 61 154 10t - 4l 142

The investment held for trading comprises interests as a trust beneficiary. The trust's assels comprise freehold reversions in 2 pool of commerciat
properties. comprising Sainshury's superstores. The inlerest was calegorised as Level Jin the fair value hierarchy, is subject lo the same inpuls as
those disclosed in note 10, and s (air vatue was delermined by the Oirectors, suppocted by an externat valuation.
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13 Debtors

amy ol

£m . Em

Trade and other dablors » 24
Depaosits recevad relating to hetd for sale asset? . 144 -
Prepayments and aocrued income B 5 2
' m 7

' Redates lo deposit received on hetd for sale jon? wasgure transaciion [s2e nate 11l recognised 35 3 finandial assel, the reztisanion of wivich is conditional and not
quaranized as at the batance sheed dale.

Trade and olher deblors are shuwn aller deducting a provision for bad and doubthul debts of E14m [2015/16: £14ml. The charge la the income
statament in relabion to bad and doubiful debts was Elm 12015115 £iml.

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and ather deblors is approximate le thair fair value. These is no concentralion of credit
risk with respact lo trade deblors as the Group has 2 large number of cusiomers who are paying their rem in advance.

As at 31 March, trade and other deblors outside their paymenl terms yat no! provided for are as follows:

Within o1 1-2  Maorethan

Total oredi teems month months  2months

, X £m £m €m €m

017 2 7 kd L3 2

2016 24 12 LI 1 -
14 Creditors )

m7 2016

. £m - Em

Trade creditars ' _ o 127 39

Deposits received relating to hetd lor sale asset! 179 -

Other tazation and seoal secunty : 32 34

Accruals : 83 72

Deferred income : 72 3

458 218

* Relates to deposil recerved on held for sate joint venture ransaction [see note 1Y recognised as a finandial babdily ihe realisabon of wiuch is conditional and not
guarantead as al the balance sheet date. .

Trade creditors are inferesi-iree and have sstilement dates within one year The Direciors consider thal ihe carrying amount of irade and oiher
creditors is approgmale to their lair value,

15 Other non-current liabilities

M7 014

m Em

Other creditors . ‘ o - 1 70
Head leases' &4 &6
Net pension tiabilities ] . 13 4
78 122

' Includes Enil in relation to head lease Labilites on trading properties held al cost [2015/14: £9m).

i
]
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Finapeial seatemncs

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

16 Deferred tax
Tha mpvement on deferved 12x is as shown below:

Deferred tax assels year ended 31 March 2007

' 1A Cresfitedto Credited (dehited]  Transferred v 3% March
" . ans mome toequily CoYpOration tax am7
’ £&m L1))] Em m £m
Interast rate and currency derivative revaluztions S 11]] : - - 4
Oither timing dillerences : ) [ 1 - - - 7
n - - - 1n
Delerred tax Liabilities year ended 31 March 2017
i £m m £€m €m £m
Propertyand i tment revaluati 71 - - . - ¥ ]
Interext rate and cerrency derivative revaluations - - - - -
Giher tirming differences 3] - - 1 -
- sl - - 1 ) (1]
Netdeferred tax assets 3 - - 1 4
Deferved 1ax ascets year ended 31 March 2016
. 14pm Credited o Cradited kissied] T wd to 31 Manch
s noRne o ety oW vahures 2Me
) Em fm €m Em
Interesl rate and currency derivative revaluations - - , 5 - 5
Other timing differences - ] - - &
- & 5 = 1
Deferred tax liabilities year ended 31 March 2014
£m Em m fm £an
Property and invesiment revatuations - - 2 - n
Interest rate and currency derivative revaluations i4) 5 21 - -
Other liming differences 3 - - 2 ~
1] 25 {23l 2 - 18}
Netdeferved tax fliability) assets . nz N 1] 2 3

The loltowing corporation 1ax rates have been substantively endcted:; 19% elfective frorm 1 April 2017 reducing to 17% elfective from 1 April 2020.
Tha deferred tax assets and liabilities have been calculated al the tax rate effective in the period that the taxis expecled 10 crystallise.

The Gronp has recognised a deferred tax asset calculated at 17% 2015/16- 18%I of E£5m {2015/16: £6ml in respect of capital losses from previous
years availabte for offset against future capitat profit. Further unrecognised deferred tax assats in respect of capitat losses of £129m [2015/14: £40ml
exist at 31 March 2017,

Tha Group has recognisad deferred tax assels on darivative revalualions o the extent that luture maiching taxable profits are expected 1o arise.

AL 3V March 2017, the Group had an ynrecognised delerced tax asset calculated at 179% [2015/16: 16%] of £50em 12015/16: E5Imlin respect
of UK revenue tax losses frem prevnous years.

Under the REIT regime, development prnperlles which are sold within three years of completion de not benslit from tax exemplion. At 31 March 2017,

the value of such properlies is £176m [2015016: £967m] and if these propertias wafe 10 be sold and no 1ax exemption was available, the (ax arising
wauld be £13m [2015/16: £56mi.
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17 Net debt

xn7 mé
Fooinote m fm
Secured on the assets of the Group
92.125% First Morigage Debenture Stack 2020 1} he 7 4 k'
5.264% First Mortgage Debenture Bonds 2035 krsd n
5.0055% First Mortgage Amortising Debentures 2035 99 100
5.357% First Mortgage Debenture Bonds 2028 348 349
&.75% First Morigage Debenture Stock 2020 - 62
Bank loans 1.2, 13 £75 733
Loan notes 2 2
1,335 1.651
Unsecured :
5.50% Senjor Noles 2027 102 10m
3.895% Senior US Dollar Notes 2018 2 2 28
4.635% Senior US Dellar Notes 2021 2 m 165
4 766% Senior US Dollar Notes 2023 2 n3 105
5.003% Senior US Dollar Nates 2024 2 73 &9
3.81% Senior Notes 2026 14 13
3.97% Senior Notes 2024 17 114
1.5% Convertible Bond 2017 405 455
0% Convertible Bond 2020 k k1] 336
Bank loz2ns and uvérﬂrafls &77 634
1,965 210
Gross dabt 3 3.2 - 3,761
Interest rale and currency derivative tigbitities 144 137
Interes! rate and currency derivative assets 217 11671
Cash and short lerm deposits 45 {114l sl
Total netdebt 3094 1.67
Net debl attribulable to non-controlling interests 1103 " 04}
Net debt attributable to shareholders of the Company 2. 3.513
? These are non-recourse borrowings with no recourse for repayment lnutﬁumnpaniaorasselshﬁmﬁfmp;
2017 2016
Em Em
1.1 BLD Property Holdings Lid 34 34
1.2 Hercutes Unit Trust 475 443
1.3 TBL Properiies | imiled and subsidiaries - 290
509 767
¥ Principat and sterest on these horrowings were fuily hedged into Sterfing ata ﬂoa\mg rate 3l the limz of issue.
¥, Theprmupal amount of gross debt at 31 Manch 2017 was £3 846%m [2813/16: £3,352m. induded in this is the principat amount of secured bonuwmgsandomer
of non-recourse companies of £1.238m of which the bormwmgs of tha partty-ownad su.ﬁlsndsary Hercules Unit Trusk, net beneliciatly owned by the
< m;ﬂ‘ﬂ?: cash and shoft term depesits is the cash and shart term deposits of Hertules Unit Tmst. ai which £9m is the proportion not benedicially ovmed
s g’agaa?\?:zpnsits nol subject to a secunity interest amount to £99m (2015/14: E93m).
o,
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Finaneial statements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

17 Net debt continued

Maturity analysis of net debt '
o7 Aid
£m m
Repayable: within one year and on demand &84 74
Benwsan: one and two years 3 504
twa and five years ’ 1,283 L&DT
five and ten years ' 783 807
ten and fifleen years 33z 500
Rfteen 3nd twaniy years 388 385
twenty and twenty five years -
2,817 3487
Gross debl : ‘ , 3,281 3,761
lnterest rate and currency denvatives ' mil {30l
Cash and shorl term deposils ma {114]
Metdebt ) 3,094 3417

1.9% Convertible bond 2012 Imaturity 2017])
On 10 September 2012, British Land {Jerseyl Limited ithe 2012 Issuer), a wiwolly-owned subsidiary of the Group. issued €400 milion [.5% guaranteed
convertible bonds due 2017 {the 2012 bonds] at par. The 2012 Issuar is lully guarsnieed by the Company in respect of the 2012 bonds.

Subject to their terms. the 2012 bands are converible into preference shares of the 2012 Issuer which are automatically ransferred ko the Cornpany in
ex:hange for ordinary shares in the Company or, 2t the Company's election, any combination of ordinary shares and cash. Bondheldars may exercse
their corwersion right at any Gme up to lbut excludingl the 20th dealing day bafore 18 Seplember 2017 ithe maturity date).

The initial exchange price was 6%3.07 pence per ordinary share. The exchange price is adjusted basad on cerfain events.

From 25 September 2015, the Company has the oplion to redeem the 2012 bonds al par if Lhe Comparry's share price has traded above 130% of

the exchange price for a specified period, or at any lime once 85% by nominal value 6l the 2012 bonds have been converlad, redeemed, or purchased
_and cangaited, The 2012 bonds will be redeamed ak paf on 10 Septernber 2017 the matunity datel if they have not already been converted, redeemed

or purchased and cancelled. No redermption of the bonds eccurred in the year.

0% Convertible bond 2015 (maturity 2620)

On 2 June 2015, British Land {Whitel 2015 Limitad [the 2015 Issuer}, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, issued £358 million zero coupon

guatanteed conweriible honds due 2020 [the 2015 bondsl at par. The 2015 Issuer is fully guaranteed by the Company in respect of the 2015 honds.
L

‘Subject ta their terms, the 2015 bends are convertible inte preference shares ol the 2015 Issuer which are automatically transferred to the Campany
- in exchange fer ordinary shares in the Company or. al the Company’s election. any'combination of erdinary shares and cash. From 20 July 2015 up
1o and including 29 June 2018, a bondholder may exertise its conversion righl i the share price has Iraded at a level exceeding 130% of the exchange
price for a specified period. Theresafter, and up to but excluding the Fth dealing day belore 2 june 2020 [the maturity datel. 2 bondholder may comnvart
at any time.

The initial exchange price was 110332 pem:\e per ordinary share. The exchange price is adjusted based on certain events fsuch as the Caompany
paying dividends in any quarter above 3.418 pence per ordinary share]. As at 31 March 2017 the exchange price was 1853.79 pence per ordinary share.

From 30 june 2018, the Company has the option lo redeerm the 2015 bonds 2 par if the Company’s share price has traded abave 130% of the
exchange price for a specilied period. or at any lime once 85% by nominal value of the 2015 bonds have been converted. redeemed. or purchased
and cancelled. The 2015 bonds wilk be redeemed at par on ¥ June 2020 {the maturity date} if they have nol already baen converted. redeemad or
purchased and cancelled.
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17 Net debt continued

Fair vatue and hook vatue of net debt

7 2088
Ffarwvaine Bonkwalwe  [OEference Farwshe Bockwztue iferene
DBebantures and unsecured bonds 1,682 1590 92 1.637 1613 24
Convertible bonds T 737 - e m -
Bank deld and other iiosimg rate debl 953 54 ¥ 1,384 1,359 .1
Gross debt : 3382 3,281 m 3.580 3761 39
Interest rate and currency denvabve abilities 44 144 - 137 137 -
Interest rate and currency derfvative assels (Fab)l t277) - &7l 1167} -
Cash ang short term deposils ingl 114) - 1114} 1102} -
Netdebt ‘ : 3195 1,094 m 3.656 348 )]
Met debt attribulable to non -controlling interests nesi (103 2 1os} figdl @
Netdebt attrilnrtable to shareholders of the Company 3,090 2991 9 3550 3513 kY

Tha fair values of debentures, unsecured bonds and the convertible bends have been astablished by oblzining quoted marketl prices from higkers.
The bank debt and other fleating rate debt has been valued assuming it coutd ba renegotialed at contracted margins. The dermvatives have been
valued by calcutating the present value of expected future cash ﬂms using appropriate marke! discount rates, by an independent reasury advisor.

Short term deblors and creditors and ather investments have been exduded from the disclesures on the basis that the fair value is equivalent
lo the book value, The fair value hierarchy level fas delined in nole 10] of debi held at amor tised cost whase {air value is disdlosed is level 2.

Group loan to value [LTV] :
a7 a1
£m Om
Group loan to value {LTV) - ' 2.6% _ 252%
Principal armount of gross debt : 1@69 3552
Less debi atiributable 1o non-controlling ineresis an howi
Less cash and short term deposits (balance sheel M4 el
Plus cash aliributable 10 non-controlling interests ) 9 B
Total nel debt for LTV calculation 1,852 3337
Group property portfolio valuation inote 10] " 9520 1031
Investments in joint ventures and hunds [note 11} ) 2,764 3353
Joint venture held for sate Inate 11] 5490 -
Other investments {note 12| : ) . 154 142
Less property and investments atlributable 1o non-controlling interesis l.‘!u! 1384)
Tatal agsets for LTV calculation 12,818 13.222
Proportionally cansolidated toan to value (LTV)
m? 2016
. . Em Em
Proportionatly consaolidated 1oan to value (LTV) . . . 29.9% I2.1%
Principal amount of gross debt £,649 5217
Less debl attributable to non-controlling interests sl hizel
Less cash and short lerm deposits ’ B2 1353
Plus cash atlributable lo non-conrolling interests g ¢
Total net debt for proportional LTV calculation 4,207 £.745
Group property portlolio valuation [nate 16! ’ 9,520 mm
Share of property of joint ventures and funds inate 16} . 4801 4937
Other investments Inote 121 . . 154 142
Less other investments attributable o joint ventures and funds Q) 3]
Less property altributabie to non-controlling interests 1381) 500!
Total assets for proportional LTV calculation . ' 14,001 16,786
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Finaavial 2tatements

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

17 Net debt condnued

British Land Unsecured Finandal Covenants
The iwo finandal covenants applicable to the Group unsecured dabt incteding convertible honds ate shown helow-

m? 2id
&m Om
Net Borrowings not to exceed 175% of Adjusted Capitaland Reserves 29 3%
Principat amount of gross debt : < 3,059 3552
Less the relevant proportien of borrowings of the partiy—owned subsgidiary/non-conlrolling inigresis mz {109}
Less cash and deposits fbalance sheet) ma) 1114}
Plus the relevent proporticn of cash and deposils of the partly-owned subsidiaryfnon-controlling mﬂeresis 9 8
Net Borrowings , 2,852 3.337
Share capital and reserves [balance shaet) 9,676 9.619
EPRA deferred tax adjusimant JEPRA Table Al 3 S
Trading property surpluses [EPRA Table A} . a3 73
Exceptional refinanding chargas {see below] . - ’ 274 287
Fair value adjustments o finandalinstruments [EPRA Table Al ' s 198
Less reserves atiributable T non-contralling interests [balance sheeil - 1255) 1277
Adjusted Capital and Reserves - . 9,734 7925

1n calculating Adjusted Capital z2nd Reserves for the purpose of the unsecured debt financal covenants, there is anadjustmnent of £274m (20159/16:
E287m] (o reflect the cumulative nel amor lised exceptionaliterns relating to Lhe reflinancings in the years endad 31 March 2005, 2006 and 2007

my 04
&m £m
Net Unsecured Borrowings not to exceed 70% of Unencumbered Assets : . 26% 2%
Printipal amount of gross dabt 2,06% 3.552
Less cash and deposils not subject to a secunityinterest lbeing £99m less the relevant proporlmn of cash and depasits of the 98) 188]
partly owned subsidiary/non-cantrolling intarests of £3m| .
Less pnacipal arneunt of secured and non-recourse bormowings 1,238) 11.563)
Met Unsecured Borrowings . 1,735 1901
Group property portiolio valuation (aole 10) : 9.520 101
Investmenis in joinl ventures and funds [note 11f : : 2,764 3353
Joinl venture held for sale lnote 11 540 -
Other inveslenents {note 12] ) 154 142
Less investmentls infoint ventures and joint veniure beld for sale [note 1) 329 £3.348)
Less encumbered assets Inote 16] - 13,040) £3.803)
Unencumbered Assets . ' 6,641 8,455
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17. Net debt continued

Reconciliation of movement in Group net debt for the year ended 31 March 2017

Arrangoment
Fareign asis
o _ . o o 2016 Cashflows Transters® exchange Fairvalne  amortisiion any
Shart termn bormowings o % ey o= - - &4
Long term borrowings 3,687 1823 KaL) &9 138) . & 2.8v7
Derivatives' {30] 1 - {£8] & - 1731
Total {iabilities from finandng activities M {598 - 1 f32) 4 3.208
Cashand cash equivalems ma) - - - - - 4
Netdebt . 3,617 {£95) - 1 2} A 3,094
Reconciliation of movement in Group net debt for the year ended 31 March 2014
Farengn onsis
15 Cashiisas Trensiers® exthangs Farvswe e2morisalion 2016
Shorl term borrowings ) 162 11041 74 2 - - 7
Long term borrowings 3847 98} 24 % % 7 3587
Barvalives® 113) 2 = 113} . f28) - __ o
Total liabilities from Fnancing actvities 3938 gl - 3 35l 7 37
Cash and cash equivalents. 1108l ] - - - - s}
Net debt . 3878 11841 - 3 1351 7 3.607
' Cash Rows on derivatives induds £14m of nal receipts on derfvaliveintarast.
? Cash flows on darivatives inclede €7 of ned recuiphs on devivalive inlarast.
3 Transfers comprises debt maturing frem lang term ta short term bormowings.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

17 Net debt continued

Fair value hierarchy
The table below provides an analysis of finanaat instruments carried at fair value, by the valualion methed. The fair value huerarchy levels are daltined
in nate 0. :

M7 : 2016
Level 1 Lewel2.  Levald Totn Level t Level 2 Lot Temt
£m £m £m " &m Em jicy) Dn £m
Inferest rate and currency derivalive assels - {21 - a7 - (67} - 167
Other investments - available for sale 114} - - n4 Co - - -
Other investments — held for trading - - ()] 193 ~ - 1101 hai
Assets : 18 217 (73 1324 - (£ lioy 1268}
interes! rate and curvency derivative liabilities - & - 144 - 137 - 137
Convertible bonds 737 - - 737 779 - - 73
Liabilities 737 144 - 881 b i 137 - 914
Total ‘ ) 723 (73] 73] 557 779 130} 101) &48
Categories of financal instruments
207 2014
€m tm
Financdial assets
Fair value through income statement
Other imestiments - held for trading : . 9 101
Derivatives in designated hedge accounting refationships 215 793
Derivatives not in designated hedge accounting relationships ' 2 3
Loans and receivables
Deblors _ 145 %
Cash and shert term depasits - ‘ 14 N4
Qther investments - loans and receivables (3] 41
651 447
Finaneial labilities
Fair value through income statement )
Convertible bonds ' ' o 17371 779
Derivatives in designated hedge accounting relationships ‘ &3 nan
Derivatives not in designated accounting relationships . . 4] -
Amortised cost ' .
Gross debt , ) (z546)  [2982)
Head leases payable - 134) 146l
Creditors . (3731 11334
) ] 13,8820 {0771
Tatal . ' Bl 3630

Gains and losses on financial insiruments, as classed ahove, are disclosed in nole 4 Inel (inancing costs). notz 13 [debiorsl, nole § [valuation
maovemnents on propertyl, the consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive incame. The Directors consider
Ihat the carrying amounts of other investmenls and head leases payable are approxirnaie to their lair value, and that the carrying amounts

are recoverable,
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17 Net debt continued

Capital risk management .

The capital siructure of the Group consists of net debl and equity alinhuiabla io the equity holders of The British Land Company PLE, comprising
issued capitzl, reserves and retained earnings. Risks retaling ta capitat siructure are addressed within Managing risk in delivering Our stralegy en
pages 44 to 4% The Group’s objeclives, policies and processes for managing dabl are sel sud in the Financial policies and principles on pages £3

to &Y.

interest rate risk management
The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge exposure 10 the variability in cash Aews on fleating rate debi, sedch as revolving bank facilities
and floating raie bunds caused by movemens in markel rates of interest.

At 31 March 217, the fair value of these derivalives is a net liability of £143m. Inlerest rale swags with a fair value of £143m have been designaled
as cash flow hedges under [AS 39. \

The inelfecliveness recognised in the income staternent on cash Row hadges in the year ended 31 March 2017 wes il §2015/16: Cnil).

The cash ftrass occur and are charged to profit and loss until the maturity of the hedged debi: The lable below summanises variable rate dabt
. hedged at 31 March 2017.

Cash flow hedged debt
7 2018
€m Em
Ouistanding:  al one year £50 £13
al two years 450 663
al ive years 250 259
at ten years 50 250
Fair value hedged debt :
The Group uses inlerest rale swaps o hedge exposure on fixed rate linancial liabilities caused by movemnenis in market rates of interest.
AL 31 March 2617. the fair value of these derivalives is a nel asset of £216m. Interesl rate swaps with a fair value of £215m have been designated
as {air vatue hedges under 185 3% [2015/16: asset of C164ml
The cross currency swaps of the 2018/2021/2023/2026 US Private Placements fully hedge the foreign exchange exposure at an average floating
rate of 145 basis points a2bove LIBOR. These have been designated as lair valve hedges of the US Private Placemnents.
Interest rate profile — including effect of derivatives
27 014
£m tm
Fixed or capped rate 1,604 2372
Variable rate Inet of cashi ) ) 1490 1,245
‘ 3,09 3617

All the debt is eflectively Sterling denominated except for £13m [2015/14: E10m] of Eure debit of which £11m is at a fixed rate (2015/14: £10m].

A1 31 March 207 the weighled average interest rate of the Sterling fixed rate debt s 3.3% [2015/16: 3.5%]. The waighted average period {or which the
tate is (ixed s 8.3 years [Z015/16: 7.1 years). The ftoating rate debt is set for periods of the Company's choosing at the relevant LIBOR lor similar] rate.

The proportion of net debt at fixed or capped rates of inlerest was 78% at 31 March 2017 on 3 spot basis_ pro forma lor the | eadanhall ransaction
{see page 124 The proporbon of net debt at fixed or capped rates of interest as an average over the next five year forecast period, on a proportionally
consolidated basis, was §0% al 31 March 2017. Based on the Group's interest rate profile, at the balance sheei date, a 576 bps increase in interest
rates would decrease annual profits by £87m [2015/18: £72m decreasel. Similarly, a 34 bps reduction would increase profits by £5m [2015/14: E7m
increase). The change ininterest rates used for this sensilivity analysis 1s based on the largest annual change in three month Sterting LIBOR over
the tasl ten years. The impad! assumes LIBOR does not falt below 8%.
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17 Net debt continued

interest rate profile - inciuding effect of dertvatives continued

Upward movements in medium and long term interest rates, assoctiated with higher interas! raie expectations, inarease the valuz of the Group's
interest rate swaps that previde protection against such moves. The convarsa is true for downward mavermnents in the yield curve. The majority of the
Group’s inleresl rate swaps which pravide such protection qualify as sifective cash flow hedges under 1AS 37 therefore movaments in the fair valee
are recogmised directly in aguity rather than the income stalement. A 204 bps shill represents the largast annual change in the seven year Sterling
swap rate gver the last ten years At 31 March 2017 a 204 bgs parallel upward shill in swap rates woutd increase the value of these interest rale

swaps by £82m [2015/16: £15km). A 204 bps dawrevard shift in swap rates wauld reduce the value of these interest rate swaps by £130m [2015%/14:
£397ml. Because the inlerest rate swaps are matchag by ftoating rate debt, the averall efiact on Group cash flows of such movements is minimal.

The 1.5% 2012 Convertible Band and 0% 2015 Cenvertible Bond are both designated as kir value through profit or loss. Principal compenents of the
market value of both bonds include British Langd's share prica and its valalility, and market interest rates.

The fair value of the 1.5% 2012 Convertible Bong at 31 March 2017 was a £E406m batality. At 31 March 2017 a 204 bps paraliel ugward shafil in interest
rates would reduce the fair value liatitity by £4m_and a 204 bps downward shiflt in interest rates would increase the fair value lability by €4m.

The fair value of the 0% 2015 Convertible Bond at 31 March 2017 was a £33 km Liability. At 31 March 2017 a 204 bps paraite! upward shift in inleres!
rates would reduce the fair value lability by £21m, and a 204 bps dovwaward shafl in interest rates waould increase the lair value Liabitity by £22m.
. AS

Foreign currency risk management

The Group’s policy is ta have no materiat unhedged net assets or Liabilities denorninated in loreign currendes. The currency risk on gverseas
investmanis is hedgad via foreign currancy denominaied borrowings and derivatives. The Group has adapled net investment hedging in accordance
with 1AS 37 and therefare the portion of the gain or 1oss on the hadging insirument that is determinad to be an effective hedge is recegmised dlmcny
in equily. The ineffective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recogmsed immediately in lhe income slalemnent.

.The iable below shows the carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign r.unency denominated assels and liabilities. Pr d contingant Lax on oversazs
invesifments is nol expacted o eccur it will be ignared tor hedging purposes, as is the requirement 1o fair value interest rate swaps. Based on the

31 March 2017 position a 33% apprecation {largest annual change aver the last ten years] in the Euro relative to Slerling would resull in a £nit change
[2015/1%: Enit] in reported profils,

it
207 2016 207 0%
€m £m £ £m

Euro denominated . n 19 n i0

Credit risk management

The Group’s approach to credit risk management of counterparties is referred to in the Financial policies and principles on pages 43 to 45 and the
risks addressed within Managing risk in delivering Our stratagy on pages &4 to 49. The carrying amount of linancial assels recorded in the financiat
statemments represents the Group's maxirmum exposure to credit risk withaw taking acoount of the value of any collateral obtained.

Cashand short Iet;m deposils at 31 March 2017 amounted ta £114m [2015/16: E114mi. Deposits and interest rate deposits were placed wilh financial
institutians with BEB+ or better credit ratings.

AL 21 March 217, the fair value of all interes! rate derivative assets was £217m 12015716 £167m).

AL March 2017, ptior to taking into account any offset arrangerents, the largest combined credit exposure to a single counterparty afising from
money market deposits, liguid investments and derivatives was £120m 12015/14: €85mil. This represents 0.9% [2015/15: 0.6%.) of gross assets.

The depasit exposures are with UK banks and UK branches of internalicnat banks.

The Group's exposure to credil risk in respect of its trade receivables is analysed in note 13. Provisions are made taking actount hastetic credit tosses,
and the creditwor thiness of debiers. ,

Liquidity risk management

The Group's approach te liquidily risk management is discussed in the Financial policies and principles on pages 43 10 45, and the risks addressed”
within Managing risk in detivering Our stralegy on pages £6 to 49. .

The fallowing table presents a maturily profile of the conlracted undistaunted cash Rows of financial listilities based on the earliest date an which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and principal lows. Where the interest payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed
has been determined by reference to the projected interest rates implied by yield curves at the reporting date. For derivative inancial instruments
that settle on a nel basis le.g. interest rale swaps) the unthscounied net cash Hlows are shown and Jor derivatives that require gross selllement
le.g. cross currency swaps) the undiscounted gross cash Hows are presented. Where payment ohligations are in foreign currencies, the spot
exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date is used. Trede credilors and amounts owed tojoint ventures, which are repayable wathin one year,
have been excluded from the analysis.

134 British Land | Annual Report and Accounts 2017




17 Net debt continued

Liquidity risk et continued

The Group expacts io meet its fiinondal lizbiites through the various available h@um sources, induding a secura rental income profils, asset sates,

undrzvam commitled borrowing fzolitizs and, in the longer term, debi refinandngs.

The Group leases out all its invesiment properties under operaiing leases with a weighled svarage lease length of sight years Thes secura income
profile is generated from upward only rent reviews, long leases and high ocoupancy rates. The future aggregate minimum rentals receivable under
non-cancellzble operating {2ases is 2lso show in the table below. income from joint ventures ang funds is noi included below. Additionai Liquidity
will 2nse from leiting space in properties under construction a5 well as frem distributions received from joint ventures and funds.

a7
Three
Within  Following o five Ower five
one year year years years Towt
£m €m £m &m [}
Debt’ £59 3 1.240 1420 a2
Interest on debt Bé 235 458 are
Desivative payments 12 &4 1) 243 508
Head lease payments 2 2 7 54 255
Totat payments 552 145 1,67 2,405 4,803
Derivative receipts 26! [(3]] 1255) 1251) 1593)
Net payment 536 104 1414 2154 4,210
Gperating leases with tepants £05 382 984 1,750 3521
Liquidity surplus Ideficit] ~ ni 78 15321 lao4) - {589}
Cumulative tiquidity surplus defdt] - 147 1285} 1689)
b8
Threa
Witin  Follgaing to five Over foe
ome year year years years Toz=i
Im Em fm m fm
Debt! 74 £41 1.47% 1577 3.585
interest on debt 03 106 258 538 1.007
Derivalive paymenis 13 14 77 395 492
Head lease paymenls 2 2 & 739 263 -
Tatal paymenits 94 577 1.822 2.749 5342
Derivalive receipts k23t {25} 104 1383) 1535l
Net paymnent m 552 1718 2.366 4 BO7
Operating leases with tenanls &37 419 1133 2.38% 4378
Liquidity surptus [deficit 268 [133) 15851 73 149
264 133 [452) 1629)

Cumulative liquidity surplus [deficit)

* Gross debt of £3,281m [2015/16: £3.751m] represents the toial of £3.1325 less unamortisad issue 0osts of C13m (201516 D19, plus fair value adjustrents 1o debl

of £134m [2013/14: £195m].

Any short lerm liquidity gap belween the a2t paymenis required and the rentals receivable can be met through other liquidity sources available

ta the Group. The Group currently hotds cash and short term deposits of E114m of which E99m is not subject to a security interest [see fogtnate §
to net debt table ofi page 127), Further liquidity can be achieved through sates of properiy assels or investments and debt refinancings.

The Group's property portfolio is vatued externally at £9.520m and the share of joint venures and funds’ property is valued at £4 801m.
The undrawn comsmitted borrowing facilities availabte to the Group are a further source of liquidity. The maturity profite of commitied

uruirawn borrowing facilities is shown overleal.
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17 Net debt continued

Maturity of committed undrawn borrowing facilities

m? ane

£m €

Maturity dsle:  over e years - 125 -

’ between four and five years 1,310 3,113
between thyze and lour years 58 95

Toral facitiijes available inr move than thres years ' ' 127 1.208
" Between two and three years 149 85
Beiween one and two years ‘ . ‘ -~ -
Within one yaar 2 &0
Total ] 1444 1.353

The above faclities are compnsad of Brilish Land undrawn facilibies of £1,3220n. plus undrawn faalibes of Haroules Unit Trest tmumg £122m.
18 Leasing

Operating leases with tehants ) '
The Group leases oul all of its investmeni properties under oparating leases with a weighlad average tease lengih of eighl years (2015/14: nine years].

The future aggregate minimum renlals receivable under non-cancellable operaling leases are as follows:

2007 Faild

im Em

Less than cne year A05 437
Between one and two years, 382 419
Between three and five years 98 1133
Between sit and ten years 980 1.241
Betwaen eleven and fitteen years &80 _b2b
Between sixteen and twanly years 18 357
AHer twentyyears . 129 165
Totat . . sn 4378

The Group's leaseheld investment properties are typically under non-renewable leases withoul significant restrictions. Finance lease liabilities are
payable as follows; no contingent rents were payable in either period. ’

2017 s

ease e
payments Interest Principat pPAPTENTS Ieresy Promopot
3 &m €m m o Em £m

British Land Group .

Less than one year 2 2 - 2 2 -
Between cne and t;myears.‘ 2 2 - 2 2 -
Between two and live years : 7 T - & & -
More than five years 269 205 &4 23% . 193 46
Total ' 280 216 &8 249 283 46

Less future finance charges (218} tze3i

Present value of lease obligations 54 - 46

More than live years 84 46

Present value of lease obligations b 46
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19 Dividend

The fourth quarier interim dividand of 7.30 pance per share, totalling £79m [2015/146: 7.0% pence per share, tolalling £73m) was approved by the Board
on 16 kay 2017 and is payable on £ August 2017 to shareholders on the register at the close of business on 30 June 217,

The Board will announce the availability of the Scrip Dividend Allermative, if available, via the Regulatory News Service and on ils websdie
lwwwebritishland.com/dividends), no tater than four business days before the ex-dividend date of 30 June 2017. The Board expacis lo announce
the split between Property Incomnve Distributions [PID] and nen-PI0 income at thal time. Any Scrip Dividend Allernative will ot be enhanced. PID
dividends are paid, as required ty REIT legiclalion, alter daduciion of withholding tax at the basic rate lcurreatly 20%), where apprapriate. Certain
classes of shareholdars may be able to elect o receive dividends gross. Please refer 1o cur websile wwebritishtand. com/fdividends for deiails.

Pere par 2017 08
Payment date Dirvidkersd share £m m
Current year divitends |
05.08.2017 2017 &hiinjerim 7.30
046.05.2017 2017 3rd inerim 730
12.02.2017 2017 2nd interim 7.30 7
06112004 . 2017 Istinterim 730 n
i ‘ 72.20
Prior year dividends
05.08.2016 2006 Lthimterim ' o9 7
06052014 2016 3rd interim . 702 3
12.02.2014 ' 2016 Znd interim 709 n
046.¥1.2018 2016 15t intenm . ) 709 n
28.34
07.08.2015 2015 4th interim [S e 71
04.05.2015 2015 3rd interim 692 n
Dividends in consolidated statement .
of changes in equity 296 287
Dividends settled in shares . . - {521
Dividends seitted in cash ‘ 296 235
Timing difference relating to payment ’
of withholding tax n -
Dividends in cash ftow statement ‘ .. . 295 235
' Dividend sptit hall PID. half non-PHD.
2 Scrip alternative treated as non-PlD for this dvidend
20 Share capital and reserves
an7 2016
Number of ordinary shares inissue al 1 Apnit ' ) 1,0£0,562.323 1031788.286
Share issues . &72,735 B 774037
. At31 March . . 1,D51,035,058  1,048.562.323

Of the issued 29p ordinary shares, 7.783 shares were held in the ESOP 1rust [2015/16: 627). 11,266, 265 shares ware held as treasury shares [215/164:
11,266 245) and 1,029.741 030 shares were in ree issue (2015/14: 1.029.295.541). No treasury shares were acquired by the ESOP trust during the year.
Al issued shares are Jully paid.

Hedging and translation reserve

The hedging and iranslation reserve comprises Lhe effective partion of the cumutative net change in the fair value of cash flow and foreign currency
hedging instruments, as well as all for eign exchange dillerences arising [rom Lhe transiation of the linancial stelernents of foreign operations.

" The foreign exchange differences also include the transiation of the liabilities thal hedge the Company's net invesiment in a foreign subsidiary.

Revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve relales to owner-occupied properlias and investments in joint ventures and funds,

Metger reserve

This comprises the premium an the share placing in March 2013, No share premium is recorded in the Compaﬁy's financial statements, through the
operation of the merger reliel provisions of the Companies Act 2006.
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20 Share capital and reserves continued

AL3T March 2017, options gver 7535181 ordinary shares ware sulstsnding snder ernpluyes shara option plaris. The oplions had a weighted AETIGE
lite of & 3 years. Details of cutslanding share options and shares awarded to employees inctuding Executive Directors are set oul below and on the
following pages:

Exartics daws
At 1A Vested bt Exercisedf At 31 March Exerioe
Date of gramt il Grantd ot exsrosad Vesiad Lapsed M7 price pene Famn T
Share aptions Sharesave Schemsa
0Le7.1l 7172 - - 17.472] - - £73.00 01.02.06 280217
260812 42,698 - - - L - £2,698 39200 0109297 | 010318
19.06.13 T 34792 - - [31.558] 2817} N7 51180 0no2Ns 280217
17.05.13 15. 202 - - - - 15,202 ‘51100 01.09.08  01.03.19
23.06.14 ) 137.254 - - 12.855) [17862) 114537 57500 01.65.17  ©1.03.8
230614 12192 - - . 152681 ]23.61"6! 98,450 57£ 00 010913 01L03.20
220615 75,167 - - {193} {36757) . 39,205 49700 0Le%18 £1.03.19
220615 58,350 - ' ~ . - [37968), 29382 £97.00 010920 Wlo3n
200618 - 2820 - - 120719} 2,1n 608 80 010219  01.03.20
200618 - 78.344 - - 119.044} S%.300 608.00 010221  01L.03.22
498,827 191,164 - [47.386] N158.453] 484,192 - '
Lang-Term Intentive Plan - Optiohs Yested, Not Exercised .
29.05.09 14,672 - - 181391 - 10,333 3B7.00 290612 290619
219209 72 454 - - 12,744} - 8970 £46.00 2.12a2 29219
110610 1,208,357 - ‘ - 11,2041 - 1,207153 L4700 118613 11.06.20
14.12.10 69,657 - - (9.095¢ {639) 59933 510.00 14.12.13 14.12.20
28061 4 1.084.233 - - [280007) 973) 823,253 575.00 80614 280620
LEAYRIE 95575 - - (175621 {ien 76,828 £51en - VY LEAY &
14,0912 115,710 - -~ #5077 {15776) 3.055.907 538.00 140915 140922
20212 120317 - - 133.3241 19648} 77.345 563.00 203215 2012.22
050813 6718 643578 - 24 822) 1312544} 333,028 601.00 05.08.16 050823
051213 5766 402,600 - 82691 1196082) 208MS 400,00 051216 05.12.23
230644 . 7890 - - - (7890 - 684.33 “2306Y7 23.06.24
- 3802157 1066278 - 1402.193] - 1554,739] 3,921,503 )

Long-Term Incentive Plan - Unvested Qptions
050813 663,678 - 16636781 L= - - 601.00 05.08.16 050823
651213 . 402,600 - 1402 6001 - -, - 60000 © 051216 051223
30604 . 829.708 - - - 165854} 763,854 4684.33 730617 23.06.24
12124 26,127 - - - - 24,127 757.83 121217 121224
220615 1,109,207 ~ - - 87,354} 1,021,853 824 .50 220618 2206.25
72066 . - 133392 - - 116562} 1,317,362 730.50 220619  22.06.28

3031320 1333924 11066278 - N89.7701  3,929.196
Total ) 7332304 2591366 11.066,278] 14493391 1873142) 7,534,871
Weighted average exercise ' .
price of aptions {pence} 599 648 601 557 638 (Y4
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20 Share capital and reserves continued

Ghasre price:
At3March  agranidate

211 Aprd Erairad!
Date of grane £ Graved \iagre my ponco  Vedtingdatn
Performance Shares Long-Term Incentive Plan
05.08.13 1034453 - 5830671 E453.258) - SH.U Ub.ud. 36
051213 ! 230.226 - 24902  No5324] - &00.08 051216
23.06.14 1.359.223 - - 56,8691 1,302,354 684 00 230607
121214 4,354 - - - £.354 79783 121217
220615 1.199.762 - - {85531 1,151,199 B24 50 220618
7204.16 - 1,2883% - 1146020 1,273,754 73050 220819
3830018 128835 (70B06% 16786440 31,731,681
Fund Managers’ Perforimance Plan :
02.08.13 179.664 - 1178.330) 11,3341 - 57900 02.08.17
179,654 . - 178.330) 11,334] -
Matching Share Plan
02.08.13 348890 - 76,4455  N74.445) - &07.66 02.08.16
300614 289 540 - - - 289,540 702.40 30.06.77
290615 82170 - - - 282,170 806.00 29.06.38
29.06.14 - 318,932 - - 38932 BO700 29.06.19
920,620 318,232 N74.445) [174,445) B90.662 '
Total 4930302 1.£07.288 |i06D.B44} [854.473) 44622323
Weighted average price of shares [pencel 597 746 &2 423 749

21 Segment information

The Group allocates resources lo investynent and asset managemenl according to the seclors it expects 1o perform over the medivm term. lis three |
principal sectors are Otfices, Retad and Canada Water. The Olfice sectar includes residential, as this is oflen incorporaled into Office schemes. The
Offices sector atso includes the British Land share of the Leadenhall joint venture {see note 11). The Retail sector includes leisure, as this is often

incorparated #to Retail schemes.

The relevant gross rental income. net rental income, operaling resull and property assels. being the rmeasures of segrment revenue_segiment resull
and segment a5seis usad by the management of the business, are sel out betow. Management reviews the performance of the business principally on
a proportionally consolidated basis, which includes the Group's share of joint ventures and funds on a tine-by-line basis and excludes nan-conirolling

_ interestsin the Giroup's subsidiaries. The chief operating decision maker far the purpose of segmeni inforrnationis the Executive Cornmitlee.

Gross rental income is derived from the rental of buldings and the sale of trading properties. Operating rasult is the net of net ngnlél intome,
tee income and administrative expenses. No customer exceeded 10% of the Group’s revenues in either year.
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21 Sepmeat informaton continued

Segment result
Offices Raiad Canada Waler Chenfenatincated Vo
€17 2016 2017 me amz 016 F.i1)4 2018 017 M6
) €m tm €m &m £m Em £m tra £m Em
Gross rental income
Brilish Land Group 139 133 7 bl 9 8 - - &7 432
Share af joint ventures and funds 1% 14 100 ies - - - 4 216 222
Yatal 55 77 I 395 9 8 - & 643 654
Netrentalincome
Brilish Land Group 13 124 265 277 ] 7 §]] - 403 408
Share of joint venlures and funds nz 10 5 k2 -~ - . - 3 207 212
Total 243 234 350 s ] 7 [1)] 3 410 H20)
Operating result .
British Land Group ‘ 127 112 255 289 S 7 150] 137] 37 33
Share of joint ventures and funds 109 109 9% 02 - - m 1 204 210
Total 236 221 . 33 462 5 -7 151) 1471 541 543
amz 2018
Recontiliation to Undertying Profit £m &
QOperating resutt ' 541 543
Net inancing costs s {180t
Undertying Profit 3%0 343
Reoonciliation to profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Undertying Profit 390 343
Capital and olher 209 54
Underlying Profit aliribulzble to non-cantrolling interests ) - 14 34
Total profit on ordihary activities before taxation s 1331
01 the telal revenues above. Enil {2015/14: £4m] was derived from cutside the UK.
Segment assets
Offices Retail Canada Water Crherfunaliocated Teiat
2017 18 07 1173 mm7 W m7 018 2017 e
) m tm £m Em m m Em &m m m
Property assets
British Land Group 4,223 4181 4,716 5323 rn 283 - - ?2.210 9787
Share of joint ventures and funds, 2,792 2843 1938 2.mg - - - - 4,730 4 Bat

Totat 7,015 7024 5,654 7341 m 183 - - 13,940  14.648
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21 Scgment information continued

Reconciliation to net assets

07 08
Sritish Land Group : m £m
Property assals 13940 14648
Othar non-current assets ' ) ) 158 © 138
Non-current assets 14,094 15,784
Oihar nat current liabitilias ' ) (57
Adjusied nel debt 6,223 (4785
Diher non—current abilitres . 1) 190}
EPRA net assets (undituted) , , 9498 9674
Comver tible dilution - 400
EPRA net assets {diluted) . 9.498 13.0748
Non-controlling interests ! 255 riyi
EPRA adjusiments 2 7321
Netassets ] 94786 9,419

22 Capital commitments

The aggregate capilal commitments to purchase, construct or develop invesimant properly, for repairs, maintenance o enhancements or for the
purchase of investments which are contracled for but nol pravidad, are set out below:

2017 20t

€ €m

British Land and subsidiaries fincludes share of developrnent loan laalityl . 86 74
Share of joint ventures. - - 19 40
Share of fuads ' 2 2

' 107 26

23 Related party transactions

In the prior year the Group had provided 3 deéetopmenl Lloan of up to £320m 1o the Broadgate joint venlure, secured against the 5 Broadgate
development. The loan was fully repaid in the prior year and interest and coramitment fees eamned on the loan in the prior yeat were £4m.

Dedails of ransactions with joinl vantures and funds are given in noles 3, 6 and 11. During the year the Group recognised joint venlure management
tees ol L9m 12015/16: £8m). Details of Direclors’ remuneraticn are given in the Rermuneration Report on pages 73 to 88_ Delails of transactions with
key managemenl personnel ara provided in niote 8. Delails of transaclions with The Brilish L and Group of Companies Pension Scheme, and other
smaller pension schemes, are given in note 7.

24 Contingent liabilities

Group, joint ventures and funds
The Group, joint ventures and funds have contingent liabilities in respect of legal ctaims, guaraniees and warranlies arising in the ordinary course
of business. It is not anticipated that any matenat liabilities will arise from contingent tabilities.

N
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Financial stacemenrs

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS CONTINUED

25 Subsidiarics with material non~controlling interests

Set out helow is sumrnansed financial information for eadh subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are materiat to the Group.
The mformation below s the amocuni hafore inlarcompany elimnations, and rapresends the consobidaied resulls of the Hartutes Unit Trust group.

Summarised income statement for the year ended 31 March

Heroutes Uine Torst
2017 2006
. n Em
Profit on ordinary activities after axation ) 0 . 5¥
Altritutable Lo non-controlling inferests 3 19
Avtributable to the shareholders of the Company : ‘ 7 40
Suminarised batance sheetas at 31 March
Heroules Unig Trust
2017 2016
. £m Tm
Total assets ‘ R ] : ] 1509 1.490
Total liabilities ‘ 1531 1569)
Netassets . 978 1,021
Non-contrelling interesis 2535} 277)
Equity attributable to sharehelders of the Company N 723 Thé
Summarised cash flows
Hesoutes Unat Trust
207 2016
£m £m
Netincrease [decrease] in cash and cash equivatents 10 151
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April ) 30 s
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March . . 40 Kli]

The Hercules Unit Trust is a publicty listed Unit Trust. The unit price at 31 March 2017 is £684 (Z015/14: £719]. Non-controlling interests collectively
omm 23 5% of unils inissue. The British Land Company PLC owns 76.5% of unils in issue, each ef which confer equal vating rights. therelore is
deemed to exercise control ovar the fust.

26 Subsequent events

There have been no significant events since the year end.
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27 Audit exemptions taken for subsidiaries

The tollowng subsidianies are exempl from the requirements of the Companies Acl 2034 relating to the audil of individuat accounts by virtue of

Section 479A of thal Act.
Campanies Housa Cornpanies House
Mame - =g menber  Name reg rember
BF Propro Mo 13) Limited 97R274  Pillar Retail Parks Lirnited 2725163
Apartpower Limited 2832057  Pillar Speke Limiled 3075360
Pillarcaisse Management Lirnited 2941307 Watas City of Lordon Properties Limited 1788526
Number 80 Cheapside Limited 634498 Meadowhalt Opporturaiies GP Limited 9743
BL. HC Property Holdings Limited 4894046  Adamam immsiment Corporation Lirnited 25149
Heatth Cluls PH No 1 Limited 5643248  Dsnaburgh Street Limiged 5886715
BL Haatth Chutrs PH Na 2 Limited 5643261  British Lang Property Advisers Limited 7793828
British Land Heroules Mo 1 Limited 3527580  British Land Haveustes Nod Limited 310885t
PillarStore Limiled 2650422  Broadgate {(PHC 8l Limited kyirrsl
Parwick Investments Limitad 454239 British Land In Town Retait Limited 1375064
Hempel Holdings Limited 5341380  Drake Cirous Lersure Lnited 2190208
Hilden Properties Limitad Ni062887  Diwmedes Proparty No 2 Limited 53034624
20 Brock Sireet Lunited 7401497  Noryldlt Limited 2307407
BL Clifton Moor Limited 7508019  Pardev [Broadwayl Lmited 2891851
BL [Maidenhead) Company Limited 7667834  Parinv Northern Limited H7
Bayeas! Property Co Limited 635800  Pillar Wirkcatdyt Limited 3074412
Boldswitch Limitad 2307096 B [Bursledon] Limited 3854557
Paddington Central 1 IGP) Limited 3891376 Shopping Centres Limited 2230056
Paddinglon Central 8 [GP) Limited 5092409  BL Broadgate Fragment | Umited 2460407
TPPinvestments Limiled 4843814 BL Broadgate Fragmant 2 Limited 2400541
BL Osnaburgh St Residentiat Lid 6874523 Bl Broadgate Fragmen! 3 Limited 406411
Moorage [Property Developments) Limited 1185513  BL Broadgate Fraﬁmerﬁ £ Limited 9400409
39 Viclora Street Limited 703733 BL Broadgate Fraganent 5 Limited 2400413
Lancaster Generat Partner Limited 5452195  BL Broadgate Fragment § Limited Q400414
Teesside Leisure Park Limited 2672136
Cavendish Geared Limited 2779045

The following partnerships are exempt from the requirements Lo prepare, publish and have audited individuat accounts by virtue of requlation 7

of The Partnerships [Accounts) Regulations 2008 The resulls of these partnerships are consolidaled within these Group accounts.

Name

Name

Bl Shoreditch Limitesd Partnershup
Bl Chess No 1 Lirnited Partrership
Paddington CentraliLP
Paddington Centrai H 1P

Meadowhall Opportunities Limited Partnership

BL CW Upper LP

Hereford Shopping Centre Limited Partnership
Bl Lancaster Lymited Parlnership '
Paddington Block A LP
Paddington Block B LP
Paddinglon Kiosk LP

!
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Finaovisd statements

COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH FRS 101 AS AT 31 MARCH 2017

‘ 2017 261"
Wara Em : &m
Fixed assets
Invesln;enls and loans 1o subsidiaries D 27518 2758
Investments in joint ventures ) D LX) 395
Other inveslments D as 17
Interest rate derivative assels E 217 167
Deferred tax assets - 1
: ' 28,201 78098
Current assets
Dehtors G , 7 14
Cash and short term deposils E 49 - 36
56 50
Current liabilities
Shorl term borrowings and overdrafts E (63} [74)
Creditors ] H 11035 {m
Amounts due lo subsidiaries - £19,410) [18,444)
1¥9.576) 18.597
Netcurrent liabilities 195221 [18,547)
Total assets less curvent liabilities : ' 8,679 2.551
Non-current Gabilities
Debentures and loans E [1,978) 12.21¢)
Interest rate derivative liabilities. ) E 134} 119!
Amounts due to subsidiaries ’ a3) [779)
Delerred tax and other non-current liabilities ) 13 -
{2,445) (3,114}
Netassets . 6,233 6,437
t .
Equity
Called up share capital | 260 . 260
Share premium i 1,298 1,295
Other reserves . nas) [zol
Merger reserve . ) 2 a3
Retained earnings 4,576 - 4,789
Total equity ' 6,233 4,637
The profit after ta: for the year ending 31 March 2017 far the Company was €1210a lyear ecding 31 Macch 2014 E171ml.

UGt

John Gildersleeve e Lucinda Bell
Chairman N Chiel Financial Officer

Approved by the Board on 16 May 2017

Company number $21920
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2047 '

Profiland
Share Share Other Mergar loss Towal
capial  prosrium esEvas resarvwe flee 210 equity
&m £ T £m

Balance at 1 April 2016 260 1.295 13201 213 . 4TRY 8437
Share issues o ‘ ‘ ‘ - 3 - - - 3
Dividend paid ' - - - - (296} (294)
Fair vabue of share and share option awards - - - - 2 2
Purchase of own shares - - - - 18} ta}
Met actuariai loss on peasion schemes - - - - nz L{Fd]

Profil fur the year alter taxation - - - - i n
Derivative valustion 1 nt - - f14} - - 14
Balance at 31 March 2017 - 260 1.2%8 {134} 713 £5% - 6233
Balance at 1 Aprit 2015 ' 258 1,280 {9£) 213 4858 6,515
Share issues ' 2 15 - - n2 5
Adjustrnent for sonp daadend alement - - - - 52 52
Dividend paid - - - - {2871 1287
Fair valuz of share and share option awards - - - - ] 8
Net actuarial loss on pension schemes - - - - ] ]])

Profit for the year after taxation - - - - i n
Derivalive valualion movement - - - () - - 1241
Balance at 31 March 2014 ' 260 1,295 1120} 213 4,789 4.437

The value of distributable reserves within the proii and loss account is £2.911m (2015/14: £3.336m).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{A) Accounting policies

The financial stalements ior the year ended 31 March 2017 have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revalyation of
derivatives. These financisl statements have also beer prepatad in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure
Framework [FRS 101). The amendmenis to FRS 101 12015/16 Cycdel
issued in July 2016 and effective immadiataly have been applied.

in preparing these financial slatemenis. the Company applies the
recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements of International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU { Adopted IFRSs'),
bul makes amendments where necessary in erder to comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and has set out belaw where advantage of the

FRS 10t disciosure exempilions has hzen taken.

The Cempany has taken advantage of the following disclosure
exernplions under FRS 101:

lal the requirements of JAS 1 o provide a Balance Sheel at the
beginming of the penod in the event of a prior period adjustmant;

{bl the requirement s of IAS 1 to provide a Staternent of cash Hlows
for the period; i

[cl the requirements of IAS 1 to provide a statement of compliance
wilh IFRS;

léi tive requirements of I1AS 1 to disclose informalion on the
managzmeni of capital;

lel the requirerents of paragraphs 30 and 31 ol 1AS 8 Accounling
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Ervors te disclose
new IFRSs that have been issued bt are not yet effective;

{fl the requirernents in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures lo
disclose related party transactions entered inla between two
or more members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which
is a party to the Iransaciion is wholly ¢ by such a memb

Ig) the requirements of paragraph 17 ot 1AS 24 Related Parly
Disclosures 1o disclose key manag t ot t compa

Ihl the requirements of IFRS 7 to disclose financial instruments; and

fil the requirements of paragraphs 91-99 of IFRS 13 Fair Value
Measuremen to disclose information of {air value valuation
techniques and inpuls.

ation-

Going concern
The finandial staternenis are prepared on the going concern basis
as explained in the corporate governance seclion an page 65.
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Investmenats and loans
lwestmanis and Inans in sulsidiaires and joint venlures ame steted
a1 cosld less provision for impairment.

Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty

The key source of eshmation unceriainty ratates to the Company's
ineesiments in subsidiaries and jeinl venlures. In esiimating the
requirement for impairmant of these investments, management
mazke assumpiions and judy s on tha value of these investmerts
using inherently subjective uncerlying asset valuations. supported

by indepandent valuers.

(B) Dividends
Delzils of dividends paid and proposed are included in note 19
of the conselidated financial statements.

(C) Employvee information

Employee costs include wages and salaries of £37m {2015018: £35mi, .
social security costs of £5m £2015416: £5m) and pension costs of £5m
{2015/16: £8m). Details of the Executive Directors’ remuneration are
tisclosed in the Rermuneration Reparh

Audit fees in relation ta the parent Company anty were £0.2m
[2013/16: £0.2m.




- (D) Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, loans to subsidiaries and other imvestments . -

laveshnents
Shares in Loans io in jning Ohar
sthadharies  subsidanes veptres wwestmenls Tolal
Em £m &m tm €m
On 1 Aprid 2014 20268 7250 37 17 7790
Additions k]| 2155 34 2t 2,283
fhsposals 13351 11,5931 - {3 {2,131
Provision for impaimeni 58} - - - s8]
Asat 31 March 2017 WHs - 7812 £30 35 27,984

The historical cosi of shares in subsidiarias is £20.025m [20159/14: £20.52%m]. lwesimants in jaint ventures of £431m (201916 £395m] mmcludes
£265m 12015/16: £2156m] of loans to joint ventures by the Cormpany. Resulls of the joint ventures are set oul in note 11 of the consolidated finanaal

statements. The historical cost of other imvestments is £48m [2015/16: £87m).

(E) Net debt
2017 23
£€m Em
Secured on the assets of the Company
5.284% First Morigage Debenture Bonds 2035 I N
5.0055% First Mortgage Amorlising Debentures 2035 44 100
5.357% First Mortgage Dabenture Bonds 2028 348 349
&£.75% Firel Mortgage Debentyre Bonds 2020 - &2
Loan notes .- 2
Bz4 B84
uUnsecured
5 50% Senior Notes 2027 102 i1}
3.895% Senior 1JS Dollar Notes 2018 w P
4 435% Senior US Doltar Notes 2021 181 165
4.766% Senior US Dollzr Noles 2023* n3 165
5.003% Senior US Dotlar Notes 2026’ 73 &9
3.81% Senior Noles 2026 - 14 13
3.97% Senior Notes 20246 17 s
Fair vatue of oplions to issue under 1.5% convertible bond 2017 5 48
Fair value of options te issue under 0% canverlibte bond 2020 3 27
Bank loans and overdrafts 477 434
1,217 ‘1,406
Gross deit 2,041 2.290
Interest rate ard currency derivative Gabilities 134 ny
Interest ralé and currency derivalive assels 7 e
Cash and short term deposits 149} (34
Netdebt 1.90% 2,206

! Principal and interest on these borrowings were lully hedged into Sterling at a Roating rate at the time of issue.

1.5% Convertible bond 2012 (maturity 2017)

On 10 Seplember 2012, British Land Dersey] Limited [the 2012 Issuer). a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, issued £400 miltion 1.5%

-guaranteed convertible bonds due 2017 [the 2012 bonds] at par. The 2012 Issuer is lully guaranteed by the Company in respaci of the 2012 bonds.

Subject to their terms, the 2!512 bonds are convertible inta preference shares of the 2012 Issuer which are automatically Wransferred to the Company

in exchange for ordinary shares in the Company or, al the Company's electian_ any combination of ardinary shares and cash. Sondholders may

exertise their conversion right at any time up to fbut excluding] the 20th dealing day before 10 Seplember 2017 lthe maturity datel.

The inilial exchange price was 493.07 pence per ordinary share. The exchange price is adjusied basad on certain avents.
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Finanvial scatemenrs

NOTES 70 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

{E) Net debt continued

From 25 Septemirer 2015, the Company has th2 option to redeem the 2012 bonds st par il the Company's share prue has bradad above 130% of

the exchange price lor 3 specified perind, or at 26y ime ence 85% by nominal value of the 2812 bonds have been converied_ redeemed_ or purchasad
and cancelled. The 2012 bonds will be redeemed at par on 10 Sepiember 2017 [the maturity date] if they have not aiready been converied. redeemed
or purchaszd and cancelled. No redemplion of ihe bonds scourred in the year,

The intercompany loan between the Issver and the Campany ansing from the transfer of the toan proceeds was infialty recogmised ai fair value,

nel of capifalised issye costs, and is accounied for using the amartised tost mathod. in addilion to the inlercompany toan, the Comparty has enered
into a derivalive contract relaling te its guarantee of the obligations of the Issuer in respect of the Sonds and the commilment le provida shares or
a combination of shares and cash on tonversion ol the Bonds. This derivative contract is included within the balance sheal as 2 liability carried at
fair vatue through profit and loss. .

0% Converlible bond 2015 [maturity 2020)

On 9 June 2015, British Land (Whitel 2035 Limitad (the 2015 Issuer], 2 wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, issued £350 millien zero coupon
guarantead convertible bonds due 2020 lthe 2015 bends) at par. The 2015 issuer is fully guarantead by the Company in respect of the 2015 bonds.

Subject to their terms, tha 2015 bonds are convertible into preference sharses of the 2015 lssuer which are automatically transiernred to the Company
in exchange {ar ordinary shares in the Company o7, at the Compsny’s eleclion, any combination of ordinary shares and cash. From 20 July 2815 ep

to and including 29 June 2018, a bandhalder may exercise ds corwersion nght if the share price has traded at atevel exceeding 138% of the exchange
price for 8 spacified period. Therealter. and up to but exduding the 7th deating day before 9 June 2020 lihe maturily daiel. a bontholder may

at any time. .

The initial exchange price was 1103.32 pence per ordinary share. The exchange price is adjusied based on certain events [such as the Company
paying dividends in any quarter above 3 418 pence per ordinary sharel. As at 31 March 2017 the exchange price was 1963.79 pence per ordinary share.

From 38 Junz 2018, the © iy hes the oplion to red the 2015 bonds a1 par if the Company s share price has raded above 130% of the
exchange price for 3 specified period. or al any time once 85% by nominal valne of the 2015 bonds have been converfed. redeemad, or puiichasad
and cancelted. The 2015 bonds will be redeemad al par on ¢ June 2020 (the maturity date] if they have not already been converted, redeemed or
purchased and cancelled.

The intercompany loan between the issuer and the Company arising from Lhe transfer of the loan proceeds was initially recognised at fair value,

el of capitalised issue costs. and is accounled for using the amortised cost method. In addition te the intercompany loan. the Company has entesed
inte a derivative contract relating lo its guarantee of the obligalions of the Issuer in respect ol the honds and the carmmitment to provide chares of 3
combination of shares and cash an conversion of the bonds. This derivative contract is included within the balance sheet as 3 bability carried at fair
value through prafit and loss.,

Maturity analysis of net debt

v 2016

£m fm

Repayable within one year and on demand ’ &3 7&
between: one and [wo years ; 33 109
1wy and five years ’ L42 £14

five and ten years 782 w7

terand fitteen years 332 560

lifteen and lwenty years 389 386

1,978 2.216

Gross debt 2,041 2,290
Interest rate derivalives {83} {48)
Cash and short lerm deposils . 1691 136]
Netdeht . 1,909 2,206

{F) Pension

The British Land Group of Companies Pension Scheme and the Delined Contribution Pension Scheme are the principal pension schemes of the
Company and detais are set out in nole 9 of the consalidated financial staterhents.
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{G) Debtors

‘ 0m7 e
£m n
Trade and ather deblors 3 k)
Prepayments and accrued income . &
' 7 15
.
(H} Creditors
2m7 204
- £m £m
Trade creditors 12 3
Corporation tax 29 )
Other taxation and sodial security k7] Yl
Accruals and deferred income 32 i
105 77
() Share capital
X shares
£m of Fpeach
issued, calied and fully paid '
At t Apnil 2016 2608 1.040.5462.323
15sued ~ &T2.735
AL 31 March 2017 240 1,041,035,058 °
Oniinary shares
. m of Z5p sach
issued, called and hully paid :
At 1 Aprit 2015 58 1.031,788.286
Issued 2 8774037
At 31 March 2016 250 1.640,562323

(J) Contingent linbiliﬁes, capital commitments and related party transactions

The Company has conlingent liabilities in respect of legat claims, guarantees and warranties arising in the ordinary course of business.

Itis not anticipated that any matenat labilities will arise from the contingent liabilities.

AL 31 March 201;:', the Comnpany has £1m of capital commitments [2015/16: E13ml.

Retated party transactions are the same lor the Company as for the Group. For details reler o note 23 of the consolidated finandal siatements.

r

British Land | Annwal Repori and Accounts 2017 149



Financiul searements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

(K} Reiated undertakings Nare UKIQ_vusa;; T:
Disclosures relating to subsidiary undertakings MSC Property intermediate Heldings Limited UK Tax Resident
The Comparny's subswdiaries and oiher related undertakings al 31 March | {90% interestd
2017 are listed below. All Group entities are included in the © lidated | Planlation House Limited UX 7ot Resadent
financial resulls. Priory Park Merton Limited UK Tax Residant
o Real Asset insurance Limited fin iquidation) Querseas Tax Resideny
Unless olherwise slated. the Company hotds 100% of the vating tights {Guarmseylk
and benelical interests inthe shares of the follawing subsidianes. Hegis Property Holtings Limited UK Fax Residen
parinerships. assecates 2 join? ventures. Unless othepanse siatad. o e 1 e :
lhe_ sthsidigfies and refaled u‘ndarmkings are regisierad in the E::lzr:z: Land Corporation Limited 3; 1:: g:::::
United Kingdam,
The share capitat of each of the Companies, where applicable, irdirect holdings
comprises ol ordinary shares unless otherwise stated. C.;mm:my "mmn. IleI::
The Company holds the majority of its assets in UK companies, 1% 4 & 7 Triton Limited UK Tax Resident
although some are held in gverseas companies. In cecent yearswe 10 Brock Street Limited UK ¥ax Resident
have reduced the number of overseas companies in the Sroup. 16 Portrnan Square Unit Trust {Jerseyl{UniisP Overseas Tax Resid
10 Triton Stregt Lanitad UK Tax Residont
Untess noted othervnse as per the following key. the registered address | 17.19 Bedlord Street Limited UK Tax Resident
of each company is York House, &5 Seymour Street, London, WIH 7L 18-20 Craven Hill Garderns Limited UK Tax Residant
" 13-14 Esplanade, Si Melier, JE1 18D, Jersay. 20 Brock Srest Limited UK Tax Resident
* 15835 Broadway, 37th Floor, New York MY 10036-8293_ United States. 20 Triton Street Limited tiK Tax Residenmt
! 47 Esplanade. St Helies. Jerszy, JEI 0B, Jersey. 338 £uston Ruad Limiled UK Tax Resigent
.4 m:mﬁmﬂg 35 Basinghall Sireel First Limited UK Tax Resident
" Lefebvre House. Lefabvre Slreet, St Peter Port, GY 1 31T, Guermsey. 35 Basmghal! Streel Second Limited UK Tax Resident
| Leidschade \l?li, lgg‘zpnzrglm ?jgmnjam 350 Euston Road Limnilad UH Tax Resident
_ Ogier House. The 0 3 - 39 Vicioria Street Limited UK Tax Resident
The Corporation st Campany. 1209 Orange Sireet, Wilmingion DE Y753 | .10 Thragmorton Avenue Limited UK Tax Resident
Ad § ) W Corporation Limied UK Tax Resident
Direct holdings Adshitta Limited UK Tax Residant
UK/Overseas Tax | Aldgate Piace [GP] Limited {50% interest] UK Tax Residant
Company Name Residemt Status | Apartpower Limited : UK Tax Resident
BL Bluebutton 2014 Limited UK Tax Resid Ashband Limited UK Tax Resid:
BL Davidson Linuted UK Tax Resident | B.E.CT. 1128971 Limited [ Jerseyi® UK Tax Resident
BL Exempt insurance Services Limited UK Tax Resident { B.L.C.T. [21500) Limited UerseyP UK Tax Resident
BL Intermediate Holding Cornpany Limited UK Tax Resident | B.L.CT.[29900] Limited Lerseyl® UK Tax Resident
BLSSP tFonding) Limited UK Tax Resident 1 8.L.U (1INM9) Limited DerseyP UK Tax Resident
Btuetguﬂon Property Managernent UK Limued UK Tax Resident | Balsenia Limited UK Tax Resident
130% interest) Barnclass Limited UK Tax Resid
Baldswatch [No 1) Limited UK Tax Resident | Boradou Liomited 11K Tax Resident
Boldswilch Limited UX Tax Resident | o Property Co Limiled UK Tax Resident
British Land [Jersey] Limited [ Jersey) . UK Tax Residen\ | Bosile Limited UK Tax Resident
Foundes Sharesp BF PropcoiNo 1] Limited UK Tax Resident
BrilishLand Cily UK Tax Resident | == Pm::m T K e Fecitiont
Britich Land City 2063 Limited UK Tox R BF Propca INo 191 Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land City Offices Limited UK Tox Resident | o= Pm" - 1No3 | Lirited UK Tox Resident
BrivshiandFinancnglimited ________ UKToxResident | oo bee Sam s \
British Land Investments Nethertands Holifing  Overseas Tax Resident ropca Na 4 ; Limited UK Tax Resident
BV, {NethertandsP? - BF Propeo o 5 imited UK Tax Resident
British Land Properues Limited UK Tax Resident BF Properlies {No 4 ] Limnited UK Tax Resident
British Land Real Estate Limited UK Tax Resident | BF Properties{Ho S Lirnited UK Tax Resident
Britich Lond SecurtiesLimted UK Tax Resident | Birstalt Co-Owmership Trust {Member interest) UK Tax Rasident
British Land Securitisation 1999 UK Tox Recigont | 16125%interest] .
Broadgate (Fundingl PLC UK Tox Resid gll: f;' N‘Acq:lsnmn Limited _ UK, Tax Restden\
Broadgate Estates lasurance Mediatan UK Tax Resident aidenhead] Cmn;La_ny.Umnled UK Tax Restdenl
Services Limited * | BLISP] Cannon Streel Limited UK Tax Resident
Hxﬂeei Lirnited UK Tax Resident BL [SP] tnvestenent [1] Limited LUK Tax Resident
Kingsmere Productions Limited UK Tax Residen: | BL [SP] Investment (2] Limited UK Tax Resident
Linesiair Limited UK Tex Resideni | BLISPIIn il [3) Limited UK Tax Resident
Landen and Henley Holdings Limited UK Tax Residert | BL |SP} investment [§) Limiled UK Tax Resident
Meadgwhall Pensions Scherme Trustee Limiled UK Tax Resident | BL BakerCo 2012 Limited{ ferseyP Overseas Tax Resident
j Bt Bradtord Forsier Limited UK Tax Resident
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Company UNfOverseas Tan | Company UKSOversears Tax
Hame ResidentStatus | Name Resident Sttus
81 Brislington Limited UK Tax Resident | BL High Streat and Shapping Cenires Holding UK Tax Resident
Bl Broadgate Fragment 1 Limited UK Tax Resident | Company Limited .
BL Broadgate Fragmen 2 Limited UK Tax Resident | Bk Lancaster investments Lid UK Tax Rasident
BL Broadgate Fragment 3 Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Lancaster L imited Parinarship UK Tax Resident
BL Broadgate Fragment & Limited UK Tax Resident | [L2rnership nteresd

= — " BL Leaderhall Lerseyl Lid UersayP Overseas Tax Resident
BL Brozadgste Fragment 5 Limilad UK Tax Resident - -
BL Broadgate Fragrment & Limited UK TaxResident | ot ouding Collerseylid Overseas Tax Rasident
BL Chess Limited UK Tax Resident | gy} cicyre and Industriat Hotding UK Tax Resident
BL Chess No. 1 Limited Partnership UK TaxResident | Company Limiled
[Partrership Interest] BL Maylair Offices Limited UX Tax Residenl
8L City Offices Holding Company | imited UK Tax Resident | g1 Meadowhall Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
8L Clifton Moor Limited UK Tax Resident | g1 pMeadowhall Limited UK Tax Resident
BL CW Developments Limiled UK Tax Resident | B Moadawhail No & Limited UK Tax Resident
BL CW Holdings Limiled UK Tax Resident | ) pifice [Non-City} Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident
BL CW Lowar GP-Company Limited UK Tax Resident | By Gjfice Hotding Comspany Limited UK Tax Resident
BL CW Lawer Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident | &1 genaburgh St Residential Ltd _ UK Tox Resident
BL CW Lower LP Company Limited UK Tax Resident | By piccadilly Residential Limited UK Tax Resident
BL CW Upper GP Company Linited UK Tax Resident | 5y piccaditly Residential Management UK Tax Resident
BL CW Upper Limited Parinership UK Tax Resident | Co Limited
BL CW Upper LP Company Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Piccadilly Residential Retail Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Cwmbran Limited UK Tax Resident | Bl Residentiat General Partner Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Debs Limited erseyl Dverseas Tax Resident | 150% interesl]
BL Depariment Stores Holding Compary Limited UK Tax Residem | BL Residential No. 1 Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Doncaster Wheattey Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Residentiat No. 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Ealing Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Residual Holding Company Limiled UK Tax Resident
BL Eden Walk 2012 Umited LlerseyP Overseas Tax Residem | BL Retail Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Eden Walk Limited UK Tax Resider | BL Retail investments Limiled U¥ Tax Resident
BL ESOP Limited [isle of Man) ©verseas Tax Resident | BL Retail Warehousing Holding Company UK Tax Resident
Bt European Fund Management LLP UK Tax Resident Umﬂ?d — - -
{Member Interext] BL. Saiashury Superstores Limited [50% interest UK Tax Resident
BL European Holdings Lirmited UK Tax Resident | BL Shoreditch Generat Partner Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Fired Uplift Fund Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident } BL Shoreditch Limiled Partnership UK Tax Resident
BL Fixed Uplift Fund Nominee 1 Limited UK Tox Resident | Dartnershipinterest] -
8L Fuced Uplift Fund Nominee 2 Limited UK Tax Resident | Bbhoreditch No. | Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Fixed Uptift Fund Nominee No i Limited Overseas Tax Resident | Bt Shorediich No. 2 Limited : UK Tax Resident
LJarseyP BL Superstores Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resid
BL Fixed Uplift Fund Nominee No.2 Limited Overseas Tax Resident | BL Triton Building Residential Limited UK Tax Resident
Dersey? A1 Unit Trust Flerseyl Overseas Tax Resident
BL Fixed Uplitt General Partner Limited UK Tax Resident | BL Unitholder No. 1 U Limited UerseyP Overseas Tax Resident
BL FW Lirnited UK TaxResident | BL Unitholder No. 2 Ul Lirnited Lerseyl Overseas Taz Resident
Bl Goodman IGeneral Pariner] Limited UK Tax Resident | BI. Universal Limited UK Tax Resident
(50°% interesy BL Wardrobe Court Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Goodinan fLP) Limited UK Tox Resident | gy wast (Watling Housel Limiled UK Tax Resident -
BL GP Chess Na. 1 Limiled UK Tax Residenl, Bladtgleﬂ Limnited UK Tax Resident
BL Guaranteeco Limited [Limited by Guarantee] UK Tax Resident Blackwall (1] UK Tax Resident
BL HB Invesiments Limited UK Tax Resident | grayemilt [Thirty } L imiled UK Tax Resident
:lL- :g :g:g;lltlm'lz 3: I‘“ ;esf:e": Blaxmill lTwel?ty—nine] Limited UK Tax Residen!

irnit axnesiCent | BLD |A)Limited UX Tax Resident

B HC Doltview Limited UK Tax Resident | g 5 tEbury Gate) Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC Hampshire PH LLP [Member Interest] UK ¥ax Resident | 5 n'ic ) investments Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC Health And Fitness Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident BLD [SJ) Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC invic Leisure Limnited UK Tax Resident | g 0\ and Lioited UK Tax Residant
BL HC PH CRG LLP [Member Interest) UK Tax Residenl | & Properties Limited UK Tax Resident
BL HC PH LLP [Member Interest] UK Tax Resident BL0 Property Holdings Limited T; iden
BL HC PH No 1 LLP [Member Interest] UK Tax Resident { g7 Holdpi.nglsyzﬂ':[l 133 150% interest] 3: T:: 2::@:
BL HC PH No 2 LLP [Member Interest) UK Tax Resident { Bi 1 Estates Limited UK Tax Resident
BLHC PH No 3LLP [Member lnterest] UK Tax Resident | gy 4 progerty Management Limiied UX Tax Residert
BL HC Property Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident | 511 Securities Limited UK Tax Resident
BL Health Clubs PH No | Limited UK Tox Resident | Brivish Land Lint Yentures] Limited UX Tax Resident
BL Health Clubs PH No 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
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Finapvial stateuwienes

NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED

Compaey UK/OverseasTax | Company UK/Overseas Tax
Name ResidentStaus | Mame Resident Status
British Land [Whetel 2015 Lirmited erseyd UK Tax Resigenl | City of London Diiice Unil Irust [tersey] lunits {verseas Tax Resident
{Founder Sharesp 135.95% nteresty
Britsh Land Acquisitions Limited UK Tax Resident | Clarges Estate Propacty Management UK Tax Resident
Britich Land Aqua Partnership [2) Limited UK Tax Resideny | Co Linuted
British Land Aqua Partnarship Limited UK Tax Residens | Comgemc Limited UK Tox Resident
Sritish Land Comgany Secretarial Limited UK Tax Recident | Comish Resdenis! Properties Trading Limited UK Tax Residenl
British Land Construction Limited UK Tax Resideni Em Remdential Property investments UK Tox Resident
British Land Department Sjores Limited UK Tax — Crescen) West Properlies UK Tax Resident
British Land Developmenis Limited UK TaxF - >
— — - Oeapdate Co-Ovenecship Trust UK Tax Resident
British Land Fund Managemenl Limited UK Tax Resident { uember intarest | {37 66% interast]
British | and Hercules Limited UK T Resident | orty Invesiment Holdings Limited UK Tax Residenl
British Land Hercules Na 1 Eimitad UK Tax Resident | poe o iiied UK Tax Resident
British | and Hercules No 3 Limited UK Tax Resident [ yormedas Property No.d Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Hercules No.4 Limiteg UK Yax Resident | por oo Property No 2 Limited UK Tax Reaitt
British Land HIF Limited UK Tox Resident | pur 1o Property No3 Limited UK Toz Rositer
British Land In Town Retail Limited UK Tax Resideni | i, des Property No.& Limited UK Tax Residant
Brilish | and idustrial Limited UK Tax Resident | Diomedes Progerty No.5 Limited UK Tox Romidh
British 1 and Invesiment Management Limited UK Tax Rasid Diomedes Property No4 L imied UK Tax Residen
Brilish Land Invesimenis N V NetherlandsF? UK Tax Resiten! | Dronedes Progerty No.7 inited UK Tax Residers
British Land Leisure Limited UX Tax Residen D o me No.8 Limited UK Tax Resident
British Land Offices [Non-City) Limited UK Tax Resident | g oo e e Ovoronns Tax Residers
British Land Offices INon-Cityl No_ 2 Limited UK Tax Resident | pou Cirows Leisure Limited UK Tax Resident
British | 2nd Offices Lunited UX Tax Resident | frgke Circus Limited Partership lUnited Overseas Tax Resident
British Land Offices Ne.1 Limited UK Tax Resident | States] (Partnership Interest]?
British Land Property Advisers Limited UK Tax Resident | Drake Cireus Unit Treest [ Jersey] [UnitsP Overseas Tax Resident
British Land Property Man it Lisnited UK Tax Residen! | Drake Property Holdings |imited UK Tax Resid:
British Land Regenaration Limited UK Tax Resident | Drake Property Nominee {o. il Limited UK Tax Resident,
British Land Retail Warehouses Limited UK Tax Resident | Drake Property Nominee [Mo. 2] Limited UK Tax Resident
i iguidation] E€den Walk Shopping Centre Genaral Pariner UK Tax Resident
British Land Supersteres [Non Securitised] UK Tax Resident | Lanited [S0% interest)
Number 2 Limited Eden Walk Shopping Centre Unit Trust Overseas Tax Resident
Broadgate [PHC B Limited UK Tax Resd [tersey] [Units] i50% interestd®
Broadgate Adjoining Properties Limited UK Tax Resident | Edinburgh Fort Unit Trust [ Jarsey] [Units] Overseas Tax Resident
Hroadgale Business Centre Limited UK Tax Resident | [75.31% interestf
Broadgate City Limited UK Tax Resident | Elementvirtue Limited UK Tax Resideni
Broadgate Court Invesiments Limited UK Tax Resident | Elk Mill Gldham Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgaie Estasles Limited UK TaxResident | Euston Tower Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Estales Paople Management UK Tax Resid Exchange House Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Lirnited Finsbury Avenue Estates Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Estates Retail Management Limited UK Tax Resid Four Broadgate Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgaie Exthange Square UK Tax Resident | FRP Group Limited UK Tax Ressdent
Bruadgate lvestrnent Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident | Garamead Properties Limited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate REIT Limited lersey] {50% UK Tax Resident | Gardenray Limited UK Tax Resident
interest]? Gibraltar Generat Pettner Limnited UK Tax Resident
Broadgate Square Limited UK Tax Resident | [3766% interest]
Broughton Retait Park Limited [lersey) UK Tax Resident | Gibraltar Nominees Limited [37.66% interast) UK Tax Resident
[75.31% interest) _ : Gilihrook Relail Park Notlingtam Limited UK Tax Resident
‘Bvr;su?gm:;{;msl Uersey] [Units) Overseas Tax Resident Glenway Limited UM Tax Resident
Brunswick Park Limited UK Tax Residera | Hempel Haldings Limited UK Tax Resid,
— = Hempel Hotels Limited UK Tax Resident
BVP Davelopments Limited UK Tax Resident — - -
P T Hercules Property Limiled Parinership UK Tax Resident
Canada Waler Offices Limited UK Tax {Partnership interest) [40.68% interast|
Casegood Enterprises UK Tax Resident | yrereyles Property UK Holdings Limited UK Tax Resid
Caseplane Limiled UK Tax Resident | yarcyles Property UK Limited UK Tax Resident
Cavendish Geared 1| Limited UK Tax Resident | ‘o ites Unit Trust [Jersey) iUnits) Overseas Tax Resident
Cavendish Geared Limited UK Tax Resident { [75.3V% interestP
Caymall Limnited UK Tax Resident | Heretord Old Market Limited UK Tax Residenl
Chantway Limited UK Tax Resident | Herelord Shopping Centre GP Limiled UK Tax Resident
Cheshine Properties Limited UK Tax Resid Herelord Shapping Centre Limited UK Tax Resident
Chrsily Nominees Limited UK Tax Residenq | Parinership IPartnershep Iterest)
Hilden Properiies Limited UK Tax Resident
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Company UK/ovarsess Tax | Company UK/Qvorseas Tax
Name Resifent Status | Mame Resident Status
Romarfl Limitad UK Yax flesident | Paddington Central U [GP] Limited UK Tax Residant
HUT trvestrents Limited Uersey} Overseas Tax Resident | Paddinglon Ceniral H LP UK Tax Resident
(T331% interest Paddington Central i Unit Trust Overseas Tax Resident
Industnal Real Estate Limited UK Tax Resident | [Jersey} [Unitsp
Insistmetal 2 Limited UK Tax Resident | Paddington Ceniral IV Unit Trust Flersey] Querseas Tax Resigent
Ivorydell Limited UK Tax Resident | [UnitsP
Ivarydall Subsidiary Limited UK Tax Resident | Paddinglon Central Management UK Tax Resident
——— - Comiparry Limiled [87.50% interest]
heorytill Limited K Tax Resident " "
Jetbioom Limited UK Tox Residant Paddington Kiosk [GP) Ltd UK Tax Resident
— . Paddingion Kiosk LP UK Tax Resident

£ & H Davelopmants Lirnited UK Tax Resident — -

P | Par ther Limited UK Tax Residant Pardav(Bmd’w?rI:.nPned UK Tax Rest‘weni
Lancaster Unit Trust Uersey] Whnits]? Overseas Tax Residen Pa@w {Luton) | — UK Tax ReSfden!
Leadenhalt Holding Co Liersey] Lid Uerseyl Overseas Tax Resident | Lo Northern Limited UK Tox Resident
150% interest]' Parwick Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Liverpool One Management Gompany Limiled UK Tax Resident | Parwick investments Limited UK Tax Resident
{S0% interesi) PC Ballic Whard Limited UK Tax Resident
Liverpool One Management Services Limited UK Tax Resident | PC Canal Limiled UK Tax Resident
London and Henley [UK] Limited UK Tax Resident | PC Lease Mominee Lid UK Tax Resident
London and Henley Limited UK Tax Resident | PC Parinership Nominee 1 td UK Tax Resident
Lonebndge UK Limited UK Tax Residen! | Piccaditly Residential Limited U¥ Tax Resident
Longford Streel Residential Limited UK Tax Resident | illar {Beckion] Limited UK Tax Resident
Ludgate lnvestment Holdings Limited UK Tax Residant | Pillar (Buslall Limited UK Tax Resident
Ludgale Wesl Limited UK Tax Resident | Pillar ICricklewood] Limited UK Tax Resident
Manbrig Properties UK Tax Residemt | Pillar [Dartford) Limited UK Tax Rasident
Marble Arch House Unit Trust Lersey] {Unitsp Overseas Tax Resident | Pillar (Fulhaml] Limited UK Tax Resident
Mayiair Properties UK Tax Resident | Pillar [Kirkcaldyl Limited UK Tax Resident
Mayllower Retail Park Basildon Limited UK Tax Resident | Pillar Auchintea Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowbank Retail Park Edinburgh Lirnited UK Tax Resident | Pillar Broadway Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Centre 1999] Limited UK Tax Resident | Pillar Cheetham Hill Limited UK Tex Resident
Meadowhall Centre Limited UK Tax Resident | Pittar City Pic UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Centre Pension Scheme Trustees UK Tax Resident | Pillar Bartford No.] Limited UK Tax Resident
Limited Pillar Desiton Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Estates [UK] Limiled UK Tax Resident | Pillar Developments Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhail Group [MLP] Limited UK Tax Resident | piiar Esrates Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident | pillar Estates No.2 Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhalt Opport Nominee 1 Limnited UK Tax Resident | pipar £urope Managemen Limited UK Tax Resident
Meadowhall Opportunities Nominee 2 Limited UK Tax Resident { pjjjar Farmhorough Limited UK Tax Residant
Meadowhalt Training Lirnited UK Tax Resident | Bitar Fort Limited UK Tax Resident
Mercari UK Tax Resident | pillar Fulham No.2 Limited UK Tax Resident
Mercari Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident | pinar Galtins Reach Limitad UK Tax Residant
Minhill lnvestments Limited UK Tax Resident | pipar Glasgow 1 Limited UK Tax Resident
Moorage {Property Devetopments) Limited UK Tax Resident | piitar Glasgow 2 Limited UK Tax Resident
Moorlields Nominee 1 Limited UK Tax Residenl Pillar Gtasgow 3 Limiled UK Tax Resident
Moorfields Nominee 2 Limiled UK Tax Resident | pillar Hercules No.2 Limited UK Tax Resident
Nugent Shopping Park Limited UK Tax Resident | pillar Kinnaird Limited UK Tax Resident
Number 80 Cheapside Limited UK Tax Resident | piliar Nugent Limited UK Tax Resident
OM Investments Limited [Jerseyl Gverseas Tax Resident | piflar Projects Limited UK Tax Resident
One Hundred Ludgate Hill UK Tax Resideat | ‘piyar Property Group Limited UK Tax Resident
One Sheldon Square Limited LJerseyp Overseas Tax Resident | pitlar Retail Furopark Fund [Pref} Overseas Tax Resident
Orbital Shopping Park Swirdon Limited UK Tax Resident | [Luxemnbourg}{Member Interest]
Dsnaburgh Streel Limited UK Tax Resident | 65:30% interesip
Paddington Block A [GP} Lid UK Tax Residerq | Pitar Retait Parks Limited UK Tax Resident
Paddingion Block A LP [Partnership Interest) UK Tax Resident | Eiltar Speke Limited UK Tax Resident
Paddington Block 8 IGP] Lid UK Tax Residem | PillarCaisse Management Limited UK Tax Resident
Paddingion Biock B LP [Partnership Interest] UK Tax Resident | 20 interest] -
Paddington Centrall (GP| Limited UK Tax Resident | onarman bmited UK Tox Resident
Paddinglon Central 1 LP [Partnership Interestl UK Tax Resident P,!tarStore Limited - UK Tax Regdenl
Paddinglon Ceniral | Neminee Limited UK Tax Resident | :;La“r::;:;:;: :_‘:::::: 3E ;:: gz:::::

- - Hocdont

Paddinglon Central i Unit Trust Overseas Tax R Bower Court GP Limited UK Tax Recident

Herseyl {UnitsP
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Campany UK/OverseasTax | Company UK/oreerseas Tan.
Rame Resident Stabes | Hame Resident Satus
Power Caurt Lutan Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident | Tollgate Centre Colchesler Limited UK Tax Resid
{Parinership Interesi] ‘ PP s Limited ' UK Tax Residend
Power Court Nominge Limited UX Tax Residen! | Twped Premier | Limited UK Tax Resideni
Power Courl Nominees Mo. 2 Limilag UK Tax Resiten! | Typed Premier 2 Limited UX Tax Resideni
:’LREF M;omg?ent Company SA Overseas Tax Resident | Tyeed Premier 4 Limitzd UK Tax Resident

uxembourg! - — Union Property Corporation Limited UK Tox Resident
Project Sunrise Investme#is Limil=d UK Tax Residenl | ;G0 Property Haldings (London] Limited UK Tax Residens
Project Sunrise Limited UX Tax Resideat - - — —

* - = Limited UK Tax Recident United Kingdom Property Cmp?nlbmtted UK Tax

Prqec_l Sugn?e Progerties - Urban Estates Management Limited UK Tax Resident
Reboline Limited UK Tax Resdend | (i yquidation)
Regenl's Place Holding Company Limited UK Tax Resident | yalentine Co-ownership Trust IMember UK Tax Resident
Regents Place Managemant Cormpany Limiled UK Tax Residant | interest] {37.66% interest) '
Renash UK Tax Resident | Vatentine Unit Trust LJersey] [Units) Overseas Tax Remdent
Rigphone Limited UK Tax Residern | 17531 interesth
Ritesal UK Tax Resident | Vicinitee Limited UX Tox Residant
Rohawk Properties Limited UK Tax Resident | Vintners’ Place Limited UK Tax Resident
Salmax Propertizs UK Tax Resident | Wardrohe Court Limited U Tax Residani
Seymour Street Homes Limited UK Tax Resident | Wardrobe Hotdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Shopping Centres Limited UK Tax Resident | Wardrobe Place Limited UK Tax Residerd
Six Broadgate Limited UK Tax Resident ] Wates City of London Properties Limited UK Tax Residant
Saithgate General Pariner Limited [50% UK Tax Resident | Wates City Point Limited UK Yax Residemt
interest) Wates City Property Management Limited UX Tax Resid
Southgate Property Unit Trust [Jersey] Qverseas Tax Resident | Westbourne Terrace Parlnership UK Tax Resident
[Unitst 150% interest? [Partnership Interest -
Speke Unit Trust [Jersey} [Units] Overseas Tax Resident | Wesiside Leeds Limited UK Tax Regig
(65.9% interest] Whiteley Shapping Centre Unit Trust Ovarseas Tax Resident
Sprint 1118 Limitad UK Tax Resident | Uersey} {UnitsP
St Jamnes Parade 43} Limited UK Tax Resident | WK {Ausiral House) First Limited UX Tax Resident
St James Retail Park Northamplon Limited UK Tax Resident | WK {Austral Housel Second Limited UK Tax Resident
Si. Stephens Shopping Centre Limited UK Tax Resident | WK Holdings Limited UK Tax Resident
Stackton Retail Patk Limiled UK Tax Resident { York House W1 Limited UK Tax Resident
Surrey Quays Limited UK Tax Resident
Sydale UK Tax Resident
T |Partnerstupl Limited UK Tax Resident
Tailress Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL [Brent Park) Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL IBromleyl Limited UK Tax Rasident
TBL IBurstedon] Limited UK Tex Resident
TBL [Bury] Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL [Ferndown] Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL lLisnagelvin] Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL [Maidstone] Limiled UK Tax Resident
TBL. [Milton Keynesi Limited UK Tax Resident
TBL {Peterboroughl Limited UK Tax Resid
TBL Holdings Limiled UK Tax Resident
TBL Properties Limited UK Tax Resident
Teesside Leisure Park Limited i51% interest] UK Tax Resident
The Aldgate Place Limited Parlnership UK Tax Resident
[Parinership Inlerest| {50% interest]
The Oartford Partnership IMember Interest) UK Tax Resident
150%interest)
The Gibrallar Limited Partnership UK Tax Resident
[37.66% interest)
The Liverpool Exchange Company Limited UK Tax Resident
The Mary Street Estale Lipnited UK Tax Resident
The Meadewhall Education Centre UX Tax Resident
[Limited by Guar ) 50% interest)
The Retail and Wareh Company Limited UX Tax Resident
The T8L Property Partnership UK Tax Resident
{Partnership Interest]
The Whiteley Co-Ownership Trust UK Tax Resident

{Member interest] {50% irderest]
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SUPPLEMENTARY BISCLOSURES

UNADDITED

Table A: Summary income statement and balance sheet

Summary income statement based on proportional consaolidation for the yaar ended 3t March 2017
The follewing pro lorma informaiion is unaudited and does not form part of the consolidatad primary slatements or the notes thereto. It presents the
results of the Group, with ils share of {he resulls of joint vendures and funds moluded on 2 line-by-tine basis and excluding non-controlling intesests.

Summary batance sheet based on proportional consolidation as at 31 March 2007
The foitowing pro forma infermation is unaudiled and does nod form part of the consolidated primary statements or the notes lhenz{o R presents

Year ended 3% March 2077 Year ended 31 March 26
Joint Less Joint
verhmes non-centrolling Proportionally VRIS nm—cmlmllmg

Soup  andfunds imerests nsolidated Group  and hends filarests  consalidaxied

£m £m m m m m Em fm

Gross rental intcome £42 n (i 443 451 31 1281 854
Property cperating expanses 251 {16} 2 133} 128) ki) 1 34
Net rental income £17 Fali) a7 819 £25 2 1z 478
Adminisirative expenses {84} @ - (86) 193] isl £ {11]
Net fees and ather income 17 - - 17 16 - i 7
tngeared Income Return 350 208 an 541 348 iz (22t 543
Net financing costs £78) 78) 3 ns1 nas 82} 8 {180

Undertying Profit 72 132 {14) 390 247 135 (141 363

Undariying faxation - - - - 2 - - 2z
_ Undertying Profit after taxation 272 132 114) 790 744 135 nal 345

Valuation movermant 23n 88
Other capital and taxation [natl' 14331 48

Capital and other (1§70 369
Total return §230] 1.2%

' Indludes other comprehensive income. movement in didution of share options and the 1in iterns excluded lor EPRANAV.

the composition of the EPRA net assels of the Group. with its share of the net assets of the joint venture and fund assets and liabilities indluded
on a line-by-line basis, and excluding non-controltng interests, and assuming full ddubion.

Mark-to-
rnarket on
effective
Share of Less cash fow Valuation EPRANet EPRANa
Jount non- hedges and surplus on aLS6TS assels
veniures conuolling Share Deferred related debt Head Irading 3 March 31 March
Group & lunds interesls  optioas lax adjustrments leases  propertias aomz M4
Em €m Em tm Em Em &m £m £m
Retail properties 5088 202 {381} - - - 1521 - 4,654 7341
Office propecties 4155 2,792 - - - - HE 83 7.015 7024
Canada Water preperties 20 - - - - - i} - n 83
Oiher proeperties - - - - - - - .- - -
Totaf propertlies 9.501 4813 138y - -~ - 174 83 13,940 14,648
Invesiments in joinl ventures and
funds . 2,766 12.766) - - - - - - - -
Joint venture held for sate 540 15401 - - - - - - - -
Other investments 154 [3) - - - - - - 151 138
Gther net liabilities| assets 1391 o 7 36 3 - Y3 - {370) 1347
Net debt [3.0941  01.403) ny - - 155 - - 14,2231 14,765}
Dilution due to converlible bond - - - - - - - - - 406
Netassets 9475 - 12551 36 3 155 - 83 9.498 10074
EPRA NAVY per share [note 21 915p 919
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Financial statoments

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

UNAUDITED
Table A continued
EPRA Net Assets Movement
Year ended Yoar ended
N March 27 36 Mok 2Hé
Pence per Pence par
£m share - &m share
Opening EPRA NAY 10,874 e 2.035 829
Income return - 390 38 385 34
Capital return (870) L HE 77
Dividend paid ) (294} 1271 iz3st 124
Closing EPRA RAY 9.4y8 715 10.074 912
Table B: EPRA Performance measures
-EPRA Performance measures summary table .
2007 ratlli]
Penoe per Pance per
€m share Ern share
EPRAEamings - basic R 3 319 345 354
- iluted : I 7e 3n 341
EPRA Nel Initial Yizld , 3% A1%
CPRA topped-up’ Net Initial Yield ' £5% : 45%
EPRA Vacancy Rate . £5% 2.0%
7 2018
Netasset Nal assel
walue per value per
) Netassers share ponte Net assals share pance
EPRA NAY 2,498 s 10,074 919
EPRA NpilAY 8938 861 2,640 850
Calcutation and reconciliation of EPRA/IFRS earmings and EPRAJIFRS earnings per share
. 2017 . 014
; fm fm
Prolit atiributable to the shareholders of the Company ’ ' 193 1.345
Exclude:
Group - curvent taxalion m 21
Group — deferred taxation ‘ . - By
Joint ventures and funds — current taxation - 1
Joint ventures and funds - deferred taxation . ) n- -.
Group - valuation rnovamend ' 144 (616}
Group - loss [profit] on disposal of investrnent properiies and investments 5 [35)
Group - proht on disposal of trading proparties 7] 0
Jaint ventures and funds - net valuation movement {including result on disposals) s 263
Joint ventures and funds - capital financing costs [ 3 -
Changes in fair value of financial instruments and associaled close-oul costs . 1] 131
Non-conlrolling interesls in respect of the above . [11]] 5
Undertying Profit -390 353
Group - underlying current laxation . - 2
EPRA earnings - basic 390 365
Ditutive effect of 2012 convertible bond - 6
EPRA earnings —diluted ] 390 371
. Profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company ) 193 1345
Dilutive eflect of 2012 convertible bond' 33 162}
IFRS earnings ~ diluted’ . 150 1,303

! The 2014 comparative figures lor the dilulive eifect o the 2012 conver tible bund and IFRS diluted earnings have been restated - see Nole 1,
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Table B continued

2017 2014
Number - Alumber
miltian million
Weighted average number of shares . 1,040 1038
Adjustment for Treasury shares k)] i
IFRS/EPRA Weighted average number of shares [basic) 1.029 1.0%
Oisrve elfact of share oplions 1 ’ 2
Dilutive effect of ESOP shares 3 4
Dilutive effect of 2012 convertible bond ' 58 58
IFRS Weighted average number of shares {diluted} 1,M 1.089
Diutive aflect of 2012 convertible bond 1581 -
'EPRA Weighted average number of shares [dluted) 1,033 1,089
Net assets per share
M7 015
) Pence Pance
&m pershare Im per share
Batance sheet net assets 9474 2.61%
Celerred lax arising on revaluation movements 3 5
Mark-to-marke! on elfective cash flowr hedges and related debt adjustments 155 198
Oitution effect of share options 35 3%
Surplus on trading properties . a3 'x]
Convertible bond adjusiment o - 400
Less non-conlrolling interests {255) [z
EPRA NAY 9,498 15 10,074 719
Delerred tax arising on revalualion movements ‘ . " {241
Mark-to-markel on etfective cash Row hedges and related debt adjustmenls N (15s) D531
Mark-to-market en debl 1384} 257
EPRA NNNAV 8,938 BS§1 9.640 88l
EPRA NNNAY is the EPRA NAV adjusted to reflect the fair value of the debt and derivatives and lo include the deferred taxation on revaluations
and derivatives.
0% 2008
Number Number
Number of shares at year end . 1,040 1.040
Adjustment lor treasury shares ‘ . 11 nl
IFRS/EPRA number of shares [basit) 1,029 1.02¢9
Dilutive effect of share options : 3 2
Dilutive effect of ESOP shares ' " 3 7
Dilulive effect of 2012 convertible band 58 58
IFRS number of shares {diluted) i 1.0%6 1.0%6
Dilutive effect of 2012 convertible bond 1] -
EPRA number of shares [diluted) 1.038 1,094
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Finuneial statements

SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES CONTINUED

UNAUDITED
Table B continued
EPRA Net tnitial Yisld and "toppad-up’ Net Initial Yield

m7 ot

£m £m

tavestment property - wholly-cwned _ : . e.ao 9787
Investment property - share of joint venturas and funds £,730 4851
Less developments_ residential and tand o8} {8541
Completed property portiolin . 13,142 13.754
Altgwance for estimaied purchasers cosls ‘ 897 985
Gross up completed preperty portiolio vatuation (A) 14,039 14,739
Annuyalised cash passing rental income ‘ 407 . 607
Propesty culgoings : ) 9 [£:]
Annuatised et rents 18] 598 599
Renl exgiration of renl-free periods and fixed uplifts' 38 43
Topped-up’ netannualised rent{C) 428 662
EPRA Netnftial Yield [B/A) ' : : 4£3% £1%
EPRA “topped-up” Net initial Yield (C/A) 4£.5% £.5%
Indeding fixedfminirmum uplifis received in lizu of rental growth n 24
Total ‘wpped-up’ net rents {D] 439 486
Ovarall topped-up” Net Initial Yield {0/A) 445 L7%
Topped-up n=l annuslised rent 628 662
ERVvacant space 34 14
Reversions . . a8 42
Total ERV {E] 700 Fil:]
Net Reversionary Yield (E/A] - 5.0% £.9%

! The weighted average peciod over which rent-free periods expire is 1year F2015/14: 1 yearl.
The ahove is stated for the UX portfolio onty.

EPRA Net Initial Yield [NIY]} basis of calculation

EPRA NIY is caloulaled as the lised net rent [on a cash flow basis), divided by the gross value of the compleliad property portfolio. The valuation
of sur completed property portlolio is determined by our external valuers as at 31 March 2017, plus an allowance for estimated purchaser’s costs.
Estimaled purchaser’s costs are determined by the relevant stamp duly liability, plus an estimate by our valuers of 2gent and legal lees on notional
atquisilion. The net rent deduction altowed for property outgoings is based on our valuers’ assurnplions on future recurting non-recoverable
revenue expenditure.

in calrulating the EPRA topped-up’ NIY, the annualised net rent is increased by the total contracted renl frorn axpiry of rent-free pariods and future
coalracted rental uplifts where defined as not in liev of growth. Overall ‘topped-up’ NIY is caloulated by adding any other contracted fulure uplift lo
the “tapped-up’ net annualised rent.

The net reversionary yield is calculated by dividing the 101al estimated rental value [ERVI {or the campleted property portictio, as determined by
our external valuers, by the gross completed properly porifolio valuation.

The EPRAvacancy rake is calculated as the ERV ol The unrented, teitable space as a proportion of the Lolal rental value of the completed property portfolio.

EPRA Vacancy Rate
2017 2015
£m ) m
Annualised potential rental value of vacant premises N 34 14
Annualised potential rental vatue for the compleled property portiolio e 728
EPRA Vacancy Rate £.8% 20%

N

The above is stated for the UK porifolio only. A discussion of significanl factors affecting vacancy rates is included within the Strategic Report
ipages 28 to 30). ’
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Table B continued

EPRA Cost Raties -t
2077 201
&m &mn
Property operaling expenses 3 5
Administralive expenses 84 90
" Shareof joint ventures and fimds expenses 12 13
Less: Performance and management fees [from jeint ventures and funds] b 7
Net other fees and commissions (-3 {8
Ground rent costs ‘ 121 {3l
EPRA Costs (including direct vatancy costs] LAl 108 108
Direc! vacancy cosls na2 nn
EPRA Costs lexciuding direct vacancy costs) (8] 88 97
Gross Rental Income less ground rent costs 412 £29
Share of joinl ventures ang funds IGR tess ground rent costs) 2% 22
Total 6ross Rental income less ground rent costs (C) 441 651
EPRA Cost Ratio linctuding direct vazancy costs) (A/C] 15.4% 14.4%
EPRA Cost Ratio {exduding direct vacancy costs} {B/C) 13.7% 14.9%
Overhead and operating expenses capitalised lincluding share of joint ventures and funds] 5 &

In the current year, employee costs in relation to staff lime on development projects have been capitalised into the basa oust of relevant development assets.

TFable C: Gross rental income

047 201
&m Em
Reni receivable 613 615
Spreading of tenant incenbves and guaranteed rent increases’ 8 36
Surrender prernia 2 3
6ross rental income 843 4654
The current and prior year information is presented on a proportionally consolidated basis, excluding non-controlling interests.
Table D: Property related capital expenditure
2n7 . : 20016
ventures veniures
Sroup  andfunds Total Group and funds Taral
Acquisilions 88 - 88 238 - 38
Development m 1% s 104 58 174
Like-for-lke portfolio &7 &7 14 . 77 & 105
Other 20 2 2 . 25 15 40
Total property related capex 308 83 389 465 79 545

The above is presented on a proporltionally consolidated basis, excluding non- conlrolling interests and business combinations. The Other’ calegory
conlains amounts owing 1o tenant incenlives of £10m [2615/16: £27m), capitalised stalf costs of £9m [2015/14: £4m} and capitalised interest of £7m

[2015/14: £9m).
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Orher informacion

UNAUBITED
Acquisitions and Disposals
Acquisitions N
. Price Annaat
Price  [British Land Passing
’ {Gross] shara) Rant
From 1 Aprit 2015 Sector . £m Em Emt
Completed )
Mew George Sireet Estate, Plyrnouth Retail &4 &5 5
10- 48 The Broadway, Eating’ Ratail 49 4% 2
Harlech. Newport - Tesco exchange® Retail &1 20 1
Tesco, Brislington - Tesco exchange? Ratail (13 23 2
Hereules Unit Trust unit purchase® . Retail ) 18 18 1
Teesside Leisure Park ’ Retail - 13 3 1
Dock QHices Canada Water 8 8 -
Totat 2w 195 12

' Property acquisition exchanged and completed post year end.

* Property acquisitions exchangad and complated pact year 2nd as part of 2 Tesco SV swap ransaction resdiing in 3 net £73m dispasal of supacsiore assais.
* Units purchesed over the course of the yaar. E18m represents purchasad GAV. .

* Brilish Land share of annualised rent tepped up for rent frees.

Disposals
Price Annual
Price (Brilish Land Passing
{Gross share] Rant
From 1 April 2014 . Sector m £&m Em®
Completed ’
Debenhams, Oxford Street . Relait £00 400 13
Superstores’ ‘ Retail £10 226 12
Portfalio of retail assets ’
IDebenhams Manchester, York Clifton Moor, Wakefietd Westgatel Retail ki) | 12 12
Ebury Gate Gifices 34 34 2
Durniries Cutkoo Bridge Ralail 20 20 1
56 - 70 Putney High Street ’ : Retail 20 20 1
Lisnagetvin, Londonderry ‘ Retail 15 15 1
Luton Power Court : Retait s 9 -
The Hempel Collection . Residential -~ 18 14 -
Aldgate Place ¢ - Residential 46 23 5 =
Exchanged® .
The Leadenhati Buil&ing . Offices 1,150 575 7
Clarges. Mayfair Residential 19 19 -
Total . ’ 2,328 1,546 59

' Otwhich £116m {British Land share] exchanged and completed post year end as part of a Tesco IV swap iransaction resulling in a net £73m disposat of superstore assets.
* Sales complating post year end.
* Bruish Lang share of annualised rent lopped up tor rent frees.
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Portfolio Valuation®

Change %#
 r=R
Fumds ToiA
Al 31 March 2017 fm om €m H1 H2 Y
Regional Lilestyle 1520 1834 2956 ‘1281 10 ns
Local Lifestyle 167 &77 2,148 i4.8] G4 1451
Multi-lets . 2 2 5,102 an 0.7 2.0
Department Stores & Leisure : 574 1 575 32 1 51
Superstores . 106 526 632 3.6 125} (5.2
Solus/Other ) 345 - 345 37 18 55
Retail , 381 2,838 4,854 2.5 07 1.8
West End 3940 - 3960 {z.4) 17 0.4
City : 108 277 2.584 78] 44 {0.8}
Offices 4,088 2,776 5,844 135) 28 ©oan
\ Residentiat® 194 15 7 - 54 4.2
Qffices & Residential 4,224 2,77 7015 2.3 29 to.s)
Canada Water ' ] ] m - m 21 2.0 10.9)
Total ' 8,311 5429 13940 12.8] 1.6 1n.4)
Standing Investments 7821 5487 13,308 28l 13 0e
Developments £90 142 432 12.01 48 17

* On a proportionally consotidated bass incluing the Group’s share of joint ventures and funds.
2 Valuation movement during Ure yaar latier Laking acoount of capital expenditurel of proparties held at Lthe balance sheet date, intluding davalopment s
Iclassified by end usal, purchases and sales.
¥ Standalone residential

Gross Rental Income'

12 maonths 1o 31 March 2017 Annualised as at 31 March 2017
JVs & =8

Group Funds Tatal Group Funds Total
Accounting Basis . £m Em £m £m €m £m
Regional Lifestyte &0 B6 144 & 86 147
Local Lifeskyte 98 7 125 88 2 4
Multi-les : ) 156 13 m 1%y "z 28
Depariment Stores & Leisure 48 - i8 38 - 38
Superstores 9 32 £1 & 32 38
Solus/Other 20 - 0 20 - 20
Retail _ ' . 73§ 145 . 380 7n3 184 3857
West End 129 - 129 125 . - 125
City ‘ 5 173 1) I 4 104 108
QMfices 134 16 7 129 104 233
Residential®. 4 - 4 4 . &
. OMfices & Residential 138 146 254 1313 104 237
Canada Water . 9 - 9 8 - 8
- Totat 387 261 643 354 - 248 602

' Gross rantat income wall ditfer from annualised rents due Lo accounting adjustments for lixed and minimum contracted rental uplifis and lease incentives,
7 On a proportionally tonsolrdated basis induding the Group's share of jeint ventures and funds.
* Standalone residential. ' .
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Mher infarmation

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Portiolio Yield and ERV Movements*

. . ' NEY® ERVY Growth &t NEY Vil Movernent bps?

Av31 March 2017 i % Hi H2 FY HY H2 Y

Regignal Lifestyle . . iy 13% 0% 2.3% % 14 12

Local Lifestyle - 54 13% 1.7% 25% 29 f1} 27

Mulli-lg!s 51 1.3% 11% 2.6% 22 3 18

Diapartmeni Stores & Leisure 59 0.4% (0.1%} 0.4% 4 nal hsl
Supersteres ’ 55 13.0%) f10%) 14.0%) 8 13 2}

SolusfOther 52 48% omt 48% 9 ] 1)
Retail ' ) 52 0.9% 0rs 16% 18 @l 14

Wast End &5 6.3% 0.4% (%3 15 {i 15

City* ‘ 45 t0.2%t 0.4% 0.2% 77 {13 15

Offices - ) L5 1% 0.4% 05% n t6) 15

Canada Water 3.4 0.9% 10,99 0.9% . & 5 9

Towmt ' ' 48 0s% 06% 11% 19 [ 15

' On a propurtionally consoliéaiad basws induding the Eroup's share of point venturas ant funds. Exclutag inted Gavelopmants 2nd dential assets.

® As calautated by IPD.

* Including nolional pPEThISer's Cisis.

€ City NEY is £ 4% pro forma for sate coenpletion of sur 5% interest in Tha Leadenhatl Building which axchangad in the year.
. R s

Retail Portfolio Valuation — Previous Classification Basis!

Valuaticnh Change %7 ERV Gromith &° - MEY Yists Movament bps.

Ar 31 March 2017 ’ £m Hi H2 FY Hi  H2 Y HI H2 FY
Shapping Parks 3,167 an 67 1338 14% 08%  2.4% T ] 20
Shopping Centres 2,27% 12 08 .3l 13% 13% 2.6% 14 o o2
Superstores 632 13.01 25 5.2 [3.0% (L0% 14.0%) 8 3 21
Department Stores 166 54 30 R 67 04% 0.3% 0.7% 2 noy 8l
Leisure 413 0.5 3.2 27 04% i02%l 0.2% 4 121 17l
Retail 4454 (2.4} 0.7 [1.8) 049% 0T 1_&% 1% B3l . 1k
* On a proportignalt b basis including the Group's share of joiny ventures and funds.

* Vatuation mmemem duning the year {after taking account of capital expendilure] of properties held a1 the balance cheel date, incluging developments
ldhassifiad by end usel, purchases and sales.
¥ As catcutated by IPD.
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Portfolio Net Yields'=>>

EFRAlapped  Overalt lopped Nei Na

EPRARa upnetitial  up e il eqavalenl  revessionery

At 31 Manch 2017 % Lo a3 % b
Regional Lifestyle 45 44 £7 49 50
Local Litestyle 51 52 53 54 5.4
quﬁ-lets 47 49 &9 R 52
Department Stores & Leisure 40 &0 72 59 £4
Superstores 56 56 546 53 53
SolusfOther 54 Y 3 54 52 48
Retail 49 51 52 52 5.1
West End 35 37 k1 45 4B
City* 37 &1 41 £5 51
Offices 36 39 9 &5 49
CanadaWater 28 29 29 34 s
Total 4.3 45 4.4 . 48 5.0

' On a proportionatly consolidated basis mdyding the Group's share of joint ventures and funds.

* indleding notional purchaser’s costs.

! Exdluging connnitted develop

* Including rend contracted from expiry of renl-free periods and Fixed uplifis nol in liew of rental growth,

* Jnduding fixedfminimum uplifts lexdludad from EPRA definition).
* City net aquialand yield is 4 6% and EPRA nat initial yield s £.2% pro forma for sale ¢

of oy S0%

Retail Portfolio Net Yields"* - Previous Classification Basis

inThe Lt

il Buiteging wiiich exch lin theyear.

. EPRAlopped  Dverall topped Net Nat
EPRA net upmetindial  upasiinitial equivalent 1
initial yld t 7t yiatd vield
At 3t March 2077 % B R % ®
Shopping parks 49 51 51 52 52
Shopping centres 45 47 43 5.0 514
Supersiores 56 56 56 55 53
BDepartment stores 51 o1 &4 56 39
Leisure 43 63 74 62 © AT
Retait 49 51 52 5.2 51
' Ona pmpurliunai{y consolidated basis inCluding the Group's share of jownt ventures and funds.
? iduding notivnal purthaser's costs.
1 Exduding committed devalopments
* Including rent contracted Irom expiry of renl-lree peniods and fuced uplifis not in ew of rental growih.
* incluting fuxed/minimurn uplits lexduded frgm EFRA definition).
Total Property Return (as caleulated by IPDY
Relail Offhces Total
. British Land PO Bnbsh Land 1P Bnash band PO
Futll Year ro 31 March 2617 % % % % % %
€apilal Return 07t 2.3 0.6 (] .2 0l
—ERV Growth L6 0% 05 20 11 19
- Yield Expansion? 14 bps 12bps 1S5bps 13bps HSbps & bps
Income Retwin 5.3 5.1 35 3.8 43 4.7
Total Property Return 3.5 28 28 28 31 4.8
* Ona propertionally consclidated basis including the Grodp's share of joint ventures and hunds.
* Net equi yield : .
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Chher inforuuitio

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Occupiers Representing over 0.3% of Total Contracted Rent*

At 31 March 2617 o % of total reng i ol redal raw
Tesca gic? ’ 54 Vodalons ’ 83
J Sainsbury pic . 48 Asda Group 27
UBS AG 34 . AonPlc 0%
Debanhams .33 SporisDirect 09
Kinglisher [B&Q} 28 Microsoft 09
HM Government ' 24 30 Sporis [+2]
Mext plc 24 Dzulsche Bank ‘ [1E:]
Virgin Active 9 Reed Smith 08
Facebook 18 HEM ' . 97
Dentsu Asgis 17 Mayer Brown _ 07
Spirit Group 17 Motharcare 07
MaSplc ' 16 TGi Frigays 05
Weslarmers [Homebase/Bunnings] ' 16 1ICAP Pic ‘ 0é
Alliance Boots - 17 Riverisland : 0.6
Visa Inc 15 MS Amalin Plc 06
Dixoas Carphone 14 Credit Agricole &6
Arcadia Group - 13 Peis at Home . 05
Herbert Smith 13 Henderson ) 05
RBS : ’ 12 Primark 05
TH Maxx 10 Aramco 05
Gazprom . ' 10 House of Fraser 05

New Look 10 Sleinhoif : 0.5

' ' Ona groportionally consclidated basis including the Groug's share of jeinl ventures and funds.
* 4.7% proderma for post year &nd net dispasal of £73m in 3.Tesco IV swap iransaction.

Major Holdings

Britsh Land Ocoupancy . Lease

. share Sqlt Rem rate tength

A3V March 2017 . % 06D £m pa’ B yrs®
Broadgate 50 4830 194 983 8.2
Regent’s Place © 0 1.5%0 76 991 14
Paddington Central 60 958 13 9 68
Meadowhall, Shellield 50 1.500 B84 973 . b4
The Leadenhalt Building* v 20 603 40 99 10.3
Sainsbury’s Superstores® 5% 2184 48 1600 10.4
Teesside, Stockion? 100 569 17 %9 56
Drake’s Circus, Plymouth’ . 100 1132 2 95.9 89
Glasgow For) 77 510 2 983 59
Ealing Broadway ) 100 470 13 93.7 5.9

* Annualised EPRA contratled rent including 100% of Joint Veniyres & Funds.

* {nduding actemmadalion under offer fincluding past year transaciions at 2 Finsbury Avenue and 4 Kingdom Street] or subjact 1o assel managament
tintluding space being prepared Tor flexibie working) or assels baing readied for devaiopmentan the nearterm {1 Finghury Avenue).

} Weighled average to first break. : B

* Sale exthanged in March 2017 with camplelion due posl year end.

> Comprises standalone stores.

* Includes Teesside Leisure Park acquired in the year.

? Includes New Gearge Street Estate. Piymouth acquired dufing the year.

- .
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Lease Length & Occupancy?

Average lease length years Ootupancy rale %

AL TE March 2017 To axpiry Tobreak  EPRAGooupancy Gomppancy’
Reqionat Lifestyle 79 87 973 C 9717
Loral Lifesiyle 79 68 923 912
Multi-lets 79 448 73 978
Department Stores & Leisure 174 174 98 998
Superstores 1z 1.3 100.0 1600
SolusfGther ' 125 123 0o.e 1060.0
Retail 75 86 979 983
West End 20 73 930 970
City* 98 83 FAR 8.4
Offices 94 7.8 921 2.7
Canada Water &8 45 ¥76 8.8
Total 9.4 8.3 5.2 9840
* On a proporticnaily censolidated basis incluting the Group's share of joint ventures and funds.

7 Includwg ate 2ation undar offer [including past yaor transactions at 2 Finsbery Avenuwe and 4 Kingdorn Streat] or subjact to asse! managament

lincluding space baing prepared for Alexble varking) or 15 being readied for devel =y thee near taren [ Finsbory Avenual.
7 City sverage lease length (o break s 8.2 years pro forma for sala complation of cur SIS mizrest i The Leadenhall Building.
Portiolio Weighting!'
2007 mwm7 2007
0% lasren)  lousrend) lproformen

At31 March % % Em %
Regional Lifestyle 194 213 2954 214
Local Uifesiyle 143 5.4 2148 6.1
‘Multi-lers s7 6.7 5,102 373
Department Steres & Leisure 49 41 575 42
Supersiores 53 45 632 39
Salus/Gther 23 25 345 25
Retail 50.2 £18 6656 483
West End 246 284 3940 o'ki]
City 177 207 2,884 187
Offices 463 £9.1 6,844 £8.5
Resideatial’ | X3 1.2 m 1.2
Offices & Residential LYAS 50.3 7,015 £2.7
Canada Water 19 19 m 20
Tatal 1000 100.0 13,940 100.0
Dfwhich Landon 58% 50% 8,050 8%

* On a propor tionally consolidaied basis including the Group's share ol joint ventures and funds,

? Pro torena for developments under construction and commilted developments at estimated endvalue las determinad by the Group's external vatuers] and post year
end ransactions including the expected sale comptetion of our $9% interest in The Leadenhall Building and the Tesco JV swap transaction.

¥ Siandzlone residental.
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Other information

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Annualised Rent and Estimated Rental Value (ERV)

Anmualsad rent
[aluation bads) Em* RV im Average renl fpst

At31 March 2017 Group m Tatal Total  Conracted® 2V
Regional Lifestyle &1 87 148 164 313 31
Local Lifestyte 91 28 18 -128 249 /A
Muylti-lets 151 s 266 290 80 2948
Department Stores & Leisurs 36 - k7S 28 185" 14
Superstores [ 32 38 3% N3 2041
SolusfOther it] - i 17 98 170
Retail 213 147 340 n 245 _' 284
West End? 132 - 132 179 342 £22
City's 4 103 107 150 525 502
Offices* 134 103 229 329 534 &81.2
Residential® 4 - & é
'Offices & Residential 140 103 243 333

Canada Water 8 - 8 10 184 210
Total k0 250 511 T4 303 3.2
' On a proporti tidated basis & g the rouy s share of joint ventures and hands.

® Grmranlspluamemmmwtstarﬁmg, any increases to ERV las determined by the Group's external valuers), tmanygrmmdmﬂspayab{emm
eases. exdudes contractad remt subjact 1 com ree 2nd future uplil.

* Annuatised rend. plus rent subject terent free.

* Epst melrics shown [or ofivca spaca anly.

% City average rent ps{ en a contracted basis s £50.1 and on an ERY basis is £57.4 pro borma for sale completion of oo 507 wierest in The Leadenhall Building.

* Standalone residantial

Rent Subject to Open Market Rent Review!

At31 March 20%7
Freldt] 2059 220 an 022 me-2 g2z
For year te 31 March tm £m £m Em &m £m
Regional Lifestyle 13 17 12 i8 3 42 3
Local Litestyte 24 17 In n ] 51 68
Multi-tets 37 34 22 7 w 723 "
Department Stores & Leisure - - - - - - -
Supersiores 4 7 10- 12 3 21 36
SolusfOther - - - - - - -
Retail &1 41 32 &1 22 114 77
West End 2% 20 15 0 9 59 78
City [ 145 14 13 1 32 i8
_ Dffices 28 34 29 5 10 n 126
" Canada Water 1 1 - - - 2 2
Tatal 70 78 (3] &b 2 207 05

' On a proportionally conselidated basis including the Group's share of joint ventures and funds.
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Reant Subject to Lease Break or Expiry'

At 3% March 2017
2018 2019 020 2021 2022 2008-20 20t8-22
For year o 31T March &m £m Em m L Em Em
Regional Lilestyle 19 10 14 U] 13 43 8
Local Lifestyle 8 7 0 ? 1} 5 45
Multi-lets 27 17 24 1 2 &8 n3
Department Stores & Leisure - - - - - - -
Superstores - - = ~ - - -
SolusfOther 1 - - - 1 1
Retail 27 18 24 L F3 &9 14
Wesl End é 0 3 17 21 1 57
City 7 n 1 9 2 29 40
Offices 13 21 14 24 &) 48 7
Canada Water 1 1 - 1 - 2 3
Total ' A1 &0 38 44 49 1y 214
% of contratted rent 3% 6.3% 6.0% 7% 7.T% - 18.6% I1L%
! On a proportionally consolidated hasis intlurfing e Group's share of joint ventures andg funds.
Superstores '
Sli_;ndalme Supersiores’ In Multi-tel asseis® Tola! Exposame’™?
Valuation Valuation Valualicn
[British  Capital [British  Capital {British  Capital
Store Size Noa ol Land share] Value Lease - Noof Land share} Vatue Lease Noof Land share} Valus Lease
‘D sq fit Stores £m pst  lengi Stores - £m pst length? Stores £ pst langih?
»100 6 152 340 mi 4 286 419 11 L] 438 388 LIR]
75-100 19 - m 384 1.3 3 73 2% 15.0 n 244 342 123
50-75 12 179 3564 hiik] - - - C - 12 179 3584 108
25-50 3 1% 272 8.1 3 32 456 18.5 [ 47 37 167
0-25 2 [ 138 81 21 98 465 1.2 23 104 409 100
March 2017 3 523 352 10.9 ) n 489 3y7 124 84 1,012 N 17
- March 2016 47 743 383 13.9 28 537 482 12.7 ki 1,301 419 13.5
Geographical spread 6russ Rent [British Land share] Lease Structure
London & South 58% Tesco £29m RP! and Fixed W%
Rest of UK £2% Sainshury's E26m OMRR 90%
Other ESm

Table includes £43m acquisitions and £114m disposals that exchanged and completed past yeafend as part of a Tesco JV swap iransaclion resulbmg in a ned £73m

dispasals of superslore assels

* £xctudes £13m non-loodstare occupiers in supersiore lad assels.

? Eaclydes non-food formal stores e 9. Asda Living.

? Excludes £93m of investments held for trading comprising (reshold reversions in a pool ot Sainsbury's Superstores.

* Weighted average lease length to first break.

4
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Chiher inferstarien

UNAUDITED CONTINUED - ' . | .
f _

Recently Completed and Committed Develppments!

. »

Lel&
British Land PC Currant Casiip Under
- share 5t Calendar Value Came ' ERV Offar
AL31 March 17 Seclos % 009 Year o £ra® £m* £m
& Kingdom Streat Office 06 W7 Q22 151 18 25 78
Clarges Mayfair - Offices Oifice 100 51 Q22015 135 & 54 43
- Glasgow Fort Leisure Quarter Retart 77 12 Q32018 - 04 6.2
Tha Hesnpel Phase 1 Residental 100 25 052004 & 3 - -
The Hempel Phase 2 Residential 100 33 Q& 2004 &5 3 - -
Aldgale Place Phase 1 Residentia! 50 221 Q22014 - 7 - -
Total Completed in Year &89 343 17 155 1n5
100 Liverpool Street Qlftce 50 S0 042019 2 152 8.4 -
Speke lLeisurel Retail : 67 & Q2218 4 14 1.2 08
Clarges Mayfair - Relail and Residential®*  Mixed Use 100 184 QL7 382 . 52 0.8 -
Total Committed 690 £78 218 208 08
Retait Capex® 11
! Una preporionally consatidated basis including the Group's share of joint mlur-\esandﬁmdsiexcq)&mmm‘ s shown 3t W8]
2 Exdudes compleled sales of E120m.
* From 1 Agrit 2017, Cosl to come excludes notional interesl as interest is capilalised individually oneach | i al our capitalisation rat.
* Estimated eadline rental value nel of rent payable under head leases fexcluding tenant incentives).
¥ Current valye indudes units exchangad ant not completed of £278m.
¢ Capex commitied and underway within our i ent poritolio relating (o leasing and ass2t management.
Near Term Development Pipeline!
British Land Expected Current Cost o
share . Sqht Sezrt Valua Come ERV
A3 March 17 Sectar % ‘008 | OnSike EmT £m® Em® Satus
135 Bishopsgale ' Olfice 50 125 2017 107 55 94  Submitted
1 Triton Square Office 1060 366 2018 161 260 233 Resolution
: ' to grant
1 Finsbury Avenue . Office 50 288 2m7 77 T35 77 Submitted
Plymouth {Leisure] . Retail 00 104 2018 - 48 31 Consented
Total Near Term ) 1.083 345 e &35
Retatt Capex® ) 75

' Dn a proportionalty consolidated basis inctuding the Group's share of joint ventures and funds (except area which is shown at 100%5).

? From 1 Apnil 2017, Cost Lo coma excludes notional interest 35 interest is capi tndive ly on each P 3R our capitalisation rate.
* Estirnated headline rental value nel of rent payable under head leases lexcluding tenant incentives).

* Forecast capitat comamitrnents within our investment portfolio over the next 12 months retaling 10 leasing and asset enhancement. .
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Medium Term: Development Pipeline

British Land
. share St

AZ31 March 17 Secior % 000 Status

283 Ninsbury Avenue Offive 50 253 Consznied
" 1-2 Broadgate Office 50 ars Pre-submission

Blossom Sireet . o © Ofice 100 340 Consenled

5 Kingdom Sireet! ‘ Offics 108 32 Consented

Gateway Building Office , i6e 105 Pre-submission

Meadowhall [Leisure} Retail . 50 372 Submitted

Peterborough [Leisure] Ratei] L] 182 Pra—suhmission

Teesside [l eisure) Reail 100 i) Pre-submission

Bradford fLeisure} Retail 100 49 Pre-submission

Aldgate Place Phase 2 Residential 50 155 Consented

Eden Walk Relail & Residontiat . Mmced Use 50 538 Consented

Total Medium Term excl Canada Water . 3.on

Canada Water' ~ ' Mixed Use W 5580 Pre-submission

* Planneng © for previous 250,000 sq ft scheme.

! Assumed net area based on gross areas of up o 7m sq fit.

Residential development programme’

. Sates
. Brilish Cusvent Cost to . Bnsl
Land share Sqft  TotalNo. Mo Uniis PC Value” Coms®  Completed™  Valuetosall

ALY March 17 o 600 Units tosell Date Em €m &m m

Clarges Maylair 100 94 34 11 asamm7 - 347 52 278 150

The Hempel Phase 1 100 25 13 t  Ga2016 4 3 - 7

The Hempel Phase 2 100 33 18 13 Q4 2016 45 3 - 46

Aldgate Place Phase 1 50 221 154 1 Qz22ma - 7 - 7

Total Committed Residential 373 = 26 ] 39 45 | i)

! On a proportionally consolidated basis induding the Group's share of joint ventures and funds [excepl area which is chown at 10TR5).

? Exchudes complated sales of £128m.

? From i April 2017. Cost o come excludes nobional intecesl as interest is capitalised individuatly an each development at our capitalisation rate.
* Atagreed sales price. ) . .
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Orher iaforeecion

UNAUDITED CONTINUED

Sustainability performance measures

Aligned lo our corporate sirategy, ou 2070 sustainability strategy 1s huilt sround lour focus areas. which address major sotisl, econamic ami

environmentat trends 10 create velue for our stakeholders and the business.

The data below covers up to 373 of our mulli-lel manzged porifolio by value [71% of assats under management] and 100% of develepment projects,
except for EPC and liood risk data, where the scope covers 100% of assets under management. Please see the scope cotumn for indicator speahic

raporting coverage.

Selected data has been independently assured for a decade. Selected data for 2017 has been independently assurad by Pw(C in acoondance with
1GAL 3000 [Revised] and ISAE 3410. In pricr years, setected data was assured by PwlC and other providers. For the 2017 Pwr( assurance siatement,
moe detailed data on all these indicators and additionz! indicators, please sea our Sustanability Accounts 2017 wwwebritishland.com/data

British Land has been a signatory lo the United Nations Global Cempact since 200%. For our 2017 Communication on Progress, visit

wwnw. britishland com/sustainabilityreport

Parformance o Scope
2020 target 2017 208 <)
‘Waellbeing .
Defiver WELL certified commerdial office to shell and core, and set corporate policy Datver  Ontrack  Targel establishad -
for future developments
Devalop and pitot retail wellbaing spedlicalion Deliver  Ontrack  Target establiched -
Increase the sense of wellbeing for shoppers, retailers and occuprers at our places Increase  Ontrack Baseline éstablished -
Dzfine and trial methodology for measuring productivity in offices Deliver Ontrack  Target established -
Rasearch and publish on how developmant design impacts public health oulcomes Daliver © Ontrack  Targeiestablished -
[ w i.y .
implernent our Local Charter at all staffed assets ant major develcpments 100%% ofr. nfr -
Briush 1 and 2mployae volunteering 0% 90% 84% -
Brifish | and employee skilis-basad volunteering 2% 6% 6% -
Community programrne beneficiaries nfa 35,625 29.482 -
Futureproofing [also see Carbon Reporting on page 38 and EPRA on page 1731
Developmants on track ke achieve BREEAM Excellert for offices ang Excellent 160% 3% 82% 13/13
of Very Good for retail
Carbon [scope 1 2nd 2} intensity reducion versus 2009 lindex scorel 55% 44% AD% 6773
S4/100 60100
Landiord ensrgy intensity reduction versus. 2009 lindex score) _55% 35% 8% 8773
_ 5100 627100
Landlord embadied carbon intensity reduction per m? on projects aver ES0m versus 2015 15% nfr afr -
Waste diverted from landiill: managed properties and devetopments 100% 98% 98%% 18842
Energy Performance Cerliicales rated F or G s % 3% 2298/2389
On site renewable energyincome nfa  [87.000 £37.000 n
Portiolio at high risk of flood [by value) nfa 3% 5%  2%2/5%
Skills and opportunity lalso see diversity data on pages 25 and 72]
Tier 1 and 2 contracts Supply Chain Charter compliant 100% nfr nfr -
{for prioritised contracts] .
Tier 2 supply chain spend wathin 23 miles Managed properiies nfa 63% BY% 4104
Developments nfa 40% &50% n
Priorilised supplier worklorce who Tier | suppliers 3% L% nfr -
are apprentices - based on pilot study Tier 2 development suppliers 3% 311% njr -
Employees paid L iving Wage Foundation wage ' 100% 100% 100% -
Supplier wark{orce paid Living Wage Foundation wage 2t managed properties nfa 2% 77% 98/10&
Supplier workforce living within 25 miles of our places nfa T0% 7% 105/112
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Sustainability performance measures continued -
British Land has received EPRA Gold Awards fer sustainability reporting five years running.

ossenng
7 2018 5 urols)
EPRA best practice recommendations on sustainability reporting®

Total eleciricity consuription (MWh] 172,127 172.238 1769 A0S
Tatal disirici heating and tooling consumption IMWhI (] 1} ] 00
Total fuel consumption IMWh| 29,319 38.734 35399 &4048
Bulding energy intensity (kWhi Offrces [per m) 15670 155.64 150,45 B
Relail - enclosed {per m?} 161.89 15697 177.08 517

Retadl - open air
lper car parking space) 150.01 133.66 124.88 3IVI7
Total direct [Scope 1] greenhouse gas emissions ltonnes CO,e} 7409 7927 7519 98z
Total indirect [Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions ftonnes GOzl 35,049 370 42503 98hm2
Greenhouse gas inlensity fram building energy consumgtion Offices lperm? 0059 9975 0.076 i/t
ltonnes COl Retal - endesed [parm?) 0.057 0073 0098 w7

Retail - opan 2
Iper car parking space) 0054 0.053 0.063 3537
Tolal water consumption Im?) 853541 653490 557041 8065
Building water intensity [? per FTE or 10,000 visitors] Offices %Sy 1508 .94 2177
Retail - enclosad 9.47 10.29 .23 &7
Retail - open air 2.86 1.79 194 18/20
Tolal waste by disgosal route llonnes and %] Re-used and recycled 12.166 12.899 w212 a7

{56.8%) 160.8%] (50.3%I ’
Incinerated .23 8132 670 6577
143.0%) 38.3%| (36.0%
Landfilled 15 184 680 &8/T7
‘ ‘ fo.2%} 09% 127

Suslainably certilied assets - Energy Parformance AB TR 30% 2% 2296/7389
Certificates 1% by valuel Cof % 8% 5% TWETIR9
: FloG 2% % 3% 2

' As per EPRA best practice recommandations. total energy and watar data covers energy ant waier procured by British L and. Energy 2nd carbon intensity dala covers
common parls and shared services lor Oifices and common parts for Retait. Waler intensity data covers whole buitdings for Offices and comman pans lor Retail
Intensity data for provious years has been restated (o align with our intensity index methodology. Per o comprises nal internal araas tor Oflices and common parts for
Relait. Waste data for previoys years has been restated 1o apportion Material Recovery Faclily hanvdled waste to recycling, maneration and/or landlil as appropriate.

For our full methodology and more detailed dale on ali these indicators and additionat indicators, please see our Systainabili

www_britishtand. com/data

ty Accounts 2017
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TEN YEAR RECORD

The tabte below summarises the Last tan years’ rasults, cash flows 2nd batance sheets. .

il

7 015 Pl m3 7012 Pt 010 P 7008
£m im £m © fm T Em fm £in m Em &m®
tncome!
Gross realal income 443 654 418 597 567 572 ' 54} 551 450 w7
Nel renial income 610 620 585 542 541 544 518 545 598 " 687
Net fees and other income 17 17 17 1% 15 17 1 15 20 40
Interest expense [net} 1151 {180) [zonl {202 1208) 1213) 1217 [256] 292) 1350}
Adrmnistrative expense 8&} 194} 188} 78) 176 {75) 158} (] 58} 73l
Undertying Profit 320 383 313 27 274 29 256 249 268 284
Exceptional costs )
[not includad in Undertying Profith - - - - - - - - fivt -
Dividends declared 2% 287 277 264 234 23 231 225 98 7%
Summarised balance sheets -
Total properties at valualion®® 13940 L6488 13677 12040 10499 10337 9572 853% 84625 13471
el debt 18,223 (47851 §59v8] 14890 162651 164900 14373 4081 {6944  {5.403)
Diher assels and liabilities i219) 191 7% (1231 1268)  1268)  1298) s 1297 tizzl
EPRA NAV/Fully dituted adjusted netassets 9,498 10,074 2,035 7.027 XY 5.381 5,108 £407 3387 6936
Cash Row movement &roup only
Cash generated from operations 3 341 38 243 197 Fill 182 248 4B8 &77
Cash outflow from operations 118) 1471 133 124] 17) B T2 1201 129351
" Net cash inflow from aperaling activities 383 294 285 219 190 206 210 125 205 182
Cash inflow [outflowd from capital
expendilure, investmenis, acquisibons )
and disposals ’ 479 236 HID (6501 202} 1567 12500 139 48 857
Equity dividends paid iz95l iz3s5i i228] {1591 203) ina {139 {154 {188} 161
Cash loutflowd inflow from management ) . .
of liquid resources and financing 15381 1283} 20 407 03 630 157 (485} 158l 1830}
increase idecreasedin cash® - & 134 7 12 7 2 1548 377 48
Capital returns i
[Reduclion] growih in net assels? 57%] 115% 284% 178% 0% 55% 157%_  300%  (5L1%  [21.6%)
Total return . 7% 142%  245% 200% 4.5% 95% 1776 335% [Srewl  (18a%)
Total return — pre-exceplional 27T%  42% 2A5%  200% 5% 95% 177 335%  160.3%)  (18.4%W)
Per share infermation’
~ EPRA nat asset value per share Nnsp ¥19p 829p £88p 596p 5950 S547p 506p 398p  I4p
Memorandum ’ . ’
Dividends declared in the year 292p 28.4p 277p 270p 26.4p 26.1p 260p 266p 298p 290p
Dividends paid in the year 28.8p 28.0p 23p 26.7p 263p 26.0p 26.0p 27.3p 30.0p 26.7p
Oiluted earnings . '
Underlying EPRA earnings per share 37.8p 34p 30.5p 29.4p 303p 297p 28.9p 28.4p £1.0p 44 3p
{FRS earnings Hloss) per share® W%WTp 1W97p  Wl3p. N0Z2p 315p S38p  9520. 1326p  16143pi  {251.0p)

' Including share of joint ventures and funds.
7 Represents movement in diluted EPRA NAY.

* Inctiding surplus over bobk value of wrading and davelopment properiies

4 ticluding reslatementin 2014 Isee note 2 o the hnanoat stalements]. and excepbonal finance costs in 2009: £119 million.

3 2008 restated for IFRS. The UK GAAP actounts shows gross rental income of £620 million and Undertying Profit of £175 mation.
+ Represems rovemnent in cash and cash equivalents under IFRS and movements in cash under UK GAAP.

T Adjusted for the righl s issue of 341 million shares in March 2009,
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Financial calendar

mrhe

Fourth quarier ex-dividend daie 29 June 2017
Fourth quarier dividend payment date 4 August 2017
First quarter ex-dividend date 85 October 2017
First quarter dividend payment date 10 November 2017
Hall year results 16 November 2017
Second guarter ex-dividend date January 2018
Second quarter dividend payment date February 2018
Third quarter ex-dividend date March 2018
Third quarter dividend payment data May 2018
Full year results May 2018
Fourth quarter ex-dividend date ) June 2018
Fourth quarier dvidend payment date August 2018

If olfered, the Board will announce the availability of a Scrip dividend alternalive via the Regulalory News Service ng [ater then four business days
before each ex-dividend date_Scrip dividend akemnatives will not be enhanced. The 5plit batween PID and non-PI0 income lor each dividand wall

be announced al the same time,

Reftecting the long term nature of our business, we will cease gublication of first and third quarter irading updates going forward. Wewill condinue
to provide Irading updates ahead of our AGM each year. The next AGM is scheduted for 18 July 2017 and we wili conlinue to provide limely updates

on the business as appropriate,

Analysis of shareholders — 31 March 2017

Numbar . Bienceasat
Range of holdings % 31MaThENP %
1-1.008 5.835 55.87 2541358 C 024
1,001-5.200 3.060 29.30 §775826 0.45
5,001-20.000 &62 534 4,413,735 062
20,001-50.000 238 2.28 7554 M1 on
50.001-Higheast 549 5.21 1.017.749.427 917
Total 10,444 100.00  §,041.035.058 100.00

Number Balance a5 at
Halder type \ of holgters % 31 March A7 %
individuals 6410 8137 11,740,359 113
MNominee and institutional investors 4,034 1843 1029294499 9887
Tetal 10,444 100,00 1,041,035058 100.00

' Excluding 11,265,245 shares hetd in Ireasury.
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION CONTINUED

Registrars

British Land has appointed Equiniti Limited
[Equinati] to administer its shareholder registar.
Equiniti can be contacted of:

Aspect House, Spencer Read,

Lancing, West Sussex BN?7 6DA

Tel: 0371 384 2143 |UK callers]

Tel: +£4 (01121 £15 7047 [Overseas catlers)

Lines are open from 8:30am io 5:300m
Monday Lo Friday excluding public halidays.

Equiniti's website is: www.shareview.co uk
By registenig with Sharmnew, sharehotdess can:

- view your British Land shareholding online;
- update your details; and
- elect lo receive shareholder

mailings elecironcally.

Equiniti 15 also the Registrar for the BLD
Property Holdings Limited Stock.

British Land’s Debentures Reqistrar is Capita
and can be contacted at:

The Regislry

34 Beckenham Road.Beckenham, Kent
BR3 4T

Tel: 0871 464 0360

Calls cost 10 pence per minute plus nelwork
exiras. Lines are epen Irem 9.00am 1o 5.20pm,
Monday (o Friday excluding public holidays

Share dealing facitities

By registering with Shareview, Equiniti
also provides existing and prospective UK
shareholders with a share dealing facility
for buying and selling British Land shares
ontine or by phone.

For more information, contact Equinili

at www.shareview.co.uk/deating or cali

03456 037 037. Lines are open Monday lo

Friday, 8.00am to 4.30pm. Exisling British { and

shareholders will need the relerence aurpber
" given cayour share centificate (o register.

Similar share dealing facilities are provided by
other brokers. banks and linancial services,

Registered office
The registered gffice of The British Land .
Company PLC is situated at:

York House

45 Seymour Streel

London W1H 7LX

Tel: +46 {0120 7486 44466
Website: www_britishlantl.caom
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Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeung of The British
Land Company PLC will be held at The Hyau
Regency London — The Churchill, 30 Portman
Sguare. Lendon WIH 7BH cn 18 July 2017

at 11.08am.

Dividends

As a REIT, British Land pays Proparty
Income Distribution [PIDH and non-Prepecty
Income Distribution Inon-PifY dividends.
More information on RE1Ts and P1Ds can

be found i the Glossary on page 17701

in the lveslors section of cur website al
www.hritishland com/dividends

British Land dividends can be paid directfy
into your bank or building society account
inslead of being despatched by cheque.

More information about the benefits of having
dividends paid directly inte your bank or
huilding secizly accound, and the mandate
form to set this up, can be tound in the
Investors section of cur website at
www.britishland.com/dividends

Scrip Dividend Scheme

British Lang may offer shareholders the
opporiunity to particpate in the Sorip Dividend
Scheme by offering a Scrip Alternalive to a
parlicular dividend from time to lime. The
Scerip Ooadend Scherne allows partiapating
shareholders lo receive additional shares
instead of a cash dividend. More information
is available on the lnvestors section of

our website al www_britishland.com/
serip-dividend-scheme’

Website and shareholder commmunications
The Brilish Land corporate websile contains a
wealth of matenal for shareholders, including
the current share price, press relesses and
information dividends. The websile can be
accessed at Www.britishland.com

British Land enceurages its shareholders

to receive shareholder cothmunications
electranically. This enables shareholders to
receive information quickly and securely as
well as in 3 more environmentally friendly and
cosl-effective manner. If you would ke further
irformnation, please visit www.shareview.co,uk
o telephone the Shareholder Helplina.

Shareholder fraud waming

Shareholders are reminded te be verywgilant
of share fraud. This might include unsaliciled
tetephone calls or letters offering free
investment advice or offers to buy and sell
shares al discounted or infiated prices.

The Financial Conduct Authorily [FCA] has
published lots ol useful advice on how io
protect yoursell from investment scams. This
information is available on the FCA website
www.fca.erg.uk/scams or by catling the
Consumer Hetpline on 0800 111 6768,
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Shareholders with 2 sinzl number of shares,
the value of which makes it uneconomic ©
sall thamn, may wish to consider donaling thewr
shares to charnity. ShareGill is a regislered
chanty [No. 1852585] which collects and selis
umwanted shares and uses the procesds

to support 2 wide range of UK chanlies.

A ShareGift donation form can be oblained
fromn Equiniti and Turther inlormation is
avalable 21

ShareGift

The Trr Madkindosh Foundation L amited,
17 Carlten House Terrace,

London SWIY SAH .

Tel: +44 {0120 7930 3737

Website: www.sharegift.ory

Unsolicited mail

Brilish Land is reguired by law to make its
share register available on request Lo other
organisations. This enay resull in the receipt
of unsolicited sail. To Lmit this, shareholders
may register with the Mailing Preference
Sexvice. For more infoomation, or o register,
visit: www.mpsonline_org.uk

Henorary President

In recognilion of his work building Briish Land
into the industry leading tompany it is loday:
Sir John Ritbtal was appeinted as Honorary
President on his retirement irom the Board

irt December 20056,

Tax

The Group elected for REITF status on 1 January
2007, paying a £308m conversion charge to
HMREG in the same year, As a consequence of
the Group's REIT status, tax is not levied within
the corporate group on the qualifying property
rental business hut is instead deducted from
distributions ol such income as Property
fncome Distnbulions 16 shareholders. Any
ncome which does nol Jall within the REFT
regime is subject to tax within the Group in the
usual way Fhisincludes profits on property
trading activity, property related fee income
and interesl income. We continue to comfortably
pass all REIT tests ensuring that oz REIT
status is mamtained.

We work proactively and openly to mainiain

a constructive relationship with HMRC. We
discuss matlers in real-time with HMRC and
disclose all relevan! lacts and circumstances,
particularty where there may be fax uncer tainty
or the law is unclear. HMRC assigns risk ratings
ta all large companies. We have a low appetite
for tax risk and HMRL considers us to be ‘Low
Risk |a status we have held since 2007 when
the raling was first introduced by HMRCL



GLOSSARY

Adjusted net debt is the Group net debt and
the Group's share of joint veniyre and funds’
nat debi excluding the mark-to-market on
effzclive cash flowy hedges and refated dedl -
adjustments and non-contrelling interests.
A recondiliation between Group net debt and
adjusted nat debt is included in Table A within
the supplemeniary disclosuras.

AGM is the Annual General Meeting of The
British Land Commpany PLC. The 2017 AGM vall .
ba held on 18 July 2017 at Tha Hyali Regency
Londen - The Churcinil, 30 Partman Sguare,
London Wi1H 78H commeanding at 11 00am.

Annuatised rent is e gioss property rend
raceivable on a cash hasis as at the reporting
date. Additinnally, it includes the extamal
valuers’ eslimate of additional renl in respect
of unszttied rent reviews, turnaver rent and
sundry income such as thal from car parks
and commerdalisation, iess any ground
rents payable under head leases.

Assets under management is the Fell value
of all assets owned and managed by British
Land and includes 1003 of the vatue of all
assels caned by joint ventures and funds.

BREEAM [Building Research Eslablishment
Emvironmental Assessment Mathod) assessas
tha sustainahility of buildings against 2 range
of social and environmental criteria.

Capita! retum is caltulated as the change
in capital value of the pertfolio. less any
capex incurved, expressed as a percentage
of capital empluyed Istart value plus capital
expenditure] over the penied, as calculated
by IPD. Capilal returns are calculated
monthly and indexed to provige a retum
over the relevant pariod.

Conbracted rent is the annuakised rent
adjusting for the inclusicn of rent sulbject
ta rent [ree periods.

Customer satisfaction combines survey
results on overall experience ralings from
decision makers, properly directors, slore
managers and visitors across eur retail
and office businesses.

Devetoper’s profit is the prolit on cost
eslimated by the valuers that a developer
would expect. The developer's profit

is typically calculated by the valuers te
be a percentage of the estimated total
development costs, including land and
national finance cosis.

Devetopment cost is the total cost of
construction of a project lo completion,
excluding site vatues and finance costs

. Ifinance costs are assumed by the valuers
at a notional rate of 5% per annum).

Development uplift is the lotal increass

in the value {after taking account of capex
and cagitatised inlerest} of properties hald
for development duning the pariod. li also
indudes ary devetoper’s profit recogrised
byvaluers in the penod.

EPRA s the European Public Reat
Estate Assooation, the industry bady
for Evrapean REMs.

EPRA oost ratio linctuding direct

vacanry oosis) is a progortionally consaligated
measure of the ratio of net overheads and
operating expenzes agains! gross rentat
income with both amounts excluding ground
renis payable]. Net ovarhzads and aperating
expanses relate to all administrative and
operaling expznses, net of any service fees,
recharges or olher income spedfically intendad
to cover overhread and property expenses.

EPRA cost ratio [excluding direct

vacancy costs) is the ratio caleulated above,
but with direcl vacancy costs removed
from the nel overhzads and operating
axpenses balance.

EPRA eamnings is the IFRS profit after
taxalion atiributabie to shareholders of
the Company excluding investrment 2nd

‘development property revatuations. gains/

losses on investing and trading property
disposals, changes in the fair value of

financial instruments and associated”

close-out cosls and their related laxation.
These ilerns are presented in the capital
and othar column of the incorne statement.
A reconciliation between profit attributable
to shareholders of the Company and ’
EPRA eamings is included in Table B
within the supplemnentary disclosures.

EPRA NAY per share is EPRA NAV dvided
bty the dituted number of shares at th
pedod end. -

EPRA net asset value [EPRANAV]isa
proportionally consolidated measure,
represenling the IFRS net assels excluding
the rark-to-market on elfective cash flow
hedges and related debt adjustments, the
mark-to-markel on the convertible bands
as well as deferred taxation on property
and derivative vatuations. It includes the
valuation surplus on trading properiies
and is adjusted for the dilutive impact

of share oplions. A recondiliation between
IFRS nel assets and EPRA NAV s included
in Table B within the Supplementary
Disclosures.

.
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EPRA net intial yield is the annuatised rents
ganerated by the portfolio, alter the deduction of
an estimaie of annual recurming uyrecoverable
propariy oulgosngs, expressad as a perceniage
of the partiolio valuation fadding notional
purchaser's casts), excluding development
and residential preperties. :

EPRANNNAY s the EPRA NAV adjusied 1o
reftect the lair value of debl 2nd derivatives and
te include deferved taxation on revatuations.

EPRA occupancy rate is the ERY of occupied
space dwvidad by ERV of the whole portfolio,
excinding developments and residential
propaty.

EPRA topped-up net inftial yield is the
current anmwaliced rend, net of cosls, lopped-
up for contracied uplifts, where these are
nat in liew of rental growth, 2xpressed as

a perceniage of capital value ladding

noicnal purchasas’s costs).

EPRA vacancy rate is the ERV of vacant space
dividad by ERV of the whole portlolio, excluding
developments and residential property.

Estimated rental vatue [ERV)is the externat
valuers opinion of the open market rent which,
on the date of valuation, could reasonably be
expecied io be obtainad on a new letting or
rent raview ol 2 property.

ERV growth is the change in ERVover a

period on the standing investment praperties
expressed as a percentage of the ERV at the
start of the period. ERV growth is caloutated
rnonthly and compounded for the peried subject |
e measurement, as calculated by IPD. -

Fair value movement is the accounting
adjustment 1o change the book value of
an assel or liability o ils market value.

Footfall is the estimated annualised number
of wisilors entering our assets.

Footfall growth is the lke-for-like movement
in iootiall against the same period in the prior
year, on properlies gvned throughoul both
comparahle periods. aggregated ai Brilish
Land's ownership share for each asset.

Gross investment activity is our share of
acquisitions, sales and capilal expendilure
oninvesiments and development

Gross rental incame is the gross accounting
rent receivable {quoted either for the period
or on an dnnualised basis) prepared under
IFRS which requires that rental income from
fixad / minimum guaranteed rent reviews and
lenanl incentives is spread on a straight-line
basis over the lease period to earliesl
termination date. This can result in income
being recognised ahead of cash flow.
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Geher nformiagion

GLOSSARY CONTINUED

Groupis The Britich Land Company PLC

and its subsidiaries and excludes its share

of joint ventures, ang funds {where not traated
as a subsidiary] on a line-by-tine basis

{i.e. not propartionally consolidated).

Headline rent & the contracted gross rent
recevabte which becomes payable ailer all the
lenani incentivas in the letting have expired.

IFRS are the Internztignal Finandat Repdrting
Standards as adopted by the European Union.

income returnis calculated as net income
expressed as a percentage of capital employed
over the period, as catculated by IPO. Income
returns are calculated monthly and indexed

to provide a relumn over the retevant period.

Interest cover is the number of times net
financing costs are covered by Underlying
Proiit before nat linancing costs and taxation.

1PD is 2 brand of real estate indices. gwned by
MSCI, which produce independent benchmarks
of property returns and British Land UK
porifctio relums,

Lettings and lease renewals are compared
both to the previous passing rent as at

the siari of the financial year and the
ERVimmedialely prigr to letting. Letling
performance against ERY compares of
achieved letting terms onlong term leltings
and r 1S against assumptions
on like -for-like space, calculated ona net
elleclive basis, aggregated al British Land's
ownership share lor each assel.

Leverage see loan to value (LTV]..

L ike-fer-like rental income growth

is the growth in nel rental income on properties
owned throughout the current and previous
periods under review. This growth rate includes
revenue recaghition and lease incentive
adjusiments byt excludes propertias held

for development in either perjod and lease
accounting adjustments related to fixed and
minimum rent reviews. .

Loan to value [LTV) is the ratio of principal
value of gross debt less cash, short term
degosits and Bquid investments Lo the
aggregate vatue: of properties and investments.

Managed porttolio consists of multi-let
properties where we have control of fadlities
and ulilities managemenl.

Mark-to-market is the difference between
the beok value of an asset or liability and ils
market value,

.
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Net devalopment vatue is the astimatad end
value of 3 development project as delermined
tyy the external valuers when the beilding s
compleied 2nd fulty lei fizking inte account
tenanl incenlives and nolional purchaser's
cosis) It is hased on the valuer's view an ERVs,
ynelds, l2ting voids and terani incentives.

Net effective rentis the tomtractad gross
rent receivable takwy indo accouni any
rent-free period or sther tenanl incentives.
The intentives are irezted a3 a cost-to-rent
and spread over the lease period to the
earliast tarmination date

Net equivalent yietd (NEY] is the Sine weighted
average netum [alter add@ing notiona! purchasers
costs) thal a property will preduce. in acoordance
with usual praciice. the equivalent yield las
datermined by the external valuers) assume
rent is received annually in arrears.

Netinitial yield (NIV] is the current annuatised
rent, nel of cosls, expressed as a percenlage
of capilal value, after addivg noticnal
purchaser’s cosis.

Net rental income is the rental income
receivablz i the pesiod 2fer payment of direct
property outgeings which typically comprise
ground renls payable under head leases, woid
oosts, net service charge expenses and other
direct irmecoverable property expenses. Nel
renlal income is guoted on an accounting basis.
Net reatal income will differ from annualised
nel cash rents and passing rent due to the
effects of income from rent reviews, net

qoings and accounhing adjustments
for fixed and minitum contracted renl reviews
and lease incentives.

Net reversionary yield INRY} is ihe anticipated
yield to which the initial yield wall rise for talli
once the ren! reaches the estimated rental value.

Bocupancy rate is the estimated rental value of
et units as a percentage of the total eshmated
rental value of the porticlio, excluding
development and residenliat properlies. it
includes accommodation under offer, subject
1o 2sset management lwhere they have been
taken back for reflurbishment and are not
available to let as at the measuremeat datel .
or occupied by the Group.

Omni-channel retailing seels to provide the
customer with a searnless shopping experience
across channels, including slores, online and
raohile. This empowers customers lo switch
batween channels during the shopper jourmey
according lo their prelerences. For example, they
can use mobile in-siore 1o Fesearch or make 3
purchase, buy online and collect in-store, or they
can buyin-store and initiate a relurn ontine.
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Dver rented is the term ysed 1o descoribe
when the conlrecied reni is 2hove ibe estimated
renl2l value.

Cverall topped-up net initial yield [TUNIY]
is the EPRA lopped-up netinitial yiald, agding
all contracied uplifts te the annualised rents.

Passing rent is the gross rent, less any
ground rent payabie under head leases,

Property income distributions {PiDs} are
profits distributed to shareholders which are
sufifect to taxin the hands of the shareholders
a5 proper by incorne. PiD's are ronmatly paid
net of withholding tax, currentty ail 20%, which
the REIT pays Lo the tax authorities on behalf of
the shareholder. Cerlain types of sharchoider
le.g. pension unds) are tax exempl and receive
PiDs without withizolding tax. REITS slso

pay oul normal dividends, calied non-PiDs.
which are taxed in the same way as dividends
received from non REIT companies; thase

are not subjactlo wilhhelding tax and fer

UK individual shareholders qualify for the

tax free dividend allowance.

Pertfolio vatuation is reported by the Group's
exiemnal valuers. In accordance with usual
practice, they report valuations nel, after the
daduction ol notional purchaser s cosls, including
stamgp duty land tax, agent and legal fees.

Propertionally tonsolidated reasyres indude
the Group's share of jeint venlures and funds

 and exctude non-controlling interests in the -
' Group's subsidiaries.

Rack reated is the terrn used to desanbe when
the conlracled rent is in line with the estimated
rental vatue, implying nil reversion.

Rent-free period see Tenant lor leasel incentives.

RENTs are property companias that altow
people aid organisations Lo invest in cornmescial
property and recesve benefits as if they directly
owned the proper ies lhemsetves. The rental
income, after costs, is passed direcily lo
shareholders in the form of dividends_inihe
UK REITs are required to distribute at least
90% of their 13% exempt property income ko
shareholders as dividends. As a resull, over
tlime, a significant proportion of rhe totat return
fer shareholders is likely to come lrom dividends.
The effect is that taxalion is moved from the
corposate ievel to the investor kevel as inveslors
are liable for tax as if they owned the property
directly. British Land became a REIT in
January 2007.



Rent reviews take place at intervals agreed
in the lease {typically every five years) and
their purpose is usually to adjust the rent to
the current market L=vel 2l the review date. For
upwaits-onty rend reaews, the rent wall either
remain al the sarne level or increase if market
rents have increased) at the review date.

Rents wath fixed and minimum uplifts are
either where rents are subject to contracled
uplifis at a tevel agreed at the ime of letting; or
where the renl is subjact to an agreed minimum
taval of uplift at the specified rent review.

Retaiter sales growth is the like-Tor-like
movemant in retaiter in-store sates agamst
the same perod in the prior year, an occupiers
remaining in the same unil. providing sales
data throughout both comparable peniods.
aggregated 22 British Land’s ownership

share for cachassel. ’

Relizil planning consents are separated belween
Al, AZ and A3 - as set oul in The Town and
Country Planning iUse Classes] Order. Within the
Al category, Open Al permission altows for the
majority of types o retail including fashion to be
accoinmodated, whils Restricted Al permission
places limils on the types of retail that can eperate
{far example, a restriction that only bulky goods
operators are allowad to trade al that site).

Use for all/any of the

Class Desoription !
following purposes

Shops, relilwarehouses,
hairdressers, undertakers,
travel and licket agencies,
post ofhices, pet shops,
sandwich bars, showsooms,
domeslic hire shopsdry .
cleaners, funeral direclors
and internet cales.

AV Shops

Financial services such as
banks and building sodeliss,
professicnat services [ather
than health and medicat
sarvices| and including

" estate and employment
agencies. Il does not include
hetting offices or pay day
toan shops - these are now
dassed as “sui genens” uses.

A2 Finandal
and
professional
services

AJ Restaurants Forthe saleof foodand -
and cafes  drink for consumption on
the premises - restasrants,
snack bars and cales.
D2 Assembly Cinemas, music and conceri
andleisure  halls, bingo and dance
halls [but not night clubsl),

swirnrning baths. skating
ninks; gymnasiumns or areas
for indoor or outdoor sports
and recreations,

Raversion is change in reni eslimated by

the external valuers, where the passing rent

is different to the esiimated rental value.

The incraase or decrease of renl arises on

renl reviews and letting of vacanl space or
re-letting of expines.

Scrip dividend For ceriain parieds. British’
Land offers its shareholdars the opportunity o

receive thvidends in the form of shares instead
©f cash. Thisis known as a Saip dividend.

Standing investments are asselswhich are

1 nol in the ¢ourse of, or held for, develapment.

Tenant lor lease] incentives are incentives
cflered to occupiers to enlar into a lease.
Typically this will be an initial rent-free period, or
a cash contribution to fil-out. Under accounting
rules the value of lease incentives is amorbsed
through the income statement on a straight -
line basis to the earlizst leasa termination dale.

The residual site value of 2 development is
calculaled as the estimated net devzlopment
value, less development prolit, atl development
construclion costs, finance cosis [assumed at
a notional rate] of a project o cempletion and
notional stte acquisition costs. The residual is
determinad to be the current site value.

Topping out is a traditienal consiruction:
ceremony to mark the occasion when
tho struciure of the building reaches
the highest pomnt.

Total property returnis calculated as

the change in capital value, less any capex
incurred, plus net income, expressed as

a percentage of capilal employed over the
period, as calculaled by IPD. Total property
returas are calculated monmhly and indexed
to provide a return over the relevand peripd,

Tatal accounting return is the growih in
EPRA NAY per share plus dividends paid,
and this can be expressed as a parcenlage
of EPRA NAV per share at the beginning

of the period.

Total sharcholder returnis the growth

in vatue of a shareholding over a specified
period, assuming dividends are reinvested
to purchase additional units of stock_

Total tax contribulion is a more
comprehensive view of tax contributions
than the accountancy-defined tax figure
quoted in mgst financial statements.

it comprises taxes and tevies paid direcily,
as well as taxes collectad from others
which we administered.

Turnover rent is where all or a portion of
the renlss linked to the sales or turnover
of the ocoupier.
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Under reated is the term used o desoribe
whan the contracted rant 15 balow the
eslimated rental value [ERVI, implying

a positive reversion.

Underlying earnings per share (EPS)
consasts of Undertying Prohit alter tax divided
by the dlluted weighted average number of
shares intssue duning the pariad.

Undertying Profit is the pre-tax EPRA earnings
meaasura with additional Company adjustments.
No Company adjusiments were mada in either
the current or prier period. ~ Lo

Valuation movement is the change inthe
portiolio valuation and sales receipls of
properties sold during the peried, net of

capital expenditure, capitalised interest and
development team costs, and iransaction costs
intured, expressed as 3 percentage of the
portiofio valuation at the start of the period plus -

-nat capex, capilalised interest and development

tearn cosis, and Uransaction cosls.

Yirtual freehold represents a long leasehold
tznura fora parind of up ta 999 years. A
‘peppercorn’, or nominat, zent is paid annuatly.

Weighted average debt maturity is calculated
by muitiplying each tranche ol debt by the
remaining period lo its matunty, with the
surn of the results being divided by total

debt in issue at the period end.

Weighted average interest rate is the loan
interest and net derivative cosls per annum
at the period end, divided by total debl in
issue at the period end.

Weighted average unexpired lease term
is tha average lease lerm remaining lo
first break, or expiry, acroess the portfolio
weighted by conlracted rental income
{including rent-freesl. The calcutation
extiudes residential leases and properiies
allocated as developraents.

Yield on cost is the estimated annual rent
of a completed development divided by
the total cost of developraent including
site value and notional finance cosis lo
the point of assumed renl commencement,
expressed as a percentage return.

Yield shiftis a movement [usually expressed
in bps}in the net equivalent yield of a property
assel, or like-for-lke portiolio, over 3 given
period, weighted by net capital value.
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Forward-looking statements
This Annual Regorl comains certsin Ec.rward-laaklng stalemenis. Such
stalternents rellect currenl views on, among other things, our markeats,
ac\wmes projections, objectves and prospects. Such forward-looking
nts can somatimes_bot nol ab . b identilied by their reference
1o 3 date or peint in the future or the use oi forward -looking” lerminology.
including lerms such as ‘believes’, ‘estimales’ anlicipates’ ‘expecls.
Horecacte’, imends’, 'due’, ‘plans’, projecis goal’, outicek, “schadule’,
“largat’, aimy, may’, oty o), 'will, ‘'would’, ‘coutd”, ‘should” or similar
expressions o in €ach case their negative or other vaveslions or
comparable ierminolugy. By their nature, forwarad-looking slatements
involve inherent risks, assumpiions and unceriainlies because they relate
to luture events and depend on Gic (e wehich May or Mmay not oocur
and may ba beyond our ability to contrat or predici. Ferward-tooking
stalements should e regardad with caution as aclual resulls may differ
materially Irom those expressed in or impliad by sech statements.

Important factors that could cause actual results, performance or
achigvementis of British Land to differ materially irom any culcomes

. or results expressed of impliad by such forward-tooking statemants
includa, amaong other things: [a) ganaral business and political, social and
economic conditions globally, [b] the cc q es of the referendum on
Britain leaving the EU. (c] indisstry and markst wrends kincluding demand
in the property invesiment market and property price volatility}, Id}
competition, [e] the behaviour of other market participants._ lfl changes in
government and olther requiation, including in retation (o the envir
health and safety and taxation lin particular, in respect of Brilish Lands
status as a Real Estate Invesimant Trust), lg inflation and consumer
confidence. [h) Iabour relations and work sloppages., [il natural disasters
and adverse weather conditions, {jl terrorisem and acts of war, [kl British
Land's gverall business straleqy, risk appelile and investmenl choices
in its porifolio management. (1) lega! or other proceedings against or
affecting British Land, lm] reliable and secure IT inlvastructure, [nl
changes in occupier demand and tenant default, [o) changes in financial
and equity markels including interest and exchange rate flucluations,
|p} changes in accounting practices and Lhe interpretalion of accounting
standards and [q 1ha availability and cost of finance. The Company's
principal risks are describad in greater detail in the section of this Annual
Report headed Risk Manag and Principat Risks. Forvrard-tooking

tal ntg in this A  Report, or the Brilish Land websile or made

subsequenlly. which are aliributable to British Land or persons acling
o its behall should therefore be construed in light of all such factors.

Information contained in this Annual Report relating to Brilish Land or
its share price or the yield an its shares are not guarantees of, and should
nat be relied upon as an indicator of. luture performance, and nothing
in this Annual Report should be construed as a profit forecast or pruofit
eslimale. Any torward-looking staterhents mada by or on hehalf ol Brilish
Land speak only as of the date they are made. Such forward-looking
staternents are expressly qualilied in their entirety by the factors referred
to ahova and no representation, assurance, guaraniee or warranty is given
in relation to them {whether by British Land or any of its associates,
directors, officers employees or advisers], including as to their
compleleness, accuracy or the basis on which they were prepared.

Other than in accordance with our legal and requlatory obligations
{intiuding under the UK Financial Conduct Authorily's Listing Rules,
Disclosure and Transparency Rules and the Markel Abuse Regulations).
British Land does not intend or underiake to updale of revise torward-
looking statements 1o rellect any changes in British Land's expectations
with regard thereto or any changes in information_ events, conditions

ot circumslances on which any such stalement is based. This document
shalt nol. ynder any circumslances. create any implication that there
has been np change in the business or atlairs of British Land since the
date of this docement or ihat the inferration contained hereinis cnrrect
as al any ime subsequent 1o this date.
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